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INTRODUCTORY SECTION

Photo by Captain Kimo / City of West Palm Beach



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
June 30, 2022 
 
The Honorable Mayor Keith A. James, 
City Commissioners and Citizens 
Of the City of West Palm Beach, Florida 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
It is our pleasure to submit this Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the City of West Palm Beach, 
Florida, (the �City�) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021.  
 
This report provides the City Commission, City staff, our citizens, our bondholders and other interested parties with 
detailed information concerning the financial condition and activities of the City government.  State law requires 
that all general�purpose local governments annually publish a complete set of financial statements within nine 
months of the close of each fiscal year.    
 
City management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information contained in this 
report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has established for this purpose.  Because 
the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather 
than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements. 
 
In accordance with Sections 11.45 and 125.01, Florida Statutes, the City�s financial statements were audited by an 
independent Certified Public Accounting firm.  Plante Moran, PLLC., Certified Public Accountants, have issued an 
unmodified (clean) opinion on the City�s financial statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021.  The 
independent auditor�s report is located at the front of the financial section of this report. 
 
Management�s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor�s report and provides 
a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements.  The MD&A complements this 
letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it. 
 
REPORTING ENTITY AND ORGANIZATION 
 
The City of West Palm Beach was incorporated in 1894 and has operated under a strong Mayor form of government 
since 1991. The City Commission consists of five elected officials who are responsible for enacting the ordinances 
and resolutions that govern the City. The Mayor is the elected Chief Executive Officer of the City and appoints the 
City Administrator, Assistant City Administrators, City Attorney and Department Directors. 
 
The City of West Palm Beach provides its constituents with a full complement of public services including, but not 
limited to public safety, public works, parks and recreation, construction services, housing and community 
development, library, and community events. 
 
All transactions required to support City services are reflected in this report.  This report includes all funds that are 
controlled by the City Commission or are dependent on the City Commission. Additionally, the activities of certain 
entities for which the City has financial accountability have been included in this report.  The City Commission and 
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Mayor sit as the Board of the West Palm Beach Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA); accordingly, this Agency 
is included as a reporting entity and is reflected in this report.  The West Palm Beach Housing Authority and the West 
Palm Beach Downtown Development Authority have not been included in this report.  Note A in the Notes to the 
Financial Statements lists the specific criteria used for establishing financial accountability. 
 
SERVICES PROVIDED 
 
The City provides a full range of municipal services, including police and fire protection; refuse collection; traffic 
control; garage and on�street parking; planning, zoning and building inspections; licenses and permits; vital statistics; 
the construction and maintenance of streets, and other infrastructure; neighborhood parks recreational and cultural 
activities; library services; low�income housing; and trolley services.  Utility Services include water, sewer, and storm�
water services. The City also provides general administrative services.  
 
MAJOR INITIATIVES 
 
On May 10, 2021, the U. S. Department of the Treasury announced the launch of the Coronavirus State and Local 
Fiscal Recovery Funds (SLFRF), established by the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, (ARPA). The City was allocated 
$24,530,823 to be received in two tranches of which the first tranche was received May 19, 2021 in the amount of 
$12,265,412 and expects to receive the second tranche of $12,265,412 in July of 2022.  
 
City Commission work sessions and a Special Commission meeting were held in August 2021 to recognize the 
acceptance of the grant funds and to publicly present the intended eligible use categories for the first tranche of 
expenditures. The FY22 adopted Budget includes the new ARPA Fund 126 allocating funds for four (4) eligible project 
expenditure categories:  
 

1. Replace Lost Revenue ($6,490,000) to be spent on vehicle replacements  
2. Grant Management ($425,206)  
3. Public Health/ and Negative Economic Impacts ($839,670) providing employees with a vaccine 

incentive pay  
4. Premium Pay ($4,510,535) for essential workers 

 
Looking forward into fiscal year 2022 and beyond, the City must continue to look at ways to further streamline 
operations and look at the way we provide services to our community. We must continue to call on our Department 
Directors and our City Commission to look closely at the services we provide and find ways to reduce or eliminate 
programs that are not providing excellent value to our community. Also, post�pandemic, we must identify resources 
to help our business community through recovery from the impacts of the COVID�19 pandemic.   
                        
LOCAL ECONOMY  
 
As one of the three largest cities making up the South Florida region, and the central city of Palm Beach County, 
West Palm Beach is a vibrant, growing, waterfront city that offers the business advantages available in the region, 
combined with a more refined and relaxed environment for living and working. 
 
Despite the lingering effects of the pandemic, the City recorded a $3.9 million increase in business tax revenues.   
Additionally, our City's tax base has gone up significantly despite the pandemic, to $15.6 billion. For the ninth year 
in a row, ad valorem tax revenues continued to climb to record highs. In fiscal year 2021, ad valorem tax revenues 
rose $5.3 million (5.9%). With over three billion dollars of development projects underway, we can safely say that 
our property tax base should continue to grow over the next few years.   Because of these new revenues, the City 
was able to keep its millage rate consistent with that of the prior fiscal year, while providing consistent services to 
its citizens. 
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Economic Development must continue to play a key role in the growth of our City. Finding ways to encourage growth, 
attract new industries to the City, and retain and expand our existing businesses is critical for us to maintain the 
existing service levels we provide to the community.  
 
The City has created the opportunity for large and small businesses to move and grow within our local economy 
while creating new jobs for our growing population. In the current fiscal year, the City attracted and welcomed 
several large and small businesses into its local economy.    More and more, our City is being selected as the choice 
destination for other businesses to relocate.  A recent study highlighted the City�s highly competitive business 
climate with no personal income tax and a relatively low corporate tax rate.   Our City has also gained the attention 
of the financial services industry and have garnered a reputation of being the �Wall Street South�.    
 
The City is also bolstering its reputation of being an education hub.   Adding two new universities to those currently 
located in our City to offer graduate, professional and executive programs to downtown West Palm Beach.  These 
university programs will support the growth and expansion of companies through innovative programs and financial 
technology, artificial intelligence, data analytics and cyber security, among other areas.      
 
With the relocation new businesses and new residents to our City, new development projects of nearly $3 billion is 
on the rise to offer new office space and living quarters.  New development of approximately $81 million in the City�s 
Historic North�West is also underway to offer the largest investment in multi�family workforce housing in the history 
of the City and will bring 2,600 units to the area once completed.   
 
The City also boasts a rich cultural arts program which continues to attract tourism each year and supports our image 
focused on quality of life living.  The City was recently awarded the lead certification, achieving the gold standard to 
enhancing quality of life, sustainability and climate resilience. 

The City is moving forward to expand mobility by relaunching its bike program and expanding trolley and transit 
services while embracing transit best practices.  These plans will enhance the travel to and from West Palm Beach 
for local residents and tourists alike. 

Other significant programs topping the City�s priorities are the responses to climate change and rising housing prices.  
Through initiatives by the City Administration, efforts to proactively address coastal flooding, resulting from sea level 
rise is being handled by installing tidal valves and storm drain systems along the waterfront area.   To respond to the 
rise in housing prices across the City, an ordinance was enacted to incentivize developers to provide over 600 
workforce housing units within the downtown area over the period of three years.  Furthermore, the City is 
committed to provide additional opportunities to its residents by offering a comprehensive housing program to 
provide education, economic opportunity and affordable home purchase options for lower income residents in 
partnership with the Florida Housing Coalition. 

 
FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
Accounting and Administrative Controls: 
 
City management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure which is designed to 
ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft, or misuse. Furthermore, management ensures that 
accounting data is adequate for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America.  Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable 
but not absolute assurance regarding the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition. 
The controls are also intended to provide assurance as to the reliability of financial records as related to the 
preparation of financial statements and accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes 
that the cost of a control mechanism should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and that the evaluation of 
costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. 
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In addition to the examination of controls performed by members of the Finance Department, the City's internal 
auditors continually review and assess the soundness and adequacy of all the accounting and budgetary aspects of 
the City's financial system. Financial transactions and related data are examined for accuracy, completeness and 
authorization.  Furthermore, data processing applications and systems are analyzed to ensure that necessary 
controls are in effect.  All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework. We believe the current 
internal accounting controls existing for the City of West Palm Beach adequately safeguard assets. In addition to 
these internal controls, annual financial audits are performed by independent certified public accountants. 

Budgetary Controls: 

To ensure compliance with legal provisions contained in the annual appropriated budget, which is approved by the 
City Commission, the City also maintains budgetary controls. Annual budgets are legally adopted for activities of the 
general fund, certain special revenue funds, capital projects funds and debt service funds.  Without Commission 
approval, expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the department level. Administrative controls are 
exercised at the category level for current expenditures and at the line item level for capital outlay. Encumbrance 
accounting is utilized in governmental funds in order to reserve the encumbered portion of the appropriation. 

Cash Management: 

The City�s short�term liquid cash is invested in certificates of Deposit (CDs) and highly liquid investment pools. 
Longer�term funds are invested in U.S. Government Securities and Federal agency securities, U.S. Government 
securities held under repurchase agreements, corporate bonds, mortgage backed securities, municipal bonds, Israel 
bonds, and cash.  Although one of the City�s investment objectives is to earn interest income on short�term cash, 
the investment policy specifically requires that safety and liquidity are the most important standards of the policy 
and funds must be available when needed.  Accordingly, deposits are either insured by federal depository insurance 
or collateralized in a pool as defined by Florida Statute 280.  

Financial Policies 

The City of West Palm Beach has formally adopted financial policies including reserve policies, contingency policies, 
budgetary control, debt management, and a fund balance shortfall plan. The establishment of specific reserve 
policies is an important part of prudent financial management. Reserve policies reduce ambiguity and guide the 
creation, maintenance and use of resources for financial stabilization purposes. The City maintains an emergency 
fund of 10% and a minimum level of unassigned fund balance of 3% of general fund operating revenues. This provides 
the City with working capital in the event of an emergency. The ending unassigned fund balance of $2ϱ͕ϬϯϮ͕ϲϳϯ 
as of September 30, 2021, represents ϭϰ% of the general fund operating revenues.  

Long�Term Financial Planning 

While West Palm Beach undergoes an economic revival, the City is continuing to invest in infrastructure and 
neighborhood parks throughout the City.  In fiscal year 2019, the City commissioned and completed a comprehensive 
Parks and Recreation Master Plan Study. The study provided the City with a roadmap on how to strategically improve 
our Parks� system.  

Resulting from the Parks and Recreation Master Plan Study, a $30 million bond referendum was overwhelmingly 
approved by the voters and was issued to fund many of the park improvements projects.  Thirty�two parks across 
the City will receive significant upgrades funded by this bond over the next several years. 

Other infrastructure upgrades throughout the City are part of the long�term Capital Improvement Program.  This 
program schedules out projects for a seven�year period, however, only the five�year program is adopted by the City 
Commission.  Capital improvement bonds have aided spending on capital projects for the City as a whole including 
it utilities projects. In addition to the bonds, the City benefited from a County�wide one�cent sales surtax increase 
that will generate $60 million over a ten�year period.  Since the start of the one�cent sales surtax program, the City 
received $38.4 million to aid the infrastructure projects through September 30, 2021. 
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Major projects, other than park improvements, funded from the City�s long�term debt and the one�cent sales surtax 
program in fiscal years 2019 through 2021 includes the various streetscape projects throughout the City totaling 
approximately $35 million as well as various utilities force main and lift station improvement projects totaling 
approximately $23 million. 

The City has strategically determined the following long�term objectives:  

� Maintain or improve �AA� bond rating 
� Maintain financially responsible employee benefit plan 
� Leverage resources through community and private partnerships 
� Invest in the expansion of the City�s tax base and preventative maintenance 
� Fund ongoing operations and maintenance of City facilities 
� Maintain reserves consistent with the City financial policies and national standards 

As part of its strategic long�term plan, the City also envisions continued revitalization within City limits, which will 
continue with the streetscapes and street light projects throughout various communities.    
 
The City maintains a vehicle replacement policy, which serves as its fleet replacement guide over a five�year period. 
During fiscal year 2021, the City was able to improve its fleet by purchasing vehicles out of the General Fund, using 
American Rescue Plan Act funds, capital acquisition funds, and storm water funding and utility funds. These vehicles 
will improve service while conserving energy and lowering maintenance costs.  Other fleet replacement vehicles will 
be purchased as funding becomes available. 
 
Other Information: 
 
In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in State statutes and City ordinances, the audit was designed to 
meet the federal requirements of the Title 2, United States Code of Federal Regulations, Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 
Additionally, the audit was designed to meet the requirements of Chapter 10.550 of the Rules of the Florida Auditor 
General. The independent auditors� report is included in the financial section of the report.    
 
Awards:  
 
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of West Palm Beach for its Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious 
national award recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local government 
financial reports.  In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily 
readable, and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to program 
standards. As such, the report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal 
requirements. 
 
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City of West Palm Beach has received a 
Certificate of Achievement for the last forty�one consecutive years.  We believe our current report continues to 
conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA. 
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

As management of the City of West Palm Beach (the “City”), we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021.

Financial Highlights

 The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows (net position)

at the close of fiscal 2021 by approximately $821.8 million. Of this amount, $140.3 million represents unrestricted

net position, which may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

 The City’s total net position increased by approximately $49.7 million or 5.0% from the prior year after considering a

restatement of the opening net position due to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 84 as well as correcting

an error in reporting the City's VEBA plans. The overall increase is attributed to charges for services and other

general revenues which exceeded operating and pension- related expenses, during fiscal year 2021. 

 At the close of fiscal year 2021, the City’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $247.0 million

while the proprietary funds reported a combined net position of $582.7 million.  

 The  City's  total  of  bonds,  notes  and  capital  leases  decreased by $29.3 million,  from $623.7 million  to  $594.4

million, or approximately 4.7%, reflecting repayments accompanied by the issuance of long-term debt in fiscal year

2021 totaling $11.8 million, net of premiums.

 Total spending for all City governmental activities was approximately $262.6 million, up $6.2 million from last fiscal

year. Expenditures for the largest governmental activities were public safety ($138.0 million), general government

($22.0 million), economic environment ($42.9 million) and leisure services ($26.0 million).

 At the end of fiscal 2021, the total of the restricted, assigned, and unassigned components of fund balance for the

General Fund was $28.4 million, or approximately 15.8% of General Fund expenditures. The General Fund balance

also included $19.5 million committed for emergencies and another $0.5 million of nonspendable balances.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements. These financial
statements are comprised of four components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, 3)
notes to the financial statements, and 4) required supplementary information. In addition to the basic financial statements,
this report contains other supplementary information.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a
manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position presents financial information on all the City’s assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows/outflows
of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a
useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.
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The Statement of Activities presents information about how the City’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal
year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to  the  change  occurs, regardless of
the timing of the related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported for some items that will only result in cash
flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities divide the City into the following two classes of activities:

Governmental activities – City services principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues are reported
here, including general government, community events, community and economic development, planning and zoning,
code enforcement, building permits, police, fire, public works, federal housing programs, engineering services, health
and sanitation, library, parks and recreation, downtown redevelopment and Northwood redevelopment.

Business-type activities – City services for which fees are collected from the public are reported here. These services
include water and sewer, storm water and parking facilities.

Fund Financial Statements

The City uses fund accounting to track the sources and uses of resources for specific purposes. The funds of the City can be
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds:

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of
spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. The unassigned fund
balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

Financial statements of the governmental funds consist of a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances.  These statements are prepared using a basis of accounting which differs from that used to
prepare the government-wide financial statements.  Financial statements of the governmental funds focus primarily on the
sources, uses and balances of current financial resources and use the modified accrual basis of accounting.  These financial
statements have a short-term emphasis, and generally measure and account for cash and other assets that can easily be
converted to cash.  The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City’s general governmental
operations to account for available financial resources and demonstrate fiscal accountability. Governmental fund information
helps illustrate the extent of financial resources that are available for expenditure on City programs. Reconciliations of the
differences between the government-wide and fund financial statements are provided immediately after the Balance Sheet-
Governmental Funds and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances-Governmental Funds,
respectively, in the Basic Financial Statements.

Funds that are significant in terms of revenues, expenditures, assets or liabilities are identified as major funds in the Basic
Financial Statements and reported separately. The City’s non-major funds are presented in the Combining and Individual
Fund Statements section of this report.

Proprietary Funds:

The City maintains two types of proprietary funds:

 Enterprise Funds: The City uses enterprise funds to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the

government-wide financial statements, and these funds primarily serve the public. The City uses enterprise funds to

account for its water and sewer utility system, storm water utility system and parking facilities.
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 Internal Service Funds: The City uses internal service funds to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City’s

various functions. These funds primarily serve the City’s departments and account for the City’s information systems,

fleet  management, self-insurance program and employee health and life insurance benefits programs. Because all of

these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, the assets and liabilities of these

funds have been included within the governmental activities’ column of the government-wide Statement of Net Position.

Proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information as the  government-wide  financial  statements,
but in more detail. The financial statements provide separate information for  the water  and sewer  system and the storm
water system, both of which are considered major funds of the City. The parking facilities fund is a non-major enterprise fund.
All internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements.

Fiduciary Funds:

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are
not reported in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support
the City’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. The City reports
a pension trust fund for its restated employees defined benefit pension plan, the Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) trust
fund and the Voluntary Employees' Beneficiary Association plans for Elected Officials and Management Employees
(Management VEBA) and General Employees (General Employee VEBA) for annuity payments to certain pensioners and
elected officials/retirees.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements, and is required by accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information containing pension, OPEB, and individual fund budget and actual comparison schedules of the
major funds. The combining statements for the non-major funds, internal service funds, as well as their related individual
fund budget and actual comparison schedules are found in the Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules
section of this report. 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis:

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by taxes and
inter-governmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant
portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). 

The governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety, public works, economic environment,
engineering, health and sanitation and leisure services. The business-type activities of the City are the water and sewer
system, stormwater utility and parking facilities. In accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board criteria
for inclusion in the reporting entity, the City has no discretely presented component units that must be separately presented
in this report.

The City's assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by $821.8 million at the close of the most
recent fiscal year, an increase of $49.7 million after considering a restatement to the opening net position.  
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The restatement is due to the  correction of an error in reporting the City's VEBA plans and the implementation of GASB
Statement No. 84. Most of the increase is attributed to an increase in charges for services and other general revenues and a
reduction in payments for the City's long-term debt.

Total assets of the City as of the end of the current fiscal year increased by $38.1 million or 2.5%. The increase is attributed to
an increase in the addition of capital assets, net of retirements and depreciation, increase in the City's investment in joint
ventures and cash proceeds from new debt issuances in the current fiscal year.

The City reported an increase in deferred outflows of resources by $1.6 million or 2.1%. The increase is attributed to the
increase in the pension contributions subsequent the measurement date and an increase in the fair market value of the
interest rate swap.

Long-term liabilities decreased by $19.8 million primarily due to current year repayments on long term debt offset by $35.9
million and is offset by an increase in the  pension and OPEB liabilities by $11.5 and claims payable insurance claims payable
by $4.6 million.  Pension and OPEB liabilities increased as a result of the City's VEBA plans which were added in the current
fiscal year.  Insurance claims and related liabilities increased as a result of the effect of the pandemic on the general health of

employees.   

Deferred inflows of resources increased by $10.3 million, almost entirely due to the increase in the net pension and OPEB
liability, determined by the actuarial assumptions, including estimated future contributions by the City.

The City’s net investment in capital assets such as land, roads, parks, buildings, machinery and equipment, rose to $473.7
million from $447.9 million in fiscal year 2021. These capital investments represent 57.6% and 57.2% of net position as of
September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  These asset values are presented less any outstanding debt related to the
acquisition and accumulated depreciation of those assets. The City uses capital assets to provide services to the citizens and
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  Although the investment in capital assets is reported net of
related debt, the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate that liability, and other resources will be needed to
repay any associated debt. 

Another portion of the City’s net position is restricted net position, totaling $207.8 million or 25.3% which represents
resources that are subject to constraints such as debt covenants, grantors, laws or regulations. Unrestricted net position of
approximately $140.3 million or 17.1%, is that portion of the City’s resources that are available to meet the ongoing
obligations to residents, creditors, and enterprise fund customers.

Governmental Activities – Net Position

The City implemented GASB Statement No. 84 and restated be beginning net position to correct an error in reporting its VEBA
plans during the current fiscal year. This required a restatement of the previous year's reported net position, which resulted
in a reduction of the beginning governmental fund net position of $10.1 million. The 2021 net position of $239.1 million is
comprised of $176.5 million net investment in capital assets, $113.5 million in restricted net position and $50.8 million
unrestricted deficit.

During the current fiscal year, the City had continued growth in property values and construction projects creating an
increase in related tax revenues and charges for services of $18.6 million.  However, effects of the pandemic continued to
create challenges within the investment markets around the nation, resulting in lower interest income to the City than in the
previous fiscal year by $4.3 million. Expenses increased by $6.3 million mostly due to additional spending for economic
environmental and related program activities. This resulted in the net increase in the current fiscal year’s net position by
$20.4 million.
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The net investment in capital assets of $176.5 million increased by $11.7 million.  Other resources of $113.5 million, which are
externally restricted, increased by $6.4 million, while the unrestricted net defecit of $(50.8) million increased by $(7.9) million.
The change in the restricted and unrestricted net position reflects the increase in amounts restricted for debt service
requirements and the result of operations, respectively.  

Business-Type Activities – Net Position

As previously stated, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 84 as well as corrected in error in reporting its VEBA plans
during the current fiscal year. This required a restatement of the previous year's reported net position, which resulted in a
reduction of the beginning business-type net position of $0.8 million. The 2021 net position of $582.7 million is comprised of
$297.3 million net investment in capital assets, $94.2 million in restricted net position and $191.2 million unrestricted net
position.

The net investment in capital assets increased from the previous year by $14.1 million, largely due to new additions, net of
related depreciation of $8.1 million, and the reduction of outstanding long-term debt which was used to acquire the assets of
$7.9 million.

Restricted net position of $94.2 million decreased by $2.5 million or 2.6% to comply with the City’s debt service requirements
while the unrestricted net position increased by $16.9 million as a result of the current fiscal year’s operations.

The following table provides a comparative analysis of the City’s net position for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2021
and 2020.

Condensed Statement of Net Position 
(in thousands)

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities

Total
 Primary Government

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Current and other assets $ 338,614 $ 338,754 $ 363,014 $ 347,209 $ 701,628 $ 685,963
Capital assets 387,490 373,175 502,492 494,365 889,982 867,540

Total assets 726,104 711,929 865,506 841,574 1,591,610 1,553,503

Total deferred outflows of
resources 53,491 44,368 23,966 31,463 77,457 75,831

Current liabilities 38,329 29,516 24,456 22,684 62,784 52,201
Long-term debt and other non-
current liabilities 488,928 494,622 281,904 296,057 770,832 790,678

Total liabilities 527,257 524,138 306,360 318,741 833,616 842,879

Total deferred inflows of
resources 13,244 3,291 389 85 13,633 3,376

Net investment in capital assets 176,476 164,740 297,264 283,128 473,740 447,868
Restricted 113,450 107,073 94,306 96,811 207,756 203,884
Unrestricted (50,832) (42,945) 191,154 174,272 140,322 131,327

Total net position $ 239,094 $ 228,868 $ 582,724 $ 554,211 $ 821,818 $ 783,079
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The City reported total revenues of $418.4 million which, in part, represents $209.0 million in charges for services and $179.1
million in property and other taxes. Total expenses were $368.7 million. As shown below, both revenues and expenses
increased during the current fiscal year by $13.4 million and $10.5 million, respectively. The majority of the increase in
revenues is attributed to the increase in charges for services of $6.3 million, while property and other taxes went up by $13.1
million. Interest income decreased by $9.0 million. The overall increase in expenses is primarily attributed to the increased
costs of providing quality police and fire protection and the providing various services and assistance to citizens during the
pandemic.

Governmental Activities – Change in Net Position

Revenues for the City’s governmental activities of $271.6 million which includes $65.9 million in charges for services, as well
as, $186.3 million in property, state shared and local taxes.

For the year, the City’s governmental activities revenues increased $16.8 million or 6.6%. Charges for services and other
revenues, except for interest income, increased from the prior year. Interest income decreased during the fiscal year by  $4.3
million, compared to the prior fiscal year.

The cost of all governmental activities during the current fiscal year was $262.6 million. However, as shown in the Statement
of Activities, the amount that our taxpayers ultimately financed for these activities, through City ad valorem taxes, was $119.4
million. This is because $65.9 million of the cost was paid for by those who directly benefited from the programs as well as
other governments and organizations that subsidized certain programs with grants and contributions, providing $16.5 million.
The City paid for the remaining “public benefit” portion of governmental activities with taxes (some of which could only be
used for certain programs) and with other revenues such as interest and general entitlements.

Business-Type Activities – Changes

Revenues of the City's business-type activities of $146.8 million,  a decrease of $3.5 million or 2.3% over the prior fiscal year.
Charges for services went up by $0.7 million, while, interest and miscellaneous income decreased by $5.1 million.  Capital
contributions increased by $0.9 million. Overall revenue increase was mostly derived from a slight increase in rate charges.  As
a result of the pandemic, market conditions were less favorable than the prior fiscal year and resulted in significantly less
gains on investments during the current fiscal year.  

The business-type activities reported expenses totaling $106.0 million and remained fairly consistent with the prior fiscal year.
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The following table provides a comparative analysis of the City’s changes in net position for the fiscal years ended September
30, 2021 and 2020:

Combined Schedule of Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020

(in thousands)

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type 
Activities

Total
 Primary Government

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Revenues:
Program revenue:

Charges for services $ 65,920 $ 60,382 $ 143,091 $ 142,371 $ 209,011 $ 202,753
Operating grants and contributions 14,112 13,714 - - 14,112 13,714
Capital grants and contributions 2,382 1,751 2,045 1,150 4,427 2,901

General revenue:
Ad valorem taxes 119,412 110,893 - - 119,412 110,893
Other taxes 59,718 55,158 - - 59,718 55,158
Interest income 960 5,237 566 5,250 1,526 10,487
State and local shared revenues 7,125 6,348 - - 7,125 6,348
Miscellaneous 1,932 1,234 1,129 1,519 3,061 2,753

Total revenues 271,561 254,717 146,831 150,290 418,392 405,007

Expenses:
Governmental activities:

General government 21,967 21,507 - - 21,967 21,507
Public safety 137,964 137,987 - - 137,964 137,987
Public works 8,306 10,089 - - 8,306 10,089
Engineering services 3,626 3,472 - - 3,626 3,472
Economic environment 42,922 33,988 - - 42,922 33,988
Health and sanitation 12,079 11,177 - - 12,079 11,177
Leisure services 25,991 27,682 - - 25,991 27,682
Interest on long-term debt 9,791 10,590 - - 9,791 10,590

Business-Type activities:
Water and sewer - - 90,026 85,978 90,026 85,978
Stormwater utility - - 10,847 10,845 10,847 10,845
Parking facilities - - 5,165 4,876 5,165 4,876

Total expenses 262,646 256,492 106,038 101,699 368,684 358,191

Increase (decrease) in net position before
transfers 8,915 (1,775) 40,793 48,591 49,708 46,816

Transfers 11,446 11,314 (11,446) (11,314) - -

Increase in net position 20,361 9,539 29,347 37,277 49,708 46,816

Net position at beginning of year, as previously
reported 228,868 219,329 554,211 516,934 783,079 736,263
Restatement  (Note Q) (10,135) - (834) - (10,969) -
Net position at beginning of year, as restated 218,733 219,329 553,377 516,934 772,110 736,263

Net position - end of year $ 239,094 $ 228,868 $ 582,724 $ 554,211 $ 821,818 $ 783,079
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The following chart shows the revenues by source (in thousands) for the City's governmental activities during fiscal year 2021:

The following chart shows the expenses by function (in thousands) for the City's governmental activities during fiscal year
2021:
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Financial Analysis of Funds

Unlike the government-wide financial statements, the fund financial statements focus on specific City activities rather than
the City as a whole.  The City uses specific funds to maintain managerial control over resources or to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories:
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

General Fund: The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, the General Fund
reported fund balance of $48.4 million; $19.5 million was committed for the emergency reserve, $3.4 million was assigned to
the fiscal year 2022 budget, and $0.5 million was nonspendable and the remaining $25.0 million was unassigned. 

General Fund expenditures increased by $2.6 million primarily due to increased public safety and capital outlay  expenses. .
The increases are offset by decreases in general government and leisure services expenditures. During fiscal year 2021, the
City responded to pandemic related events which created increased spending in the general fund over the prior year. Capital
outlay expenditures in the prior year were funded by debt issued proceeds in other funds rather than general fund revenues
resulting in the increase in the current year. Leisure services expense were lower in the current year as the City continued to
cancel events due to the pandemic.  The City continues to meet its commitment to provide quality police and fire protection,
as well as community programs and activities to meet the needs of its citizens.

As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare the total fund balance to total expenditures. At the
end of fiscal year 2021, the total fund balance represented 26.9% of total General Fund expenditures.

Community Redevelopment Agency Funds (CRA): City Center Community Redevelopment Agency Fund (CCCRA) and the
Northwood/Pleasant City Community Redevelopment Agency Fund (NPCCRA), major funds, are the operating funds of each
redevelopment area of the City’s Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA). Fund balances at the end of the fiscal year for
the CCCRA and NPCCRA were $26.8 million and $5.1 million, respectively. The fund balances for the CCCRA and the NPCCRA
were restricted for the operations of the CRA.

Total expenditures and net transfers for the CCCRA increased by $0.2 million during the current fiscal year for increases in
capital spending and community assistance to residents during the pandemic.  Total revenues for the CCCRA also increased in
the current year by $0.5 million, mainly due to the increase in the property tax base and corresponding revenues.
Expenditures for the NPCCRA rose in the current fiscal year by $0.7 million as there were no capital outlay charges incurred.
Revenues for the NPCCRA were relatively consistent with the prior fiscal year.

Proprietary Funds: The City’s two main proprietary funds are the water and sewer system fund and the storm water
management system fund. The water and sewage systems fund accounts for the administration, operation, debt
management, maintenance and payment processing of the City’s water and sewer utility systems. The storm water
management system fund provides for the collection of and disposal of storm water and for the regulation of groundwater.
The fund accounts for the cost of operating and maintaining the system and financing necessary repairs, replacements,
improvements and extensions.

The Parking fund, a non-major enterprise fund is used to account for revenues and expenses related to providing covered
garage, metered parking spaces and surface lot parking in the City.  

General Operating Budgetary Highlights

Budget and actual comparison statements are presented in the required supplementary information for the General Fund
and all major special revenue funds with annually appropriated budgets. Budget and actual comparison schedules are also
provided in the Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules section for all major capital and non-major funds
with annually appropriated budgets. 
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The budget and actual comparison statements and schedules show the original adopted budget, the final revised budget,
actual results and a variance between the final budget and actual results. There were no funds with total actual expenditures
in excess of the final revised budget. After the original budget is approved, it may be revised for a variety of reasons such as
unforeseen circumstances, corrections of errors, new bond or loan proceeds, new grant awards and other revenues. 

The City’s Budget staff, within the Finance department, helps to ensure that General Fund revenues are estimated each year
using a comprehensive process involving multiple stakeholders to yield the most reasonable and accurate revenue estimates.
The process includes an in-depth review of past, current and projected financial conditions.  The forecast is an integral part of
the annual budget process and allows for informed decision-making, with the goal of maintaining financial integrity while
delivering essential quality community services to its citizens. 

The General Fund budget was estimated to generate $181.5 million in revenues to offset $202.7 million in expenditures and
the use of a portion of the prior year’s fund balance, transfers from other funds and proceeds of sale of capital assets. 

Total General Fund expenditures of $196.5 million (including encumbrances of $3.4 million and $16.4 million in administrative
costs) were higher than the final fiscal year 2021 budget by about $6.2 million.  

All expenditure categories were lower than budgeted except for Police ($1.9 million), Fire ($0.5 million) and Capital Outlay
($0.5 million).  Police and Fire expenditures were greater than budget due to additional work hours needed to handle
pandemic related emergencies and testing. Capital outlay was over budget due to the donation of a large donated work of art
during the year not budgeted. Leisure services – parks and recreation expenditures – had the largest positive variances of
$1.8 million each as recreational activities were continued to be halted for the pandemic during FY 2021. The ongoing
pandemic impacted the many operating activities of the City and the use of budgeted funds were less than anticipated or
greater than anticipated depending on the department.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets: The City’s capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of September 30, 2021 totaled
$890.0 million, net of accumulated depreciation, (in thousands). The net investment in capital assets was $473.7 million, an
increase of $25.9 million from the 2020 balances. The increase reflects the delivery of police, fire and sanitation vehicles and
equipment purchased through capital leases combined with utility system upgrades, net of depreciation and retirement.

The following table compares the City's capital assets from 2020 to 2021, in thousands:

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities

Total
Primary Government

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Land $ 85,268 $ 85,096 $ 10,313 $ 10,313 $ 95,581 $ 95,409
Buildings 129,188 131,738 19,514 21,107 148,702 152,845
Improvements other than
buildings 82,836 75,248 - - 82,836 75,248
Equipment 20,725 20,209 6,850 6,267 27,575 26,476
Intangible assets 424 469 - - 424 469
Infrastructure 24 83 386,343 395,823 386,367 395,906
Construction in progress 69,025 60,332 79,472 60,855 148,497 121,187

Total $ 387,490 $ 373,175 $ 502,492 $ 494,365 $ 889,982 $ 867,540

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report – FYE 2021 xxii



CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

The following chart compares the City’s capital assets from 2020 to 2021:

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

Governmental Activities:

 Clematis Streetscape improvements project , blocks 400-600, $8.3 million

 Styx Alley improvement project, $4.0 million

 ADA Transition Plan, Phase I project, $4.0 million

Business-type Activities:

 Subaqueous Crossing at Southern Blvd,  $2.8 million

 Lake Mangonia Crossing improvement, $2.1 million

 Lakeshore  rehabilitation project, $1  million

 Watermain  improvements, $2.2

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note G of this report.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

Long-term debt: Of the $770.8 million in noncurrent liabilities, $563.4 million is in the form of bonded debt. Of the total

bonded debt, $28.8 million consists of debt backed by the full faith and credit of the government. The remainder of the City’s
bonded debt represents bonds secured solely by specified revenue sources. $259.3 million is secured by water, sewer and
storm water fees and $119.4 million is secured by covenants to budget and appropriate from legally available non-ad valorem
revenues.  The CRA’s $155.9  million of bonded debt is secured by a stand-alone pledge of tax increment revenue.  

The City's total bonds, notes payable and leases rose marginally during the current fiscal year as repayments largely offset the
issuance of the General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020 to fund improvements for various parks and recreation projects. 

The general obligation bonds of the City maintain an underlying rating of "AA" from Standard and Poor’s Rating Services,
“AA+” from Fitch Ratings, Inc., and an "Aa3" from Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. The special obligation bonds of the City
maintain an underlying rating of “AA” from Fitch Ratings Inc. and an "Aa3" from Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. The Utility
System revenue bonds (water, sewer and storm water) have an underlying rating of "AA+" from Standard and Poor’s Rating
Services, “AA “  from Fitch Ratings, Inc., and an "Aa2" from Moody’s Investors Service, Inc.

Schedule of Bonded Debt, Notes and Leases
(in thousands)

Governmental
 Activities

Business-Type
 Activities

Total
Primary Government

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

General obligation bonds $ 23,675 $ 24,465 $ - $ - $ 23,675 $ 24,465
General obligation bond premiums 5,094 5,532 - - 5,094 5,532
Revenue bonds 249,975 258,459 244,290 251,050 494,265 509,509
Revenue bonds premiums 25,337 28,178 15,031 16,216 40,368 44,394

Total bonds 304,081 316,634 259,321 267,266 563,402 583,900

Notes and leases 30,957 39,835 - - 30,957 39,835

Total bonds, notes and leases $ 335,038 $ 356,469 $ 259,321 $ 267,266 $ 594,359 $ 623,735

Additional information on the City's long-term debt can be found in Note H of this report.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The City’s next year’s budget is consistent with maintaining services to its citizens without raising the millage rate.  Despite
the effects of the pandemic during fiscal year 2021, property values continued an upward trend and resulted in increased tax
revenues. The City continues to be an attractive place for large companies to relocate from other places where the tax rate is
higher, as well to enjoy the local sunshine year-round, including many Wall Street and financial sector firms that are
relocating or opening new offices in West Palm Beach, making this area the new "Wall Street of the South".  This demand for
property for relocated employers and employees has aided the increase in property values. However, the pandemic has
affected other areas of the City’s operating revenues and created challenges in how services are provided to citizens. 

The City considered the following key measures in developing its fiscal year 2022 budget: 

 The local economy has been heavily affected by the pandemic during the last two years.  Many businesses were

closed for long periods and other businesses have had to close permanently. The economic recovery has begun and

is expected to continue to grow during 2022 as more people visit and move to the area and businesses continue to

reopen.  

 The continued growth in the City’s resident population from 116,781 in fiscal year 2020 to 119,255 in fiscal year

2021.

 Overall the housing market continues to show a steady increase, although this is projected to slow down over the

next three to five years, to a more normal pace in the next year. As a result of the housing market increases and

new construction within the City, gross property taxes are expected to increase in fiscal year 2022 from $15.6 billion

in 2020 to $18.3 billion, an increase of $2.8 million or 17.9%.  The increase will allow the City to fund new and other

delayed projects which were on hold as a result of the pandemic.

 The unemployment rate increased as a result of the pandemic and has since been reduced to historical lows.  At the

end of the prior fiscal year, the City experienced an unemployment rate of approximately 7.8%, which was

consistent with the unemployment rate across the State.  At the start of the pandemic, the unemployment rate

spiked to 13.8%, higher than the prior peak rate of 11.3% during the period of the great recession in 2010. At the

close of the fiscal year, the unemployment rate had declined significantly to 3.9%, substantially lower than the prior

fiscal year. This trend is expected to continue as more businesses reopen or are relocated to this area.

 Tourism, a major component of the City’s economy, declined in fiscal year 2020 as a result of the pandemic. People

started to return to the beaches and postcard views of South Florida in fiscal year 2021. The forecast for fiscal year

2022 expects this trend to continue with higher domestic and international visitors as businesses and attractions

around the City have reopened safely and recreation activities have resumed.   

 The City’s highly competitive business climate with no personal income tax and a relatively low corporate tax rate

continues to be attractive to large corporations for relocation, resulting in consistent high demand for property and

consequently increased property tax revenues. With over 1.6 million square feet of high-end office projects on the

horizon, property tax revenue as well as building permitting revenue are expected to continue to grow in fiscal year

2022. 

 The City Center Community Redevelopment Area (CCCRA) has partnered with the Downtown Development

Authority (DDA) to strengthen the business environment through the retention/attraction of businesses through its

business development grant programs, which include funding for grand opening events, leasehold improvements,

facade enhancement, and business assistance. These grant programs are expected to continue in fiscal year 2022. 
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

 The Northwood/Pleasant City Community Redevelopment Area continues to prioritize home ownership whithin the

Pleasant City Neighborhood and has partnered with the City to fund improvements of certain parks throughout the

CRA designated areas, including Currie Park. These programs are expected to continue into 2022.

Requests for Information

 This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the Office of the  Finance
Director, 401 Clematis Street, West Palm Beach, Florida 33401.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities Total

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 104,905,485 $ 48,365,451 $ 153,270,936
Investments 95,860,090 78,552,155 174,412,245
Receivables, net

Accounts 14,953,020 13,407,300 28,360,320
Interest 494,511 407,922 902,433
Notes 2,254,232 - 2,254,232
Liens and assessments 259,854 1,377,792 1,637,646

5,058,442 494,036 5,552,478
525,121 525,438 1,050,559

5,442,306 - 5,442,306
1,009,798 41,189 1,050,987
1,464,596 - 1,464,596

Due from other government 
Inventory
Land held for resale
Prepaid items
Investment in direct financing leases 
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 72,982,443 110,482,493 183,464,936
Investments 23,621,563 56,089,141 79,710,704
Interest on restricted cash and investments 18,367 199,526 217,893

Net pension asset 1,752,490 261,866 2,014,356
Net OPEB asset 6,187,906 507,899 6,695,805
Investment in joint venture 1,824,827 52,189,515 54,014,342
Bond insurance costs, net - 112,333 112,333
Capital assets: 

Nondepreciable 154,292,129 89,784,505 244,076,634
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation 233,197,464 412,707,443 645,904,907

Total assets $ 726,104,644 $ 865,506,004 $ 1,591,610,648

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Interest rate swap $ - $ 18,513,262 $ 18,513,262
Deferred loss on refunding 958,667 4,833,451 5,792,118
Deferred outflows related to OPEB 6,813,509 555,441 7,368,950
Deferred outflows related to pension 45,718,567 64,043 45,782,610

Total deferred outflows of resources $ 53,490,743 $ 23,966,197 $ 77,456,940

Continued

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities Total

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 21,144,303 $ 9,105,432 $ 30,249,735
Due to other governments 1,144,693 17,352 1,162,045
Unearned revenues 14,957,504 - 14,957,504
Deposits payable 956,945 11,131,652 12,088,597
Accrued interest payable 125,942 4,200,955 4,326,897
Due within one year:

Compensated absences payable 9,194,370 1,608,542 10,802,912
Capital leases payable 3,281,696 - 3,281,696
Notes payable 4,224,527 - 4,224,527
Bonds payable 10,770,000 7,240,000 18,010,000
Insurance claims payable 5,494,657 - 5,494,657

Due in more than one year: 
Unearned revenues - 348,004 348,004
Compensated absences payable 11,067,548 1,198,183 12,265,731
Capital leases payable 5,704,343 - 5,704,343
Notes payable 17,746,128 - 17,746,128
Bonds payable 293,311,336 252,080,630 545,391,966
Interest rate swap - 18,513,262 18,513,262
Insurance claims payable 13,473,494 - 13,473,494
Net pension liability 104,576,802 - 104,576,802
Net OPEB liability 10,082,635 914,871 10,997,506

Total liabilities $ 527,256,923 $ 306,358,883 $ 833,615,806

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred inflows related to pension $ 7,701,612 $ - $ 7,701,612
Deferred inflows related to OPEB 5,542,654 389,366 5,932,020

Total deferred inflows of resources $ 13,244,266 $ 389,366 $ 13,633,632

NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets $ 176,475,694 $ 297,263,939 $ 473,739,633

Restricted: 
Operation and maintenance - 14,912,322 14,912,322
Debt service 7,196,142 7,514,179 14,710,321
Capital improvements 41,717,506 - 41,717,506
Renewal and replacement - 61,880,801 61,880,801
Developer impact fund - 9,998,484 9,998,484
Grants 7,073,374 - 7,073,374
Pension and OPEB 7,940,396 - 7,940,396
Community development 35,719,986 - 35,719,986
Building code enforcement 13,803,151 - 13,803,151

Unrestricted (50,832,051) 191,154,227 140,322,176

Total net position $ 239,094,198 $ 582,723,952 $ 821,818,150

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Program Revenues

Operating Capital 

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS: Expenses
Charges for

Services
Grants and

Contributions
Grants and

Contributions

Governmental activities: 
General government $ 21,967,065 $ 14,894,814 $ 4,727,142 $ -
Public safety 137,963,405 16,579,706 5,227,404 -
Public works 8,306,189 - - -
Economic environment 42,921,766 15,995,145 4,031,431 2,381,821
Engineering services 3,626,246 630,557 - -
Health and sanitation 12,078,668 16,471,075 - -
Leisure services 25,991,302 1,348,350 125,733 -
Interest on long-term debt 9,791,040 - - -

Total governmental activities 262,645,681 65,919,647 14,111,710 2,381,821

Business-Type activities: 
Water and sewer 90,025,958 121,488,026 - 1,970,250
Stormwater utility 10,846,965 15,313,277 - 75,000
Parking facilities 5,165,012 6,289,272 - -

Total business-type activities 106,037,935 143,090,575 - 2,045,250

Total $ 368,683,616 $ 209,010,222 $ 14,111,710 $ 4,427,071

GENERAL REVENUES AND TRANSFERS:
General revenues:

Ad valorem taxes
Insurance premium taxes
Business taxes
Licenses and permits
Franchise fees
Utility service taxes
Sales tax
Infrastructure surtax
State and local shared revenues
Interest income
Miscellaneous

Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position

Net position at beginning of year, as previously reported

Restatement of net position (Note Q)

Net position at beginning of year, as restated

Net position at end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Net  Revenue (Expense) and Change in Net Position

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities Total

$ (2,345,109) $ - $ (2,345,109)
(116,156,295) - (116,156,295)

(8,306,189) - (8,306,189)
(20,513,369) - (20,513,369)

(2,995,689) - (2,995,689)
4,392,407 - 4,392,407

(24,517,219) - (24,517,219)
(9,791,040) - (9,791,040)

(180,232,503) - (180,232,503)

- 33,432,318 33,432,318
- 4,541,312 4,541,312
- 1,124,260 1,124,260

- 39,097,890 39,097,890

$ (180,232,503) $ 39,097,890 $ (141,134,613)

$ 119,411,798 $ - $ 119,411,798
3,085,615 - 3,085,615
1,800,752 - 1,800,752
3,829,291 - 3,829,291
9,464,923 - 9,464,923

22,028,418 - 22,028,418
10,192,488 - 10,192,488

9,316,205 - 9,316,205
7,125,002 - 7,125,002

960,191 565,801 1,525,992
1,932,256 1,128,839 3,061,095

11,445,949 (11,445,949) -

200,592,888 (9,751,309) 190,841,579

20,360,385 29,346,581 49,706,966

228,868,664 554,211,489 783,080,153

(10,134,851) (834,118) (10,968,969)

218,733,813 553,377,371 772,111,184

$ 239,094,198 $ 582,723,952 $ 821,818,150

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

General Fund

City Center
Community

Redevelopment
Agency Fund

Northwood /
Pleasant City
Community

Redevelopment
Agency Fund

Non-Major
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 23,576,293 $ 14,228,178 $ 2,566,138 $ 117,425,866 $ 157,796,475
Investments 25,563,123 14,987,508 2,703,087 59,097,926 102,351,644
Receivables, net

Accounts 11,873,575 28,266 700 2,152,590 14,055,131
Interest 135,057 87,315 13,933 190,666 426,971
Notes - 246,822 - 2,007,410 2,254,232
Liens and assessments 240,848 - - 19,006 259,854

Due from other funds 2,912,705 - - - 2,912,705
Due from other governments 1,859,342 351,554 - 2,827,070 5,037,966
Inventory 373,061 - - 60,967 434,028
Land held for resale - - - 5,442,306 5,442,306
Prepaid items 83,282 6,269 - 15,028 104,579
Investment in direct financing leases - - - 1,464,596 1,464,596

Total assets 66,617,286 29,935,912 5,283,858 190,703,431 292,540,487

LIABILITIES: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 8,500,954 3,046,677 149,185 7,395,719 19,092,535
Deposits payable 667,657 43,416 25,850 70,144 807,067
Unearned revenue 2,692,092 - - 12,265,412 14,957,504
Due to other governments 804,375 21,684 - 318,634 1,144,693
Due to other funds - - - 2,912,705 2,912,705

Total liabilities 12,665,078 3,111,777 175,035 22,962,614 38,914,504

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES: 
Unavailable revenue 5,572,626 26,821 700 1,054,238 6,654,385

FUND BALANCES: 
Nonspendable 456,343 6,269 - 75,995 538,607
Restricted - 26,791,045 5,108,123 152,449,275 184,348,443
Committed 19,529,438 - - 15,982,791 35,512,229
Assigned (Note S) 3,361,128 - - - 3,361,128
Unassigned 25,032,673 - - (1,821,482) 23,211,191

Total fund balances 48,379,582 26,797,314 5,108,123 166,686,579 246,971,598

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances $ 66,617,286 $ 29,935,912 $ 5,283,858 $ 190,703,431 $ 292,540,487

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report - FYE 2021 5



CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

TOTAL  - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 246,971,598

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore, are not reported in the funds 376,171,083

Contractual agreements which were due from other governments are not current
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds. 
These contractual obligations were settled in the current fiscal year.

Intergovernmental revenue is not available to pay for current period expenditures
and, therefore, is deferred in the funds. 6,654,385

Other assets and deferred outflows of resources used in governmental activities are
not current financial resources and are not reported in the governmental funds:

Net pension assets 1,752,490
Net OPEB asset 6,187,906
Deferred Loss on debt refunding 958,667 8,899,063

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are
not reported in the governmental funds:

Accrued interest payable (125,942)
Compensated absences (19,455,221)
Capital leases payable (8,986,039)
Notes payable (18,716,672)
Bonds payable (304,060,716)
Arbitrage payable (20,620)
Net OPEB liability (10,082,635)
Net pension liability (104,576,802) (466,024,647)

Certain deferred inflows/outflows related to pension and OPEB are not reported on the
modified accrual basis of accounting:

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 45,718,567
Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB 6,813,509
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (7,701,612)
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB (5,542,654) 39,287,810

Net position of internal service funds are reported with governmental activities 27,134,906

Net position of governmental activities $ 239,094,198

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

General Fund

City Center
Community

Redevelopment
Agency Fund

Northwood /
Pleasant City
Community

Redevelopment
Agency Fund

Non-Major
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

REVENUES: 
Taxes 125,637,625 23,745,658 2,828,466 1,779,005 153,990,754
Licenses and permits 3,829,291 - - 12,083,268 15,912,559
Intergovernmental 17,282,373 15,522,805 1,649,625 20,239,641 54,694,444
Charges for services 29,461,750 1,003,146 19,450 9,809,703 40,294,049
Fines and forfeitures 458,522 - - 4,645 463,167
Rents and royalties 539,785 302,516 - 870,898 1,713,199
Interest income 440,786 169,589 24,365 277,675 912,415
Miscellaneous 1,413,138 303,692 - 342,331 2,059,161

Total revenues 179,063,270 41,047,406 4,521,906 45,407,166 270,039,748

EXPENDITURES:

Current: 
General government 18,423,291 - - 28,497 18,451,788
Public safety 108,048,813 - - 17,085,487 125,134,300
Public works 3,241,901 - - 2,687,885 5,929,786
Economic environment - 28,046,001 2,343,858 7,016,550 37,406,409
Engineering services 2,942,813 - - 1,724,122 4,666,935
Health and sanitation 11,359,226 - - - 11,359,226
Leisure services 21,419,063 - - 4,305,880 25,724,943

Capital outlay 2,515,410 5,353,678 - 29,919,985 37,789,073

Debt service:
Principal 6,767,390 3,542,528 1,230,865 5,471,631 17,012,414
Interest expense 5,112,468 1,687,426 686,504 5,796,769 13,283,167

Total expenditures 179,830,375 38,629,633 4,261,227 74,036,806 296,758,041

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (767,105) 2,417,773 260,679 (28,629,640) (26,718,293)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Disposal of capital assets 1,188,401 - - 218,591 1,406,992
Transfers in 11,695,949 75,684 - 15,976,738 27,748,371
Transfers out (2,070,416) (8,652,357) - (6,153,965) (16,876,738)

Total other financing sources (uses) 10,813,934 (8,576,673) - 10,041,364 12,278,625

Net change in fund balances 10,046,829 (6,158,900) 260,679 (18,588,276) (14,439,668)

Fund balances - beginning 38,332,753 32,956,214 4,847,444 185,274,855 261,411,266

Fund balances - ending $ 48,379,582 $ 26,797,314 $ 5,108,123 $ 166,686,579 $ 246,971,598

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ (14,439,668)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures.  However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense.  This is the amount by which depreciation expenses exceeded capital
outlay in the current period

Capital outlay 37,789,073
Depreciation expense (22,471,611) 15,317,462

Retirement of capital asset

Retirement of capital asset (49,566)

Some revenues reported in the statement of activities do not provide current financial
resources and therefore are not reported as revenues in governmental funds:

Intergovernmental revenues (656,711)
Charges for services 454,986 (201,725)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds,
while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial
resources of governmental funds.  Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net
position.  Also, governmental funds report the effect of insurance costs, premiums, discounts
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts (except for issuance costs)
are capitalized and amortized in the statement of activities.  This amount is the net effect of
these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items:

Principal repayment on notes payable 3,708,933
Principal repayment on capital leases 4,030,952
Principal repayment on bonds payable 9,272,528 17,012,413

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in govenrmental funds

Change in net pension asset (liability) (855,062)
Change in net OPEB asset (liability) 5,605,276
Change in deferred inflows/outflows related to pension (1,710,082)
Change in deferred inflows/outflows related to OPEB 600,876
Change in accrued interest payable 14,515
Change in deferred loss on refunding 279,036
Amortization of bond premiums 3,280,320
Compensated absences (476,599) 6,738,280

The internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost  of certain activites to
individual funds.  The net revenue (expense) of certain activities of the internal service funds
is reported with governmental activiities.

(4,016,811)

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 20,360,385

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Business-Type Enterprise Funds
Governmental

Activities

Water and Sewer
System Fund

Stormwater
Utility Fund

Non-Major

Parking Facilities
Fund

Total Proprietary
Funds

Internal Service
Funds

ASSETS: 

Current unrestricted assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 33,277,902 $ 9,743,491 $ 5,344,058 $ 48,365,451 $ 16,262,130
Investments 60,856,596 12,063,018 5,632,541 78,552,155 17,130,009
Receivables, net:

Accounts 11,474,224 1,857,954 75,122 13,407,300 897,889
Interest 315,550 64,816 27,556 407,922 85,907
Liens and assessments 1,088,638 289,154 - 1,377,792 -

Due from other governments 416,912 76,043 1,081 494,036 20,476
Inventory 525,438 - - 525,438 91,093
Prepaid items 41,189 - - 41,189 905,219

Current restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 37,864,914 5,175,864 24,454 43,065,232 3,829,323

Total current assets 145,861,363 29,270,340 11,104,812 186,236,515 39,222,046

Non-current assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 49,775,386 17,641,875 - 67,417,261 -
Restricted Investments 46,644,783 9,444,358 - 56,089,141 -
Interest receivable 180,092 19,434 - 199,526 -
Net pension asset 261,866 - - 261,866 -
Net OPEB asset 507,899 - - 507,899 -
Investment in joint venture 52,189,515 - - 52,189,515 1,824,827
Unamortized bond insurance costs 95,896 16,437 - 112,333 -
Capital assets:

Non-depreciable 71,103,868 13,321,818 5,358,819 89,784,505 -
Depreciable, net 352,992,674 58,556,818 1,157,951 412,707,443 11,318,510

Total non-current assets 573,751,979 99,000,740 6,516,770 679,269,489 13,143,337

Total assets 719,613,342 128,271,080 17,621,582 865,506,004 52,365,383

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES: 
Deferred outflow-interest rate swap 16,791,529 1,721,733 - 18,513,262 -
Deferred outflow-loss on defeased debt 3,186,415 1,647,036 - 4,833,451 -
Deferred outflow-pension 64,043 - - 64,043 -
Deferred Outflow - OPEB 555,441 - - 555,441 -

Total deferred outflows of resources 20,597,428 3,368,769 - 23,966,197 -

Continued

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Business-Type Enterprise Funds
Governmental

Activities

Water and Sewer
System Fund

Stormwater
Utility Fund

Non-Major

Parking Facilities
Fund

Total Proprietary
Funds

Internal Service
Funds

LIABILITIES: 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,849,030 264,786 411,314 3,525,130 2,051,768
Due to other governments 184,288 - 17,352 201,640 -
Compensated absences payable 1,393,389 145,331 69,821 1,608,541 474,792
Notes payable - current - - - - 1,162,049
Insurance claims payable - - - - 5,494,657

Current liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 4,715,841 680,173 - 5,396,014 -
Accrued interest payable 3,102,789 1,098,166 - 4,200,955 -
Deposits payable 11,107,198 - 24,454 11,131,652 149,878
Bonds payable - current 5,550,840 1,689,160 - 7,240,000 -

Total current liabilities 28,903,375 3,877,616 522,941 33,303,932 9,333,144

Non-current liabilities:
298,010 49,994 - 348,004 -
946,777 182,836 68,571 1,198,184 331,905

- - - - 2,091,934
194,850,831 57,229,799 - 252,080,630 -

914,871 - - 914,871 -
16,791,529 1,721,733 - 18,513,262 -

Unearned revenue
Compensated absences payable 
Notes payable - long term
Bonds payable - long term, net 
Net OPEB liability
Interest rate swap
Insurance claims payable - long term - - - - 13,473,494

Total non-current liabilities 213,802,018 59,184,362 68,571 273,054,951 15,897,333

Total liabilities 242,705,393 63,061,978 591,512 306,358,883 25,230,477

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES: 
Deferred inflows - OPEB 389,366 - - 389,366 -

Total deferred inflows of resources 389,366 - - 389,366 -

NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets 255,540,166 35,207,003 6,516,770 297,263,939 8,064,527

Restricted for: 
Operation and maintenance 13,203,958 1,708,364 - 14,912,322 -
Debt service 5,978,856 1,535,323 - 7,514,179 -
Renewal and replacement 55,247,764 6,633,037 - 61,880,801 -
Developer impact fund 9,998,484 - - 9,998,484 -

Unrestricted 157,146,783 23,494,144 10,513,300 191,154,227 19,070,379

Total net position $ 497,116,011 $ 68,577,871 $ 17,030,070 $ 582,723,952 $ 27,134,906

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Business-Type Enterprise Funds
Governmental

Activities

Water and Sewer
System Fund

Stormwater
Fund

Non-Major
Parking Facilities

Fund
Total Proprietary

Funds
Internal Service

Funds

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Charges for services $ 118,459,078 $ 15,313,277 $ 5,389,551 $ 139,161,906 $ 63,509,224
Fines and forfeitures 1,074,555 - 899,721 1,974,276 -
Equity in earnings of joint ventures 1,954,393 - - 1,954,393 100,000
Miscellaneous and other 766,254 115,277 6,026 887,557 382,463

Total operating revenues 122,254,280 15,428,554 6,295,298 143,978,132 63,991,687

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Personnel services 24,820,864 2,450,279 1,110,415 28,381,558 7,990,247
Contractual services 14,257,057 1,435,329 1,914,384 17,606,770 14,487,984
Utilities 2,888,025 176,022 252,238 3,316,285 675,703
Repair and maintenance 6,137,701 1,015,189 430,449 7,583,339 734,320
Other supplies and expenses 11,273,261 632,147 795,652 12,701,060 2,281,159
Depreciation 14,613,902 2,790,325 324,773 17,729,000 939,229
Insurance claims and expenses 483,916 109,951 337,103 930,970 41,429,629
Wastewater treatment and disposal 7,681,053 - - 7,681,053 -

Total operating expenses 82,155,779 8,609,242 5,165,014 95,930,035 68,538,271

Operating income (loss) 40,098,501 6,819,312 1,130,284 48,048,097 (4,546,584)

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):
Interest income 478,738 70,149 16,914 565,801 46,941
Interest expense (7,710,179) (2,237,717) - (9,947,896) (81,743)
Bond issuance costs (160,000) - - (160,000) -
Disposal of capital assets 126,448 189,830 - 316,278 (9,741)

Total non-operating revenue (expenses) (7,264,993) (1,977,738) 16,914 (9,225,817) (44,543)

Income (loss) before contributions and
transfers 32,833,508 4,841,574 1,147,198 38,822,280 (4,591,127)

CONTRIBUTIONS, TRANSFERS AND OTHER:
Capital contributions - impact fees 1,970,250 - - 1,970,250 -
Transfers in - - - - 650,000
Transfers out (10,855,658) - (590,291) (11,445,949) (75,684)

Total contributions, transfers and other (8,885,408) - (590,291) (9,475,699) 574,316

Change in net position 23,948,100 4,841,574 556,907 29,346,581 (4,016,811)

Net position - beginning 474,002,029 63,736,297 16,473,163 554,211,489 31,151,717

Restatement of Net Position (Note Q) (834,118) - - (834,118) -

Net position - ending $ 497,116,011 $ 68,577,871 $ 17,030,070 $ 582,723,952 $ 27,134,906

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Governmental

Actvities

Water and
Sewer System

Fund
Stormwater
Utility Fund

Non-Major
Parking

Facilities
Fund Totals

Internal
Service
Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Cash received from customers $ 119,001,312 $ 15,360,626 $ 5,372,606 $ 139,734,544 $ 63,353,319
Cash payments to suppliers/contractors (42,326,789) (3,300,631) (3,966,973) (49,594,393) (18,927,238)
Cash payments to employees (25,311,613) (2,408,951) (1,110,592) (28,831,156) (7,968,035)
Other operating receipts 1,753,932 101,561 914,296 2,769,789 371,032
Cash payments for insurance - - - - (36,710,061)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 53,116,842 9,752,605 1,209,337 64,078,784 119,017

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Transfers in - - - - 650,000
Transfers out (10,855,658) - (590,291) (11,445,949) (75,684)

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Noncapital
Financing Activities (10,855,658) - (590,291) (11,445,949) 574,316

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES: 
Acquisition/construction of capital assets (19,064,526) (4,974,849) (406,708) (24,446,083) -
Principal paid on bonds (17,814,996) (1,934,932) - (19,749,928) -
Principal paid on notes and leases - - - - (1,138,416)
Payments to fiscal agent on refunded debt 11,805,000 - - 11,805,000 -
Bond issuance costs (160,000) - - (160,000) -
Interest and fees paid on long term debt (7,244,724) (2,110,443) - (9,355,167) (81,743)
Capital contributions from impact fees 1,970,250 - - 1,970,250 -
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 126,449 189,830 - 316,279 3,940

Net Cash Used for Capital and Related Financing
Activities (30,382,547) (8,830,394) (406,708) (39,619,649) (1,216,219)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Purchases and sales of investments, net (1,071,347) 2,422,886 (20,666) 1,330,873 542,705
Interest on investments 1,577,749 89,257 83,091 1,750,097 270,563

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 506,402 2,512,143 62,425 3,080,970 813,268

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 12,385,039 3,434,354 274,763 16,094,156 290,382
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 108,533,163 29,126,876 5,093,749 142,753,788 19,801,071

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year $ 120,918,202 $ 32,561,230 $ 5,368,512 $ 158,847,944 $ 20,091,453

DISPLAYED AS:

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 33,277,902 9,743,491 5,344,058 48,365,451 16,262,130

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 87,640,300 22,817,739 24,454 110,482,493 3,829,323

Total cash and cash equivalents $ 120,918,202 $ 32,561,230 $ 5,368,512 $ 158,847,944 $ 20,091,453

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Governmental

Actvities

Water and
Sewer System

Fund
Stormwater
Utility Fund

Non-Major
Parking

Facilities
Fund Totals

Internal
Service
Funds

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss) $ 40,098,501 $ 6,819,312 $ 1,130,284 $ 48,048,097 $ (4,546,584)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss)
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Depreciation 14,613,902 2,790,325 324,773 17,729,000 939,229

Change in assets and liabilities:
(385,332) (633) (23,371) (409,336) (162,788)

(1,954,393) - - (1,954,393) (100,000)
53,300 47,982 - 101,282 -

(86,877) (13,717) 8,552 (92,042) (11,431)
496,868 - - 496,868 -
(13,129) - - (13,129) 89,261
45,174 - - 45,174 -

(413,037) - - (413,037) -
(411,315) - - (411,315) -

(89,515) 68,008 (237,150) (258,657) (720,576)
184,288 - 6,426 190,714 -
(96,263) 41,328 (177) (55,112) 22,212
80,751 - - 80,751 -

303,941 - - 303,941 -
689,978 - - 689,978 6,883

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in (gain) loss in joint ventures
(Increase) decrease in liens receivable
(Increase) decrease in due from other governments 
(Increase) decrease in inventory
(Increase) decrease in prepaid items
(Increase) decrease in net pension asset
(Increase) decrease in OPEB asset
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflow
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued

liabilities
Increase (decrease) in due to other governments 
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences payable 
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflow
Increase (decrease) in deposits payable
Increase (decrease) in insurance claims payable - - - - 4,602,811

Total Adjustments 13,018,341 2,933,293 79,053 16,030,687 4,665,601

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 53,116,842 $ 9,752,605 $ 1,209,337 $ 64,078,784 $ 119,017

SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Change in fair value of investments $ (1,061,704) $ - $ (64,339) $ (1,126,043) $ (213,043)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS - PENSION AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,325,138

Receivables: 
Interest and dividends 47,516
Other 30,822

Total receivables 78,338

Investments: 
Money market 1,992,373
U.S. government obligations 7,610,058
Corporate obligations 2,230,569
Equity securities 31,895,408
Domestic equity investment funds 13,910,313
Domestic fixed income investment funds 2,123,433
Fixed income mutual fund 11,451,873
Real estate investment trust funds 3,207,425

Total investments 74,421,452

Total assets 76,824,928

LIABILITIES: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 401,775

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred inflows related to pension 2,768,387

NET POSITION:

Restricted for:
Pension benefits 48,597,855
OPEB 25,056,911

Total net position $ 73,654,766

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS - PENSION AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Additions

Contributions: 
Plan members $ 49,331
City of West Palm Beach 1,652,934

Total contributions 1,702,265

Investment income: 
Net appreciation in fair value of investments 12,354,660
Interest and dividends 1,247,001
Rebates and other revenue 738

13,602,399
Less investment expense 209,936

Net investment income 13,392,463

Total additions 15,094,728

Deductions
Participant benefit payments 5,111,532
Administriative Expenses 101,548

Total deductions 5,213,080

Net increase in net position 9,881,648

Net position restricted for pension benefits and OPEB:

Beginning of year, as previously reported 709,985,132

Restatement of fiduciary net position (646,212,014)

Beginning of year, as restated (Note Q) 63,773,118

End of year $ 73,654,766

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

NOTE A - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of West Palm Beach (the “City”) was incorporated under the General Law of the State of Florida on November 5,
1894.  The first Charter was granted by Chapter 5367, Laws of Florida, in 1903 and became effective September 18 of that
year.  The City is governed by a mayor and a five-member board of commissioners (the “City Commission”), all of which are
elected City-wide by vote of City residents.  The City operates under a strong mayor form of government.  The City provides
services as listed in the Statement of Activities.

(1) Financial Reporting Entity

The basic financial statements of the City have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”) as applied to governmental units.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) is the
standard setting body for governmental accounting and financial reporting.  The following is a summary of the City’s
significant accounting policies.  As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
the accompanying financial statements present the City and its component units.  

(2) Blended Component Units

The criteria for including component units consist of the identification of legally separate organizations for which the
elected officials of the City are financially accountable. This criteria also includes identification of organizations for which
the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the
reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Blended component units, although legally
separate entities, are in substance, part of the government’s operations and so data from these units are combined with
information of the primary government. The City has no discretely presented component units.

The Community Redevelopment Agency of West Palm Beach (“CRA”) was established on September 10, 1984 by the City
under Ordinance No 1805-84 (Redevelopment Act) pursuant to the “Community Redevelopment Act of 1969” and
Chapter 163, Part III of the Florida Statutes.  The five member board, comprised of the elected City commissioners,
governs the CRA.  Although it is legally separate from the City, the CRA is reported as part of the primary government
because it shares a common governing body with the city and its sole purpose is to finance and redevelop the City's
designated redevelopment areas.   

The CRA has two redevelopment areas, each of which is presented as a major governmental fund.  The two funds are
the City Center Community Redevelopment Agency Fund ("City Center CRA Fund") and the Northwood/Pleasant City
Community Redevelopment Agency Fund ("Northwood/Pleasant City CRA Fund"). 

(3) Fiduciary Component Units

The criteria for including fiduciary component units consist of the identification of legally separate fiduciary
organizations for which the elected officials of the City are financially accountable. This criteria also includes
identification of fiduciary organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary
government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete. These fiduciary component units, although legally separate entities, the primary government have
operational responsibility for the activities and so they are required to be included as part of the primary government’s
financial statements. The following entities meet the criteria for inclusion as a fiduciary component unit:

City of West Palm Beach Restated Employees Defined Benefit Retirement System (“Restated Employees Retirement
System”) – The board of the Restated Employees Retirement System is comprised of the Mayor, or designee, City
Administrator, or designee, Chief Financial Officer, or designee, a citizen appointed by the Mayor and approved by the
Commission, two members elected by the plan participants, and one retiree elected by the retirees.   The Board is
authorized to establish benefit levels and approve actuarial assumptions used in the determination of contribution
levels. The Restated Employees Retirement System is a fiduciary fund of the City and has separately issued financial
statements.  
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

NOTE A - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(3) Fiduciary Component Units (Continued)

City of West Palm Beach Elected Officials and Management Employees VEBA Trust Fund (“Elected Officials and
Management VEBA”)  – The board of the Elected Officials and Management VEBA is comprised of five trustees; the
Finance Director, or designee, Human Resources Department Director, or designee, the City Administrator, or designee,
Chief Financial Officer, or designee, and two members elected by the plan participants.   Contributions to the Elected
Officials and Management VEBA are established annually by resolution and approved by the City Commission in
accordance with Ordinance 4305-10.  The Elected Officials and Management VEBA is a fiduciary OPEB fund of the City
and does not have separately issued financial statements. This plan is reported in these financial statements as of the
measurement date of December 31, 2020.  

City of West Palm Beach General Employees VEBA Trust Fund (“General Employees VEBA”)  – The board of the
General Employees VEBA is comprised of five trustees; the Finance Director, or designee, Human Resources Department
Director, or designee, one member elected from those employees represented by the Professional Managers and
Supervisors Association (PMSA) Union, one member elected from those employees represented by the National
Conference of Firemen and Oilers/Service Employees International Union (SEIU) and one member elected from the non-
union-represented employees.  Contributions to the General Employees VEBA are established annually by resolution
and approved by the City Commission in accordance with Ordinance 4305-10.  The General Employees VEBA is a
fiduciary OPEB fund of the City and does not have separately issued financial statements. This plan is reported in these
financial statements  as of the measurement date of December 31, 2020. 

City of West Palm Beach Other Post-Employment Benefit Trust (“OPEB Trust”)  – The board of the OPEB Trust is
comprised of three trustees; the Finance Director, Human Resources Department Director and the City Administrator.
Contributions are made to the OPEB Trust by the City, in accordance with Ordinance 4186-08. The OPEB Trust is a
fiduciary fund of the City and does not have separately issued financial statements. 

Actuarial data for the fiduciary component units are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements and in the
Required Supplementary Information section.  The net pension and OPEB liability and the annual pension and OPEB
expense units are reported in the Government-Wide financial statements and in the fund level Enterprise Fund
statements, as appropriate.  

The City appoints minority trustees of the boards of the following pension systems and OPEB Plans. Although the City is
required to make contributions to these Pension and OPEB Plans based on the provisions in the respective plan
documents (see Note O and Note R), these plans do not meet the definition of a fiduciary component unit nor any of the
other fiduciary activity requirements for inclusion in the City's financial statements:

• West Palm Beach Police Pension Fund (Police Pension)

• West Palm Beach Firefighters' Pension Fund  (Firefighters' Pension) 

• West Palm Beach Police Benevolent Association Retiree Health Benefit Fund  (Police Pension) 

• West Palm Beach Association of Firefighters Retiree Benefit Fund  (Firefighters' Pension) 

(4) Joint Venture

The City is a participant with the East Central Regional Wastewater Treatment Facilities (ECR) in a joint venture to
receive, treat and dispose of sewage generated within each member municipality. The City has an ongoing financial
interest in this joint venture, which is discussed in Note E. 
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

NOTE A - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(5) Other Related Organizations

The West Palm Beach Downtown Development Authority ("DDA") is a separate legal entity.  DDA members are
appointed by the Mayor and ratified by the City Commission and may be removed for cause by a four-fifths majority.
There is no financial benefit or burden to the City and the City has no authority over the day-to-day operations. The
West Palm Beach Housing Authority ("Housing Authority") is also a separate legal entity.  Housing Authority
commissioners are appointed by the Mayor and approved by the City Commission.  

There is no financial benefit or burden to the City and the City has no authority over day-to-day operations.  As such,
neither of these organizations is included in the accompanying financial statements.

(6) Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report
information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units.  As part of the
consolidation process, inter-fund activities are eliminated to avoid distorted financial results. Governmental activities,
which are primarily supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely extensively on fees and charges for support. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment is
offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.
Program revenues include charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services
or privileges provided by a given function or segment and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Other than for depreciation, indirect expenses
are not allocated to specific functions. Taxes and other items program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and the fiduciary component
units.  Fiduciary component units are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.  Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements.

Since the governmental fund financial statements are presented on a different measurement focus and basis of
accounting that the government-wide statements’ governmental activities column, a reconciliation is presented on the
Internal Service Funds of a government (which traditionally provide services primarily to other funds of the government)
in summary form as part of the proprietary fund financial statements.

Since the principal users of the internal services are the City’s governmental activities, financial statements of internal
service funds are consolidated into the governmental activities column when presented at the governmental-wide level.
To the extent possible, the costs of these services are reflected in the appropriate governmental activities.
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NOTE A - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(7) Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation

The government-wide, proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flow.  Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized when earned, measurable, and available to finance
expenditures of the current period.  Revenues are considered to be available for the current period when they are
collected within the fiscal year being reported on or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of that fiscal year.  The City
considers revenues, other than those related to state and federal expenditure driven grants, to be available if they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year being reported on.

Revenues related to expenditure driven grants are considered to be available when collected within 180 days of the end
of the fiscal year.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. Expenditures related to pension and other postemployment
benefits are recognized when the City has made a decision to fund those obligations with current available resources.

Property taxes when levied for the fiscal year, public service taxes, franchise taxes, intergovernmental revenues for
which eligibility requirements have been met, charges for services such as licenses, refuse, and recycling  and interest
income associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be measurable and have been recognized as
revenues of the period, if available.  Special assessments are recorded as revenues only to the extent that individual
installments are measurable and available.  

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, the legal and contractual requirements of
the numerous individual programs are used as guidance. There are, however, essentially two types of these revenues.  In
one, monies must be expended for the specific purpose or project before any amounts will be paid to the City;
therefore, revenues are recognized based upon the expenditures incurred. In the other, monies are virtually
unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure and are usually revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed
compliance requirements. These resources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier if susceptible to
accrual.

The financial transactions of the City are recorded in individual funds.  Each fund is accounted for by providing a
separate set of self-balancing accounts comprised of assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows, fund balance
or net position, revenues, and expenditures or expenses.  These funds are segregated for the purpose of carrying on
specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with special regulations, restrictions or limitations.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America set forth minimum criteria (percentage of the
assets plus deferred outflows, liabilities plus deferred inflows, revenues or expenditures/expenses of either fund
category and the governmental and enterprise combined), for the determination of major funds.  The City electively
added funds, as major funds, which either have significant outstanding debt proceeds or a specific community focus.
The aggregated non-major funds are presented in one column in the fund financial statements.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:
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NOTE A - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(7) Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation (Continued)

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund.  It accounts for all financial resources of the general
government, except those accounted for in a separate fund.  

The City Center CRA Fund accounts for revenue received from tax increment financing.  The fund is restricted for
carrying out redevelopment activity in the designated downtown redevelopment area.

The Northwood/Pleasant City CRA Fund accounts for revenue received from tax increment financing.  These funds are
restricted for carrying out redevelopment activity in the Northwood/Pleasant City designated area.  While not
required to be a major fund, the Northwood/Pleasant City CRA Fund is deemed a major fund and is reported
separately due to its high level of public interest.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Water and Sewer System Fund accounts for the activities related to providing water and sewer services to the
public.

The Stormwater Utility Fund was established to maintain the City’s canals, basins and storm sewers.

In addition, the City reports the following other funds:

Internal Service Funds account for services provided to other departments of the City on a cost reimbursement basis.
These services include information technology, fleet management, risk management and insurance (employee
life/health insurance, workers’ compensation, general liability insurance, and property insurance), vehicle fleet
replacement, and technology replacement.

Fiduciary Funds, including pension and other post employment benefit trust funds account for the activities of the
OPEB Trust, General Employees’ Retirement System, Elected Officials and Management VEBA, General Employees
VEBA, which accumulate resources for pension other post employment benefit benefit payments to qualifying City
officials and employees. 

As a general rule, the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges between the City’s
enterprise funds and the General Fund as well as cost reimbursement transactions between the enterprise funds and
various other functions of City government.   Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program
revenues reported for those sectors.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.

The principal operating revenues of the enterprise funds and the internal service funds are charges to customers for
sales and services.  The Water and Sewer System Fund also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees
intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system.

Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
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NOTE A - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(7) Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation (Continued)
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

(8) Assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources and net position/fund balance

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For accounting and investment purposes, the City maintains a cash and investment pool available for use by all funds.
The City’s cash and investment pool allows individual funds, at any time, to deposit additional cash or make withdrawals
without prior notice or penalty. Cash and cash equivalents reported in the government-wide financial statements
include cash on hand, all highly liquid deposits, and investments with maturities of three months or less as of the date of
purchase. Interest earned on pooled cash and investments is allocated to funds based on average weekly balances. The
City's banking contract requires that a compensating balance be maintained. This balance is adjusted quarterly based on
charges for services utilized by the City in the prior quarter and the City's earnings credit rate (an interest factor on
collected funds).

Investments

Primary Government:

Investments are stated at fair value. Income from investments held by the individual funds is recorded in the respective
fund as it is earned. All other investments owned by the City are accounted for in the City's investment pool. Income
earned from this pool is allocated to the respective funds based upon average monthly equity balances.

Pension and Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) Plans:

The Pension Plans are authorized to invest in obligations of the US Treasuries and US Agencies, high capitalization
common and preferred domestic and international equities, fixed income investments, money market and mutual
funds.  The General Employees’ Restated Defined Retirement System has adopted an investment policy to allocate fund
assets to US Treasuries, US Agencies, corporate bonds, fixed income mutual funds.  The investments of the plans are
managed by independent investment managers in accordance with the Plans' provisions as established by each pension
or OPEB board.  In all cases, the general investment objective is to obtain a reasonable total return as defined as interest
and dividend income plus realized and unrealized capital gains or losses commensurate with the prudent investor rule
and Chapters 175 and 185 of the Florida Statute.

The City does not have a formal investment policy for the OPEB Trust, the Elected Officials and Management VEBA and
the General Employees VEBA and follows the policy established by the primary government.

Interfund Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending or borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the
fiscal year of a short-term nature and any other outstanding balances between funds are reported as due to and due
from other funds. The long-term portion of any borrowings between funds is reported as advances to and from other
funds. Long-term advances of the governmental funds are recorded by the advancing fund as a receivable and non-
spendable fund balance. Any residual outstanding balances between the governmental activities and business-type
activities at year-end are reported in the government-wide financial statements as internal balances.
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(8) Assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources and net position/fund balance (Continued)

Receivables

Receivables include amounts due from other governments, and other services provided by the City are recorded when
the revenue is earned.  All accounts and notes receivable are reported net of any allowances for uncollectible.
Allowances for uncollectible receivables are based upon a review of accounts and the knowledge of the creditor's ability
to pay.  Notes receivables are analyzed for collectability based on terms and conditions of the agreements and are
included in the allowance for uncollectible if deemed appropriate.

Inventories

Inventories consist of materials and supplies held for consumption and are valued at cost on a first-in, first-out basis.
Perpetual inventory records are maintained and adjusted periodically to physical inventory amounts.  The consumption
method is used to account for inventories. Under the consumption method, inventories are recorded as expenditures at
the time inventory items are used, rather than purchased.

Prepaid Items

Prepaid items represent payments made to vendors for services that will benefit the period beyond September 30,
2021. These services are recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed. 

Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds from fund revenue bonds, as well as other resources set aside in accordance with bond indentures and
other arrangements, are classified as restricted assets in the government-wide and proprietary funds Statements of Net
Position.  Restricted assets are not required to be presented on the balance sheets of the governmental funds under the
modified accrual basis of accounting; however, certain assets of these funds are restricted as to use.

Investment in Joint Ventures

The City accounts for its investments in joint ventures using the equity method in accordance with GAAP and the
respective agreements creating the venture.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated at historical cost or, if donated, the acquisition value at the date of donation and are reported
in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statements. 

The City capitalizes all acquisitions of tangible and intangible property expected to be held for more than one year and
which have a minimum cost of $25,000 for buildings and infrastructure or a minimum cost of $10,000 for all other
assets.  

Expenditures that materially extend the useful life of existing properties are capitalized.  The cost of property sold or
retired, together with the related accumulated depreciation, is removed from the appropriate accounts, and any
resulting gain or loss is included in change in net position.
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(8) Assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources and net position/fund balance (Continued)

Capital Assets (Continued)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is recorded in the Proprietary Fund statements and in the Government-
Wide Statement of Activities.  Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
the related assets which are:

Buildings 20 - 40 years
Improvements 15 - 40 years
Infrastructure 30 - 40 years
Equipment 5 - 10 years
Intangibles (primarily software) 5 years

In governmental funds, the acquisition or construction costs of capitalized assets are reported as expenditures and no
depreciation is recorded.

Compensated Absences

Employees earn vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on length of service.  Upon termination, employees
are paid 100% of accumulated vacation (and similar leave types) at current base hourly rates.  Vacation accumulation is
capped at a maximum number of hours depending on employee category and bargaining unit.  Employees who are
categorized as confidential and those who are in the Service Employees International Union and National Conference of
Firemen and Oilers bargaining units are compensated for accumulated sick leave, not to exceed 960 hours, upon
termination of employment as follows:  after 15 or more years of service compensation is at 75% of the employee’s
current hourly rate of pay and after 10 years but less than 15 years of service, compensation is at 50% of employee’s
current hourly rate of pay.  All other City employees are compensated for accumulated sick leave, not to exceed 960
hours, upon termination after at least 10 years of service at a rate of 50% of the employee’s current hourly rate of pay. 

The current portion of compensated absences payable is the amount estimated to be used or paid in the following fiscal
year.  The liability for earned compensated absences is reported at the government-wide level and in the proprietary
fund financial statements. In governmental funds, a liability is only recorded for amounts due as a result of employee
resignations or retirement.

Estimated Claims Payable

The City is self-insured for general liability, automobile liability, police professional liability, workers' compensation,
employee relations and certain death benefits and medical plans.  The operating funds are charged premiums by the
Insurance internal service fund. The accrued liability for estimated claims represents an estimate of the eventual loss on
claims arising prior to year-end, including claims incurred and not yet reported.

Long-term Obligations

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,
business-type activities or proprietary fund financial statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are
recorded as direct additions to or deductions from the related debt and amortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable premiums and discounts.
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(8) Assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources and net position/fund balance (Continued)

Long-term Obligations (Continued)

In the governmental fund financial statements, bond premiums and discounts are recognized during the current period.
The face amount of debt issued and any premiums received are reported as other financing sources while discounts are
reported as other financing uses.

Bond premiums or discounts are amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Deferred
amounts on refunding are amortized over the shorter of the remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt
using the effective interest method and reported as deferred outflows of resources.  Issuance costs are expensed in the
year of issuance, except for prepaid bond insurance costs.

Pensions

The City has three pension plans;  West Palm Beach Retated Employees Retirement System, West Palm Beach Police
Pension Fund and West Palm Beach Firefighters' Pension Fund (the Pension Plans). For the purposes of measuring the
net pension liability, net pension asset, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net positions, additions to/deductions from the Pension
Plans' fiduciary net positions have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Pension Plans.  For
this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value.  Investments in real estate are recorded at
fair value using valuation techniques such as the market approach or the income approach for which sufficient and
reliable data is available.

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

OPEB costs for retiree healthcare and similar, non-pension retiree benefits is required to be measured and disclosed
uning the accrual basis of accounting.  For the purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net
positions of the OPEB Plans and additions to/deductions from the OPEB fiduciary net positions have been determined
on the same basis as they are reported by the respective OPEB plans in accordance with GASB Statement No. 75.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position reports a separate section for deferred outflows of resources.  This
separate financial statement element represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so
will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until that time.  The City reports deferred loss
on refunding, accumulated decrease in fair value of derivative instruments, change in pension and OPEB assumptions,
pension and OPEB contributions made subsequent to the measurement date and the difference between projected and
actual earnings on pension investments.

The deferred loss on refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition
price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.

The accumulated decrease in fair value of hedging derivative instruments is reported in the government-wide statement
of net position.
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(8) Assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources and net position/fund balance (Continued)

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (Continued)

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and will not be recognized as
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that period.

The City has two items that qualify for reporting in this category: (1) Unavailable revenue is reported only in the
governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from property taxes,
assessments, and grant revenues. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period
that the amounts become available. (2) Certain amounts related to pensions and OPEB must be deferred. 

See note O for more  information on pension plans  and  Note R for more  information on OPEB plans.

Fund Balance and Net Position

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance classifications based on the level of constraint
on the resources.  Amounts which are restricted to specific purposes either by (a) constraints placed on the use of
resources by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or (b) imposed by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation are classified as restricted fund balances.  Amounts which can
only be appropriated, modified, or rescinded for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by the City
Commission through an ordinance are classified as committed fund balances.

The City Commission may also assign fund balance as it does when appropriating fund balance to cover a gap between
estimated revenue and appropriations in the subsequent year's appropriated budget.  Non-spendable fund balances
include amounts that cannot be spent because they are either :  a) not in spendable form, or b) legally or contractually
required to be maintained intact.  Unassigned fund balance represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other
funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specfiic purposes within the general fund.  The
general fund is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned balance.  In all other funds, unassigned is limited to
negative residual fund balance.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use for a given purpose, it is the City's policy to use
restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.  When unrestricted resources are
available for use for a given purpose, it is the City's policy to use committed resources first, then assigned, and then
unassigned, as they are needed.

An ordinance is the highest level of decision making authority and requires two City Commission “readings” (votes) to
effect or rescind.  Amounts which are constrained by the City’s intent to be used for specific purposes but are neither
restricted nor committed are classified as assigned fund balances.  Assigned fund balances include the appropriation of
fund balances to eliminate projected deficits in the subsequent fiscal year’s budget.

Non-spendable fund balances include amounts which cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable
form, or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
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(8) Assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources and net position/fund balance (Continued)

Fund Balance and Net Position (Continued)

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders and other commitments for the expenditure of funds are
recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is utilized in the governmental funds.
Encumbered amounts for specific purposes are reported within the applicable restricted, committed or assigned fund
balance classifications.

Unassigned fund balance represents fund balance which has not been assigned to other funds and which has not been
restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund. 

Net position of the government-wide and proprietary funds is categorized as net investment in capital assets; restricted
or unrestricted. Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets reduced by the outstanding debt issued to
acquire, construct or improve those assets, less any unspent debt proceeds and deferred gains and losses on refundings.
Restricted net position has regulatory or third party limitations on its use.

Minimum Fund Balance

In accordance with Ordinance No. 3761-04, the City established and maintains an emergency reserve equivalent to 10%
of total general fund revenue.  The purpose of the ordinance was to establish policy to maintain an adequate General
Fund fund balance to provide a "rainy day" fund for use in unforeseen, unbudgeted emergency situations, such as
sustained declines in real estate values and/or property tax collections or increase in spending requirements imposed by
the state or federal government; unreimbursable natural disaster expenditures or emergency infrastructure failures.

The Chief Financial Officer is authorized and shall transfer the calculated amount from unassigned fund balance to the
emergency reserve, to the extent available, to satisfy the requirement and shall report such balances as part of the
annual audited financial statement.

If upon completion of any fiscal year the ending balance in such emergency reserve is less than the requirement and
sufficient monies do not exist in the unassigned fund balance, then the Chief Financial Officer shall recommend an
amendment to the current year budget and include in succeeding fiscal year budgets reserved appropriations sufficient
to cover the deficiency over a period not to exceed three fiscal years (deficiency requirement).

The emergency reserve shall be used exclusively for emergencies declared by the City Commission, and the
appropriation therefrom shall be made by resolution adopted by four-fifths vote of the commission.  Any monies
available in the unassigned fund balance shall be used prior to using the emergency reserve to fund authorized
emergencies.

The duties, responsibilities, and powers of the City Chief Financial Officer also include the establishment of an
unassigned general fund balance equivalent to a minimum of 3% of total general fund revenue.  If upon completion of
any fiscal year, the ending balance in the unassigned fund balance is less than the minimum requirement, then the Chief
Financial Officer shall recommend an amendment to the current year budget and include in succeeding fiscal year
budgets reserve appropriations sufficient to cover the deficiency over a period not to exceed five fiscal years (deficiency
requirement).
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(8) Assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources and net position/fund balance (Continued)

Minimum Fund Balance (Continued)

Appropriation from the minimum balance shall require City Commission approval and shall generally be for one-time
expenditures such as capital purchases and not for ongoing expenditures unless a viable revenue plan designed to
sustain the expenditures is approved.

Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows,
liabilities and deferred inflows and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City adopts an operating budget for governmental and proprietary funds except annual budgets for all the major
and nonmajor governmental funds are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting, except for the General
Fund.  The General Fund budget is prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting except that current year
encumbrances are treated as expenditures for budgetary purposes and administrative charges from other funds are
budgeted as revenue in the General Fund.  All unencumbered and unexpended appropriations lapse at the fiscal year
end, except those for ongoing capital projects and special revenue funds which are brought forward and become part of
the subsequent year’s original budget.

The City is not legally required to, and does not adopt budgets for the Pension or OPEB Trust Funds.

The legal level of bedgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated
amount) is established at the department level.

Florida Statutes require that all city governments prepare, adopt and execute an annual budget for such funds as may
be required by law or by sound financial practices and generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, the City
has established budgetary procedures.

Property Tax Calendar

The City levies property taxes each October 1.  During the month of November, the Palm Beach County Tax Collector’s
Office prepares and delivers a Notice of Property Taxes and Non-Ad Valorem Assessments to each  taxpayer listed on the
current year’s assessment roll.

On any property against which the taxes have been assessed, the Notice of Property Taxes and Non-Ad Valorem
Assessments is recognized as a first lien and is superior to all other liens.  The lien continues in full force from January 1
of the year in which the taxes were levied until discharged by payment.  Market values of taxable property are
determined by the Palm Beach County Property Appraiser as of January 1 each year.  
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(8) Assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources and net position/fund balance (Continued)

Property Tax Calendar (Continued)

All taxes are due from property owners by March 31.  Taxes become delinquent on April 1 and are subject to the
issuance of tax sale certificates if unpaid by June 1.  Property tax revenue is subject to accrual when levied.  At
September 30, unpaid delinquent taxes are reflected as a receivable on the balance sheet.

(9) Pronouncement issued and adopted by the City

GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this Statement is to improve guidance regarding the
identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be
reported and establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. 

GASB Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests - An amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 61.  The primary
objectives of this Statement is to improve the consistency and comparability of reporting a government's majority equity
interest in a legally separate organization and to improve the relevance of the financial statement information for
certain component units. 

GASB Statement No. 98, The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.  This Statement establishes the term annual
comprehensive financial report and its acronym ACFR. The new term and acronym replace instances of comprehensive
annual financial report and its acronym in generally accepted accounting principles for state and local governments.  

(10) Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, will be effective for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022. The objective of this
Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial
reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by
requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases
and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It
establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right
to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible
right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources,
thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities. Management
expects this statement to have a significant impact on the City’s financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations, is effective for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023. The
primary objectives of this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and
eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with
conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. Management is currently evaluating the impact of the
adoption of this statement on the City’s financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020, is effective for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022 with the requirements
related to GASB Statement No. 87 implementation, reinsurance recoveries and terminology related to derivative
instruments effective immediately.  The primary objectives of this Statement are to address enhance comparability in
accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing practice
issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. Management is
currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this statement on the City's financial statements.  
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(10) Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements (Continued)

GASB Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates (IBOR), has various effective dates. The removal of
LIBOR as an appropriate benchmark interest rate for a hedging derivative instrument is effective for the City's financial
statements for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022. All other requirements of the statement are effective for the
City's financial statements for the September 30, 2021 fiscal year. This Statement establishes accounting and financial
reporting requirements related to the replacement of IBORs in hedging derivative instruments and leases. It also
identifies appropriate benchmark interest rates for hedging derivative instruments. The Statement amends Statement
No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures, paragraph 16; Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Derivative Instruments, paragraphs 22, 35, 37, 38, 46, 64, 76, and 82; Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting
and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989. Management is currently evaluating the impact
of the adoption of this statement on the City's financial statements. 

GASB Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements, is
effective for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial
reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements (PPPs) and the
availability payment arrangements (APAs). This Statement will enhance the decision usefulness of a government’s
financial statements by requiring governments to report assets and liabilities related to PPPs consistently and disclose
important information about PPP transactions. The required disclosures will allow users to understand the scale and
important aspects of a government’s PPPs and evaluate a government’s future obligations and assets resulting from
PPPs.  Management is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this statement on the City's financial
statements.

GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements, is effective for the fiscal year ending
September 30, 2023.  This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based
information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (governments). This Statement (1) defines a
SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset—an intangible asset—and a corresponding
subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including
implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the
standards for SBITAs are based on the standards established in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended.  Management is
currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this statement on the City's financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue
Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a
supersession of GASB Statement No. 32. The requirements of this Statement are effective as follows: 

 The requirements in (1) paragraph 4 of this Statement as it applies to defined contribution pension plans, defined

contribution OPEB plans, and other employee benefit plans and (2) paragraph 5 of this Statement are effective

immediately.  

 All other requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022.

The City's OPEB Plans are accounted for and reported the under the provisions of GASB Statement Nos. 74 and 75 and
does not meet the criteria of GASB Statement No. 97.   Management is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of
the relevant portions of this statement on the City's financial statements.
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NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is used by all funds except the Pension and OPEB Trust Funds.  Certain of
the City's Governmental and Enterprise funds also hold separate cash and investment accounts.  Deposits and investments of
the Pension and OPEB Trust Funds are held separately from those of other City funds but primarily follow the same
investment policies as the City.

Cash

The City’s cash deposits are held by banks that qualify as public depositories under the Florida Security for Public Deposits Act
as required by Chapter 280, Florida Statutes. As such, the City’s cash deposits are fully insured by the Public Deposits Trust
Fund.  At September 30, 2021, the City was required to maintain a compensating balance of $71,721,648 at the City’s primary
banking institution.  Maintaining this minimum balance allows the city to avoid bank fees and to earn higher rates of interest
on deposits.

Authorized Investments and Credit Risk

The City's investment practices are governed by Chapter 280 and 218, Florida Statutes, City Code of Ordinances and the City's
adopted investment policy, and various legal covenants related to outstanding bond issues. For all investments authorized by
statute and policy, the City applies the "Prudent Man Rule" when developing investment strategies.

The City has no formal policy relating to foreign currency risk.  For the year ended September 30, 2021 the City had no
investment exposure to foreign currency.  The City’s policy regarding derivative instruments  specifically states that City
Commission approval is required prior to the use of derivatives.  For the year ended September 30, 2021, the City had no
investment exposure to derivative instruments.

The City’s Investment Policy permits the following investments, which are limited to credit quality ratings from Nationally
Recognized Statistical Ratings Organizations (“NRSRO”) as follows: 

 U.S. Treasury obligations which are guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United States with maturities not to

exceed ten years from the date of purchase.

 Money Market Mutual Fund shares in open-end, no-load funds that are registered under the Federal Investment

Company Act of 1940 and operated in accordance with 17 C.F.R. § 270.2a-7.  The prospectus of such funds must

indicate that the share value shall not fluctuate.

 Intergovernmental Investment Pools that are authorized pursuant to the Florida Inter-local Cooperation Act, as

provided in Section 163.01, Florida Statutes and provided that said funds contain no derivatives.

 Corporate obligations or notes issued by corporations organized and operating within the United States or by

depository institutions licensed by the United States that have a minimum long term debt rating, at the time of

purchase, of A or better by any Nationally Recognized Statistical Ratings Organization (“NRSRO”).  Maximum term for

corporate notes and obligations shall be seven years.

 In addition, under the Investment Policy, the Short Term and Long Term Portfolios may invest in the following

investments: U.S. Government Agencies, State and Local Government Debt, Commercial Paper rated “Prime-1” by

Moody’s and “A-1” by Standard & Poor’s or equivalent by another NRSRO, Banker’s Acceptances rated Prime-1 by

Moody’s and A-1 by Standard and Poor’s, Registered Investment Companies (Mutual Funds) rated AAA or better by

Standard & Poor’s.
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NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Authorized Investments and Credit Risk (Continued)

The City’s investment portfolio is designed to reduce the concentration of credit risk within the City’s investment portfolio. A
maximum of 20% of available funds may be invested in the Florida PRIME Fund, 100% of available funds may be invested in
United States Treasury Securities, 50% of available funds may be invested in United States Government Agencies with a 25%
limit on individual issuers, 80% of available funds may be invested in Federal Instrumentalities with a 50% limit on individual
issuers, 25% of available funds may be invested in non-negotiable interest bearing time certificates of deposit with a 15% limit
on individual issuers, 50% of available funds may be invested in repurchase agreements excluding one (1) business day
agreements and overnight sweep agreements with a 25% limit on any one institution, 25% of available funds may be directly
invested in prime commercial paper with a 5% limit on individual issuers, 25% of available funds may be directly invested in
Bankers’ acceptances with a 5% limit on individual issuers, 20% of available funds may be invested in taxable and tax-exempt
debts with a limit of 20% on individual issuers, 40% of available funds may be invested in mutual funds with a limit of 20%
invested in mutual funds with a limit of 20% with any one non-SEC Rule 2a-7 investment mutual fund, 25% of available funds
may be invested in intergovernmental investment pools, 25% of available funds may be invested in corporate obligations or
corporate notes of US corporations with a limit of 5% with any one corporate note, and 30% of available funds may be
invested in mortgage-backed securities with a limit of 20% invested with any one MBS.

The City has investments in two investment pools, Florida Prime (previously known as the Local Government Surplus Funds
Trust Fund - Pool A), and the Florida Local Government Investment Trust (Trust Fund).  Florida PRIME is a state pool managed
by the State Board Administration (SBA), who provides regulatory oversight. In order to accommodate pool participants with
readily available cash, a substantial portion of the portfolio is placed in short-term securities.  The Florida Local Government
Investment Trust is a member-owned, member-governed investment fund.  Under the guidelines of GASB Codification Section
I50, Florida Prime is a "2a-7 like" pool.  Accordingly, investments in Florida Prime are reported at amortized cost.  

The Trust Fund is accounted for as net asset value (NAV) pools.  As such, its investments have been valued based on their
respective fair value factor as of the financial statement date.

Florida PRIME is governed by the rules of Chapter 19-7 of the Florida Administrative Code. These rules provide guidance and
establish the general operating procedures for the administration of the Florida PRIME. Additionally, the Office of the Auditor
General performs the operational audit of the activities and investment of the SBA. 

According to the SBA, the pool follows GASB No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investment and for
External Investment Pools, and GASB No. 79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants, where the City owns a
share of the respective pool, not the underlying securities. Accordingly, the City's investment in Florida PRIME is stated at
amortized cost. (For investment pools valued at amortized cost under GASB No. 79, we must disclose if there are any of the
following: any limitations or restrictions on participant withdrawals, such as redemption notice periods, maximum
transactions, authority to impose liquidity fees or redemption gates.)  There are no limitations or restrictions on participant
withdrawals for the SBA investment fund that is recorded at amortized cost.   

Florida PRIME is exempt from the GASB No. 72 fair value hierarchy disclosures. Additionally, the investment in the Florida
PRIME is not insured by FDIC or any other governmental agency.   Investments at September 30, 2021, were in the Florida
PRIME with weighted average days to maturity (WAM) of 48 days. The City's investment in the Florida PRIME investment pool
is rated AAAm by Standard and Poor's. 
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NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Authorized Investments and Credit Risk (Continued)

As of September 30, 2021, the primary government and the OPEB Plans had the following cash and investment types and
effective duration presented in terms of years:

Credit and Interest Rate Risk As of September 30, 2021 (in thousands)

Investment Vehicle Rating
% of

Portfolio
Duration

Years
Total

Portfolio
Cash

Equivalents Investments

Cash deposits NR %25.65 0.00 $ 156,290 $ 156,290 $ -
Money market funds AAAm %11.12 0.13 67,758 67,758 -
Florida prime AAAm %12.88 0.13 78,465 78,465 -
Florida coop. liquid assets
securities system AAAm %1.61 0.14 9,828 9,828 -
Florida local government
investment trust AAAm %0.98 0.14 6,000 - 6,000
Certificates of deposits NR %5.94 2.28 36,182 19,936 16,246
Sovereign government NR %0.42 0.54 2,581 - 2,581
United States treasuries NR %24.77 1.51 150,890 - 150,890
Federal instrumentalities NR %7.76 1.69 47,214 - 47,214
Municipal bonds AA+ %3.99 2.57 24,283 - 24,283
Corporate notes:
   Bonds NR %0.44 0.21 2,694 - 2,694
   Bonds AA+ %0.27 1.60 1,601 - 1,601
   Bonds AA- %0.07 0.87 415 - 415
   Bonds AA %0.52 2.59 3,174 - 3,174
   Bonds A+ %0.68 2.92 4,168 - 4,168
   Bonds A %0.18 2.92 1,093 - 1,093

- - - -
Exchange traded funds (ETF) NR %2.72 0.00 16,573 - 16,573

%100.00 $ 609,209 $ 332,277 $ 276,932

Credit and Interest Rate Risk As of December 31, 2020  (in thousands)**

Investment Vehicle Rating
% of

Portfolio
Duration

Years
Total

Portfolio
Cash

Equivalents Investments

Cash and cash equivalents NR %3.16 0.00 $ 211 $ 211 $ -
Mutual funds - fixed income A %31.85 5 - 7 2,126 - 2,126
Mutual funds - fixed income B %0.90 3 60 - 60
Mutual funds - fixed income BBB %1.09 9 73 - 73
Mutual funds - domestic equities NR %40.66 0.00 2,714 - 2,714
Mutual funds - international
equities NR %22.34 0.00 1,491 - 1,491

%100.00 $ 6,675 $ 211 $ 6,464

Total $ 615,884 $ 332,488 $ 283,396
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NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Authorized Investments and Credit Risk (Continued)

** Investments held for the Elected Officials VEBA and the General Employees VEBA at December 31, 2020, are
representative of the plans year-ends, consistent with GASB Statement No. 74.  This date is different than the City's fiscal year
end at September 30, 2021.  

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:
Portfolio value $ 615,884
Petty Cash 32
Less:  OPEB cash and investments (25,057)

Total cash and investments on Statement of Net Position $ 590,859

Amounts from Statement of Net Position:
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents $ 153,271
Unrestricted investments 174,412
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 183,465
Restricted investments 79,711

Total cash and investments on Statement of Net Position $ 590,859

The Custodial Credit Risk

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments: Custodial credit risk is defined as the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral security that are in the possession of
an outside party.  The City’s cash deposits and are held by banks that qualify as public depositories under the Florida Security
for Public Deposits Act as required by Chapter 280, Florida Statutes. As such, the cash deposits are fully insured by the Public
Deposits Trust Fund.  The City’s cash equivalents and investment portfolio is held in safekeeping by the custodians in the
name of the City of West Palm Beach, thereby eliminating exposure to custodial credit risk.  

Interest Rate Risk: The City’s Investment Policy sets limits for investment maturities to match known cash needs and cash
flow requirements.  Investments of current operating funds shall have maturities of no longer than twenty-four (24) months.
Investments of bond reserves, construction funds, and other non-operating funds, “core funds”, shall have a term
appropriate to the need for funds and in accordance with debt covenants, not to exceed a maturity of five (5) years with an
average duration of the portfolio as a whole not to exceed three (3) years.  As of September 30, 2021, the City has no
investments that have embedded options, allowing the issuer to call the obligation or demand a stated increase in the
interest rate.

Effective Duration:

Short Term Portfolio:  As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the Investment
Policy requires that 100% of the short term portfolio be invested in maturities of less than one year.

Long Term Portfolio:  As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the City’s
Investment Policy requires that the duration of the long term portfolio not exceed three years.
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NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Investment Policy permits up to 50% of the portfolio to be invested in any single Federal Instrumentality. As of
September 30, 2021 investments in the following Federal Instrumentalities exceed 5% of the portfolio:

Issuer
% of

Portfolio
Amount

(in thousands)

United States treasuries %24.77 $ 150,890

As of September 30, 2021, the City and the OPEB Trust had the following issuer concentrations in the investment portfolio
based on fair value: 

Issuer
% of

Portfolio
Amount

(in thousands)

Treasury obligations fund %24.77 $ 150,890
United States treasuries %14.30 87,103
Federal home loan mortgage corporation %11.12 67,759
Florida prime %12.88 78,465
Other %36.93 224,992

Total %100.00 $ 609,209

The VEBA funds had no investments greater than 5% of the portfolio.

As of September 30, 2021, the City categorized its investment portfolio using the fair value measurements in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 72. GASB 72 which uses a hierarchy based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the
asset. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are based on other significant observable inputs such as indices for
fixed income bonds and quoted prices for similar assets in markets that are active and not active; Level 3 inputs are significant
unobservable inputs.
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As of September 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the City and the OPEB Plans, had the following investment vehicles held at
fair value: 

Fair Value (in thousands)
As of September 30, 2021

Investment Vehicle

Quoted Prices in
Active

Markets For
Identical

Assets

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Municipal bonds $ - $ 24,283 $ - $ 24,283
Federal instrumentalities - 47,214 - 47,214
United States treasuries - 150,890 - 150,890
Sovereign government - 2,585 - 2,585
Corporate notes - 13,145 - 13,145
Exchange traded funds - 16,569 - 16,569
Money market funds 67,758 - - 67,758
Florida coop. liquid assets securities system 9,828 - - 9,828
Florida local government investment trust 6,000 - - 6,000

Total investments by fair value level $ 83,586 $ 254,686 $ - 338,272

Florida prime (exempt) 78,465
Certificates of deposits (exempt) 36,182
Cash deposits (exempt) 156,290

Total $ 609,209

Fair Value (in thousands)

As of December 31, 2020

Investment Vehicle

Quoted Prices in
Active

Markets For
Identical

Assets

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Mutual funds - fixed income $ 2,259 $ - $ - $ 2,259
Mutual funds - domestic equities 2,714 - - 2,714
Mutual funds - international equities 1,491 - - 1,491

Total investments by fair value level $ 6,464 $ - $ - 6,464

Cash and cash equivalents (exempt) 211

$ 6,675

Total $ 90,050 $ 254,686 $ - $ 615,884
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As of September 30, 2021, the City's Restated Employees Retirement System had the following cash and investment types:

As of September 30, 2021 (in thousands)

Investment Vehicle
Total

Portfolio
Cash

Equivalents Investments

Cash deposits $ 306 $ 306 $ -
United States government obligations 4,418 - 4,418
United States government agency obligations 3,192 - 3,192
Corporate bonds 2,231 - 2,231
Mutual funds 10,385 - 10,385
Money market funds 1,317 1,317 -
Domestic fixed investment fund 5,123 - 5,123
Domestic stocks 14,356 - 14,356
International equity investment funds 5,004 - 5,004
Real estate fund 3,207 - 3,207
Alternative investments 2,151 - 2,151

Total $ 51,690 $ 1,623 $ 50,067

At September 30, 2021, the Restated Employees Retirement System held the following fixed investments:

Issuer

Fair
Value

(in thousands)

Average
Effective
Duration
(Years)

Overall
Credit
Rating

United States agency obligations $ 3,192 14.44 AA+ or unrated*
United States treasuries - notes 3,916 6.33 Unrated*
United States treasuries - bonds 502 15.00 Unrated*
Corporate bonds 2,231 10.0 A - BBB+
Fixed income mutual funds 11,587 9.55 AAA - B- or unrated*

Total $ 21,428

* A portion of the U.S. government securities were unrated.
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At September 30, 2021, the Restated Employees Retirement System held the following investments fair value:

Fair Value Measurement (in thousands)

Prices in Active
Markets For

Identical
Assets

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
Amounts 

(in thousands)

Investment Vehicle Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

United States government obligations $ 3,916 $ 502 $ - $ 4,418
United States government agency securities - 3,192 - 3,192
Corporate bonds - 2,231 - 2,231
Mutual funds - equity securities 10,385 - - 10,385
Mutual funds - domestic fixed income 5,123 - - 5,123
Domestic stocks 14,356 - - 14,356
International equity investment funds 5,004 - - 5,004
Real return fund 2,151 - - 2,151

Total Investments by Fair Value Level $ 40,935 $ 5,925 $ - $ 46,860

Cash Deposits (exempt) 306
Investments measured at the net asset value (NAV)**
Real estate fund 3,207
Money market funds 1,317

Total $ 51,690

**As required by GAAP, certain investments that are measured at net asset value have not been classified in the fair value
hierarchy. The fair value amounts presented in this table are intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value amounts
presented in this table are intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the total investment line items in
the statement of fiduciary net position.

The real estate fund for the Restated General Employees Pension Plan is an open end diversified core real estate commingled
fund that invests primarily in core institutional office, retail, industrial, and multi-family properties located throughout the
United States.  The investment redemptions must be received by the fund 10 days prior to quarter end. 
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Receivables

Receivables as of year-end for the City’s governmental activities and the aggregate and applicable allowances for uncollectible
accounts are as follows:                                                                                                                                                                                     

General
Fund

City Center
Community

Redevelopment
Agency Fund

Northwood /
Pleasant City
Community

Redevelopment
Agency Fund

Non-Major
Governmental

Funds

Internal
Service
Funds Total

Receivables:
Accounts (gross) $ 13,354,272 $ 28,266 $ 700 $ 2,152,590 $ 897,889 $ 16,433,717
Allowance for

uncollectibles (1,480,697) - - - - (1,480,697)

Accounts (net) 11,873,575 28,266 700 2,152,590 897,889 14,953,020

Interest 135,057 87,315 13,933 190,666 85,907 512,878
Notes (gross) - 246,822 - 14,249,031 - 14,495,853
Allowance for

uncollectibles - - - (12,241,621) - (12,241,621)

Notes (net) - 246,822 - 2,007,410 - 2,254,232

Liens (gross) 240,848 - - 390,249 - 631,097
Allowance for

uncollectibles - - - (371,243) - (371,243)

Liens (net) 240,848 - - 19,006 - 259,854

Total receivables $ 12,249,480 $ 362,403 $ 14,633 $ 4,369,672 $ 983,796 $ 17,979,984

The notes receivable of $14.2 million in the Non-major Governmental Funds is comprised of mortgages containing covenants
exempting mortgages from repayment if certain conditions are met.  In issuing these notes receivable, the primary emphasis
is on community development and repayment is a secondary consideration. Notes receivable deemed uncollectible is
estimated at approximately $12.2 million.
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Receivables at year end for the City’s business-type activities are as follows:

Water and Sewer
System Fund

Stormwater
Utility Fund

Non-Major
Enterprise Funds Total

Receivables:
Accounts (gross) $ 14,856,246 $ 4,816,277 $ 75,122 $ 19,747,645
Allowance for uncollectibles (3,382,022) (2,958,323) - (6,340,345)

Accounts (net) 11,474,224 1,857,954 75,122 13,407,300
Interest - Unrestricted 315,550 64,816 27,556 407,922
Liens (gross) 1,088,638 289,154 - 1,377,792

Subtotal, receivables - unrestricted 1,404,188 353,970 27,556 1,785,714
Interest - restricted 180,092 19,434 - 199,526

Total receivables $ 13,058,504 $ 2,231,358 $ 102,678 $ 15,392,540

Unearned/unavailable revenue

Unearned revenue from resources that have been received but not yet earned is reported on both the government-wide
Statement of Net Position and on the fund financial statements.  The governmental fund financial statements also report
unavailable revenue from receivables for revenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current
period.

The components of unearned/unavailable revenues as of September 20, 2021 are as follows: 

General Fund

City Center
Community

Redevelopment
Agency Fund

Northwood /
Pleasant City
Community

Redevelopment
Agency Fund

Non-Major
Governmental

Funds Total

Revenues earned but not available:
Liens and mortgages receivable $ - $ - $ - $ 1,039,033 $ 1,039,033
EMS receivables 3,302,431 - - - 3,302,431
Other receivables 2,270,195 26,821 700 15,205 2,312,921

Total unavailable 5,572,626 26,821 700 1,054,238 6,654,385

Unearned revenue:
Prepaid occupational licenses 2,692,092 - - - 2,692,092
American Rescue Plan Advances - - - 12,265,412 12,265,412

Total unearned 2,692,092 - - 12,265,412 14,957,504

Total unearned/unavailable revenue $ 8,264,718 $ 26,821 $ 700 $ 13,319,650 $ 21,611,889
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Certain cash and investments are restricted by external third parties for the following purposes:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Purpose

Non-Major
Governmental

Funds
Internal Service

Funds Totals

Debt service $ 8,184,930 $ - $ 8,184,930
Revenue bond and capital improvement

unspent proceeds 84,589,753 - 84,589,753
Self Insurance Claims - 3,829,323 3,829,323

Total restricted assets $ 92,774,683 $ 3,829,323 $ 96,604,006

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

Purpose
Water and Sewer

System Fund
Stormwater
Utility Fund

Non-Major
Enterprise Funds Totals

Deposits Payable $ 11,107,198 $ - $ 24,454 $ 11,131,652
Due to other governments 184,288 - - 184,288
Operations and maintenance restricted by

revenue bond covenant 13,203,958 1,708,366 - 14,912,324
Revenue bond construction accounts 29,726,535 21,015,014 - 50,741,549
Revenue bond debt service accounts 9,097,770 2,633,488 - 11,731,258
Revenue bond renewal and replacement accounts 57,756,616 6,905,229 - 64,661,845
Town of Palm Beach renewal and replacement

accounts 2,486,848 - - 2,486,848
Impact fee capital contributions account 10,721,870 - - 10,721,870

Total restricted assets $ 134,285,083 $ 32,262,097 $ 24,454 $ 166,571,634

NOTE E - INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES

East Central Regional Wastewater Treatment Facilities (“ECR”): In September 1992, the City entered into a joint interlocal
agreement (“Agreement”) with Palm Beach County (the “County”) and three municipalities (City of Riviera Beach, City of Lake
Worth, and Town of Palm Beach – the “Entities”) whereby prior separate agreements were consolidated into a single unified
agreement to establish rules and procedures for the operation and management of the existing ECR in which each
participating Entity has an equity interest.  ECR was created to receive, treat, and dispose of sewage generated within each
entity and the County.  The term of the Agreement is for an initial period of thirty years with an option to renew for an
additional thirty years upon the mutual consent of the Entities.  

In the event ECR is sold or disposed of, proceeds of the sale or disposition shall be prorated among the Entities, based on
their reserve capacity as of the date of disposition. 

The Agreement also provides for the establishment of a Board (the “Board”) comprised of one representative from each
Entity participating in the Agreement to administer ECR. Under the Agreement, the Board has the power to enter into
contracts, employ personnel and enter into debt in accordance with Section 163.01(7) of the Florida statutes. 
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In accordance with the Agreement, the City operates and manages ECR on behalf of the Board. All costs of operating ECR,
excluding non-cash expenditures, are shared by each of the Entities based on actual flows of wastewater.  

Costs associated with capital projects, renewal and replacement and debt service are shared among the participating
governments based on their pro-rata share of reserve capacity except as noted below. 

The City recorded its initial investment at cost and records its ongoing financial interest as a proportion of ECR’s net position
as reported in the ECR’s most recent audited financial statements.  The proportion is the City’s reserve capacity share.

The City does not believe that the joint venture is accumulating significant financial resources or experiencing financial stress
that may cause a future benefit or burden to the City.  The most recent audited financial statements, for September 30, 2021,
reported total ECR assets of $350,379,802 and total net position of $178,208,188 including a $123,240,868 net investment in
capital assets and $5,438,747 of unrestricted net position.  Complete financial statements for the ECR may be obtained at the
City of West Palm Beach Finance Department, 401 Clematis Street, West Palm Beach, Florida 33401.

The ECR Entities’ ownership interests at September 30, 2021 were:

Participant Percentages
Reserve
Capacity

City of West Palm Beach %29.29
Palm Beach County %34.28
City of Lake Worth %16.43
City of Riviera Beach %11.43
Town of Palm Beach %8.57

Total %100.00

During fiscal year 2000, the City entered into an agreement with ECR concerning the construction, operation and
maintenance of a reclaimed water production facility.  This equipment and structures are known as the Advanced Water
Treatment (“AWT”) facility.  This facility was completed at the end of fiscal year 2006 and treated ECR effluent in order to
provide reusable water for the benefit of the City.  Since it is constructed on ECR land, the facility is considered ECR property
with 100% of its capacity and beneficial interest allocated to the City. 

At September 30, 2021, the city’s investments in ECR and AWT were reported at a combined net book value of $52,189,515 in
the water and sewer systems proprietary fund. 

Municipal Public Safety Communications Consortium of Palm Beach County (MPSCC) - In December 1999, the City entered
into an interlocal agreement with other cities and towns in Palm Beach County to purchase and operate a county-wide public
safety communications system.  The interlocal agreement established the MPSCC whose purpose is to provide its members
with expanded radio communications services (via the 800MHz trunked radio system) to aid in public safety over a larger
geographical region.  The MPSCC is a cost sharing organization.  Its annual budget is prepared by the Executive Director and
approved by the Board of Directors.  The member municipalities of the MPSCC are obligated for the debt incurred by the
consortium and each municipality is responsible for their respective portion of costs incurred by the MPSCC.  The City’s 2006
initial investment in this joint venture was $3,577,000 which represents 73% of the total consortium investment. 

During fiscal year 2021, member costs for the City were $100,000 and the year-end value of the City's investment was
$1,824,827. The City’s investment and related member costs are recorded in the MIS Processing Fund which is an Internal
Service Fund.
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NOTE F - INVESTMENT IN DIRECT FINANCING LEASES

The City entered into a lease purchase agreement with a third party lender for the acquisition of vehicles within the Fire
Department.  In accordance with the agreement, the lender advanced the City the funds totaling $2,185,649 to acquire the
vehicles.  As September 30, 2021, unspent proceeds from the advance totaled $1,464,596 and is reported in the Balance
sheet – Governmental Funds.

NOTE G - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2021 was as follows:

Beginning
Balance Additions Retirements Transfers

Ending
Balance

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 85,095,597 $ 171,872 $ - $ - $ 85,267,469
Construction in progress 60,331,910 31,806,722 - (23,113,972) 69,024,660

Total assets not being depreciated 145,427,507 31,978,594 - (23,113,972) 154,292,129

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 204,692,216 - - 2,673,988 207,366,204
Improvements other than buildings 231,428,733 1,101,632 - 18,030,434 250,560,799
Infrastructure 114,223,197 - - - 114,223,197
Machinery, furniture, and equipment 63,744,503 4,708,847 (5,425,147) 3,395,515 66,423,718
Intangible Assets 2,668,677 - - - 2,668,677

Total capital assets being depreciated 616,757,326 5,810,479 (5,425,147) 24,099,937 641,242,595

Total capital assets 762,184,833 37,789,073 (5,425,147) 985,965 795,534,724

Less accumulated depreciation and
amortization:

Buildings 72,954,551 5,223,813 - - 78,178,364
Improvements other than buildings 156,180,460 11,544,092 - - 167,724,552
Infrastructure 114,140,096 58,460 - - 114,198,556
Machinery, furniture, and equipment 43,535,160 6,539,868 (5,361,900) 985,965 45,699,093
Intangible Assets 2,199,959 44,607 - - 2,244,566

Total accumulated depreciation and
amortization 389,010,226 23,410,840 (5,361,900) 985,965 408,045,131

Total capital assets being depreciated,
net 227,747,100 (17,600,361) (63,247) 23,113,972 233,197,464

Governmental Activities
Capital assets, net $ 373,174,607 $ 14,378,233 $ (63,247) $ - $ 387,489,593
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NOTE G - CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Beginning
Balance Additions Retirements Transfers

Ending
Balance

Business-type Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land:
Water and Sewer Systems Fund $ 6,268,750 $ - $ - $ - $ 6,268,750
Non-major Funds 4,044,086 - - - 4,044,086

Total land 10,312,836 - - - 10,312,836

Construction in progress::
Water and Sewer Systems Fund 49,227,389 18,968,037 (3,360,308) - 64,835,118
Stormwater System Fund 10,719,970 3,735,797 (1,133,949) - 13,321,818
Non-major Funds 908,029 406,704 - - 1,314,733

Total construction in progress: 60,855,388 23,110,538 (4,494,257) - 79,471,669

Total capital assets not being
depreciated 71,168,224 23,110,538 (4,494,257) - 89,784,505

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings:
Water and Sewer Systems Fund 89,612,312 - - - 89,612,312
Non-major Funds 9,302,578 - - - 9,302,578

Total buildings 98,914,890 - - - 98,914,890

Infrastructure:
Water and Sewer Systems Fund 488,250,843 51,650 - 3,283,536 491,586,029
Stormwater System Fund 81,154,994 - - - 81,154,994
Non-major Funds 3,828,981 - - 1,133,949 4,962,930

Total infrastructure 573,234,818 51,650 - 4,417,485 577,703,953

Machinery, furniture, and equipment:
Water and Sewer Systems Fund 16,348,421 1,209,015 (607,692) 76,772 17,026,516
Stormwater System Fund 4,955,341 1,502,972 (704,369) - 5,753,944
Non-major Funds 2,674,574 - (3,337) (980,937) 1,690,300

Total machinery, furniture, and
equipment 23,978,336 2,711,987 (1,315,398) (904,165) 24,470,760

Total capital assets being depreciated 696,128,044 2,763,637 (1,315,398) 3,513,320 701,089,603
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NOTE G - CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Beginning
Balance Additions Retirements Transfers

Ending
Balance

Business-type Activities (Continued)
Continued:

Less accumulated depreciation and
amortization
Water and Sewer Systems Fund (68,520,719) (1,590,774) - - (70,111,493)
Non-major Funds (9,287,326) (1,669) - - (9,288,995)

Total buildings (77,808,045) (1,592,443) - - (79,400,488)

Water and Sewer Systems Fund (150,431,008) (11,700,981) - - (162,131,989)
Stormwater System Fund (24,120,505) (2,101,754) - - (26,222,259)
Non-major Funds (2,860,734) (145,561) - - (3,006,295)

Total infrastructure (177,412,247) (13,948,296) - - (191,360,543)

Water and Sewer Systems Fund (12,274,246) (1,322,145) 607,689 - (12,988,702)
Stormwater System Fund (3,261,598) (688,571) 686,361 - (3,263,808)
Non-major Funds (2,175,348) (177,545) 3,337 980,937 (1,368,619)

Total machinery, furniture, and
equipment (17,711,192) (2,188,261) 1,297,387 980,937 (17,621,129)

Total accumulated depreciation and
amortization (272,931,484) (17,729,000) 1,297,387 980,937 (288,382,160)

Total capital assets being depreciated,
net $ 423,196,560 $ 20,492,637 $ (2,612,785) $ 2,532,383 $ 412,707,443

Business-type Activities
Capital assets, net $ 494,364,784 $ 43,603,175 $ (7,107,042) $ 2,532,383 $ 502,491,948

Depreciation and amortization additions (expense) by program:

Governmental activities:
General government $ 825,270
Public safety 13,676,185
Economic environment 5,428,245
Public works 1,604,932
Health and sanitation 640,836
Leisure services 296,143

Sub total 22,471,611
Depreciation of the capital assets held by the government's Internal Service Funds

are charged to various functions based on their usage of assets:
939,229

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 23,410,840

Business-type activities:
Water and Sewage Disposal System $ 14,613,902
Stormwater System Fund 2,790,325
Non-major Funds 324,773

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 17,729,000
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NOTE H - LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt and liabilities for governmental activities:

Beginning
Balances Additions Reductions

Ending
Balances

Total
Current

Liabilities

Total
Noncurrent

Liabilities

Governmental activities:
Bonds:
   General obligation bonds $ 24,465,000 $ - $ (790,000) $ 23,675,000 $ 410,000 $ 23,265,000
   General obligation

premiums 5,532,188 - (438,612) 5,093,576 - 5,093,576
   Revenue bonds 258,437,528 - (8,482,528) 249,955,000 10,360,000 239,595,000
   Revenue premiums 28,177,982 - (2,840,845) 25,337,137 - 25,337,137

Total bonds 316,612,698 - (12,551,985) 304,060,713 10,770,000 293,290,713

Notes payable (direct debt) 26,818,004 - (4,847,349) 21,970,655 4,224,527 17,746,128
Arbitrage rebate payable 21,483 - (863) 20,620 - 20,620
Capital leases payable 13,016,991 - (4,030,952) 8,986,039 3,281,696 5,704,343
Compensated absences

payable 19,763,107 8,025,728 (7,526,917) 20,261,918 9,194,370 11,067,548
Insurance claims payable 14,365,340 31,905,180 (27,302,369) 18,968,151 5,494,657 13,473,494
Net pension liability 104,024,038 552,764 - 104,576,802 - 104,576,802
Net OPEB liability, as

restated* 10,028,841 53,794 - 10,082,635 - 10,082,635

Total Governmental Activities $ 504,650,502 $ 40,537,466 $ (56,260,435) $ 488,927,533 $ 32,965,250 $ 455,962,283

* Beginning balance was restated in the current fiscal year. See Note Q

For the governmental activities, compensated absences, pension liabilities and other post-employment benefits are generally
liquidated by the General Fund.  About 87% has been charged to governmental funds and about 13% to enterprise funds.

Internal service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, their long-term liabilities totaling $18.4
million are included as part of the above totals for governmental activities.

Bonds outstanding at September 30, 2021 payable from governmental activities are comprised of general obligation, special
obligation and tax increment revenue bonds.  These bonds mature in varying amounts during succeeding fiscal years through
2050. Interest rates on these long-term obligation ranges from 4.00% to 5.00% on general obligation bonds, 1.10% to 5.00%
on special obligation bonds and 2.25% to 5.68% on tax increment revenue bonds. 

General Obligation Bonds:

The $24,465,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020, were issued on August 27, 2020. The proceeds are to be used to fund
various parks and recreation improvement projects. The interest rate on the annual principal amounts payable is fixed at
2.50%. The bonds mature on April 1, 2050 and are pledged by the full faith, credit and taxing power of the City.  The principal
balance at September 30, 2021 was $23,675,000. 
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NOTE H - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Tax Increment Revenue Bonds:

The $77,175,000 City Center Community Redevelopment Area (CCCRA) Tax Increment Revenue Bonds, Series 2006A, were
issued on November 30, 2006.  Interest rates on remaining annual principal amounts payable vary from 4.00% to 5.00%.
Proceeds of the bond are used to finance the costs of the CCCRA Redevelopment Project and mature on March 1, 2036.   The
Bonds will be payable solely from and are secured by Pledged Funds derived by the CRA from: (i) CCCRA Tax Increment
Revenues; and (ii) all moneys, securities and instruments held in the accounts and subaccounts created under the Bond
Resolution, except the CCCRA Rebate Account.  On August 11, 2015, $46,925,000 of the outstanding principal was refunded
through the issuance of 2015 CCCRA Refunding Bond.  The outstanding balance of Series 2006A CCCRA Tax Increment
Revenue Bonds after this refunding was $26,365,000 and the maturity date was unchanged and principal payments resume
on March 1, 2032.  At September 30, 2021 the principal balance was $5,000.

The $18,870,000 NPCCRA Tax Increment Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015, were issued on June 11, 2015 and advance
refunded all of the outstanding Series 2005A bonds of like title.  Interest rates on remaining annual principal amounts
payable, vary from 2.25% to 4.00% and matures March 1, 2035.  The Series 2015 Bonds are solely payable from and secured
by a pledge of and first lien on the Pledged Funds derived by the Agency from (i) NPCCRA Tax Increment Revenues and (ii) all
moneys, securities and instrument held in the accounts and subaccounts created under the Bond Resolution, except the
NPCCRA Rebate Account.   At September 30, 2021 the principal balance was $17,725,000.

The $44,060,000 CCCRA Tax Increment Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 were issued September 10, 2015 and advance
refunded a portion of the outstanding Series 2006A bonds of like title.  Interest rates on remaining annual principal amounts
payable, vary from 3.25% to 5.25% and matures March 1, 2031.  The bond is solely payable from and secured by a pledge of
and first lien on the Pledged Funds derived by the Agency from (i) CCCRA Tax Increment Revenues and (ii) all moneys
securities and instruments held in the accounts and subaccounts created under the Bond Resolution, except the CCCRA
Rebate Account.  At September 30, 2021 the principal balance was $32,790,000.

The $91,285,000 CCCRA Tax Increment Revenue Bonds, Series 2019, were issued July 23, 2019. Proceeds of the bond were
used to finance the costs of the CCCRA redevelopment projects and partially refund the outstanding Series 2006A Bonds of
$24,265,000. The interest rate on the annual principal amounts payable is 5.0% and Matures on March 1, 2036. 

The Bonds will be payable solely from and are secured by pledged funds derived by the CCCRA from: (i) tax increment
revenues; and (ii) all moneys, securities and instruments held in the accounts and subaccounts created under the Board
Resolution, except the CCCRA Rebate Account. At September 30, 2021 the principal balance was $88,370,000

Special Obligation Revenue Bonds:

On July 5, 2016 the City issued the Special Obligation Bonds, Series 2016A, 2016B and 2016C.  The proceeds of $50,400,000
related to Series 2016A were used to fund $50,000,000 of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability of the City’s Police Pension
Fund.  Interest rates on the remaining annual principal amounts payable, vary from 1.10% to 3.52% and matures on October
1, 2035.

The proceeds of $33,795,000 of Special Obligation Refunding Bonds Series 2016B bond were used to finance various capital
projects.  Interest rates on the remaining annual principal amounts payable, are fixed at 5.00% and matures on October 1,
2040.
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Special Obligation Revenue Bonds: (Continued)

The proceeds of $35,990,000 Special Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016C, were used to refund all of the City’s Special
Obligations Bonds (City Hall Project) outstanding immediately prior to issuance of the Series 2016C Bonds.  Interest rates on
the remaining annual principal amounts payable, vary from 3.00% to 5.00% and matures on October 1, 2036. As of
September 30, 2021, the principal balances of the Special Obligation Bonds, Series 2016A, 2016B and 2016C were
$41,280,000, $33,795,000 and $35,990,000 respectively.

The annual requirements to pay Governmental Activities principal and interest on the bonds outstanding at September 30,
2021 are as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

General Obligation Bonds Revenue Bonds

Fiscal Years Ending
September 30 Principal Interest

Total
Required Principal Interest

Total
Required

2022 $ 410,000 $ 994,750 $ 1,404,750 $ 10,360,000 $ 11,035,779 $ 21,395,779
2023 430,000 973,750 1,403,750 10,810,000 10,589,652 21,399,652
2024 450,000 951,750 1,401,750 11,285,000 10,114,205 21,429,205
2025 470,000 928,750 1,398,750 11,775,000 9,612,676 21,387,676
2026 495,000 904,625 1,399,625 12,295,000 9,082,922 21,377,922

2027 - 2031 2,880,000 4,115,750 6,995,750 70,200,000 36,511,533 106,711,533
2032 - 2036 3,625,000 3,360,825 6,985,825 86,385,000 18,468,851 104,853,851
2037 - 2041 4,420,000 2,555,000 6,975,000 36,845,000 3,858,250 40,703,250
2042 - 2046 5,370,000 1,579,000 6,949,000 - - -
2047 - 2051 5,125,000 420,300 5,545,300 - - -

Total $ 23,675,000 $ 16,784,500 $ 40,459,500 $ 249,955,000 $ 109,273,868 $ 359,228,868

Current portion (410,000) (10,360,000)
Premium 5,093,576 25,337,137

Long-term portion $ 28,358,576 $ 264,932,137

Pledged Revenue:

The City has pledged legally available non-ad valorem revenues to pay the Special Obligation Bonds, Series 2016A, 2016B and
2016C.  The non-ad valorem revenue used for the bonds consists of utility taxes, franchise taxes, licenses and permits, fines
and forfeitures, intergovernmental charges for services and other.  For the current year, principal and interest of $6,861,771
was paid.   Four promissory notes; the 2004 Palm Beach County Note, the 2006 Capital Improvement Refunding Note, the
2014 Vehicle Acquisition Note and the 2014 Florida Communications System Note are also secured by non-ad valorem
revenues. For the current year, principal and interest of $2,205,444 was paid on these four notes.  Non-ad valorem revenues
were $99,317,430.

Tax Increment Revenue Bonds are those secured by a pledge of and first lien on the Pledged Funds derived from the CRA.
The City has two types of Tax Increment Revenue Bonds:  the Northwood/Pleasant City Community Redevelopment Area
(NPCCRA), 2005B and 2015 and the City Center Community Redevelopment Area (CCCRA) Tax increment Revenue Bonds,
2006A, 2010A, 2015 and 2019.  Revenue received from the NPCCRA and CCCRA in fiscal year 2021 was $2,828,466 and
$23,745,658 respectively.
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Notes Payable:

On April 2, 2004, the City entered into an agreement with Palm Beach County to pay $5,000,000 in 20 equal annual
installments of $250,000.  The note was used to fund the City’s portion of the cost of a convention center and matures April
2023.  The note is payable from and secured solely by the covenant of the City to budget and appropriate legally available
non-ad valorem revenues.  As of September 30, 2021, the principal balance of the note was $500,000.

The $2,375,000 Series 2014 Vehicle Acquisition Note was issued on April 30, 2014, to finance the acquisition of certain
vehicles and related equipment. The interest rates on the annual principal amounts payable are fixed at 2.28% and the note
matures April 30, 2024.  This Note and the interest hereon and any other amount due hereunder are secured by City’s
covenant to budget and appropriate in each Fiscal Year from its Legally Available Non-Ad Valorem Revenues.  At September
30, 2021, the principal balance was $712,248.

On June 11, 2014, the City issued $10,000,000 Series 2014 Communication Systems Note to refund the Series 2006
Communications System Note in full.  The interest rate is fixed at 2.06% and matures on June 11, 2024.  As of September 30,
2021, the principal balance was $3,253,983.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, the existing balances on the lines of credit totaling $8,323,559 were
converted to a note payable and matures on July 1, 2023, bearing interest at a fixed rate of 3.87%. The usage of the lines of
credit was to finance the construction of Fire Station No. 5, the Emergency Operations Center, Fire Station No. 4 and Fire
Station No. 8.  At September 30, 2021, the prinicipal balance of the converted line of credit was $3,329,424.

On September 5, 2019, the City issued $15,055,000 Series 2019 Special Obligation Note to fund certain capital expenditures.
The interest rate is fixed at 1.83% and matures on October 1, 2034. As of September 30, 2021, the principal balance was
$14,175,000

The annual requirements to pay governmental activities principal and interest on the promissory notes outstanding at
September 30, 2021 were as follows:

Fiscal Years Principal Interest Total Required

2022 $ 4,224,527 $ 433,849 $ 4,658,376
2023 4,275,725 320,693 4,596,418
2024 2,035,403 222,133 2,257,536
2025 945,000 191,967 1,136,967
2025 965,000 174,308 1,139,308

2026 - 2030 5,100,000 594,842 5,694,842
2031 - 2035 4,425,000 123,434 4,548,434

Total $ 21,970,655 $ 2,061,226 $ 24,031,881

Current portion (4,224,527)

Long-term portion $ 17,746,128

Capital Leases:

On December 14, 2011, the City entered into a $6,900,000 15-year capital leasing arrangement to finance energy
efficiency/conservation improvements throughout the City.  The lease carries an interest rate of 2.41% with annual payments
of $568,144 including principal and interest. At September 30, 2021, value of the asset net of related accumulated
depreciation and the principal outstanding balance totaled $3,029,501 and $3,640,102 respectively.

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report - FYE 2021 48



CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

NOTE H - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Capital Leases: (Continued)

On July 12, 2012, the City entered into a $2,700,000 ten-year capital leasing arrangement to acquire vehicles for the Fire
Department.  The lease carries an interest rate of 2.41% with annual payments of $297,262 including principal and interest.
At September 30, 2021, value of the asset net of related accumulated depreciation and the principal outstanding balance
totaled $369,561 and $293,149, respectively.

On April 1, 2017, the City entered into a five-year capital lease to fund the purchase of 29 vehicles for the police, fire and
sanitation departments for $4,203,060.  The lease carries an interest rate of 1.61% with annual payments of $881,646
including principal and interest. At September 30, 2021, the value of the asset, net of related accumulated depreciation and
the principal outstanding balance totaled $785,801 and $867,676, respectively.

On November 7, 2017, the City entered into a five-year capital lease to fund the purchase of 82 vehicles for the police, fire
and sanitation departments for $5,927,953.  The lease carries an interest rate of 1.68% with annual payments of $1,247,467
including principal and interest.  At September 30, 2021, the value of the asset, net of related accumulated depreciation and
the principal outstanding balance totaled $2,526,554 and $2,433,380, respectively.

On September 29, 2020, the City entered into a five-year capital lease to acquire three vehicles for the Fire Department. The
lease carries an interest rate of 1.09% with annual payments of $449,931.52 including principal and interest. At September
30, 2020 there was no asset or accumulated depreciation recorded for these assets. At September 30, 2021 the value of the
assets, net of related accumulated depreciation and the principal outstanding balance totaled $683,083 and $1,751,732,
respectively.

The annual requirements to pay governmental activities principal and interest on the capital leases outstanding at September
30, 2021 were as follows:

Fiscal years ending September 30: Principal Interest
Total

Required

2022 $ 3,281,696 $ 162,754 $ 3,444,451
2023 2,157,557 107,986 2,265,542
2024 947,449 70,627 1,018,076
2025 964,519 53,557 1,018,076
2026 532,006 36,138 568,144
2027 - 2031 1,102,812 33,349 1,136,161

Total 8,986,039 464,411 9,450,450

Current portion $ (3,281,696)

Long-term portion $ 5,704,343
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The City’s long-term debt for governmental activities is summarized as follows:

Purpose of
Issue

Amount
Issued

Principal
Amount

Outstanding

Stated
Interest

Rate

Maximum
Annual

Debt Service

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:

Bonds:
General obligation bonds:
     Series 2020 Parks projects $ 24,465,000 $ 23,675,000 4.00% $ 1,404,750
Revenue bonds:
     Series 2005B, NPCCRA Redevelopment 7,280,000 - 5.68% -
     Series 2006A, CCCRA Redevelopment 77,175,000 5,000 4.00 - 5.00% 5,111
     Series 2010A, CCCRA Refunding 9,829,000 - 5.06% -
     Series 2015, NPCCRA Refunding 18,870,000 17,725,000 2.250 - 4.125% 1,654,731
     Series 2015, CCCRA Refunding 44,060,000 32,790,000 3.250 - 4.125% 4,119,150
     Series 2016A Special Obligation Police Pension 50,400,000 41,280,000 1.640 - 3.521% 3,563,837
     Series 2016B special obligation Capital Improvement 33,795,000 33,795,000 5.00% 8,147,000
     Series 2016C special obligation Refunding 35,990,000 35,990,000 3.00 - 5.00% 3,060,850
     Series 2019, CCCRA Refunding 91,285,000 88,370,000 5.00% 11,443,500

     Total Revenue Bonds 368,684,000 249,955,000 31,994,179

Total Bonds 393,149,000 273,630,000 33,398,929

Notes Payable:
Governmental funds:
     Series 2006 note City Hall Land 4,066,000 - 5.06% -
     Promissory note Convention Center 5,000,000 500,000 0.00% 250,000
     Series 2014 Revenue Note Vehicles 2,375,000 712,248 2.28% 270,892
     Line of credit rollover loan Fire Stations 8,323,559 3,329,424 3.87% 1,779,333
     Promissory note Brownfield Note 350,000 - 3.00% -

     Special obligation note 2019
Capital Improvement

and Vehicles 15,055,000 14,175,000 1.83% 1,141,282

     Total governmental funds
notes 35,169,559 18,716,672 3,441,507

Internal Service Funds
     Series 2014 Revenue Note Communications 10,000,000 3,253,983 2.06% 1,220,142

Total Promissory Notes 45,169,559 21,970,655 4,661,649

Total bonds and notes for
governmental activities $ 438,318,559 $ 295,600,655 $ 38,060,578
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NOTE H - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

The City had the  following pledged debt as of September 30, 2021 in its governmental activities:

Description of Issue Purpose
Pledged
Revenue

Revenue
Received in
 FY 2021 (1)

Principal
and Interest

Paid
 in FY 2021

Debt Service
 as a

 Percentage
 of Revenues

Pledged

Outstanding
Principal and

Interest 
Pledged
Through

Special Obligation Bonds
2016A, B and C

A - to fund Police
Pension
B - to finance new
capital projects
C - to refund 2006
Special Obligation
Bonds

Non-Ad Valorem
Tax Revenue (3)

$99,317,430 $ 6,861,771 6.9% $ 164,493,333 Fiscal years
2035

through
2040

Northwood / Pleasant City
CRA Tax Increment
Revenue Bonds Series: 
2005B and 2015A

To pay for the cost
of acquiring and
clearing real
property for
redevelopment
purposes and loan
repayment  made to
the City

Northwood /
Pleasant City
CRA Tax
Increment
Revenue

2,828,466 1,682,556 59.5% 23,098,284 Fiscal years
2021 and

2035,
respectively

City Center CRA Tax
Increment Revenue Bonds
Series 2006A, 2010A,
2015B and 2019

To finance certain
public
improvements,
refund Sunshine
State Loans and a
portion of the
Agency's Tax
Increment Revenue
Bonds Series 2006A

City Center CRA
Tax Increment
Revenue

$23,745,658 $11,422,579 48.1% $ 171,637,366 Fiscal years
2021

through
2036

(1) FY 2021 Revenue
Utility service tax $ 22,028,418
Franchise taxes 9,464,923
Charges for services 29,461,750
Intergovernmental 17,282,373
Licenses and permits 3,829,291
Fines and forfeitures 458,522
Interest income 440,786
Insurance premium taxes 3,085,615
Rents and royalties 539,785
Payment in lieu of taxes 11,312,829
Miscellaneous 1,413,138

Total non-ad valorem revenue $ 99,317,430
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The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt and liabilities for business-type activities:

Beginning
Balances Additions Reductions

Ending
Balances

Total
Current

Liabilities

Total
Noncurrent

Liabilities

Business-Type activities:
Water and Sewer Systems Fund
Revenue bonds $ 195,068,041 $ 11,805,000 $(16,968,215) $ 189,904,826 $ 5,550,840 $ 184,353,986
Revenue premiums 11,343,626 - (846,781) 10,496,845 - 10,496,845

Net bonds payable 206,411,667 11,805,000 (17,814,996) 200,401,671 5,550,840 194,850,831
Compensated absences payable 2,436,429 1,420,980 (1,517,243) 2,340,166 1,393,389 946,777
Net OPEB liability,

as restated* 940,126 - (25,255) 914,871 - 914,871

Fund totals $ 209,788,222 $ 13,225,980 $(19,306,984) $ 203,656,708 $ 6,944,229 $ 196,712,479

Stormwater System Fund
Revenue bonds $ 55,981,959 $ - $ (1,596,785) $ 54,385,174 $ 1,689,160 $ 52,696,014
Revenue premiums 4,871,932 - (338,147) 4,533,785 - 4,533,785

Net bonds payable 60,853,891 - (1,934,932) 58,918,959 1,689,160 57,229,799
Compensated absences payable 286,839 167,944 (126,616) 328,167 145,331 182,836

Fund totals $ 61,140,730 $ 167,944 $ (2,061,548) $ 59,247,126 $ 1,834,491 $ 57,412,635

Non-major Business-Type Funds
Compensated absences payable $ 138,569 $ 61,021 $ (61,198) $ 138,392 $ 69,821 $ 68,571

Fund totals 138,569 61,021 (61,198) 138,392 69,821 68,571

Total Business-Type Activities $ 271,067,521 $ 13,454,945 $(21,429,730) $ 263,042,226 $ 8,848,541 $ 254,193,685

*  Beginning balance was restated in the current fiscal year. See Note Q.

The City has pledged future utility customer revenues, net of specified operating expenses, to repay $340,820,000 in various
Water System and Stormwater System revenue and revenue refunding bonds which were issued for the fiscal years 2008
through 2017.  Proceeds from these bonds provided financing for various utilities system infrastructure improvements
including the modernization of the City’s water filtration plant.  The bonds are payable solely from utility customer net
revenues and are payable through 2047.  The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $382,954,416.
Principal and interest paid for the current year and total customer net revenues were $17,045,302 and $66,647,533,
respectively.
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Revenue Bonds

On July 1, 2008, the City issued $99,990,000 Utility System Variable Rate Revenue Bonds, Series 2008C to pay for a portion of
the cost of the improvements to the utility system as defined in the Series 2008C Series Resolution. Interest is calculated
weekly as determined by the Remarketing Agent and the bond matures October 1, 2038.   

The 2017C Utility bonds partially refunded the 2008C series.  As of September 30, 2021, the principal balance of $57,810,000
remains.

On June 29, 2011, the City issued $19,200,000 Utility System Revenue Refunding bonds, Series 2011A, to extinguish all
outstanding Series 2002 Utility System Revenue Refunding Bonds. The interest rates on the remaining annual remaining
principal amounts payable is 5% and the bonds mature October 1, 2023. As of September 30, 2021, the principal balance of
$5,310,000 remains.

On September 19, 2012, the City issued $43,040,000 Utility System Revenue Refunding bonds, Series 2012A to partially
advance refund the Series 2004 Utility System Revenue Refunding Bonds. The remaining Series 2004 bonds were retired on
October 1, 2014.  The interest rates on annual remaining principal amounts payable vary between 2 and 5% and the bonds
mature October 1, 2030.  As of September 30, 2021, the principal balance of$38,375,000 remains.

On February 1, 2017 the City issued $60,755,000 Utility System Revenue bonds, Series 2017A to finance a portion of the cost
of acquiring, constructing and equipping improvement to the utility system. The interest rates on annual principal amounts
payable is fixed at 5% and the bonds mature October 1, 2042. As of September 30, 2021, the principal balance of $60,755,000
remains.

On February 1, 2017 the City issued $40,955,000 Utility System Revenue Refunding bonds, Series 2017B, to refund the Series
2008A Bonds outstanding immediately prior to issuance of the Series 2017B Bonds. The interest rates on annual principal
amounts payable vary between 1.49% and 3.39% and the bonds mature October 1, 2029. As of September 30, 2021, the
principal balance of $35,135,000 remains.

On February 1, 2017 the City issued $35,100,000 Utility System Revenue Refunding bonds, Series 2017C, to provide for the
current refunding of the unhedged principal amount outstanding of the City’s Utility System Variable Rate Revenue Bonds,
Series 2008C. The interest rates on annual principal amounts payable vary between 3 and 5% and the bonds mature October
1, 2034.  As of September 30, 2021, the principal balance of $35,100,000 remains.

On October 1, 2020 the City issued $11,805,000 Utility Systm Revenue Refunding bonds, Series 2020, to refund the Series
2010 Bonds outstanding immediately prior to issuance of the Series 2020 bonds. The refunding of the Series 2010 Bonds
resulted in cash savings of $1,572,649 and an economic gain of $1,464,152. The interest rate on annual principal amounts
payable is 1.52% and bonds mature on October 1, 2027. As of September 30, 2021 the pricipal balance of $11,805,000
remains.  
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Revenue Bonds (Continued)

The annual requirements to pay Business Type Activities principal and interest on the bonds outstanding at September 30 are
as follows:

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

Water and Sewer System Bonds Stormwater Utility Bonds

Fiscal Years Ending
September 30 Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total

2022 $ 5,550,840 $ 7,705,287 $ 13,256,127 $ 1,689,160 $ 2,377,592 $ 4,066,752
2023 5,296,930 7,640,694 12,937,624 1,693,070 2,327,565 4,020,635
2024 5,505,370 7,580,245 13,085,615 1,769,630 2,267,191 4,036,821
2025 6,330,640 7,431,345 13,761,985 1,469,360 2,204,705 3,674,065
2026 6,393,830 7,262,774 13,656,604 1,516,170 2,137,243 3,653,413

2027 - 2031 35,948,550 32,992,654 68,941,204 9,316,450 9,691,901 19,008,351
2032 - 2036 48,238,680 23,489,280 71,727,960 9,716,320 7,609,847 17,326,167
2037 - 2041 56,158,557 10,205,590 66,364,147 15,836,443 4,924,503 20,760,946
2042 - 2046 20,481,429 524,571 21,006,000 11,378,571 291,429 11,670,000

Total $ 189,904,826 $ 104,832,440 $ 294,737,266 $ 54,385,174 $ 33,831,976 $ 88,217,150

Current portion (5,550,840) (1,689,160)
Premium 10,496,845 4,533,785

Long-term portion $ 194,850,831 $ 57,229,799

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt and liabilities for business-type activities:

Purpose of
Issue

Amount
Issued

Principal
Amount

Outstanding

Stated
Interest

Rate

Maximum
Annual

Debt Service

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:
Utility system revenue bonds:

Series 2008C Water/Sewer $ 83,591,640 $ 50,410,320
See swap

information $ 13,316,350
Series 20017A Water/Sewer 39,056,786 39,056,786 5.00% 10,560,857

Utility system revenue refunding
bonds:

Series 2011A Water/Sewer 15,264,000 4,221,450 5.00% 1,481,085
Series 2012A Water/Sewer 22,935,000 22,815,000 2.00 - 5.00% 4,989,658
Series 2017B Water/Sewer 36,122,310 30,989,070 1.639 - 3.391% 5,723,948
Series 2017C Water/Sewer 30,607,200 30,607,200 3.00 - 5.00% 4,979,338
Series 2020 Water/Sewer 11,805,000 11,805,000 1.52% 2,629,192
Premium Water/Sewer 16,599,156 10,496,845 -

Total Water and Sewer Systems
Fund 283,493,482 200,401,671 43,680,428
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Purpose of
Issue

Amount
Issued

Principal
Amount

Outstanding

Stated
Interest

Rate

Maximum
Annual

Debt Service

Utility system revenue bonds:
Utility system revenue bonds:

Series 2008C Storm Water 16,398,360 7,399,680
See swap

information 1,954,694
Series 20017A Storm Water 21,698,214 21,698,214 5.00% 5,867,143

Utility system revenue refunding
bonds

Series 2011A Storm Water 3,936,000 1,088,550 5.00% 383,453
Series 2012A Storm Water 20,105,000 15,560,000 2.00 - 5.00% 1,465,073
Series 2017B Storm Water 4,832,690 4,145,930 1.639 - 3.391% 765,789
Series 2017C Storm Water 4,492,800 4,492,800 3.00 - 5.00% 730,912
Premium Storm Water 6,338,545 4,533,785 -

Total Storm Water Fund 80,264,219 58,918,959 11,167,064

Total Business-Type Activities $ 363,757,701 $ 259,320,630 $ 54,847,492

NOTE I - INTEREST RATE SWAP

On August 20, 2008, following the issuance of the City’s $99,990,000 Series 2008C Utility System Variable Rate Revenue
Bonds, the City entered into a synthetic fixed rate bond swap agreement with a notional value of $56,335,000, the hedged
portion related to the Series 2008C Utility System Variable Rate Revenue Bonds.  The objective of this transaction was to
lower borrowing costs when compared with fixed rate bonds at the time of issuance.  The maturity date of the swap is
October 1, 2038.

Under the terms of the swap agreement, the City pays the counterparty a fixed payment of 3.539% on the notional value of
$56,335,000, while receiving a variable amount computed as 72% of the monthly London Inter-Bank Offered Rate (LIBOR) on
the same notional value.  The variable rate on the bonds is reset weekly by auction.  Starting in fiscal year 2035, the notional
value of the swap and the principal amount of the associated debt decline annually until the debt is completely retired on
October 1, 2038, and the related swap agreement matures.  The Utility System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2017C,
refunded $41,845,000 of the total $43,655,000 unhedged portion of outstanding Series 2008C Utility System Variable Rate
Revenue Bonds.  At September 30, 2021 the total hedged and unhedged swap liability outstanding was $56,335,000 and
$1,475,000, respectively.

 As of September 30, 2021, bond and swap rates were as follows: 

Interest Rate Swap: Terms Rates

Fixed payment to counterparty Fixed %3.539
Variable payment from counterparty (1) 72% of Monthly LIBOR rate %(0.060)

Net interest rate swap payments %3.479
variable rate bond coupon payments (2) 7 Day Market Rate %0.070

Synthetic interest rate on bonds %3.549
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(1) 0.060% rate based on the rate received from the swap counterparty for the period ending  October 6, 2021

(2) 0.070% rate based on the rate paid to the corporate trustee for the week ending October 5, 2021

Fair Value:

As of September 30, 2021, the swap had a negative fair value of $18,513,262. The swap’s negative fair value is due to the
interest rate of the counterparty (at September 30, 2021) being less than the original counterparty rates. However, because
the coupons on the City’s variable rate bonds adjust to changing interest rates, the swap still functions effectively as a hedge
against interest rate volatility on those bonds. The swap’s fair value estimate is derived from an independent market
evaluation which uses the zero coupon method based on proprietary assumptions. The valuation model calculates future
cash flows by projecting forward swap rates and then discounts those cash flows to their present value as follows:

Cash Flow Hedge Classification Amount Classification Amount
Change in
Fair Value

Deferred Outflow $ 18,513,262 Liability $ (18,513,262) $ (7,068,096)

(Notional amount: $56,335,000)

The interest rate swap agreements do not affect the City’s obligation (under the bond indenture) to repay the principal and
variable interest on the Series 2008C bonds. As interest rates vary, the variable rate interest payments and swap payments
will vary.

Debt service requirements

The following table, which estimates debt service requirements of the variable rate bond and the swap payments, assumes
that LIBOR rates will remain at .083% on September 30, 2021 through 2022, rise to 1% in 2023 and then remain constant at
2% for the duration of those instruments.

Variable Rate Bonds - Hedged Interest Rate Swap

Fiscal Years Ending
September 30

Notional
Value

Interest
(1)

Liquidity
Fees
(2)

Remarketing
Fees
(3)

Net Amount
(4) Total

2022 $ 56,335,000 $ 54,082 $ 294,070 $ 70,419 $ 1,961,247 $ 2,379,818
2023 56,335,000 563,350 294,070 70,419 1,588,084 2,515,923
2024 56,335,000 1,126,700 294,070 70,419 1,182,472 2,673,661
2025 56,335,000 1,126,700 294,070 70,419 1,182,472 2,673,661
2026 56,335,000 1,126,700 294,070 70,419 1,182,472 2,673,661

2027 - 2031 56,335,000 5,633,500 1,470,352 352,094 5,912,358 13,368,304
2032 - 2036 56,335,000 5,368,800 1,391,781 335,550 5,634,556 12,730,687
2037 - 2039 29,310,000 885,200 221,300 55,325 929,017 2,090,842

Total $ 15,885,032 $ 4,553,783 $ 1,095,064 $ 19,572,678 $ 41,106,557
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Debt service requirements (Continued)

Variable Rate Bonds - Unhedged

Fiscal Years Ending
September 30 Principal Interest (1) Total

2022 $ 1,475,000 $ 34 $ 1,486,800

(1) Interest rates over the period are calculated .028% which was the rate in effect at September 30, 2021.

(2) Liquidity fees are 50 basis points or 0.5% of the outstanding bond principal amount and provide for a ready buyer in the
event that no other bond buyers can be found when these bonds are remarketed weekly.

(3) The remarketing fees are 12.5 basis points or 0.125% of the outstanding bond principal amount.

(4) Computed: (3.539% - .05992%) multiplied by the notional amount outstanding (see Interest Rate Swap Rate Table).

Notional Amounts in Future Years

From and Including To but Excluding Notional Amount
6/5/2013 10/1/2035 $ 56,335,000

10/1/2035 10/1/2036 43,100,000
10/1/2036 10/1/2037 29,310,000
10/1/2037 10/1/2038 14,950,000

Credit Risk  – Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to the swap agreement will not fulfill its obligations when the swap
has a positive fair value to the City.  In any period when the swap has a positive fair value, the City is exposed to actual credit
risk in the amount of the swap’s fair value.  The swap counterparty has guaranteed all payments due under the swap
agreement.  

On June 26, 2013, Citibank, the swap counterparty, novated the Citibank Interest Rate Swap to the Bank of New York Mellon.
A novation is a substitution of the counterparty in a swap agreement.  Upon novation, the swap is referred to as the Bank of
New York Mellon Interest Rate Swap.  All swap terms and conditions remain the same.  The City had no costs associated with
the novation.  As of September 30, 2021, the long-term debt of the swap counterparty – The Bank of New York Mellon
Corporation – was rated AA- by Fitch, A by Standard & Poor’s, and A1 by Moody’s.  To mitigate the potential for credit risk, if
the counterparties’ credit ratings fall below A-/A3, the counterparties will fully collateralize the fair value of the swap (with
U.S. Government Securities). 

Basis Risk – Instead of the actual variable debt interest payment, the City’s interest rate swap is based on a fixed payment
and an indexed variable receipt.  Any difference between the indexed variable receipt and the actual market-determined
variable rate paid on the bonds is called “basis risk”.  Whereas the underlying swap agreement pays the City at 72% of the 1
month LIBOR rate, the Series 2008 C Utility System Variable Rate Revenue Bonds bear interest at the seven day market rate.
From August 19, 2008 to the termination date, the swap exposes the City to basis risk should the relationship between LIBOR
and the seven day market rate converge (thereby changing the synthetic rate on the bonds).  If a change occurs that results in
the rates moving to convergence, the City’s payments out may be in excess of its payments received from the counterparty
and the City’s expected cost savings may not be realized.
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Debt service requirements (Continued)

Termination Risk – The City’s derivative contract uses the International Swaps and Derivatives Association’s Master
Agreement (ISDA).  The ISDA Master Agreement includes standard termination events, such as failure to pay and bankruptcy.
The Schedule to the ISDA Master Agreement also includes “additional termination events”.  Accordingly, if the counterparty’s
credit quality rating falls below “BBB-“ as issued by Standard & Poor’s or “Baa3” as issued by Moody’s Investors Service, the
City may terminate the swap.  The City or the counterparty may terminate the swap if the other party fails to perform under
the terms of the contract.  If the swap is terminated, the variable rate bonds would no longer carry a synthetic interest rate
and the City would no longer be insulated from the possibility of increasing interest rate payments.  A termination of the
swap agreement may also result in the City making or receiving a termination payment (equal to the swap’s fair value at the
termination date). 

Rollover Risk – Because the maturity dates for the hedged Series 2008 C Utility System Variable Rate Bonds and the interest
rate swap agreement are the same (October 1, 2038), the City is not exposed to rollover risk.

Interest Rate Risk – The hedging derivative is a pay-fixed, receive variable cash flow hedge that is hedging interest rates on a
portion of the 2008C bonds outstanding. The City believes that it has significantly reduced interest rate risk attributable to the
principal amount being hedged by entering into the interest rate swap.

Foreign Currency Risk – Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates would adversely affect the fair value
of the derivative or cash flows of the City.  With respect to the City’s derivative and the related cash flows, the City has no
exposure to foreign currency risk.

NOTE J - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and
services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3)
payments between funds are made. These amounts also include balances of working capital loans made to several nonmajor
governmental funds, which the general fund expects to collect in the subsequent year. These composition of interfund
balances as of September 30, 2021 is as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General Fund Nonmajor Governmental Funds $ 2,912,705
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Transfers-out from the General Fund to Non-Major Governmental Funds funded debt service obligations, capital
improvements, technology replacement, and grant matching requirements.  Transfers-out from the City Center Community
Redevelopment Agency Fund to the General Fund and Non-Major Governmental Funds funded debt service obligations and
recreational activity for community engagement.  Other transfers between the Non-Major Governmental Funds funded
capital improvement and debt service obligations. Transfers-out from the Water and Sewer Systems Fund and the non-major
enterprise fund to the General Fund represented Payments-In-Lieu-Of-Taxes (i.e., “PILOT”). The following is a summary of
interfund transfer activity:

Transfer-In Funds:

Transfer-Out Funds: General Fund

City Center
Community

Redevelopment
Agency Fund

Non-Major
Governmental

Funds

Internal
Service
Funds Total

General $ - $ - $ 1,420,416 $ 650,000 $ 2,070,416
City Center Community
Redevelopment Agency 250,000 - 8,402,357 - 8,652,357
Non-major governmental - - 6,153,965 - 6,153,965
Non-major enterprise 590,291 - - - 590,291
Water and Sewer System 10,855,658 - - - 10,855,658
Internal Service - 75,684 - - 75,684

Total Transfers $ 11,695,949 $ 75,684 $ 15,976,738 $ 650,000 $ 28,398,371

NOTE L - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budget

Annual budgets are adopted for major and nonmajor governmental funds.  Except for the General Fund, these budgets are
prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting.  In the General Fund, budgets are prepared on the modified accrual
basis of accounting except that current year encumbrances are treated as expenditures for budgetary purposes and
administrative charges to other funds are budgeted as revenue in the General Fund. 

All unencumbered and unexpended appropriations lapse at the fiscal year-end except those for ongoing capital projects and
special revenue funds which are brought forward and become part of the subsequent year’s original budget.  

Appropriations at year end that are encumbered but unexpended are also brought forward and become part of the
subsequent year’s original budget.   Supplemental appropriations made during the fiscal year are included in the ‘Final
Budget’ columns on the statements of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances – budget and actual.  
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Budget (Continued)

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021, certain funds were inactive or are being utilized on an as needed basis
when the City pays or receives a non-recurring charge.  The source and use of revenues are approved by the City Commission
on an as needed basis for the following funds:

Impact Fees Western Expansion Fee Fund
The Red Light Camera Fund
Waterfront District Fund
Cemetery Sinking Fund
Land Acquisition Fund
City Commons & Waterfront Park Construction Fund

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021 the City received funds related to the American Rescue Plan and established
the American Rescue Plan Act Fund. The funds received interest income, however no budget was established for this fund. 

At September 30, 2021 the General Fund had budgetary violations related to Police and Fire expenses due to substantial
overtime needed in both departments related to COVID-19. In addition the captital outlay had a budget violation due to the
donation of a capital asset that was not budgeted.

At September 30, 2021, the City Center Community Redevelopment Agency Fund had a budgetary violation in interest
expense due to an error in the amortization schedule of the 2010A Bonds. The error was fixed for future years. In addition,
The Northwood/Pleaseant City Community Revelopment Agency Fund had a budgetary violation in principal expense related
to the early payoff of the 2017 Brownfields Note, which was not budgeted. 

Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the fund and department level without Commission approval.  Budget
changes within a fund and department which do not affect the departmental total may be approved on the administrative
level.  The City Administrator and Chief Financial Officer have the authority to approve such administrative changes.

Deficit Fund Equity

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021, the Self Insurance Fund had a deficit fund balance due to an actuarial increase
in outstanding liabilites based upon an analysis of our recent claims paid expericene rates.  The shortfall will be  corrected in
fiscal year 2022 with additional assessments from operating charges. The Community Development Fund has a deficit fund
balance as a result of a transfer made to the City's Grant Capital Projects fund for an amount in excess of the cash available in
the fund at year end.  The fund has future intergovernmental receivables due to it to cover the deficit 

NOTE M - RISK MANAGEMENT

The City maintains two risk retention funds, the Self Insurance Fund and the Employee Benefits Fund. These funds combine
risk retention (“self-insurance”) with purchased insurance policies and are categorized as internal service funds.  The Self
Insurance Fund is used to account for the City's workers' compensation, general, and automotive liability claims.  The
Employee Benefits Fund is used to account for the health and life benefits for eligible City employees and certain retirees. 

Insurance claims liabilities and expenses are recognized when it is probable a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss
can be reasonably estimated.
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Risk has been retained by the City in the amount of $500,000 for workers’ compensation, $350,000 for general and auto
liability, 100% for employee health (beginning July 1, 2018), and $100,000 for property loss.  Excess insurance has been
purchased for general liability coverage up to $10,000,000.

Property loss is covered by purchased insurance policies up to $327,000,000 (total insured value).

During the past three years, claims settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverages. The claims liability amounts
shown below represent the present value of estimated future payments to be made for claims that occurred prior to
September 30, 2021.  The discount rate used in calculating the Self Insurance Fund’s liability is 3%.  No discounting was done
in calculating the Employee Benefits Fund’s liability.  No non-incremental claims adjustments have been made. 

The following is a summary of the changes in claims liability for the Self Insurance Fund for the fiscal years ended September
30: 

Fiscal Year
2021

Fiscal Year
2020

Unpaid claims as of October 1 $ 13,155,264 $ 10,717,744

Incurred claims (including claims incurred but not reported as of
September 30):

Provision for current year events where the City has retained risk of
loss 7,549,265 6,037,795

Increases in provision for prior years' events where the City has
retained risk of loss 4,759,819 1,686,756

Total incurred claims 12,309,084 7,724,551

Payments:
Claims attributable to current year events where the City has

retained risk of loss 2,085,268 1,622,515
Claims attributable to prior years' events where the City has

retained risk of loss 5,791,637 3,554,516

Total payments 7,876,905 5,177,031

Unpaid claims as of September 30 $ 17,587,443 $ 13,155,264

Reconciliation to Internal Service Funds Statement of Net Position:
Insurance claims payable, current portion 4,113,949 2,893,957
Insurance claims payable, long term portion 13,473,494 10,261,307

$ 17,587,443 $ 13,155,264
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The following is a summary of the changes in claims liability for the Employee Benefits Fund for the fiscal years ended
September 30:

Fiscal Year
2021

Fiscal Year
2020

Unpaid claims as of October 1 $ 1,210,076 $ 1,221,963

Incurred claims (including claim incurred but not reported as of September
30):

Provision for current year events where the City has retained risk of loss 53,822,520 67,095,290
Decreases in provision for prior years' events where the City has retained risk

of loss (34,226,424) (47,885,291)

Total incurred claims 19,596,096 19,209,999

Payments:
Claims attributable to current year events where the City has retained risk of

loss 18,151,136 18,188,943
Claims attributable to prior years' events where the City has retained risk of

loss 1,274,328 1,032,943

Total payments 19,425,464 19,221,886

Unpaid claims as of September 30 $ 1,380,708 $ 1,210,076

Reconciliation to Internal Service Funds Statement of Net Position
Insurance claims payable, current portion 1,380,708 1,210,076
Insurance claims payable, long term portion - -

$ 1,380,708 $ 1,210,076

NOTE N - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Construction and Equipment Contracts

Purchase orders are issued throughout the fiscal year to encumber budgets in the governmental funds. At the fiscal year end, 
the City had significant commitments representing encumbrances for uncompleted contracts for construction and equipment: 

Governmental activities:
General Fund $ 2,935,508
City Center Community Redevelopment Agency Fund 601,728
Northwood/Pleasant City Community Redevelopment Agency Fund 893,111
Non-major Funds 45,450,973

$ 49,881,320

Business-Type activities:
Water and Sewer System Fund $ 22,780,731
Stormwater Fund 4,304,820

$ 27,085,551
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Litigation, Claims and Assessments

The City is engaged in routine litigation, claims and assessments incidental to the conduct of its business.  In the opinion of
the City Attorney, the ultimate outcome of any pending litigation, claims and assessments which represent potential liability
to the City in excess of either amounts already provided for in the accompanying financial statements, or covered by
insurance, will not have a material or adverse effect on its financial position.

State and Federal Grants

Grant funds received and disbursed by the City are for specific purposes and are subject to audit by the grantor agencies.
Amounts received or receivable from the agencies are subject to audit and adjustment.  Any disallowed claims, including the
amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds.  Future disallowances, if any, cannot be
determined at this time although in the opinion of management, any disallowed expenditures would not have a material
adverse effect on the financial condition of the City. 

City Place Community Development District Debt

On April 20, 2012, the Community Development District (CDD) issued the $39,890,000 Special Assessment and Refunding
Bonds, Series 2012, primarily pledged by special assessments to the properties within the CDD.  Additionally, the CRA pledged
certain tax increment revenue for properties within the CDD and up to $2,000,000 of the existing tax increment revenues
generated outside the CDD.  The CRA payments, together with the special assessments required to be levied by the CDD, are
anticipated to fully fund the debt service requirements.  As of September 30, 2021, neither the City nor the CRA has an
outstanding liability to the CDD.

Leased Property

On March 30, 2018, the City and the CCCRA entered into a ground lease and development agreement (the "Agreement") with
a developer to lease property.  In accordance with the Agreement, the lessee will construct and develop commercial and
residential buildings for the benefit of the public.  The initial term of the lease is 50 years with an option to renew for an
additional 25 years.  No rent is payable by the buyer within the initial term.  If the buyer elects to exercise the renewal option,
the annual rent shall be the fair rental value of the leased property at renewal.  Upon expiration of the lease, the ownership
of improvements to the leased property will automatically revert to the City or the CCCRA.

On September 22, 2020, the NPCCRA entered into a property development and lease agreement (the "Development and
Lease Agreement") with a third party to lease property for development and to remedy blight in the Northwood/Pleasant City
Community Redevelopment District.  In accordance with the Development and Lease Agreement, the lessee will construct
and develop commercial and residential buildings in accordance with a specific plan to be approved by the CRA Board.  The
term of the lease is 50 years, with an option to purchase the property after 10 years, following the issuance of the final
Certificate of Occupancy for the project.  Annual base rent of  $174,000 is due in twelve monthly installments after the final
Certificate of Occupancy is issued.  The base rent is subject to annual increases based on the National Consumer Price Index
(CPI Index).   On the 25th anniversary of the Development and Lease Agreement, the annual base rent will be recalculated
without the CPI Index by multiplying the appraised value by the 20-year United States Treasury Note Interest Rate, or its
equivalent at such time. 

The NPCCRA shall not sell the property to a third party other than the developer or an affiliate of the developer for a period
of 10 years, following the issuance of the final Certificate of Occupancy for the project. Should the developer elect to exercise
the option to purchase the property, the purchase price shall be $4,350,000.   
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Leased Property (Continued)

During the construction phase of the project, the NPCCRA commits to reimburse the developer for building permit fees and
other related charges, not to exceed $1,000,000.  Upon expiration of the lease, the ownership of improvements to the leased
property will remain with the developer.

NOTE O - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021, the City participated in four single-employer pension plans covering
substantially all full-time employees.  Three of the plans are defined benefit pension plans and one is a defined contribution
pension plan.  Each defined benefit pension plan is administered by an independent board of trustees and each is audited
annually by an independent certified public accountant.

For this report dated September 30, 2021, the actuarial valuation date for all plans is September 30, 2019, and the
measurement date is September 30, 2020.  The Required Supplementary Information section of this report provides
additional detailed information about actuarial methods and assumptions used to determine the contribution rates for each
plan.  That section also provides schedules of employer contributions, total pension asset/liability, plan fiduciary net position,
and changes in net pension asset/liability for each plan.  The schedules of employer contributions and pension liabilities will
be expanded each year until a total of ten years is presented.

(1) Defined benefit plans

Police Pension Plan:  The West Palm Beach Police Pension Fund (“the plan”) was created in 1947 by a special act of the
Florida legislature, Chapter 24981, Section 16, Laws of Florida, as amended.   The plan provides retirement benefits for
noncivilian police department employees and is maintained through contributions from employee members, actuarially
determined contributions from the City, and from investment earnings.  In addition, the State of Florida, pursuant to
Chapter 185 of the Florida Statutes, pays to the plan all casualty insurance premium surcharges collected from within
the city limits.  These surcharges are distributed annually provided the local government has met its actuarial funding
requirement for the most recently completed fiscal year.  Employee members of the Plan make regular contributions.
For fiscal year 2021, the City withheld 11% of earnings from employee members.  7% was remitted to the pension plan
and 4% was paid to the Police VEBA.

Benefit provisions and contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the City of West Palm Beach
in conjunction with the Palm Beach County Police Benevolent Association.  Any such amendments take effect upon
passage by the Florida State Legislature.  The City’s recommended and actual contribution for fiscal year 2021, as
discounted for payment at the beginning of the fiscal year, was $5,935,584. This contribution represented
approximately 23.8% of covered payroll.  Chapter 185 funds, as mentioned above, amounted to $1,597,683 for fiscal
year 2021.  The plan annually produces a separately audited annual report including financial statements and required
supplementary information.  This report may be obtained by writing to City of West Palm Beach, Finance Department,
401 Clematis Street, West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 or by calling 1-561-822-1310 or accessible at wpbppf.com.

Firefighters pension plan:  The Firefighters Pension Fund (“the plan”) was created in 1947 by a special act of the Florida
legislature, Chapter 24981, Section 17, Laws of Florida, as amended.   The plan provides retirement benefits for
firefighters and fire department officers and is maintained through contributions from employee members, actuarially
determined contributions from the City, and from investment earnings.  In addition, the State of Florida, pursuant to
Chapter 175 of the Florida Statutes, pays to the plan all property insurance premium surcharges collected from within
the city limits.  
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(1) Defined benefit plans (Continued)

These surcharges are distributed annually provided the local government has met its actuarial funding requirement for
the most recently completed fiscal year.  Employee members of the Plan make regular contributions.  For fiscal year
2021, the City withheld 13.1% of earnings from employee members.  11.1% was remitted to the pension plan and 2%
was paid to the Firefighters’ VEBA.   Benefit provisions and contribution requirements are established and may be
amended by the City of West Palm Beach in conjunction with the West Palm Beach Association of Fire Fighters, I.A.F.F.
Local 727.  The City’s recommended and actual contribution for fiscal year 2021, as discounted for payment at the
beginning of the fiscal year, was $9,405,758. 

Chapter 175 funds, as mentioned above, amounted to $1,487,932 for fiscal year 2021.  In accordance with the union
contract, 100% of the Chapter 175 monies, or $1,487,932, was remitted to the pension plan.  These combined
contributions, amounting to $10,893,690, represented 51.8% of covered payroll.  

The plan annually produces a separately audited annual report including financial statements and required
supplementary information.  This report may be obtained by writing to City of West Palm Beach, Finance Department,
401 Clematis Street, West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 or by calling 1-561-822-1310 or accessible at resourcecenters.com.

Restated Employees pension plan:  The West Palm Beach Restated Employees Defined Benefit Retirement System (“the
plan”) was established under Ordinance No 3059-97 on August 11, 1997.  The plan, a successor plan to the City of West
Palm Beach Employees’ Retirement System, provides retirement benefits for employees who were active members of
the predecessor plan as of September 10, 1997.  All members are fully vested and the plan is closed to new members.
Active members make regular contributions to the plan in the amount of 5.5% of employee earnings.  

Benefit provisions and contribution requirements for the plan are established and may be amended by the City of West
Palm Beach in conjunction with the State Employees International Union and the Professional Managers and Supervisors
Association.  

Contributions into the Plan varies from year to year and are actuarially determined. The City's recommended and actual
contribution for fiscal year 2021 totaled $354,046.

The plans' administrative costs are financed through investment earnings. The plan annually produces a separately
audited annual report including financial statements and required supplementary information.  This report may be
obtained by writing to City of West Palm Beach, Finance Department, 401 Clematis Street, West Palm Beach, Florida
33401 or by calling 1-561-822-1310 or thru resourcecenters.com.
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Selected actuarial data for the defined benefit pension plans is presented below:

Police
Pension

September 30, 2019

Firefighters
Pension

September 30, 2019

Restated
 Employees

Pension
September 30, 2019

Membership as of valuation date:
Number of:

Retirees and beneficiaries 266 207 166
Inactive, nonretired members 7 - 6
Active members 264 228 15

Total 537 435 187

Covered payroll $ 24,972,409 $ 21,020,508 $ 1,021,817

Net pension (asset) liability:
Total pension liability $ 434,665,661 $ 322,197,230 $ 43,763,678
Fiduciary net position (400,055,406) (252,230,683) (45,778,034)

Net pension (asset) liability $ 34,610,255 $ 69,966,547 $ (2,014,356)

Fiduciary net position as a % of total pension
liability %92.04 %78.28 %104.60

Net pension (asset) liability as a % of covered
payroll %138.59 %332.85 %-197.13

Police 
Pension

Firefighters
 Pension

Restated
Employees

Pension

Increase (Decrease)

Total pension liability
Balance at September 30, 2019 $ 408,293,394 $ 313,047,802 $ 43,439,476

Changes for the year:
Service cost 6,248,573 4,748,948 49,760
Interest on the total pension liability 30,656,907 15,356,555 3,142,590
Difference between expected and actual

experience of the total pension liability 1,972,997 (1,290,643) 258,174
Changes of assumptions 4,439,753 (4,748,226) -
Benefit payments including refunds of employee

contributions (18,719,757) (17,091,761) (3,126,322)
Other (DROP and share plan adjustments) 1,773,794 12,174,555 -

Net  change in total pension liability 26,372,267 9,149,428 324,202

(a) Balance at September 30, 2020 $ 434,665,661 $ 322,197,230 $ 43,763,678
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Police 
Pension

Firefighters
 Pension

Restated
Employees

Pension

Increase (Decrease)

Plan fiduciary net position:
 Balance at September 30, 2019 $ 383,442,225 $ 233,874,933 $ 45,801,302

Contributions - Employer 6,852,261 11,095,789 -
Contributions - Employee 2,806,839 4,144,354 55,751
Net investment income 25,816,070 20,389,301 3,159,385
Benefit payments including refunds of employee

contributions (18,719,757) (17,091,761) (3,126,322)
Pension plan administrative expense (304,417) (196,920) (92,658)
Other 162,185 14,987 (19,424)

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 16,613,181 18,355,750 (23,268)

(b) Plan fiduciary net position:
Balance at September 30, 2020 $ 400,055,406 $ 252,230,683 $ 45,778,034

(a) - (b) Net pension (asset) liability $ 34,610,255 $ 69,966,547 $ (2,014,356)

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total pension liability %92.04 %78.28 %104.60

Covered payroll $ 24,972,409 $ 21,020,508 $ 1,021,817

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered
payroll %138.59 %332.85 %-197.13

The schedule of changes in the net pension liability and related ratios and the schedule of contributions are presented
as Required Supplementary Information (RSI) following the notes to the financial statements and provides additional
information about the net pension liability, asset and contributions. 
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The following table summarizes the net pension asset, net pension liability, deferred inflow and outflow of resources
and pension expense as disclosed above for each defined benefit pension plan: 

Governmental Activities

Pension Plan
Net Pension

Asset
Net Pension

Liability

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Pension
Expense
(Credit)

Restated Employees $ 1,752,490 $ - $ - $ 428,589 $ 25,180
Police - 34,610,255 - 29,910,502 12,287,648
Firefighters - 69,966,547 7,701,612 15,379,476 8,549,267

Total $ 1,752,490 $104,576,802 $ 7,701,612 $ 45,718,567 $ 20,862,095

Business-Type Activities

Pension Plan
Net Pension

Asset
Net Pension

Liability

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Pension
Expense
(Credit)

Restated Employees $ 261,866 $ - $ - $ 64,043 $ 3,764

Total $ 261,866 $ - $ - $ 64,043 $ 3,764

Net pension liabilities attributable to governmental activities are generally liquidated by the General Fund or the
appropriate proprietary fund for business–type activities.
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The following assumptions were used to produce the actuarial reports:

Police Pension Firefighters Pension
Restated

Employees Pension

Valuation date: September 30, 2019 September 30, 2019 September 30, 2019
Measurement date: September 30, 2020 September 30, 2020 September 30, 2020
Reporting date: September 30, 2021 September 30, 2021 September 30, 2021

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Net Pension Liability:

Actuarial cost method: Entry age normal Entry age normal Entry age normal
Inflation: 2.50% 4.10% 5.00%
Salary increases: 5.00%, including inflation 4.10% to 4.60%, including

inflation 
5.00% to 8.80% per year

Investment rate of return: 7.5% 7.50% 7.50%
Long-term municipal bond rate: 2.75% 2.41% 2.41%
Retirement age: Experience-based table of rates

that are specific to the type of
eligibility condition.

Age and experience-based table
of rates specific to the type of
eligibility condition. Last updated
for the 2018 valuation. 

Age-based table of rates that are
specific to the type of eligibility
condition.

Mortality: RP-2000 Combined Health
Participant Mortality Table (for
pre-retirement mortality) and
the RP-2000 Mortality Table for
Annuitants (for post-retirement
mortality), with mortality
improvements projected to all
future years after 2000 using
Scale BB. For males, the base
mortality rates include a 90%
blue collar adjustment and a
10% white collar adjustment. For
females, the base mortality rates
include a 100% white collar
adjustment. These are the same
rates used for Special Risk Class
members of the Florida
Retirement System (FRS) in the
July 1, 2018 FRS Valuation, as
mandated by Chapter 112.63,
Florida Statutes.

The Florida Retirement System
(FRS) mortality tables with use
variations of the fully
generational Pub-2010 Safety
Mortality Tables with
improvement scale MP-2018.

The Florida Retirement System
(FRS) mortality tables which use
variations of the fully
generational RP-2000 Mortality
Tables with projection scale BB.

Other information: Effective as of September 30,
2019, the investment return
assumption was lowered from
7.625% to 7.5%

The Mortality Tables were
updated to the tales indicated
above, and reflected in the TPL
as of September 30, 2020. Cost
of living adjustments were
5.50% per year for Plan A
recipients (hired prior to May 1,
1959). Implied 0% per year for
prior Plan B recipients as of
September 30, 2018, if
aggregate gains from all sources
do not limit it.

Cost of living adjustments were
2.00% simple.
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The City is reporting deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources from the following sources at
September 30, 2021:

Deferred Outflows (Inflows)

Description Police Pension
Firefighters

Pension
Restated

Employees Pension Total

City and State contribution subsequent to
measurement date $ 7,533,267 $ 9,405,758 $ - $ 16,939,025

Differences between expected and actual
experience 4,339,809 (1,129,496) - 3,210,313

Change of assumptions - outflows 9,363,556 5,973,718 - 15,337,274
Change of assumptions - inflows - (4,115,534) - (4,115,534)
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension investments 8,673,870 (2,456,582) 492,632 6,709,920

Total $ 29,910,502 $ 7,677,864 $ 492,632 38,080,998

Amounts from Statement of Net Position:
Deferred outflows related to pension 45,782,610
Deferred inflows related to pension (7,701,612)

Total $ 38,080,998

(2) Plan assets

Discount rate:   The discount rates illustrated in the table below were used to measure the total pension liability for all
three plans.  The rates were based on the expected rate of return on each pension plan investments.  The projection of
cash flows used to determine this single discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the
current contribution rate and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between the
total actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate.  Based on these assumptions, the fiduciary net
position of all funds was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan
members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

1% Decrease
Discount Rate
Assumption 1% Increase

6.50% 7.50% 8.50%
Restated Employees Pension $ 2,577,466 $ (2,014,356) $ (5,892,182)

1% Decrease
Discount Rate
Assumption 1% Increase

6.50% 7.50% 8.50%
Firefighters Pension $ 95,406,677 $ 69,966,547 $ 49,086,654
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(2) Plan assets (Continued)

1% Decrease
Discount Rate
Assumption 1% Increase

6.500% 7.500% 8.500%
Police Pension $ 76,576,430 $ 34,610,255 $ 607,811

Sensitivity of the discount rate: Regarding the sensitivity of the net pension liability (asset) to changes in the single
discount rate, the following presents each plan’s net pension liability (asset), calculated using a single discount rate of
7.50%, as well as what each plan’s net pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a single discount rate
that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate assumption

The deferred outflows of resources resulting from City contributions to the pension plans subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the following fiscal year.  Subsequent
to the measurement date of September 30, 2020, the City contributed $7,533,267 and $9,405,758 to the Police and
Firefighters pension plans, respectively.  The amount reported as a deferred outflow (inflow) of resources related to the
pensions will be recognized in pension expense in future years as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending September 30
Police

Pension
Firefighters

Pension
Restated

Employees Pension

2022 $ 4,760,698 $ (1,768,394) $ (229,695)
2023 7,702,897 279,413 294,317
2024 7,474,629 1,810,749 396,739
2025 2,313,271 (368,592) 31,271
2026 125,740 (583,369) -

Thereafter - (1,097,701) -

Total $ 22,377,235 $ (1,727,894) $ 492,632

Long-term Expected Rate of Return – The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
determined using a building-block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.  Best estimates of arithmetic
real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of September 30,
2021 are summarized in the following table. 

Police Pension:

Asset Class
Target

Allocation
Long-term Expected
Real Rate of Return

Domestic equity %47.00 %5.10
International equity %14.00 %8.50
Domestic bonds %22.00 %2.50
Real estate %14.00 %4.50
Alternative assets %3.00 %6.00
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Firefighters Pension:

Asset Class
Target

Allocation
Long-term Expected
Real Rate of Return

Domestic equity %47.00 %4.20
International equity %10.00 %8.50
Domestic bonds %14.00 %2.50
International bonds %5.00 %3.50
Real estate %12.00 %4.50
Alternative assets %10.00 %6.20

Restated Employees
Pension:

Asset Class
Target

Allocation
Long-term Expected
Real Rate of Return

Domestic equity %50.00 %7.50
International equity %10.00 %8.50
Domestic bonds %20.00 %2.50
International bonds %10.00 %3.50
Real estate %5.00 %4.50
Alternative assets %5.00 %6.00

(3) Defined contribution plan

The Public Employee Defined Contribution Plan ("PEDCP") covers all full-time employees except those covered by the
Restated, Police, and Firefighters’ pension plans. The PEDCP is administered by the City through a third party
administrator. Benefit provisions, contribution requirements and all other requirements of the PEDCP are established by
West Palm Beach Code of Ordinances Sections 62-131 through 62-141.

New employees are enrolled in the PEDCP upon successful completion of six months of employment.  Vesting is
immediate.  Required and actual contributions represent 7.5% for employees and from 6.5% to 9.5% by the City,
depending upon employee group and length of employment.  Employer contribution expense for fiscal year 2021 was
$4.2 million.  The assets of the PEDCP are held in trust and are the sole property of the participants.  No balances or
financial information relative to the PEDCP are reported in the basic financial statements.

NOTE P - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) Code
Section 457 (“457 Plan”).  The 457 Plan, available to all City employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until
future years.  The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or the hardship
distribution criteria as defined in IRS Code Section 457.  The assets of the plans are held in trust and are the sole property of
the participants. No balances or financial information relative to the 457 Plan are reported in the basic financial statements.  
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During the current fiscal year, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 84, which establishes criteria for identifying and
reporting fiduciary activities. As a result of implementing this standard, the Voluntary Employees' Beneficiary Association
(VEBA) Plans for Elected Officials and Certain Management Employees (Elected Officials and Management VEBA) and General
Employees (General Employee VEBA) who are not covered by police and firefighters pension plans are now reported as
fiduciary activities in the fiduciary funds.

During the current year, the City corrected an error of reporting the VEBA plans. In previous years, the plans were reported as
defined contribution OPEB plans, but are determined defined benefit OPEB plans under GASB Statement No. 74. As a result,
the City restated its net position to record net OPEB liability as of the beginning of the fiscal year for the VEBA plans.  The City
also presented information required by GASB Statements No. 74 and No. 75 in its current fiscal year disclosure of the OPEB
Plans (Note R) and in the Required Supplementary Information Section, as a result of this correction.  

The Police Pension Plan and Firefighters Pension Plan were previously reported as fiduciary activities but no longer qualify as
fiduciary funds of the City and, therefore, are no longer reported within these statements.

The effect of this new standard  and the correction of the error on fund balance/net position was as follows:   

                                    Description
Governmental

Activities
Business-Type

Activities
Fiduciary
Activities

Net position at beginning of year, as previously reported $ 228,868,664 $ 554,211,489 $ 709,985,132
Adjustment for GASB Statement No. 84 - Activity no longer
reported - - (652,286,089)
Adjustment for GASB Statement No. 84 - Addition of
fiduciary activities - - 6,074,075
Correction of an error - Net OPEB liability not previously
recorded (10,134,851) (834,118) -

Net position at beginning of year, as restated $ 218,733,813 $ 553,377,371 $ 63,773,118

NOTE R - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

General Information about the OPEB Plans

OPEB Trust: The City accounts for OPEB benefits through the Other Post-Employment Benefits Trust Fund ("The OPEB Trust")
established by the City Commission on September 23, 2008.  No employee or retiree contributions to the Trust are required.
Future contributions to the trust will be budgeted by the City Commission based on actuarially determined amounts.  The
OPEB Trust is a single employer fund administered by a Board of Trustees as designated in the Declaration of Trust.  

The OPEB Trust provides for the payment of implicit rate subsidies and other non-pension post-employment benefits for
eligible retirees and their families. Amendments to the OPEB Trust must be in accordance with governing Ordinance No.
4106-08, unless such Ordinance is subsequently amended by the City.  
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General Information about the OPEB Plans (Continued)

The OPEB Trust is reported in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 74, Financial
Reporting for Post-employment Benefits other than Pensions. Pursuant to Section 112.081, Florida Statutes, the City is
required to permit eligible retirees and their eligible dependents to participate in the City's health insurance program at a
cost to the retiree that is no greater than the cost to active employees.  These retirees pay 100% of the blended rate for
active and retired employees.  Because the blended rate is greater than that of a plan including active employees only and
less than that of a plan including retirees only, the amount the City expends for active employees includes an implicit subsidy
for participating retirees and dependents. 

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. This
Statement provides guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting
purposes and establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities.  The City determined the Elected Officials and
Management VEBA and the General Employees VEBA  meets the criteria of fiduciary activities.

Elected Officials and Management VEBA and General Employees VEBA:  In January 2007, the City Commission approved
Ordinance No. 4017-07 establishing the Elected Officials and Management VEBA and the General Employees VEBA
(collectively, the "General VEBA Plans"). The Elected Officials and Management VEBA cover elected officials and certain
members of mangement of the City of West Palm Beach as definded in the Plan while the General Employees VEBA cover
all other full time employees who are not covered by either the Firefighters VEBA or the Police VEBA.  Through Ordinance
4305-10, the City Commission amended the the Plans and determined that the City contributions to the Plans will no longer
be determined as a percentage of elegible participant salaries and will be determined by an annual resolution approved
by the City Commission. The Elected Officials and Management VEBA and the General Employees VEBA do not require
participant contribitions.   

The General VEBA Plans cover post employment health care benefits for eligible employees, management and elected
officials.   Eligible employees as defined by the VEBA Plans to include all full time employees who are employed by the
City as of January 1, 2007, except those that are eligible to participate under either the Police Pension Fund or the Firefighters
Pension Fund. Eligibility for benefits shall be based on five (5) or more continuous years of service as a fulltime employee
of the City.  The VEBA Plans do not have separately issued financial statements and as such are included below. 

The VEBA Plans are administered by their respective Boards of Trustees. A majority of board members are appointed by the
City and a minority by the membership of each VEBA Plan.  Elected Officials and Management VEBA and the General
Employees VEBA each has a Declaration of Trust which has been approved and may be amended by the respective Board of
Trustees and which sets out provisions for payment of benefits to the members.  Liability of the City is limited to the periodic
contributions as required by Ordinance 4305-10.  Liability of the City is limited to periodic contributions as required by the
annual resolution.

The Investment Policy of the City, as amended from time to time, shall serve as the investment policy for the Trustees and
the Trust Funds of the OPEB Trust, Elected Officials and Management VEBA and the General Employees VEBA, subject to all
applicable laws. 

The City is also obligated through collective bargaining agreements to provide provide annual contributions for Police officers
Firefighters.  The contributions and other activities related to these Plans are administered through individual trust funds
established and operated by boards of trustees separately from the City.  Though the City is obligated to provide annual
contributions for the respective participants of these Plans, the activities of the Police VEBA and the Firefighters VEBA do
not meet the criteria of fiduciary activities and are not included it the financial statements of the City. 
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General Information about the OPEB Plans (Continued)

Police VEBA: The Police VEBA is authorized in the collective bargaining unit between the City and the Palm Beach County
Police Benevolent Association (the "Police Contract"). The Police Contract requires the City to contribute 4% of pensionable
earnings of members of the bargaining unit to the Police VEBA plan. In exchange, members of the bargaining unit agreed to
voluntary concessions of an equal value, resulting in no additional cost to the City.

The Police VEBA is adminstered by a Board of Trustees appointed by the bargaining unit with approval from the City. The
Board of Trustees has approved and may amend the Agreement and Declaration of Trust, which sets out provisions for
payment of benefits to the Police VEBA members. Liability of the City is limited to periodic contributions as required by the
contract.

Firefighters VEBA: The Firefighters VEBA Plan is authorized in the collective bargaining contract between the City and the
West Palm Beach Association of Firefighters, Local 727 (the Firefighters Contract). The Firefighters Contract, effective January
9, 2012, requires the City to contribute 2% of pensionable earnings of members of the bargaining unit of the Firefighters VEBA
plan. In exchange, the members of the bargaining unit agreed to voluntary concessions of an equal value, resulting in no
additional cost to the City.

The Firefighters VEBA is adminstered by a Board of Trustees appointed by the bargaining unit with approval from the City.
The Board of Trustees has approved and may amend the Agreement and Declaration of Trust, which sets out provisions for
payment of benefits to the Firefighters VEBA members. Liability of the City is limited to periodic contributions as required by
the Firefighters contract.

OPEB calculations are based on the OPEB benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plans in effect at the time of
each valuation and on the pattern of sharing of costs between the employer and plan members to that point.  Actuarial
calculations for the OPEB plans reflect a long-term perspective.  The actuarial valuations involve estimates of the values of
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. 

Employer Reporting OPEB Plans Membership: As of the measurement date for the respective OPEB Plans offered by the City,
employee membership data are as follows:

OPEB 
Trust

Elected Officials
and

Management
VEBA

 General
Employees VEBA  Police VEBA Firefighters VEBA

Date of member count
September 30,

2021
December 31,

2019
December 31,

2019
July 1,
2021

September 30,
2019

Retirees 208 30 172 158 130
Inactive, nonretired members - - - 3 -
Active plan members 1,385 74 935 264 228

Total plan members 1,593 104 1,107 425 358
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Investments:

The OPEB Plans' investment target asset allocations are listed below:

OPEB Trust

Elected
Officials and

Management
VEBA

General
Employees

VEBA  Police VEBA
Firefighters

VEBA

               Asset Class
Target

Allocation
Target

Allocation
Target

Allocation
Target

Allocation
Target

Allocation

Domestic equity %50.0 %38.0 %38.0 %52.0 %55.0
International equity %10.0 %22.0 %22.0 %18.0 %15.0
Domestic bonds %20.0 %- %- %- %-
International bonds %10.0 %- %- %- %-
Real estate %5.0 %- %- %- %-
Fixed income mutual funds %- %40.0 %40.0 %30.0 %30.0
Alternative assets %5.0 %- %- %- %-

Rates of return: The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted
for the changing amounts actually invested.   The annual money-weighted rate of return on investments, net of investment
expenses,  for the OPEB Trust at September 30, 2021 was 10.65%. The annual money-weighted rate of return on investments,
net of investment expenses for the Elected Officials and Management VEBA and the General Employees VEBA at December
31, 2020, was 16.18% and 18.29%, respectively.   

The long-term expected rate of return on the OPEB investments was determined using a building-block method in which best
– estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class and are listed below. 

Long-term Expected Real Rate of Return

OPEB Trust

Elected
Officials and

Management
VEBA

General
Employee

VEBA  Police VEBA
 Firefighters

VEBA

                      Asset Class
September

30, 2021
December 31,

2020
December 31,

2020
December 31,

2020
March 31,

2021

Domestic equity %7.50 %6.00 %6.00 %7.25 %7.50
International equity %8.50 %4.00 %4.00 %2.00 %2.00
Domestic bonds %2.50 %- %- %- %-
International bonds %3.50 %- %- %- %-
Real estate %4.50 %- %- %- %-
Fixed income mutual funds %- %7.50 %6.50 %2.00 %2.00
Alternative assets %6.00 %- %- %- %-
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Net OPEB Liability of the City: 

The components of the net OPEB liability/(asset) of the City at September 30, 2021, were as follows:

OPEB Trust

Elected
Officials and 
Management

VEBA

General
Employee

VEBA Police VEBA
Firefighter

VEBA

Balance recognized at September 30, 2020 $ (729,708) $ 815,446 $ 6,416,295 $ 3,465,324 $ 271,902

Changes for the fiscal year:
Service cost 456,559 56,115 457,054 184,796 71,247
Interest on the total OPEB liability/asset 1,054,428 92,847 711,933 1,362,414 581,103
Changes in assumptions and other inputs 48,085 (131,732) 266,795 1,188,512 (23,950)
Contributions - employer (1,348,219) - - (1,026,842) (428,140)
Net investment income (3,388,063) (86,778) (823,273) (1,976,925) (3,291,779)
OPEB plan administrative expense - 1,974 8,666 14,885 30,730

Net change in net OPEB liability/asset (3,177,210) (67,574) 621,175 (253,160) (3,060,789)

Net OPEB liability/(asset) at September
30, 2021 $ (3,906,918) $ 747,872 $ 7,037,470 $ 3,212,164 $ (2,788,887)

Plan fiduciary net position as a % of total
OPEB liability/asset %127.0 %50.5 %45.7 %83.3 %134.5

Covered payroll $ 91,963,611 N/A N/A $ 25,671,050 $ 21,407,000

Net OPEB liability/asset as a % of covered
payroll %-4.2 N/A N/A %12.5 %-13.0

Measurement date
September 30,

2021
December 31,

2020
December 31,

2020
December 31,

2020
March 31,

2021

At September 30, 2021, the City reported deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources related to the OPEB plans as follows:

OPEB Trust

Description

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
Inflows

of Resources

Differences between expected and actual
experience $ 493,961 $ (982,833)
Changes in assumptions 537,338 (41,235)
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings in OPEB plan investments - (1,400,885)

Total $ 1,031,299 $ (2,424,953)
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Elected Officials and
Management VEBA General Employees VEBA 

Description

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
Inflows

of Resources

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
Inflows

of Resources

City contribution subsequent to measurement date $ 315,367 $ - $ - $ -
Differences between expected and actual
experience - (17,903) - (161,941)
Change of assumptions 311,899 - 3,241,324 -
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings in OPEB plan investments - (35,681) - (408,231)

Total $ 627,266 $ (53,584) $ 3,241,324 $ (570,172)

Police VEBA Firefighters VEBA 

Description

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
Inflows

of Resources

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
Inflows

of Resources

City contribution subsequent to measurement date $ 961,174 $ - $ 506,373 $ -
Differences between expected and actual
experience 1,001,514 - - -
Changes in assumptions - - - (21,321)
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings in OPEB plan investments - (686,920) - (2,175,070)

Total $ 1,962,688 $ (686,920) $ 506,373 $ (2,196,391)
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The following table summarized the net OPEB asset, net OPEB liability, and deferred inflow and outflow of resources as
disclosed above for each OPEB plan:

Governmental Activities

Description
Net OPEB

 Asset
Net OPEB
Liability

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

OPEB Trust $ 3,399,019 $ - $ 2,109,709 $ 897,230
Elected Officials and Management VEBA - 747,872 53,584 627,266
General Employees VEBA - 6,122,599 496,050 2,819,952
Police VEBA - 3,212,164 686,920 1,962,688
Firefighters VEBA 2,788,887 - 2,196,391 506,373

Total $ 6,187,906 $ 10,082,635 $ 5,542,654 $ 6,813,509

Business-Type Activities

Description
Net OPEB

 Asset
Net OPEB
Liability

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

OPEB Trust $ 507,899 $ - $ 315,244 $ 134,069
General Employees VEBA - 914,871 74,122 421,372

Total $ 507,899 $ 914,871 $ 389,366 $ 555,441

The balances as of September 30, 2021 of the deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources will be recognized in OPEB expense in
the future years as noted below:

Fiscal Year
OPEB 
Trust 

Elected Officials
and

Management
VEBA

General
Employee VEBA

 Firefighter
VEBA 

 Police 
VEBA 

2022 $ (51,676) $ 49,252 $ 321,317 $ (546,397) $ 15,268
2023 (395,498) 49,252 321,317 (546,397) 15,268
2024 (497,437) 49,252 321,317 (546,397) 15,268
2025 (378,029) 49,252 321,318 (546,395) 15,268
2026 (38,511) 58,172 423,375 (2,629) 186,998
Thereafter (32,503) 3,136 962,508 (8,176) 66,524
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The total OPEB liability/(asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation using the following assumptions included in the
measurement as follows:

OPEB Trust Plan
Elected Officials and
Management VEBA General Employees VEBA

Measurement date: September 30, 2021 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2020

Actuarial valuation date: September 30, 2021 December 31, 2019 December 31, 2019

Inflation: 1.5% per year. Inflation is
included in the payroll growth
rates.

2.5.5% per year. 2.5% per year. 

Discount rate 7.50% 2.54% 2.47%

Investment rate of return: 7.50% 6.0% 6.00%

Payroll growth: The salary scale is based on the
City's Fire pension valuation as
of September 30, 2019 and the
City's Police pension valuation
as of September 30, 2018. See
table below.

N/A N/A

Years of Service Police Fire General

0 - 10 5.00% 4.50% 4.00%
11 - 12 5.00% 4.25% 4.05%

23 + 5.00% 4.00% 4.00%
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OPEB Trust
Elected Officials and
Management VEBA General Employees VEBA

Healthcare cost trends: An initial rate of 8.00%
decreasing to an ultimate rate
of 4.50% for FY 2029.

N/A N/A

Mortality rates: General Employees and
Retirees: SOA PUB-2010
General Head Count on
Weighted Mortality Table fully
generational using Scale MP-
2020

Male non-disabled mortality:
fully generational mortality.
50% of the RP-2000 Annuitant
White Collar Table and 50% of
the RP-2000 Annuitant Blue
Collar Table, projected with
scale BB.

Male non-disabled mortality:
fully generational mortality.
50% of the RP-2000 Annuitant
White Collar Table and 50% of
the RP-2000 Annuitant Blue
Collar Table, projected with
scale BB.

Police and Fire Employees and
Retirees: SOA Pub-2010 Public
Safety Head Count on
Weighted Mortality Table fully
generational using Scale MP-
2020

Female non-disabled mortality:
fully generational mortality.
100% of the RP-2000
Annuitant White Collar Table,
projected with scale BB.

Female non-disabled mortality:
fully generational mortality.
100% of the RP-2000
Annuitant White Collar Table,
projected with scale BB.

Surviving Spouses: SOA Pub-
2010 Contingent Survivor Head
Count on Weighted Mortality
Table fully generational using
Scale MP-2020

Female employee mortality:
fully generational mortality.
100% of the RP-2000
Employee White Collar Table,
projected with scale BB.  

Female employee mortality:
fully generational mortality.
100% of the RP-2000
Employee White Collar Table,
projected with scale BB.  

Male disabled mortality: 100%
of the RP-2000 Disabled Male
Table set back 4 years.  Female
disabled mortality: 100% of
the RP-2000 Disabled Female
Table, set forward 2 years.

Male disabled mortality: 100%
of the RP-2000 Disabled Male
Table set back 4 years.  Female
disabled mortality: 100% of
the RP-2000 Disabled Female
Table, set forward 2 years.
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Police VEBA Firefighters VEBA

Measurement date December 30, 2020 March 31, 2021

Actuarial valuation date July 1, 2021 September 30, 2019

Inflation 2.50% 2.60%

Discount rate 7.25% 7.50%

Investment rate of return 7.25% net of OPEB plan investment expense,
including inflation

7.50%, net of OPEB plan investment expense,
including inflation

Payroll growth 5.00% 4.10%

Retirement age Age and experience-based table of rates that
are specific to the type of eligibility

condition.

Age and experience-based table of rates that
are specific to the type of eligibility

condition.

Mortality rates Healthy Employees: PUB-
2010 Headcount-Weighted
Safety Employee Female
Mortality Table and Safety
Below Median Employee
Male Mortality Table

Male non-disabled re�ree
mortality: fully
genera�onal
 mortality. 10% RP-
2000
Annuitant White Collar Table
and 90%
RP-2000 Annuitant
Blue Collar Table,
projected
with MP-2019

Helathy Retiree: PUB-2010
Headcount-Weighted Safety
Retiree Female Mortality
Table and Safety Below
Median Retiree Male
Mortality Table

Female non-disabled retiree
mortality: full generational
mortality. 100% RP-2000
Annuitant White Collar Table,
projected with MP-2019

Disabled Participants: 80%
PUB-2010 Headcount Weighted Gen. Disabled
Retiree Mortality Table & 20% PUB-2010
Headcount- Weighted Safety Disabled Retiree
Mortality Table.  Separate rates male/female

Male employee mortality: fully generational
mortality. 10% RP-2000 Employee White Collar
Table and 90% RP-2000 Employee Blue Collar
Table, projected with MP-2019

The margin for future mortality
improvements is included in projection scales.
50% of deaths before retirement were
assumed to be duty related.

Female employee mortality: fully generational
mortality. 100% RP-2000 Employee White
Collar Table, projected with MO-2019

Disabled mortality: Male- 60% RP-2000
Disabled Male Table, set back 4 years & 40%
RP- 2000 Annuitant White Collar Table.
Female- 60% RP-2000 Disabled Female Table,
set forward 2 years & 40% RP- 2000 Annuitant
White Collar Table.
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The OPEB Plans had the following changes in the net OPEB liability/(asset):

OPEB Trust  Police VEBA
 Firefighters

VEBA

Elected
Officials and

Management
VEBA

General
Employees

VEBA

Total OPEB liability (asset):
Service cost $ 456,559 $ 184,796 $ 71,247 $ 56,115 $ 457,054
Interest 1,054,428 1,362,414 581,103 92,847 711,933
Changes in benefit terms - - - (483,900) (3,235,963)
Difference between expected and actual
experience (566,016) - - (21,446) (184,206)
Changes of assumptions 614,101 1,188,512 (23,950) 373,614 3,686,964
Benefit payments (1,348,219) (783,380) (499,321) (54,395) (244,414)

Net change in total OPEB liability (asset) 210,853 1,952,342 129,079 (37,165) 1,191,368

Total OPEB liability (asset) - beginning of
year 14,264,403 17,329,473 7,962,076 1,546,585 11,759,231

Total OPEB liability (asset) - end of year (a) 14,475,256 19,281,815 8,091,155 1,509,420 12,950,599

Plan fiduciary net position:
Contributions - employer 1,348,219 1,026,842 428,140 - -
Net investment income 3,388,063 1,976,925 3,291,779 86,778 823,273
Benefit payments (1,348,219) (783,380) (499,321) (54,395) (244,414)
Trust administrative expenses - (14,885) (30,730) (1,974) (8,666)

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 3,388,063 2,205,502 3,189,868 30,409 570,193

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning of
year 14,994,111 13,864,149 7,690,174 731,139 5,342,936

Plan fiduciary net position - end of year (b) 18,382,174 16,069,651 10,880,042 761,548 5,913,129

Net OPEB liability (asset) - end of year (a - b) $ (3,906,918) $ 3,212,164 $ (2,788,887) $ 747,872 $ 7,037,470

Change of assumptions: These assumptions are estimates of future experience with respect to rates of mortality, disability,
turnover, retirement, rates of investment income and compensation increases. These assumptions are generally based on
past experience, often modified for projected changes in conditions. Significant changes of assumptions for the OPEB Plans
are derived from the Police VEBA and General Employees VEBA and are discussed below:

Police VEBA - In accordance with the July 1, 2021 actuarial valuation, the mortality tables have been updated to the fully
generational Florida Retirement System (FRS) Mortality Tables projected using MP-2018 and the investment return
assumption was lowered from 8.00% to 7.25%. The combined effect of these assumption changes increased the Total OPEB
Liability.
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General Employee VEBA - The actuarial assumptions used to valued the liabilities are outlined in the December 31, 2019
actuarial valuation report, except the single discount rate return was changed from 6.00% to 2.47%. The effect of this
assumption change increased the Total OPEB Liability.  

Discount rates: The discount rate used to measure the OPEB Trust liability was 7.50%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumes that City contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined
contribution rates. The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments are based on a blend of the expected
long-term rate of return on assets of 7.50% for benefit payments during the first seven years after the valuation date and a
yield on 20-year grade AA/Aa or higher municipal bonds of 7.50% per year for benefit payments beyond the first seven years
after the valuation date.

Projected benefit payments for the VEBA Trusts are required to be discounted to their actuarial present value using a Single
Discount Rate that reflects: (1) a long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments (to the extent that the plans'
fiduciary net postion is projected to be sufficient to pay benefits); and (2) tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index
of 20-year general obligation bonds with an average AA credit rating as of the measurement date (to the extent that the
contributions for use with the long-term expected rate of return are not met).

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB LIability/(Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate: The following table illustrates the impact of
interest rate sensitivity on the net OPEB asset of the City as of September 30, 2021:

1% Decrease
6.50%

Current
Discount Rate

7.50%
1% Increase

8.50%

OPEB Trust Fund $ (2,888,081) $ (3,906,918) $ (4,824,560)

1% Decrease
6.25%

Current
Discount Rate

7.25%
1% Increase

8.25%

VEBA Plan - Police Fund $ 5,672,334 $ 3,212,164 $ 1,187,208

1% Decrease
6.50%

Current
Discount Rate

7.50%
1% Increase

8.50%

VEBA Plan - Firefighter Fund $ (1,808,527) $ (2,788,887) $ (3,597,616)

1% Decrease
1.54%

Current
Discount Rate

2.54%
1% Increase

3.54%

VEBA Plan - Management Fund $ 890,471 $ 747,872 $ 622,376

1% Decrease
1.47%

Current
Discount Rate

2.47%
1% Increase

3.47%
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1% Decrease
1.47%

Current
Discount Rate

2.47%
1% Increase

3.47%

VEBA Plan - General Employee Fund $ 8,463,975 $ 7,037,470 $ 5,791,149

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Asset to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates: The following table illustrates the impact
of healthcare cost trend rate sensitivity on the net OPEB asset of the City as of September 30, 2021:

1% Decrease
6.50%

Current
Trend Rate

7.50%
1% Increase

8.50%

OPEB Trust Fund $ (4,934,914) $ (3,906,918) $ (2,736,428)
VEBA Plan - Police Fund N/A N/A N/A
VEBA Plan - Firefighter Fund N/A N/A N/A
VEBA Plan - Management Fund N/A N/A N/A
VEBA Plan - General Employee Fund N/A N/A N/A

Accounting for the OPEB Trust Trust, the Elected Officials and Management VEBA and the General Employees VEBA is done by
the City of West Palm Beach staff, separately issued and audited financial statements are not available.

OPEB Plans financial statements for the respected Plans fiscal years ended September 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020,
which are included in the Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements of this report, are as follows:

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

September 30,
2021

December 31,
2020

December 31,
2020

OPEB Trust

Elected Officials
and

Management
VEBA

General
Employees VEBA Total

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,808,507 $ 86,106 $ 124,533 $ 2,019,146
Interest Receivable 38 - 2 40
Investments:

Fixed income 2,123,433 - - 2,123,433
Equities 13,910,313 - - 13,910,313
Mutual funds 539,943 675,442 5,788,594 7,003,979

Total investments 16,573,689 675,442 5,788,594 23,037,725

Total assets 18,382,234 761,548 5,913,129 25,056,911
Liabilities

Net position $ 18,382,234 $ 761,548 $ 5,913,129 $ 25,056,911
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

NOTE R - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
For the Fiscal year Ended

September 30,
2021

December 31,
2020

December 31,
2020

OPEB Trust

VEBA Plan -
Management

Fund

Veba Plan -
General

Employee Fund Total

Additions:
Employer contributions $ 1,348,219 $ - $ - $ 1,348,219
Change in fair market value 3,388,298 88,778 827,561 4,304,637

Total additions 4,736,517 88,778 827,561 5,652,856

Deductions:
Participant payments 1,348,219 54,395 244,414 1,647,028
Investment expense - 2,000 4,288 6,288
Administrative expense 175 1,974 8,666 10,815

Total deductions 1,348,394 58,369 257,368 1,664,131

Net increase 3,388,123 30,409 570,193 3,988,725

Net position restricted for OPEB:
Beginning of year 14,994,111 731,139 5,342,936 21,068,186

End of year $ 18,382,234 $ 761,548 $ 5,913,129 $ 25,056,911
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

NOTE S - FUND BALANCE CONSTRAINTS

Fund balances are separated into five categories of constraints as shown in the following table:

General Fund

City Center
Community

Redevelopment
Agency Fund

Northwood /
Pleasant City
Community

Redevelopment
Agency Fund

Non-Major
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

Fund balances:
Nonspendable:

Inventory $ 373,061 $ - $ - $ 60,967 $ 434,028
Prepaid items 83,282 6,269 - 15,028 104,579

Restricted:
Forfeiture - - - 591,293 591,293
Cemetery trust - - - 1,300,573 1,300,573
Transportation - - - 4,894,356 4,894,356
Public safety - - - 13,857,732 13,857,732
Economic environment - 26,791,045 5,108,123 7,859,839 39,759,007
Debt service - - - 7,322,084 7,322,084
Capital outlay - - - 116,623,398 116,623,398

Committed:
Emergency reserve 17,906,327 - - - 17,906,327
Art in public places 1,623,111 - - - 1,623,111
Debt service - - - 365,789 365,789
Land held for resale - - - 2,862,607 2,862,607
Public safety - - - 6,627,799 6,627,799
Leisure services - - - 2,433,376 2,433,376
Capital outlay - - - 3,693,220 3,693,220

Assigned:
For subsequent year's

expenditures 3,361,128 - - - 3,361,128
Unassigned 25,032,673 - - (1,821,482) 23,211,191

Total fund balances $ 48,379,582 $ 26,797,314 $ 5,108,123 $ 166,686,579 $ 246,971,598

NOTE T - SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On October 1, 2020, the City entered into a Forward Delivery Bond Purchase Agreement to issue the $36,625,000 Utility 
System Revenue Refunding bonds, Series 2022 to refund the Series 2012A bonds.  The effective date of the refunding will be 
October 1, 2022.    At September 30, 2021, the outstanding principal due on the Series 2012A bonds was $38,375,000.  

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report - FYE 2021 87



This page intentionally left blank 



Photo by Captain Kimo /   City of West Palm Beach

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION 
(Unaudi ted)



CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original
Budget

(Unaudited)

Final
Budget

(Unaudited) Actual

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES: 
Taxes $ 119,447,896 $ 119,447,896 $ 122,552,010 $ 3,104,114
Licenses and permits 2,772,300 2,772,300 3,829,291 1,056,991
Intergovernmental 12,603,019 12,918,279 17,282,373 4,364,094
Charges for services 44,241,516 44,308,516 45,886,228 1,577,712
Fines and forfeitures 353,000 353,000 458,522 105,522
Rents and royalties 515,000 515,000 539,785 24,785
Interest income 634,000 634,000 440,786 (193,214)
Miscellaneous 376,225 583,290 1,413,138 829,848

Total revenues 180,942,956 181,532,281 192,402,133 10,869,852

EXPENDITURES: 

Current: 
General government

Mayor's Office 8,114,714 8,570,603 6,755,276 1,815,327
Internal Audit 724,435 833,785 729,958 103,827
Non-departmental Government 2,282,122 3,941,597 3,153,283 788,314
Finance 4,372,179 4,372,179 4,198,552 173,627
Support Services 3,464,365 4,543,365 3,144,427 1,398,938
Human Resources 2,322,174 2,322,174 1,942,700 379,474
Department of City Attorney 4,448,898 4,448,898 4,311,041 137,857
Housing and Community Development 3,559,067 3,544,067 2,708,912 835,155
Development Services 4,827,271 2,556,074 2,305,794 250,280

Public works 3,692,568 3,692,568 3,243,772 448,796
Engineering services 3,382,479 3,382,479 2,943,213 439,266
Health and sanitation 11,575,096 11,575,096 11,397,086 178,010
Leisure services

Library 4,686,950 4,663,750 4,427,184 236,566
Parks and recreation 18,940,317 19,156,233 17,341,996 1,814,237

Public safety
Police 62,333,864 63,307,526 65,186,066 (1,878,540)
Fire 44,258,807 46,530,004 47,011,104 (481,100)

Capital outlay 2,511,327 3,387,665 3,850,144 (462,479)

Debt service:
Principal 6,767,390 6,767,390 6,767,390 -
Interest expense 5,153,860 5,153,860 5,112,468 41,392

Total expenditures 197,417,883 202,749,313 196,530,366 6,218,947

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (16,474,927) (21,217,032) (4,128,233) 17,088,799

See notes to required supplementary information.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original
Budget

(Unaudited)

Final
Budget

(Unaudited) Actual

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
(Negative)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES: 
Disposal of capital assets 499,000 499,000 1,188,401 689,401
Transfers in 11,057,911 11,057,911 11,695,949 638,038
Transfers out (1,420,416) (2,070,416) (2,070,416) -

Total other financing sources and uses 10,136,495 9,486,495 10,813,934 1,327,439

Net changes in fund balances $ (6,338,432) $ (11,730,537) $ 6,685,701 $ (5,978,344)

Reconciliation of budgetary to GAAP basis revenues:

Revenues reported in this statement $ 192,402,133
On-behalf payments 3,085,615
Deduct administrative charges (16,424,478)

Revenues GAAP basis $ 179,063,270

Reconciliation of budgetary to GAAP basis expenditures:

Expenditures reported in this statement $ 196,530,366
On-behalf payments 3,085,615
Deduct year end encumbrances (3,361,128)
Deduct administrative expenditures (16,424,478)

Expenditures GAAP basis $ 179,830,375

See notes to required supplementary information.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS
CITY CENTER COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original
Budget

(Unaudited)

Final
Budget

(Unaudited) Actual

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES: 
Taxes $ 23,474,326 $ 23,474,326 $ 23,745,658 $ 271,332
Intergovernmental 15,822,841 15,822,841 15,522,805 (300,036)
Charges for services - 366,188 1,003,146 636,958
Rents and royalties 530,997 530,997 302,516 (228,481)
Interest income 225,000 225,000 169,589 (55,411)
Miscellaneous 4,937 4,937 303,692 298,755

Total revenues 40,058,101 40,424,289 41,047,406 623,117

EXPENDITURES: 

Current: 
Economic environment 41,771,379 40,291,158 28,046,001 12,245,157

Capital outlay 14,283,859 15,483,354 5,353,678 10,129,676

Debt service:
Principal 3,542,528 3,542,528 3,542,528 -
Interest expense 1,676,223 1,676,223 1,687,426 (11,203)

Total expenditures 61,273,989 60,993,263 38,629,633 22,363,630

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (21,215,888) (20,568,974) 2,417,773 22,986,747

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfers in 75,684 75,684 75,684 -
Transfers out (8,371,631) (8,652,357) (8,652,357) -

Total other financing sources (uses) (8,295,947) (8,576,673) (8,576,673) -

Net changes in fund balances $ (29,511,835) $ (29,145,647) $ (6,158,900) $ 22,986,747

Fund balances - beginning 32,956,214

Fund balances - ending $ 26,797,314

See notes to required supplementary information.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS
NORTHWOOD / PLEASANT CITY COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original
Budget

(Unaudited)

Final
Budget

(Unaudited) Actual

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES: 
Taxes $ 2,796,146 $ 2,796,146 $ 2,828,466 $ 32,320
Intergovernmental 1,600,988 1,600,988 1,649,625 48,637
Charges for services 26,000 26,000 19,450 (6,550)
Interest income 30,000 30,000 24,365 (5,635)

Total revenues 4,453,134 4,453,134 4,521,906 68,772

EXPENDITURES: 

Current: 
Economic environment 5,890,724 5,890,724 2,343,858 3,546,866

Debt service:
Principal 1,034,096 1,200,878 1,230,865 (29,987)
Interest expense 687,760 687,760 686,504 1,256

Total expenditures 7,612,580 7,779,362 4,261,227 3,518,135

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (3,159,446) (3,326,228) 260,679 3,586,907

Net changes in fund balances $ (3,159,446) $ (3,326,228) $ 260,679 $ 3,586,907

Fund balances - beginning 4,847,444

Fund balances - ending $ 5,108,123

See notes to required supplementary information.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
POLICE PENSION FUND
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Measurement Measurement Measurement

Year 2020 Year 2019 Year 2018

Total Pension Liability ("TPL")

CHANGES FOR THE YEAR:
Service Cost $ 6,248,573 $ 5,950,838 $ 4,969,598
Interest on the TPL 30,656,907 29,213,639 27,649,993
Benefit changes - - 2,595,355
Difference - expected vs. actual experience of TPL 1,972,997 2,559,101 2,535,765
Changes in assumptions 4,439,753 4,539,371 3,904,405
Benefit payments (18,512,808) (18,963,330) (18,801,870)
Refunds (206,949) (152,950) (225,759)
Other 1,773,794 1,613,818 2,765,374

Net Change in TPL 26,372,267 24,760,487 25,392,861

TPL balance - beginning of year 408,293,394 383,532,907 358,140,046

TPL balance - end of year $ 434,665,661 $ 408,293,394 $ 383,532,907

Plan Fiduciary Net Position ("FNP")

CHANGES FOR THE YEAR:
Contributions - employer and state $ 6,852,261 $ 5,846,316 $ 5,012,935
Contributions - employees 2,806,839 2,787,968 2,679,979
Net investment income 25,816,070 9,669,966 33,555,721
Benefit payments (18,512,808) (18,963,330) (18,801,870)
Refunds (206,949) (152,950) (225,759)
Pension plus administrative expense (304,417) (336,885) (319,039)
Other 162,185 130,508 1,309,407

Net change in FNP 16,613,181 (1,018,407) 23,211,374

FNP balance - beginning of year 383,442,225 384,460,632 361,249,258

FNP balance - end of year $ 400,055,406 $ 383,442,225 $ 384,460,632

Net Pension (Asset) Liability $ 34,610,255 $ 24,851,169 $ (927,725)

Plan FNP as a percentage of TPL %92.04 %93.91 %100.24

Covered payroll $ 24,972,409 $ 25,098,209 $ 23,929,891

NPL as a percentage of covered payroll %138.59 %99.02 %-3.88

Note:  This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for ten years.  However, until a full ten-
year trend is compiled, only information for those years for which data are available will be presented.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
POLICE PENSION FUND
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Measurement Measurement Measurement Measurement

Year 2017 Year 2016 Year 2015 Year 2014

Total Pension Liability ("TPL")

CHANGES FOR THE YEAR:
Service Cost $ 4,465,713 $ 4,119,566 $ 3,720,389 $ 3,553,404
Interest on the TPL 26,458,916 25,142,553 23,790,608 22,792,357
Benefit changes - - - -
Difference - expected vs. actual experience of TPL 335,340 264,885 439,779 294,048
Changes in assumptions 5,183,638 2,275,600 2,221,969 -
Benefit payments (18,064,650) (16,224,666) (14,788,140) (13,557,996)
Refunds (25,530) (93,453) (60,567) (168,503)
Other 2,237,938 1,683,012 2,110,393 84,844

Net Change in TPL 20,591,365 17,167,497 17,434,431 12,998,154

TPL balance - beginning of year 337,548,681 320,381,184 302,946,753 289,948,599

TPL balance - end of year $ 358,140,046 $ 337,548,681 $ 320,381,184 $ 302,946,753

Plan Fiduciary Net Position ("FNP")

CHANGES FOR THE YEAR:
Contributions - employer and state $ 4,618,111 $ 60,986,435 $ 9,857,010 $ 10,041,651
Contributions - employees 2,427,068 2,336,635 2,154,131 1,927,618
Net investment income 44,494,434 21,229,525 1,873,520 22,389,189
Benefit payments (18,064,650) (16,224,666) (14,788,140) (13,557,996)
Refunds (25,530) (93,453) (60,567) (168,503)
Pension plus administrative expense (308,777) (288,017) (266,916) (337,907)
Other 904,892 423,031 898,188 370,252

Net change in FNP 34,045,548 68,369,490 (332,774) 20,664,304

FNP balance - beginning of year 327,203,710 258,834,220 259,166,994 238,502,690

FNP balance - end of year $ 361,249,258 $ 327,203,710 $ 258,834,220 $ 259,166,994

Net Pension (Asset) Liability $ (3,109,212) $ 10,344,971 $ 61,546,964 $ 43,779,759

Plan FNP as a percentage of TPL %100.87 %96.94 %80.79 %85.55

Covered payroll $ 21,679,436 $ 20,603,955 $ 18,805,018 $ 17,446,782

NPL as a percentage of covered payroll %-14.34 %50.21 %327.29 %250.93

Note:  This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for ten years.  However, until a full ten-
year trend is compiled, only information for those years for which data are available will be presented.
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City of West Palm Beach, Florida
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
FIREFIGHTERS PENSION FUND
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Measurement Measurement Measurement

Year 2020 Year 2019 Year 2018

Total Pension Liability ("TPL")

CHANGES FOR THE YEAR:
Service Cost $ 4,748,948 $ 4,637,520 $ 4,299,275
Interest on the TPL 15,356,555 14,635,101 14,539,716
Difference expected vs. actual experience of TPL (1,290,643) 1,566,360 (748,224)
Changes in assumptions (4,748,226) - 6,304,411
Benefit payments (17,032,126) (15,940,655) (16,056,923)
Refunds (59,635) (41,259) (102,314)
Other 12,174,555 8,721,401 10,283,962

Net Change in TPL 9,149,428 13,578,468 18,519,903

TPL balance - beginning of year 313,047,802 299,469,334 280,949,431

TPL balance - end of year $ 322,197,230 $ 313,047,802 $ 299,469,334

Plan Fiduciary Net Position ("FNP")

CHANGES FOR THE YEAR:
Contributions - employer and state $ 11,095,789 $ 10,373,258 $ 9,398,714
Contributions - employees $ 4,144,354 2,738,646 3,325,997
Net investment income 20,389,301 9,177,925 24,051,595
Benefit payments (17,032,126) (15,940,655) (16,056,923)
Refunds (59,635) (41,259) (102,314)
Pension plus administrative expense (196,920) (176,142) (199,057)
Other 14,987 25,919 25,833

Net change in FNP 18,355,750 6,157,692 20,443,845

FNP balance - beginning of year 233,874,933 227,717,241 207,273,396
Adjustment - - -

FNP balance - end of year $ 252,230,683 $ 233,874,933 $ 227,717,241

Net Pension (Asset) Liability $ 69,966,547 $ 79,172,869 $ 71,752,093

Plan FNP as a percentage of TPL %-78.28 %74.71 %76.04

Covered payroll $ 21,020,508 $ 19,890,980 $ 19,303,606

NPL as a percentage of covered payroll %332.85 %398.03 %371.70

Note:  This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for ten years.  However, until a full ten-
year trend is compiled, only information for those years for which data are available will be presented.
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City of West Palm Beach, Florida
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
FIREFIGHTERS PENSION FUND
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Measurement Measurement Measurement Measurement

Year 2017 Year 2016 Year 2015 Year 2014

Total Pension Liability ("TPL")

CHANGES FOR THE YEAR:
Service Cost $ 3,997,127 $ 3,934,074 $ 3,764,066 $ 3,648,784
Interest on the TPL 13,652,932 13,153,854 12,846,010 12,333,803
Difference expected vs. actual experience of TPL (944,506) (75,341) (2,709,527) -
Changes in assumptions 5,482,333 - - -
Benefit payments (17,896,859) (14,902,198) (14,063,173) (15,745,308)
Refunds (225,496) (19,093) (246,947) (202,153)
Other 11,407,181 13,603,677 7,613,395 14,700,037

Net Change in TPL 15,472,712 15,694,973 7,203,824 14,735,163

TPL balance - beginning of year 265,476,719 249,781,746 242,577,922 227,842,759

TPL balance - end of year $ 280,949,431 $ 265,476,719 $ 249,781,746 $ 242,577,922

Plan Fiduciary Net Position ("FNP")

CHANGES FOR THE YEAR:
Contributions - employer and state $ 7,594,810 $ 7,665,074 $ 7,530,174 $ 7,370,114
Contributions - employees 5,631,366 3,778,776 2,963,279 5,254,738
Net investment income 23,590,017 16,158,856 3,085,047 15,770,182
Benefit payments (17,896,859) (14,902,198) (14,063,173) (15,745,308)
Refunds (225,496) (19,093) (246,947) (202,153)
Pension plus administrative expense (183,315) (164,821) (204,066) (160,459)
Other 19,789 56,439 58,204 107,826

Net change in FNP 18,530,312 12,573,033 (877,482) (12,394,940)

FNP balance - beginning of year 188,743,084 176,170,051 176,974,492 164,579,552
Adjustment - - 73,041 -

FNP balance - end of year $ 207,273,396 $ 188,743,084 $ 176,170,051 $ 176,974,492

Net Pension (Asset) Liability $ 73,676,035 $ 76,733,635 $ 73,611,695 $ 65,603,430

Plan FNP as a percentage of TPL %73.78 %71.10 %70.53 %72.96

Covered payroll $ 17,540,397 $ 16,634,526 $ 16,144,923 $ 15,363,247

NPL as a percentage of covered payroll %420.04 %461.29 %455.94 %427.02

Note:  This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for ten years.  However, until a full ten-
year trend is compiled, only information for those years for which data are available will be presented.
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City of West Palm Beach, Florida
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
RESTATED EMPLOYEES PENSION FUND
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Measurement Measurement Measurement Measurement

Year 2021 Year 2020 Year 2019 Year 2018

Total Pension Liability ("TPL")

CHANGES FOR THE YEAR:
Service Cost $ 45,926 $ 49,760 $ 61,354 $ 93,853
Interest on the TPL 3,154,079 3,142,590 3,169,813 3,190,156
Difference expected vs. actual experience of TPL (71,145) 258,174 (488,903) (518,168)
Changes in assumptions 217,866 - - -
Benefit payments (3,464,504) (3,126,322) (3,072,580) (2,969,061)
Refunds - - - -

Net Change in TPL (117,778) 324,202 (330,316) (203,220)

TPL balance - beginning of year 43,763,678 43,439,476 43,769,792 43,973,012

TPL balance - end of year $ 43,645,900 $ 43,763,678 $ 43,439,476 $ 43,769,792

Plan Fiduciary Net Position ("FNP")

CHANGES FOR THE YEAR:
Contributions - employees 49,331 55,751 58,116 65,868
Net investment income 9,093,376 3,159,385 1,603,850 3,880,565
Benefit payments (3,464,504) (3,126,322) (3,072,580) (2,969,061)
Refunds - - - -
Pension plus administrative expense (90,733) (92,658) (89,898) (92,844)
Other 738 19,424 1,126 10,931

Net change in FNP 5,588,208 23,268 (1,499,386) 895,459

FNP balance - beginning of the year 45,778,034 45,801,302 47,300,688 46,405,229
Adjustment - - - -

FNP balance - end of year $ 51,366,242 $ (45,778,034) $ 45,801,302 $ 47,300,688

Net Pension (Asset) Liability $ (7,720,342) $ (2,014,356) $ (2,361,826) $ (3,530,896)

Plan FNP as a percentage of TPL %117.69 %-104.60 %105.44 %108.07

Covered payroll $ 970,523 $ 1,021,817 $ 1,054,882 $ 1,407,812

NPL as a percentage of covered payroll %-795.48 %-197.13 %-223.89 %-250.81

Note:  This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for ten years.  However, until a full ten-
year trend is compiled, only information for those years for which data are available will be presented.
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City of West Palm Beach, Florida
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
RESTATED EMPLOYEES PENSION FUND
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Measurement Measurement Measurement Measurement

Year 2017 Year 2016 Year 2015 Year 2014

Total Pension Liability ("TPL")

CHANGES FOR THE YEAR:
Service Cost $ 86,849 $ 97,056 $ 44,894 $ 54,631
Interest on the TPL 3,225,757 2,998,902 3,005,049 2,971,240
Difference expected vs. actual experience of TPL (374,998) (273,566) (467,954) -
Changes in assumptions 2,171,968 2,790,291 - -
Benefit payments (2,830,193) (2,713,596) (2,656,230) (2,507,730)
Refunds - - - (32,817)

Net Change in TPL 2,279,383 2,899,087 (74,241) 485,324

TPL balance - beginning of year 41,693,629 38,794,542 38,868,783 -

TPL balance - end of year $ 43,973,012 $ 41,693,629 $ 38,794,542 $ 485,324

Plan Fiduciary Net Position ("FNP")

CHANGES FOR THE YEAR:
Contributions - employees 78,838 85,170 93,620 106,999
Net investment income 5,968,401 2,992,915 456,643 5,888,760
Benefit payments (2,830,193) (2,713,596) (2,656,230) (2,507,730)
Refunds - - - (32,817)
Pension plus administrative expense (87,504) (84,157) (83,101) (78,375)
Other 3,774 6,518 2,380 2,139

Net change in FNP 3,133,316 286,850 (2,186,688) 3,378,976

FNP balance - beginning of the year 43,271,913 42,985,063 45,171,494 -
Adjustment - - 257 -

FNP balance - end of year $ 46,405,229 $ 43,271,913 $ 42,985,063 $ 3,378,976

Net Pension (Asset) Liability $ (2,432,217) $ (1,578,284) $ (4,190,521) $ -

Plan FNP as a percentage of TPL %105.53 %103.79 %110.80 %696.23

Covered payroll $ 1,500,533 $ 1,672,545 $ 1,814,346 $ 2,019,761

NPL as a percentage of covered payroll %-162.09 %-94.36 %-230.97 %-

Note:  This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for ten years.  However, until a full ten-
year trend is compiled, only information for those years for which data are available will be presented.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS
MEASUREMENT DATE SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS USED TO DETERMINE THE PENSION CONTRIBUTION RATES

Police Pension Fund:

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal

Amortization method Level percentage of payroll, closed

Remaining amortization period 30 years

Asset valuation method 4-year smoothed market

Inflation 2.5%

Salary increases 5.0% including inflation

Investment rate of return 7.50%

Retirement age
Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of
eligibility condition.

Mortality RP-2000 Combined Healthy Participant Mortality Table ( for pre-
retirement mortality) and the RP-2000 Mortality Table for Annuitants
(for post-retirement mortality), with mortality imporvements
projected to all future years after 2000 using Scale BB.  For Males, the
base mortality rates include a 90% blue collar adjustment and a 10%
white collar adjustment.  For females, the base mortality rates include
a 100@ white collar adjustment.  These are the same rates used for
Special Risk Class members of the Florida Retirement System (FRS) in
the July 1, 2018 FRS Valuation, as mandated by Chapter 112.63,
Florida Statues.

Other Information:

Notes See Section A in the September 30, 2019 Actuarial Valuatiion Report
Effective as of September 30, 2019, the investment return assumption
was lowered from 7.625% to 7.50%

Firefighters Pension Fund:

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal

Amortization method Level percent of payroll, closed

Remaining amortization period 1-30 years

Asset valuation method 4-year smoothed market

Inflation 4.10%

Salary increases 4.10 to 4.60%, including inflation

Long-term expected investment rate of return 7.50%

Retirement age Age and experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type
of eligibility condition.  Last updated for the 2018 valuation.

Mortality The Florida Retirement System (FRS) mortality tables which use
variations of the fully generational Pub-2010 Safety Mortality Tales
with improvement scale MP-2018

Continued
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS
MEASUREMENT DATE SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

Restated Employees Pension Fund:

Actuarial cost method Entry-Age Normal

Amortization method Experience gains/losses and one-time events (e.g., assumption
changes) are measured using the Entry Age Normal Cost Method and
amortized over separate 10-year bases with level dollar payments

Remaining amortization period 10 years

Asset valuation method Market value

Inflation 5.00%

Salary increases 5.00% to 8.80% per year

Investment rate of return 7.50%

Retirement age Age-based tables that are specific to the type of eligibility condition.

Mortality The Florida Retirement System (FRS) mortality tables which use
variations of the RP-2000 fully generational Mortality Table with
projection scale BB.

Notes The City established a prepaid contribution reserve using deferred
revenue and by changing the actuarial cost method to Aggregate

Cost-of-living adjustment 2.0% Simple

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report - FYE 2021 99



CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Year Ended
 September 30

Police Pension
Fund

Firefighters
Pension Fund

Restated
Employees

 Pension Fund

2014 Actuarially determined employer contributions $ 8,941,538 $ 7,341,139 $ 1,350,431
Actual contributions 10,041,651 7,623,161 1,350,431

Contribution deficiency (excess) (1,100,113) (282,022) -
Covered payroll $ 17,446,782 $ 15,363,247 $ 2,019,761
Actual contribution as % of covered payroll %57.6 %49.6 %66.9

- - -
2015 Actuarially determined employer contributions $ 9,744,918 $ 7,194,839 $ 728,137

Actual contributions 8,644,805 7,530,174 728,137

Contribution deficiency (excess) 1,100,113 (335,335) -
Covered payroll $ 18,805,018 $ 16,144,923 $ 1,814,346
Actual contribution as % of covered payroll %46.0 %46.6 %40.1

2016 Actuarially determined employer contributions $ 9,726,454 $ 7,130,564 $ -
Actual contributions 59,726,454 7,665,074 -

Contribution deficiency (excess) (50,000,000) (534,510) -
Covered payroll $ 20,603,955 $ 16,634,526 $ 1,672,545
Actual contribution as % of covered payroll %289.9 %46.1 %0.0

2017 Actuarially determined employer contributions $ 3,285,065 $ 7,277,740 $ 795,214
Actual contributions 3,285,065 7,594,810 795,214

Contribution deficiency (excess) - (317,070) -
Covered payroll $ 21,679,436 $ 17,540,397 $ 1,500,533
Actual contribution as % of covered payroll %15.2 %43.3 %53.0

2018 Actuarially determined employer contributions $ 3,131,968 $ 8,526,593 $ 946,538
Actual contributions 3,556,968 9,398,714 946,538

Contribution deficiency (excess) (425,000) (872,121) -
Covered payroll $ 23,929,891 $ 19,303,606 $ 1,407,812
Actual contribution as % of covered payroll %14.9 %48.7 %67.2

2019 Actuarially determined employer contributions $ 4,363,006 $ 9,065,383 $ 423,367
Actual contributions 4,363,006 10,373,258 423,367

Contribution deficiency (excess) - (1,307,875) -
Covered payroll $ 25,098,209 $ 20,108,941 $ 1,054,882
Actual contribution as % of covered payroll %17.4 %51.6 %40.1

Continued
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Year Ended
 September 30

Police Pension
Fund

Firefighters
Pension Fund

Restated
Employees

 Pension Fund

2020 Actuarially determined employer contributions $ 5,240,652 $ 9,737,863 $ 128,278
Actual contributions 5,240,652 11,095,789 128,278

Contribution deficiency (excess) - (1,357,926) -
Covered payroll $ 24,972,409 $ 21,020,508 $ 1,021,817
Actual contribution as % of covered payroll %21.0 %52.8 %12.6

2021 Actuarially determined employer contributions $ 5,935,584 $ 9,405,758 $ 304,715
Actual contributions 5,935,584 10,893,690 304,715

Contribution deficiency (excess) - (1,487,932) -
Covered payroll $ 24,064,836 $ 22,372,369 $ 970,523
Actual contribution as % of covered payroll %24.7 %48.7 %31.4

Notes:

(1) This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.  However, until a full 10-year
trend is compiled, only information for those years for which data are available will be presented.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS
RESTATED EMPLOYEES PENSION FUND
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

September 30,

Annual money-weighted
rate of return, net of
investment expenses

2014 %14.75
2015 %1.13
2016 %7.33
2017 %14.48
2018 %8.88
2019 %3.56
2020 %7.17
2021 %20.76

Note:  This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for ten years.  However, until a full ten
year trend is compiled, only information for those years for which data are available will be presented.
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City of West Palm Beach, Florida
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS
AS REQUIRED BY GASB 74
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Actuarially determined Contribution
(ADC) $ 1,348,219 $ 1,260,603 $ 1,153,020 $ 1,094,540 $ 945,053

Contribution made in relation to the
ADC 1,348,219 1,260,603 1,153,020 1,094,540 945,053

Covered payroll $ 91,963,611 $ 96,900,734 $ 96,685,320 $ 91,507,955 $ 88,842,675
Contributions as a percentage of

covered payroll %1.5 %1.3 %1.2 %1.2 %1.06

Notes to Schedule:

Valuation date
September 30,

2021
September 30,

2020
September 30,

2019
September 30,

2018
September 30,

2017

The following actuarial methods and
assumptions were used in 2021 to
determine contribution rates
reported in this schedule:

Actuarial cost method
Entry age

normal
Entry age

normal
Entry age

normal
lEntry age

normal
Entry age

normal

Amortization method
Level % of

salary
Level % of

salary
Level % of

salary
Level % of

salary
Level % of

salary

Actuarial assumptions:
inflation rate %1.5 %1.5 %1.5 %3.0 %3.0
Investment rate of return %7.5 %7.5 %7.5 %7.0 %7.0
Discount rate %7.5 %7.5 %7.5 %7.0 %7.0

Healthcare cost trend rates

Medical

8.0% for
2020/2021

graded to 4.5%

8.0% for
2019/2020

graded to 4.5%

7.5% for
2018/2019

graded to 4.5%

9.0% for
2017/2018

graded to 6.0%

8.0% for
2016/2017

graded to 6.5%
Select rates 2026/2027 2025/2026 2024/2025 2023/2024 2022/2023
Ultimate rate %4.5 %4.5 %4.5 %5.0 %5.0

Note:  This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for ten years.  However, until a full ten-
year trend is compiled, only information for those years for which data are available will be presented.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS
AS REQUIRED BY GASB 74
POLICE BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION RETIREE HEALTH FUND
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

September 30

2021

Contractually determined Contribution (ADC) $ 1,026,842
Contribution made in relation to the ADC 1,026,842

Contribution - deficiency (excess) -

Covered payroll $ 25,671,050
Contributions as a percentage of coverred payroll %4.00

Note:  This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for ten years.  However, until a full ten-
year trend is compiled, only information for those years for which data are available will be presented.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS
AS REQUIRED BY GASB 74
ASSOCIATION OF FIREFIGHTERS RETIREE BENEFIT FUND
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

September 30

2021

Contractually determined Contribution (ADC) $ 428,140
Contribution made in relation to the ADC 428,140

Contribution - deficiency (excess) -

Covered payroll $ 21,407,000
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll %2.00

Note:  This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for ten years.  However, until a full ten-
year trend is compiled, only information for those years for which data are available will be presented.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS
AS REQUIRED BY GASB 74
ELECTED OFFICIALS AND MANAGEMENT VEBA TRUST FUND
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

September 30

2021

Statutory determined Contribution (ADC) $ -
Contribution made in relation to the ADC -

Contribution - deficiency (excess) -

Covered payroll $ -
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll -

Note:  This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for ten years.  However, until a full ten-
year trend is compiled, only information for those years for which data are available will be presented.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS
AS REQUIRED BY GASB 74
GENERAL EMPLOYEES VEBA TRUST FUND
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

September 30

2021

Statutory determined Contribution (ADC) $ -
Contribution made in relation to the ADC -

Contribution - deficiency (excess) -

Covered payroll $ -
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll -

Note:  This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirements to show information for ten years.  However, until a full ten-
year trend is compiled, only information for those years for which data are available will be presented.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET OPEB
LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
AS REQUIRED BY GASB 74
OPEB TRUST
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Measurement Measurement Measurement Measurement Measurement 

Year 2021 Year 2020 Year 2019  Year 2018 Year 2017

Total OPEB Liability
Service cost $ 456,559 $ 458,229 $ 408,359 $ 389,985 $ 434,206
Interest 1,054,428 1,064,810 987,405 1,004,278 928,592
Changes in assumptions 614,101 - (72,162) - 194,768
Difference between expected and actual

experience (566,016) (356,176) 864,431 (514,353) 80,037
Benefit payments (1,348,219) (1,260,603) (1,153,020) (1,094,540) (945,053)

Net change in total OPEB liability 210,853 (93,740) 1,035,013 (214,630) 692,550

Total OPEB liability - beginning of year 14,264,403 14,358,143 13,323,130 13,537,760 12,845,210

Total OPEB liability - end of year (a) 14,475,256 14,264,403 14,358,143 13,323,130 13,537,760

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - employer 1,348,219 1,260,603 1,153,020 1,094,540 1,890,106
Net investment income 3,388,063 1,259,711 484,087 (674,736) 1,403,589
Benefit payments (1,348,219) (1,260,603) (1,153,020) (1,094,540) (945,053)
Trust administrative expenses - - - - (27,359)

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 3,388,063 1,259,711 484,087 (674,736) 2,321,283

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - beginning of
year 14,994,111 13,734,400 13,250,313 13,925,049 11,603,766

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - end of year (b) 18,382,174 14,994,111 13,734,400 13,250,313 13,925,049

Net OPEB Liability - end of year (a) - (b) (3,906,918) (729,708) 623,743 72,817 (387,289)

Plan fiduciary net position as % of total OPEB
liability %127.0 %105.1 %95.7 %99.5 %-

Covered payroll 91,963,611 96,900,734 96,685,320 91,507,955 88,842,675
Net OPEB liability as % of covered payroll %(4.2) %(0.8) %0.6 %0.1 %(0.4)

Note:  This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for ten years.  However, until a full ten
year trend is compiled, only information for those years for which data are available will be presented.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY
AND RELATED RATIOS
AS REQUIRED BY GASB 74
POLICE BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION RETIREE HEALTH FUND
 FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Measurement

Year 2021

Total OPEB Liability
Service cost $ 184,796
Interest 1,362,414
Changes in assumptions 1,188,512
Benefit payments (788,380)

Net change in total OPEB liability 1,947,342

Total OPEB liability - beginning of year 17,329,473

Total OPEB liability - end of year $ 19,276,815

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - employer 1,026,842
Net investment income 1,976,925
Benefit payments 788,380
Trust administrative expenses 14,885

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 2,200,502

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - beginning of year 13,864,149

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - end of year 16,064,651

Net OPEB Liability - end of year 3,212,164

Plan fiduciary net position as % of total OPEB liability %83.3
Covered payroll 25,671,050
Net OPEB liability as % of covered payroll %12.5

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.  However, until a full 10-year trend
is compiled, only information for those years for which data is available will be presented.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY
AND RELATED RATIOS
AS REQUIRED BY GASB 74
ASSOCIATION OF FIREFIGHTERS RETIREE BENEFIT FUND
FOR THE LAST TEN  FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Measurement

Year 2021

Total OPEB Liability
Service cost $ 71,247
Interest 581,103
Changes in assumptions (23,950)
Benefit payments (499,321)

Net change in total OPEB liability 129,079

Total OPEB liability - beginning of year 7,962,076

Total OPEB liability - end of year $ 8,091,155

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - employer 428,140
Net investment income 3,291,779
Benefit payments (499,321)
Trust administrative expenses (30,730)

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 3,189,868

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - beginning of year 7,690,174

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - end of year 10,880,042

Net OPEB Liability - end of year (2,788,887)

Plan fiduciary net position as % of total OPEB liability %(134.5)
Covered payroll 21,407,000
Net OPEB liability as % of covered payroll %(13.0)

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.  However, until a full 10-year trend
is compiled, only information for those years for which data is available will be presented.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY
AND RELATED RATIOS
AS REQUIRED BY GASB 74
ELECTED OFFICIALS AND MANAGEMENT VEBA TRUST FUND (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE LAST TEN  FISCAL YEARS

Measurement

Year 2021

Total OPEB Liability
Service cost $ 56,115
Interest 92,847
Changes of benefit terms (483,900)
Changes in assumptions 373,614
Difference between expected and actual experience (21,446)
Benefit payments (54,395)

Net change in total OPEB liability (37,165)

Total OPEB liability - beginning of year 1,546,585

Total OPEB liability - end of year $ 1,509,420

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Net investment income 86,778
Benefit payments (54,395)
Trust administrative expenses (1,974)

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 30,409

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - beginning of year 731,139

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - end of year 761,548

Net OPEB Liability - end of year 747,872

Plan fiduciary net position as % of total OPEB liability %(50.5)

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.  However, until a full 10-year trend
is compiled, only information for those years for which data is available will be presented.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY
AND RELATED RATIOS
AS REQUIRED BY GASB 74
GENERAL EMPLOYEES VEBA TRUST FUND (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE LAST TEN  FISCAL YEARS

Measurement

Year 2021

Total OPEB Liability
Service cost $ 457,054
Interest 711,933
Changes of benefit terms (3,235,963)
Changes in assumptions 3,686,964
Difference between expected and actual experience (184,206)
Benefit payments (244,414)

Net change in total OPEB liability 1,191,386

Total OPEB liability - beginning of year 11,759,231

Total OPEB liability - end of year $ 13,950,599

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - employer -
Contributions - active employees -
Net investment income 823,273
Benefit payments (244,414)
Trust administrative expenses (8,666)

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 570,193

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - beginning of year 5,242,936

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - end of year 5,913,129

Net OPEB Liability - end of year 7,037,470

Plan fiduciary net position as % of total OPEB liability %45.66

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years.  However, until a full 10-year trend
is compiled, only information for those years for which data is available will be presented.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS
AS REQUIRED BY GASB 74
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

The annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment expenses for the OPEB Trust is  shown below:

September 30, OPEB Trust

2017 %6.00
2018 %6.00
2019 %6.00
2020 %9.10
2021 %10.65

At December 31, 2020, the annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment expenses for the General Employees
VEBA and the Elected Officials and Management VEBA Funds was 18.25% and 16.18%, respectively.  

Note:  This information above  is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for ten years.  However, until a
full ten year trend is compiled, only information for those years for which data are available will be presented.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Budgetary Data

The City Commission follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

(1) Prior to August 1, the City Administration submits to the City Commission a proposed operating budget for the
fiscal year commencing on October 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of
financing them.

(2) Public hearings are conducted.

(3) Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted.

(4) The level of control (level at which expenditures may not exceed budget) is the department. The City
Administrator is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within departments of any fund. The City Commission
must approve any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any department.

(5) Annual budgets are adopted for all actively utilized governmental and proprietary funds.  The original and final
budgets, as presented, include re-appointed encumbrances of the prior year. The budgets have been adopted on
a basis consistent with GAAP with the following exceptions:

Annual budgets for all the major and nonmajor governmental funds are prepared on the modified accrual
basis of accounting except for the General Fund. The General Fund budget is prepared on the modified
accrual basis of accounting except that current year encumbrances are treated as expenditures for budgetary
purposes and administrative charges from other funds are budgeted as revenue in the General Fund. All
unencumbered and unexpended appropriations lapse at the fiscal year end, except those for ongoing capital
projects and special revenue funds which are brought forward and become part of the subsequent year's
original budget.

The reported budgetary data represents the final approved budget after amendments adopted by the City Commission with
one exception. Budgets for grants and shared revenues from other governmental units which do not lapse at year-end are
only reported to the extent of revenues recognized and expenditures incurred for the current year.
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EKEͲD�:KZ�'Ks�ZED�Ed�>�&hE�^�

�

^W��/�>�Z�s�Eh��&hE�^�

�

^ƉĞĐŝĂů�ƌĞǀĞŶƵĞ�ĨƵŶĚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽĐĞĞĚƐ�ŽĨ�ƐƉĞĐŝĨŝĐ�ƌĞǀĞŶƵĞ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ�;ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ĚĞďƚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�Žƌ�ŵĂũŽƌ�ĐĂƉŝƚĂů�
ƉƌŽũĞĐƚƐͿ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌŝŶŐ�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚŝŶŐ�ďĞĐĂƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ůĞŐĂů�Žƌ�ƌĞŐƵůĂƚŽƌǇ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ�Žƌ�ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŝǀĞ�ĂĐƚŝŽŶ͘ �
�

>ŽĐĂů�'ĂƐ�dĂǆ�&ƵŶĚ�Ͳ�dŚŝƐ�ĨƵŶĚ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƌĞǀĞŶƵĞ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�^ƚĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�&ůŽƌŝĚĂ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĐŽůůĞĐƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞŵŝƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ�Ă�
ƉŽƌƚŝŽŶ͕�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ��ŝƚǇ�ƉŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶ͕�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�>ŽĐĂů�KƉƚŝŽŶ�^ŝǆƚŚ��ĞŶƚ�&ƵĞů�dĂǆ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂůĞ�ŽĨ�ŐĂƐŽůŝŶĞ�ŝŶ�WĂůŵ��ĞĂĐŚ��ŽƵŶƚǇ͘��dŚĞ�
ƌĞǀĞŶƵĞ�ŝƐ�ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƵƐĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƌŽĂĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƚƌĞĞƚ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘�

/ŵƉĂĐƚ� &ĞĞƐ�tĞƐƚĞƌŶ� �ǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ� &ĞĞ� &ƵŶĚ� Ͳ�dŚŝƐ� ĨƵŶĚ� ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ� ĨŽƌ� ŝŵƉĂĐƚ� ĨĞĞƐ� ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚĞĚ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚƌĞĞ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵƐ͗� � �ĨĨŽƌĚĂďůĞ�
,ŽƵƐŝŶŐ�dƌƵƐƚ�&ƵŶĚ͖�ƚŚĞ�ǁĞƚůĂŶĚƐ�ŵŝƚŝŐĂƚŝŽŶ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵ�ĨŽƌ�ZŽĞďƵĐŬͬ:ŽŐ�ZŽĂĚ͖�ĂŶĚͬŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ƐĂĨĞƚǇ�
ĨĂĐŝůŝƚǇ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƌĞĂ͘�

�ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ� �ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ� &ƵŶĚ� Ͳ� dŚŝƐ� ĨƵŶĚ� ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ� ĨŽƌ� ƌĞǀĞŶƵĞ� ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ� ĨƌŽŵ� ƚŚĞ� �ĞƉĂƌƚŵĞŶƚ� ŽĨ� ,ŽƵƐŝŶŐ� ĂŶĚ� hƌďĂŶ�
�ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ͘��dŚĞ�ƌĞǀĞŶƵĞ�ŝƐ�ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂĐĐŽŵƉůŝƐŚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�ŽďũĞĐƚŝǀĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ��ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ��ůŽĐŬ�'ƌĂŶƚ�
WƌŽŐƌĂŵ͘��

EĞŝŐŚďŽƌŚŽŽĚ�^ƚĂďŝůŝǌĂƚŝŽŶ�&ƵŶĚ�Ͳ�dŚŝƐ�ĨƵŶĚ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƌĞǀĞŶƵĞ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�Ă�ĨĞĚĞƌĂů�ŐƌĂŶƚ͘�dŚĞ�ƌĞǀĞŶƵĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵŶĚ�ĂƌĞ�
ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĐƋƵŝƐŝƚŝŽŶ͕�ƌĞŚĂďŝůŝƚĂƚŝŽŶ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƚĞŶƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ůŽǁ͕�ŵŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĞĚŝƵŵ�ŝŶĐŽŵĞ�ŚŽƵƐŝŶŐ͘��

,ŽŵĞ�WƌŽŐƌĂŵ�&ƵŶĚ�Ͳ�dŚŝƐ�ĨƵŶĚ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ŐƌĂŶƚ�ƌĞǀĞŶƵĞƐ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ��ĞƉĂƌƚŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�,ŽƵƐŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�hƌďĂŶ��ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�
ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ,KD�� /ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� WĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉ� WƌŽŐƌĂŵ͘� � dŚĞ� ƌĞǀĞŶƵĞ� ŝƐ� ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚĞĚ� ĨŽƌ� ĂĐƚŝǀŝƚŝĞƐ� ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ� ƚŽ� ŶĞǁ� ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚŝŽŶ͕�
ƌĞŚĂďŝůŝƚĂƚŝŽŶ͕�ĂĐƋƵŝƐŝƚŝŽŶ͕�ĂŶĚ�ĂůůŽǁĂďůĞ�ŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŝǀĞ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ͘�

,KWt��&ƵŶĚ�Ͳ�dŚŝƐ�ĨƵŶĚ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ŐƌĂŶƚ�ƌĞǀĞŶƵĞƐ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ��ĞƉĂƌƚŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�,ŽƵƐŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�hƌďĂŶ��ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�
ƚŚĞ�͞,ŽƵƐŝŶŐ�KƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƚŝĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�WĞƌƐŽŶƐ�ǁŝƚŚ��/�^�WƌŽŐƌĂŵ͘͟��dŚĞ�ƌĞǀĞŶƵĞ�ŝƐ�ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ŚŽƵƐŝŶŐ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƚŝĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƚŽ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůƐ�ǁŝƚŚ��/�^�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ�ĚŝƐĞĂƐĞƐ͘�

^,/W�WƌŽŐƌĂŵ�&ƵŶĚ�Ͳ�dŚŝƐ�ĨƵŶĚ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ŐƌĂŶƚ�ƌĞǀĞŶƵĞƐ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�^ƚĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�&ůŽƌŝĚĂ��ĞƉĂƌƚŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ��ĨĨĂŝƌƐ�
ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ�^ƚĂƚĞ�,ŽƵƐŝŶŐ� /ŶŝƚŝĂƚŝǀĞƐ� WĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵ͘� �dŚĞ� ƌĞǀĞŶƵĞ� ŝƐ� ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚĞĚ� ĨŽƌ�ĂĐƚŝǀŝƚŝĞƐ� ƌĞůĂƚŝŶŐ� ƚŽ�ŶĞǁ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚŝŽŶ͕�
ƌĞŚĂďŝůŝƚĂƚŝŽŶ͕�ůĂŶĚ�ĂĐƋƵŝƐŝƚŝŽŶ͕�ĚŽǁŶͲƉĂǇŵĞŶƚ�ĂƐƐŝƐƚĂŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĂůůŽǁĂďůĞ�ŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŝǀĞ�ĐŽƐƚƐ͘�

�ŵĞƌŝĐĂŶ�ZĞƐĐƵĞ�WůĂŶ��Đƚ�&ƵŶĚ�Ͳ�dŚŝƐ�ĨƵŶĚ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƌĞǀĞŶƵĞ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�Ă�ĨĞĚĞƌĂů�ŐƌĂŶƚ͘�dŚĞ�ƌĞǀĞŶƵĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵŶĚ�ĂƌĞ�
ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƌĞǀĞŶƵĞ�ƌĞƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƚĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞĚƵĐƚŝŽŶ�ŝŶ�
ƌĞǀĞŶƵĞ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��Ks/�Ͳϭϵ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ŚĞĂůƚŚ�ĞŵĞƌŐĞŶĐǇ͕�ƌĞůĂƚŝǀĞ�ƚŽ�ƌĞǀĞŶƵĞƐ�ĐŽůůĞĐƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ƌĞĐĞŶƚ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ƉƌŝŽƌ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�
ĞŵĞƌŐĞŶĐǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĨŽƌ��Ks/�Ͳϭϵ�ĞǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞƐ�Žƌ�ŶĞŐĂƚŝǀĞ�ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ�ŽĨ��Ks/�Ͳϭϵ͘�

,ŽƵƐŝŶŐ�dƌƵƐƚ�&ƵŶĚ�Ͳ�dŚŝƐ�ĨƵŶĚ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƌĞǀĞŶƵĞƐ�ƵƐĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ĂĨĨŽƌĚĂďůĞ�ŚŽƵƐŝŶŐ͘��WƌŝŵĂƌǇ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�
ƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ƉƌŽĐĞĞĚƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂůĞ�ŽĨ��ŝƚǇͲŽǁŶĞĚ�ƉƌŽƉĞƌƚŝĞƐ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶĂƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ĂĨĨŽƌĚĂďůĞ�ŚŽƵƐŝŶŐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽĐĞĞĚƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�
ƐĂůĞ�ŽĨ��ŝƚǇͲŽǁŶĞĚ�dƌĂŶƐĨĞƌ�ŽĨ��ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ZŝŐŚƚƐ�;d�ZƐͿ͘��

WĞƌŵŝƚƐ�&ƵŶĚ�Ͳ�dŚŝƐ�ĨƵŶĚ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�Ăůů�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ƉĞƌŵŝƚ�ĨĞĞƐ͘��̂ ƚĂƚĞ�ƐƚĂƚƵƚĞ�ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ĨĞĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ƉĞƌŵŝƚƚŝŶŐ�
ĂŶĚ�ŝŶƐƉĞĐƚŝŽŶ�ĂĐƚŝǀŝƚŝĞƐ͘�

&ŝƌĞ��ƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ�&ĞĞ�&ƵŶĚ�Ͳ�dŚŝƐ�ĨƵŶĚ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƐƉĞĐŝĂů�ĂƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ�ƌĞǀĞŶƵĞ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚĂǆƉĂǇĞƌƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�
ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞ�ŽĨ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŽŶƐ͕�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ͕�Žƌ�ƌĞƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ĨŝƌĞ�ĞƋƵŝƉŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂĐŚŝŶĞƌǇ͘��

ZĞĚ�>ŝŐŚƚ��ĂŵĞƌĂ�&ƵŶĚ�Ͳ�dŚŝƐ�ĨƵŶĚ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƐƉĞĐŝĂů�ĂƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ�ƌĞǀĞŶƵĞ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚƌĂĨĨŝĐ�ĐŝƚĂƚŝŽŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�
ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞ�ŽĨ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŽŶƐ͕�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ͕�Žƌ�ƌĞƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�WŽůŝĐĞ�ĞƋƵŝƉŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂĐŚŝŶĞƌǇ͘�

�

�



�

�/dz�K&�t�^d�W�>D�����,͕�&>KZ/���
EKEͲD�:KZ�'Ks�ZED�Ed�>�&hE�^�

;�KEd/Eh��Ϳ�

tĂƚĞƌĨƌŽŶƚ��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ�&ƵŶĚ�Ͳ�dŚŝƐ�ĨƵŶĚ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĞǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞƐ�ĂƐƐŽĐŝĂƚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƉƌŽŵŽƚŝŽŶĂů�ĂĐƚŝǀŝƚŝĞƐ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ǁĂƚĞƌĨƌŽŶƚ�
ƉĂƌŬ͘�

^ƉĞĐŝĂů�ZĞǀĞŶƵĞ�'ƌĂŶƚ�WƌŽŐƌĂŵƐ�&ƵŶĚ�Ͳ�dŚŝƐ�ĨƵŶĚ�ŝƐ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽĐĞĞĚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĞǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ĨĞĚĞƌĂů͕�ƐƚĂƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�
ůŽĐĂů�ŐƌĂŶƚ�ĂǁĂƌĚƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĚŽ�ŶŽƚ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ŝŶ�Ă�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞ�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚĂů�ĨƵŶĚ͘�

�ĞŵĞƚĞƌǇ�^ŝŶŬŝŶŐ�&ƵŶĚ�Ͳ�dŚŝƐ�ĨƵŶĚ�ŝƐ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽĐĞĞĚƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂůĞ�ŽĨ�ĐĞŵĞƚĞƌǇ�ůŽƚƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƵƐĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ĐĂƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�
ŵĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐĞŵĞƚĞƌǇ͘�

DŝƐĐĞůůĂŶĞŽƵƐ� dƌƵƐƚ� &ƵŶĚ� Ͳ�dŚŝƐ� ĨƵŶĚ� ŝƐ� ƵƐĞĚ� ƚŽ� ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ� ĨŽƌ� ĂƐƐĞƚƐ� ƐĞŝǌĞĚ� ĂŶĚ� ĨŽƌĨĞŝƚĞĚ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ĐŽƵƌƐĞ� ŽĨ� ůĂǁ� ĞŶĨŽƌĐĞŵĞŶƚ�
ĂĐƚŝǀŝƚŝĞƐ͘�

�

���d�^�Zs/���&hE��

�

dŚĞ�ĚĞďƚ� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ� ĨƵŶĚ� ŝƐ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ� ĨŽƌ� ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ� ƚŚĂƚ� ĂƌĞ� ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚĞĚ͕� ĐŽŵŵŝƚƚĞĚ�Žƌ�ĂƐƐŝŐŶĞĚ� ƚŽ�ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉĂů͕�
ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ĞǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞƐ�ŽŶ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů� ůŽŶŐͲƚĞƌŵ�ĚĞďƚ͕�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ďŽŶĚƐ�ƉĂǇĂďůĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŽŶƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶƚĞƌƉƌŝƐĞ�
ĨƵŶĚƐ͘�
�
KƚŚĞƌ� �Ğďƚ� ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ� &ƵŶĚ� ʹ� dŚŝƐ� ĨƵŶĚ� ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ� ĨŽƌ� ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉĂů� ĂŶĚ� ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ� ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ� ŽĨ� ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ� ĚĞďƚ� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�
ŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ�ŶŽƚ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ŝŶ�Ă�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞ�ĨƵŶĚ͘���

�

'ĞŶĞƌĂů�KďůŝŐĂƚŝŽŶ��ŽŶĚƐ��Ğďƚ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ�&ƵŶĚ�ʹ�dŚŝƐ�ĨƵŶĚ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉĂů�ĂŶĚ� ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ�ϮϬϬϱ�'ĞŶĞƌĂů�
KďůŝŐĂƚŝŽŶ��ŽŶĚƐ͘�

�

^ĞƌŝĞƐ�ϮϬϭϵ����Z���Ğďƚ�̂ ĞƌǀŝĐĞ�&ƵŶĚ�ʹ�dŚŝƐ�ĨƵŶĚ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉĂů�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�^ĞƌŝĞƐ�ϮϬϭϵ�dĂǆ�/ŶĐƌĞŵĞŶƚ�
ZĞǀĞŶƵĞ�ĂŶĚ�ZĞĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ��ŽŶĚƐ͘�

�

�

��W/d�>�WZK:��d�&hE�^�

�

�ĂƉŝƚĂů�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚƐ�ĨƵŶĚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ�ƐĞŐƌĞŐĂƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĐƋƵŝƐŝƚŝŽŶ�Žƌ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ŵĂũŽƌ�ĐĂƉŝƚĂů�
ĨĂĐŝůŝƚŝĞƐ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐĞĚ�ďǇ�ĞŶƚĞƌƉƌŝƐĞ�ŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŽŶƐ͘�
�

KƚŚĞƌ��ĂƉŝƚĂů�WƌŽũĞĐƚƐ�&ƵŶĚ�Ͳ�dŚŝƐ�ĨƵŶĚ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ� ĨŽƌ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�ĐĂƉŝƚĂů�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚƐ�ŶŽƚ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ� ŝŶ�Ă�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞ�ĨƵŶĚ͘��WƌŽũĞĐƚƐ�
ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�ƉĂƌŬƐ͕�ƌĞŶŽǀĂƚŝŽŶƐ�ƚŽ��ŝƚǇ��ƵŝůĚŝŶŐƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�ůĂŶĚƐĐĂƉŝŶŐ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͘��������������������������������������������� ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�
^ĞƌŝĞƐ�ϮϬϮϬ�'ĞŶĞƌĂů�KďůŝŐĂƚŝŽŶ��ŽŶĚ�&ƵŶĚ�ʹ�dŚŝƐ�ĨƵŶĚ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĐĂƉŝƚĂů�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�ƉĂƌŬƐ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�
�ŝƚǇ͕�ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚŝƐ�ďŽŶĚ�ƐĞƌŝĞƐ͘�

�ŝƚǇ��ŽŵŵŽŶƐ�Θ�tĂƚĞƌĨƌŽŶƚ�WĂƌŬ��ŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚŝŽŶ�&ƵŶĚ�ʹ�dŚŝƐ�ĨƵŶĚ�ǁĂƐ�ƐƉĞĐŝĨŝĐĂůůǇ�ĐƌĞĂƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
�ŝƚǇ��ŽŵŵŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�tĂƚĞƌĨƌŽŶƚ�WĂƌŬ͘�

/ŶĨƌĂƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�^ƵƌƚĂǆ�&ƵŶĚ�Ͳ�dŚŝƐ�ĨƵŶĚ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƌĞǀĞŶƵĞƐ�ĚĞƌŝǀĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ǀŽƚĞƌ�ĂƉƉƌŽǀĞĚ�ŽŶĞͲĐĞŶƚ�ƐĂůĞƐ�ƐƵƌƚĂǆ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵ�
ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĂƌĞ�ĞĂƌŵĂƌŬĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�ŝŶĨƌĂƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�ĐĂƉŝƚĂů�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚƐ�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂƐ�ƌŽĂĚƐ͕�ďƌŝĚŐĞƐ͕�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐƐ͕�ŶŽƚ�
ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ŝŶ�Ă�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞ�ĨƵŶĚ͘������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

ϮϬϭϲ��ĂƉŝƚĂů��ŽŶĚ�&ƵŶĚ�Ͳ�dŚŝƐ�ĨƵŶĚ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĐƋƵŝƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ��ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�
�ŝƚǇ͕�ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚŝƐ�ďŽŶĚ�ƐĞƌŝĞƐ͘��������

�



�

�/dz�K&�t�^d�W�>D�����,͕�&>KZ/���
EKEͲD�:KZ�'Ks�ZED�Ed�>�&hE�^�

;�KEd/Eh��Ϳ�

sĞŚŝĐůĞ��ZĞƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚ�&ƵŶĚ�Ͳ�dŚŝƐ�ĨƵŶĚ�ŝƐ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�Ăůů��ŝƚǇ�ŽǁŶĞĚ�ǀĞŚŝĐůĞƐ�ƵƐĞĚ�ďǇ�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚĂů�
ĂĐƚŝǀŝƚŝĞƐ͘�

dĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇ�ZĞƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚ�&ƵŶĚ�Ͳ�dŚŝƐ�ĨƵŶĚ�ŝƐ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƌĞƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ĞƋƵŝƉŵĞŶƚ�ƵƐĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ�ĚĂƚĂ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐŝŶŐ�
ĂŶĚ�ƚĞůĞĐŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƚŝŽŶƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƵƐĞĚ�ďǇ�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚĂů�ĂĐƚŝǀŝƚŝĞƐ͘�

EW��Z��^ĞƌŝĞƐ�ϮϬϬϱ���ŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚŝŽŶ�&ƵŶĚ�Ͳ�dŚŝƐ�ĨƵŶĚ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƚĂǆĂďůĞ�ƉŽƌƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�EŽƌƚŚǁŽŽĚ�ͬ�WůĞĂƐĂŶƚ��ŝƚǇ��ŽŶĚ�
ĨŽƌ�ůĂŶĚ�ĂĐƋƵŝƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ĐŽƐƚƐ͘��

^ĞƌŝĞƐ�ϮϬϭϵ����Z���ĂƉŝƚĂů��ŽŶĚ�&ƵŶĚ�Ͳ�dŚŝƐ�ĨƵŶĚ�ŝƐ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽĐĞĞĚƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�^ĞƌŝĞƐ�ϮϬϭϵ����Z��dĂǆ�/ŶĐƌĞŵĞŶƚ�
ZĞǀĞŶƵĞ�ĂŶĚ�ZĞĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ��ŽŶĚƐ͘�WƌŽĐĞĞĚƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƵƐĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�ĐĂƉŝƚĂů�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĐĂƉŝƚĂů�ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞƐ�ĂƐ�ŽƵƚůŝŶĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�
ŝƐƐƵĞ͛Ɛ�KĨĨŝĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ͘�

'ƌĂŶƚ��ĂƉŝƚĂů�WƌŽũĞĐƚƐ�&ƵŶĚ�Ͳ�dŚŝƐ�ĨƵŶĚ�ŝƐ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽĐĞĞĚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĞǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ĨĞĚĞƌĂů͕�ƐƚĂƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ůŽĐĂů�ŐƌĂŶƚ�
ĂǁĂƌĚƐ�ƵƐĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĐĂƉŝƚĂů�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĚŽ�ŶŽƚ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ŝŶ�Ă�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞ�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚĂů�
ĨƵŶĚ͘�

>ĂŶĚ��ĐƋƵŝƐŝƚŝŽŶ�&ƵŶĚ�Ͳ�dŚŝƐ�ĨƵŶĚ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ůĂŶĚ�ŚŽůĚŝŶŐƐ�ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ͘��
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET  
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Non-Major
Special Revenue

Funds

Non-Major
Debt Service

Funds

Non-Major
Capital

Projects Funds

Total Non-Major
Governmental

Funds

ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 28,996,162 $ 1,721,426 $ 86,708,278 $ 117,425,866
Investments 17,105,624 6,828,389 35,163,913 59,097,926
Receivables, net:

Accounts 499,450 - 1,653,140 2,152,590
Interest 77,204 8,766 104,696 190,666
Notes 2,007,410 - - 2,007,410
Liens and assessments 19,006 - - 19,006

Due from other governments 2,790,888 - 36,182 2,827,070
Inventory 60,967 - - 60,967
Land held for resale 2,585,734 - 2,856,572 5,442,306
Prepaid items 15,028 - - 15,028
Investment in direct financing leases - - 1,464,596 1,464,596

Total assets 54,157,473 8,558,581 127,987,377 190,703,431

LIABILITIES: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,716,859 870,708 4,808,152 7,395,719
Deposits payable 70,144 - - 70,144
Unearned revenue 12,265,412 - - 12,265,412
Due to other governments 318,634 - - 318,634
Due to other funds 2,912,705 - - 2,912,705

Total liabilities 17,283,754 870,708 4,808,152 22,962,614

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES: 
Unavailable revenue 1,054,238 - - 1,054,238

FUND BALANCES: 
Nonspendable 75,995 - - 75,995
Restricted 28,503,793 7,322,084 116,623,398 152,449,275
Committed 9,061,175 365,789 6,555,827 15,982,791
Unassigned (1,821,482) - - (1,821,482)

Total fund balances 35,819,481 7,687,873 123,179,225 166,686,579

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and
fund balances $ 54,157,473 $ 8,558,581 $ 127,987,377 $ 190,703,431
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Non-Major
Special

Revenue
Funds

Non-Major
Debt Service

Funds

Non-Major
Capital

Projects Funds

Total Non-Major
Governmental

Funds

REVENUES: 
Taxes $ - $ 1,779,005 $ - $ 1,779,005
Licenses and permits 12,083,268 - - 12,083,268
Intergovernmental 10,923,106 - 9,316,535 20,239,641
Charges for services 9,809,703 - - 9,809,703
Fines and forfeitures 4,645 - - 4,645
Rents and royalties 870,898 - - 870,898
Interest income 74,420 19,054 184,201 277,675
Miscellaneous 342,331 - - 342,331

Total revenues 34,108,371 1,798,059 9,500,736 45,407,166

EXPENDITURES:

Current: 
General government - - 28,497 28,497
Public safety 16,875,154 - 210,333 17,085,487
Public works 2,476,449 - 211,436 2,687,885
Economic environment 5,344,748 - 1,671,802 7,016,550
Engineering services 788,872 - 935,250 1,724,122
Leisure services 3,650,816 - 655,064 4,305,880

Capital outlay 413,761 - 29,506,224 29,919,985
Debt service:

Principal - 5,471,631 - 5,471,631
Interest expense - 5,796,769 - 5,796,769

Total expenditures 29,549,800 11,268,400 33,218,606 74,036,806

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures 4,558,571 (9,470,341) (23,717,870) (28,629,640)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Disposal of capital assets 110,001 - 108,590 218,591
Transfers in 3,619,273 9,371,106 2,986,359 15,976,738
Transfers out (6,153,965) - - (6,153,965)

Total other financing sources (uses) (2,424,691) 9,371,106 3,094,949 10,041,364

Net changes in fund balances 2,133,880 (99,235) (20,622,921) (18,588,276)

Fund balances - beginning 33,685,601 7,787,108 143,802,146 185,274,855

Fund balances - ending $ 35,819,481 $ 7,687,873 $ 123,179,225 $ 166,686,579
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Local Gas Tax
Fund

Impact Fees
Western

Expansion
Fee Fund

Community
Development

Fund

Neighborhood
Stabilization

Program Fund

Home
Program

Fund

ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,453,827 $ 418,352 $ - $ 8,693 $ 31,065
Investments 2,584,783 440,678 - - 32,722
Receivables, net:

Accounts 395,794 - - - -
Interest 12,484 2,159 - - 193
Notes - 476,085 34 981,281 -
Liens and assessments - - - - -

Due from other governments - - 299,366 - 58,749
Inventory - - - - -
Prepaid items - - - - -
Land held for resale - - - 2,487,196 98,538

Total assets 5,446,888 1,337,274 299,400 3,477,170 221,267

LIABILITIES: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 552,532 - 99,931 7 -
Deposits payable - - - - -
Unearned revenue - - - - -
Due to other governments - - - - -
Due to other funds - - 2,020,951 - -

Total liabilities 552,532 - 2,120,882 7 -

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES: 
Unavailable revenue - 461,408 - 27,625 -

FUND BALANCES: 
Nonspendable - - - - -
Restricted 4,894,356 875,866 - 3,449,538 221,267
Committed - - - - -
Unassigned - - (1,821,482) - -

Total fund balances 4,894,356 875,866 (1,821,482) 3,449,538 221,267

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances $ 5,446,888 $ 1,337,274 $ 299,400 $ 3,477,170 $ 221,267

Continued
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

HOPWA
Fund

SHIP
Program

Fund

American
Rescue Plan

Act Fund
Housing

Trust Fund Permits Fund

Fire
Assessment

Fee Fund

ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ - $ 483,087 $ 12,270,291 $ 845,679 $ 7,018,537 $ 3,272,869
Investments - 21 5,135 890,808 7,393,102 3,447,536
Receivables, net:

Accounts - - - - - 41,364
Interest - - - 4,450 35,140 17,715
Notes - 10 - 550,000 - -
Liens and assessments - - - - 19,006 -

Due from other governments 582,380 - - - 7,595 -
Inventory - - - - - -
Prepaid items - - - - - 15,028
Land held for resale - - - - - -

Total assets 582,380 483,118 12,275,426 2,290,937 14,473,380 6,794,512

LIABILITIES: 
Accounts payable and accrued

liabilities 276,706 418 - - 353,498 151,685
Deposits payable - - - - - -
Unearned revenue - - 12,265,412 - - -
Due to other governments - - - - 316,731 -
Due to other funds 305,674 - - - - -

Total liabilities 582,380 418 12,265,412 - 670,229 151,685

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES: 
Unavailable revenue - - - 550,000 15,205 -

FUND BALANCES: 
Nonspendable - - - - - 15,028
Restricted - 482,700 10,014 1,740,937 13,787,946 -
Committed - - - - - 6,627,799
Unassigned - - - - - -

Total fund balances - 482,700 10,014 1,740,937 13,787,946 6,642,827

Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources and fund balances $ 582,380 $ 483,118 $ 12,275,426 $ 2,290,937 $ 14,473,380 $ 6,794,512

Continued
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Red Light
Camera Fund

Waterfront
District Fund

Special
Revenue

Grant
Programs

Fund
Cemetery

Sinking Fund
Miscellaneous

Trust Fund

Total Non-
Major
Special

Revenue
Funds

ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 33,756 $ 1,230,675 $ - $ 631,801 $ 297,530 $ 28,996,162
Investments 35,557 1,296,353 - 665,520 313,409 17,105,624
Receivables, net:

Accounts 300 59,511 - - 2,481 499,450
Interest 173 - - 3,252 1,638 77,204
Notes - - - - - 2,007,410
Liens and assessments - - - - - 19,006

Due from other governments - 1,650 1,841,148 - - 2,790,888
Inventory - - - 60,967 - 60,967
Prepaid items - - - - - 15,028
Land held for resale - - - - - 2,585,734

Total assets 69,786 2,588,189 1,841,148 1,361,540 615,058 54,157,473

LIABILITIES: 
Accounts payable and accrued

liabilities - 104,152 175,551 - 2,379 1,716,859
Deposits payable - 48,758 - - 21,386 70,144
Unearned revenue - - - - - 12,265,412
Due to other governments - 1,903 - - - 318,634
Due to other funds - - 586,080 - - 2,912,705

Total liabilities - 154,813 761,631 - 23,765 17,283,754

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES: 
Unavailable revenue - - - - - 1,054,238

FUND BALANCES: 
Nonspendable - - - 60,967 - 75,995
Restricted 69,786 - 1,079,517 1,300,573 591,293 28,503,793
Committed - 2,433,376 - - - 9,061,175
Unassigned - - - - - (1,821,482)

Total fund balances 69,786 2,433,376 1,079,517 1,361,540 591,293 35,819,481

Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources and fund balances $ 69,786 $ 2,588,189 $ 1,841,148 $ 1,361,540 $ 615,058 $ 54,157,473
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Local Gas Tax
Fund

Impact Fees
Western

Expansion
Fee Fund

Community
Development

Fund

Neighborhood
Stabilization

Program Fund

Home
Program

Fund

REVENUES: 
Licenses and permits $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Intergovernmental 2,375,958 69 1,167,601 36,767 542,044
Charges for services 303,721 10,821 - - 130,079
Fines and forfeitures - - - - -
Rents and royalties - - - 26,900 -
Interest income 1,954 7,384 805 - 148
Miscellaneous 281 - 4,451 - -

Total revenues 2,681,914 18,274 1,172,857 63,667 672,271

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

Public safety - - - - -
Public works 2,476,449 - - - -
Economic environment - - 601,966 26,368 598,258
Engineering services - - - - -
Leisure services - - - - -

Capital outlay 43,098 - 153,780 - -

Total expenditures 2,519,547 - 755,746 26,368 598,258

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures 162,367 18,274 417,111 37,299 74,013

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES: 
Disposal of capital assets - - - - -
Transfers in - - - - -
Transfers out - - (2,238,434) (604,925) -

Total other financing sources - - (2,238,434) (604,925) -

Net changes in fund balances 162,367 18,274 (1,821,323) (567,626) 74,013

Fund balances - beginning 4,731,989 857,592 (159) 4,017,164 147,254

Fund balances - ending $ 4,894,356 $ 875,866 $ (1,821,482) $ 3,449,538 $ 221,267

Continued
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

HOPWA
Fund

SHIP
Program

Fund

American
Rescue Plan

Act Fund
Housing

Trust Fund Permits Fund

Fire
Assessment

Fee Fund

REVENUES: 
Licenses and permits $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 12,083,268 $ -
Intergovernmental 3,023,503 - - - 4,572 -
Charges for services - 107,939 - 252,480 62,371 8,098,279
Fines and forfeitures - - - - - -
Rents and royalties - - - - - -
Interest income - 131 10,014 7,831 - 43,920
Miscellaneous - - - 21,357 - -

Total revenues 3,023,503 108,070 10,014 281,668 12,150,211 8,142,199

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

Public safety - - - - 9,895,050 3,885,669
Public works - - - - - -
Economic environment 3,023,503 6,774 - 1,071,033 - -
Engineering services - - - - - -
Leisure services - - - - - -

Capital outlay - - - - 88,725 -

Total expenditures 3,023,503 6,774 - 1,071,033 9,983,775 3,885,669

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - 101,296 10,014 (789,365) 2,166,436 4,256,530

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES: 
Disposal of capital assets - - - 110,001 - -
Transfers in - - - 280,726 - -
Transfers out - - - - - (3,310,606)

Total other financing sources - - - 390,727 - (3,310,606)

Net changes in fund balances - 101,296 10,014 (398,638) 2,166,436 945,924

Fund balances - beginning - 381,404 - 2,139,575 11,621,510 5,696,903

Fund balances - ending $ - $ 482,700 $ 10,014 $ 1,740,937 $ 13,787,946 $ 6,642,827

Continued
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Red Light
Camera Fund

Waterfront
District Fund

Special
Revenue

Grant
Programs

Fund
Cemetery

Sinking Fund
Miscellaneous

Trust Fund

Total Non-
Major
Special

Revenue
Funds

REVENUES: 
Licenses and permits $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 12,083,268
Intergovernmental - - 3,419,808 - 352,784 10,923,106
Charges for services - 745,333 - 98,680 - 9,809,703
Fines and forfeitures 4,645 - - - - 4,645
Rents and royalties - 843,998 - - - 870,898
Interest income 128 - - 2,105 - 74,420
Miscellaneous - 4,990 311,252 - - 342,331

Total revenues 4,773 1,594,321 3,731,060 100,785 352,784 34,108,371

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

Public safety - - 2,705,476 - 388,959 16,875,154
Public works - - - - - 2,476,449
Economic environment - - 16,846 - - 5,344,748
Engineering services - - 788,872 - - 788,872
Leisure services - 3,164,673 486,143 - - 3,650,816

Capital outlay - - 128,158 - - 413,761

Total expenditures - 3,164,673 4,125,495 - 388,959 29,549,800

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 4,773 (1,570,352) (394,435) 100,785 (36,175) 4,558,571

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES: 
Disposal of capital assets - - - - - 110,001
Transfers in - 2,517,621 820,926 - - 3,619,273
Transfers out - - - - - (6,153,965)

Total other financing sources - 2,517,621 820,926 - - (2,424,691)

Net changes in fund balances 4,773 947,269 426,491 100,785 (36,175) 2,133,880

Fund balances - beginning 65,013 1,486,107 653,026 1,260,755 627,468 33,685,601

Fund balances - ending $ 69,786 $ 2,433,376 $ 1,079,517 $ 1,361,540 $ 591,293 $ 35,819,481
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET  
NON-MAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Other Debt
Service Fund

General
Obligation Bond

Fund

Series 2019
CCCRA Debt
Service Fund

Total Non-
major Debt

Service Funds

ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 177,701 $ 387,381 $ 1,156,344 $ 1,721,426
Investments 187,184 408,055 6,233,150 6,828,389
Interest 904 1,996 5,866 8,766

Total assets 365,789 797,432 7,395,360 8,558,581

LIABILITIES: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities - 502,500 368,208 870,708

Total liabilities - 502,500 368,208 870,708

FUND BALANCES: 
Restricted - 294,932 7,027,152 7,322,084
Committed 365,789 - - 365,789

Total fund balances 365,789 294,932 7,027,152 7,687,873

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 365,789 $ 797,432 $ 7,395,360 $ 8,558,581
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NON-MAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Other Debt
Service Fund

Go Bond Debt
Service

Series 2019
CCCRA Debt
Service Fund

Total Non-major
Debt Service

Funds

REVENUES: 
Property taxes $ - $ 1,779,005 $ - $ 1,779,005
Interest income 1,998 10,566 6,490 19,054

Total revenues 1,998 1,789,571 6,490 1,798,059

EXPENDITURES: 

Debt service: 
Principal 2,941,631 790,000 1,740,000 5,471,631
Interest expense 217,691 1,123,397 4,455,681 5,796,769

Total expenditures 3,159,322 1,913,397 6,195,681 11,268,400

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (3,157,324) (123,826) (6,189,191) (9,470,341)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 3,167,606 - 6,203,500 9,371,106

Total other financing sources 3,167,606 - 6,203,500 9,371,106

Net change in fund balances 10,282 (123,826) 14,309 (99,235)

Fund balances - beginning 355,507 418,758 7,012,843 7,787,108

Fund balances - ending $ 365,789 $ 294,932 $ 7,027,152 $ 7,687,873
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Other Capital
Projects Fund

Series 2020
General

Obligation
Bond Fund

City Commons
& Waterfront

Park
Construction

Fund
Infrastructure
Surtax Fund

2016 Capital
Bond Fund

Vehicle
Replacement

Fund

ASSETS: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,809,818 $ 19,063,865 $ 54,932 $ 12,732,741 $ 5,186,316 $ 926,949

Investments 789,035 10,028,088 57,863 13,412,263 223,997 976,420
Receivables, net:

Accounts - - - 1,653,140 - -
Interest 3,993 3,107 283 65,308 1,113 4,785

Due from other governments - - - - - -

Land held for resale - - - - - -

Investment in direct financing leases - - - - - 1,464,596

Total assets 11,602,846 29,095,060 113,078 27,863,452 5,411,426 3,372,750

LIABILITIES: 

Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities 333,428 129,513 61,065 871,259 81,840 5,924

FUND BALANCES: 

Restricted 10,120,482 28,965,547 - 26,992,193 5,329,586 1,464,596

Committed 1,148,936 - 52,013 - - 1,902,230

Total fund balances 11,269,418 28,965,547 52,013 26,992,193 5,329,586 3,366,826

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 11,602,846 $ 29,095,060 $ 113,078 $ 27,863,452 $ 5,411,426 $ 3,372,750

Continued
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Technology
Replacement

Fund

NPCCRA Series
2005A

Construction
Fund

Series 2019
CCCRA Capital

Bond Fund
Capital

Grants Fund

Land
Acquisition

Fund

Total Non-
Major Capital
Projects Funds

ASSETS: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,795,686 $ 990,038 $ 32,248,694 $ 1,896,307 $ 2,932 $ 86,708,278

Investments 2,944,886 6,014 6,722,259 - 3,088 35,163,913
Receivables, net:

Accounts - - - - - 1,653,140
Interest 14,704 33 11,355 - 15 104,696

Due from other governments - - - 36,182 - 36,182

Land held for resale - - - - 2,856,572 2,856,572

Investment in direct financing leases - - - - - 1,464,596

Total assets 5,755,276 996,085 38,982,308 1,932,489 2,862,607 127,987,377

LIABILITIES: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 120,977 195,226 2,848,661 160,259 - 4,808,152

FUND BALANCES: 

Restricted 5,044,258 800,859 36,133,647 1,772,230 - 116,623,398

Committed 590,041 - - - 2,862,607 6,555,827

Total fund balances 5,634,299 800,859 36,133,647 1,772,230 2,862,607 123,179,225

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 5,755,276 $ 996,085 $ 38,982,308 $ 1,932,489 $ 2,862,607 $ 127,987,377

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report - FYE 2021 125



CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Other Capital
Projects Fund

Series 2020
General

Obligation
Bond Fund

City Commons
& Waterfront

Park
Construction

Fund
Infrastructure
Surtax Fund

2016 Capital
Bond Fund

Vehicle
Replacement

Fund

REVENUES: 

Intergovernmental $ - $ - $ - $ 9,316,205 $ - $ -

Interest income - 7,606 169 57,360 10,617 3,386

Total revenues - 7,606 169 9,373,565 10,617 3,386

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

General government 28,497 - - - - -
Public safety 30,385 - - - 48,181 -
Public works - - - - 211,436 -
Economic environment - - 16,801 5,998 30,000 -
Engineering services 539,747 - - - 145,169 -
Leisure services 280,690 231,007 - 37,287 106,080 -

Capital outlay 5,757,081 535,203 - 5,539,817 773,187 802,199
Debt service:

Total expenditures 6,636,400 766,210 16,801 5,583,102 1,314,053 802,199

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (6,636,400) (758,604) (16,632) 3,790,463 (1,303,436) (798,813)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 

Disposal of capital assets - - - - - 108,590

Transfers in 143,000 - - - - -

Net changes in fund balances (6,493,400) (758,604) (16,632) 3,790,463 (1,303,436) (690,223)

Fund balances - beginning 17,762,818 29,724,151 68,645 23,201,730 6,633,022 4,057,049

Fund balances - ending $ 11,269,418 $ 28,965,547 $ 52,013 $ 26,992,193 $ 5,329,586 $ 3,366,826

- Continued
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Technology
Replacement

Fund

NPCCRA Series
2005A

Construction
Fund

Series 2019
CCCRA Capital

Bond Fund
Capital

Grants Fund

Land
Acquisition

Fund

Total Non-
Major Capital
Projects Funds

REVENUES: 

Intergovernmental $ - $ - $ - $ 330 $ - $ 9,316,535

Interest income 34,907 - 70,148 - 8 184,201

Total revenues 34,907 - 70,148 330 8 9,500,736

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

General government - - - - - 28,497
Public safety 131,767 - - - - 210,333
Public works - - - - - 211,436
Economic environment - 593 1,618,410 - - 1,671,802
Engineering services - - - 250,334 - 935,250
Leisure services - - - - - 655,064

Capital outlay 2,062,470 195,227 13,019,915 821,125 - 29,506,224
Debt service:

Total expenditures 2,194,237 195,820 14,638,325 1,071,459 - 33,218,606

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (2,159,330) (195,820) (14,568,177) (1,071,129) 8 (23,717,870)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 

Disposal of capital assets - - - - - 108,590

Transfers in - - - 2,843,359 - 2,986,359

Net changes in fund balances (2,159,330) (195,820) (14,568,177) 1,772,230 8 (20,622,921)

Fund balances - beginning 7,793,629 996,679 50,701,824 - 2,862,599 143,802,146

Fund balances - ending $ 5,634,299 $ 800,859 $ 36,133,647 $ 1,772,230 $ 2,862,607 $ 123,179,225
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

MIS Processing Fund � This fund is used to account for expenses related to providing data processing and telecommunication 
services to the other departments of the City. 

Fleet Management Fund � This fund is used to account for fuel, oil, lubricants, repairs and maintenance of City vehicles and the 
use of vehicles by City employees. 

Self Insurance Fund � This fund is used to account for expenses related to providing and administering the self�insured general 
liability, automobile liability, workers' compensation and property insurance coverage for the City. 

Employee Benefits Fund � dŚŝƐ�ĨƵŶĚ�ŝƐ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͛�ĂŶĚ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ͛Ɛ�ƐŚĂƌĞ�ŽĨ�
group life and health insurance deductions and the related claims and premiums. 



CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

MIS Processing
Fund

Fleet
Management

Fund
Self Insurance

Fund
Employee

Benefits Fund Totals

ASSETS: 
Current unrestricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,887,441 $ 94,482 $ 5,753,085 $ 4,527,122 $ 16,262,130
Investments 6,201,643 99,525 6,060,114 4,768,727 17,130,009
Receivables, net

Accounts - 2,861 - 895,028 897,889
Interest 31,941 506 30,011 23,449 85,907

Due from other governments 18,291 1,804 381 - 20,476
Inventory - 91,093 - - 91,093
Prepaid items - - 905,219 - 905,219

Current restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - - 175,000 3,654,323 3,829,323

Total current  assets 12,139,316 290,271 12,923,810 13,868,649 39,222,046

Non-current assets: 
Investment in joint venture 1,824,827 - - - 1,824,827
Capital assets

Depreciable, net 10,666,950 420,479 80,310 150,771 11,318,510

Total non-current assets 12,491,777 420,479 80,310 150,771 13,143,337

Total assets 24,631,093 710,750 13,004,120 14,019,420 52,365,383

LIABILITIES: 
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 722,687 327,279 421,119 580,683 2,051,768
Compensated absences payable 317,585 133,661 23,546 - 474,792
Notes payable - current 1,162,049 - - - 1,162,049
Insurance claims payable - - 4,113,949 1,380,708 5,494,657
Deposits payable - - - 149,878 149,878

Total current liabilities 2,202,321 460,940 4,558,614 2,111,269 9,333,144

Non-current liabilities:
Compensated absences payable 244,263 87,642 - - 331,905
Insurance claims payable - long term - - 13,473,494 - 13,473,494
Notes payable - long term 2,091,934 - - - 2,091,934

Total non-current liabilities 2,336,197 87,642 13,473,494 - 15,897,333

Total liabilities 4,538,518 548,582 18,032,108 2,111,269 25,230,477

NET POSITION: 
Net investment in capital assets 7,412,967 420,479 80,310 150,771 8,064,527
Unrestricted 12,679,608 (258,311) (5,108,298) 11,757,380 19,070,379

Total net position $ 20,092,575 $ 162,168 $ (5,027,988) $ 11,908,151 $ 27,134,906
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

MIS Processing
Fund

Fleet
Management

Fund
Self Insurance

Fund
Employee

Benefits Fund Totals 

OPERATING REVENUES: 
Charges for services $ 15,397,289 $ 8,425,475 $ 9,309,037 $ 30,377,423 $ 63,509,224
Equity in earnings of joint ventures 100,000 - - - 100,000
Miscellaneous 64,075 206,988 111,400 - 382,463

Total operating revenues 15,561,364 8,632,463 9,420,437 30,377,423 63,991,687

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Personnel services 5,031,239 2,367,921 591,087 - 7,990,247
Contractual services 8,280,341 3,973,109 742,374 1,492,160 14,487,984
Utilities 580,804 91,250 2,853 796 675,703
Repair and maintenance 120,334 610,163 3,823 - 734,320
Other supplies and expenses 291,469 1,420,097 34,455 535,138 2,281,159
Depreciation 903,547 27,663 3,195 4,824 939,229
Insurance 21,251 95,506 14,508,014 26,804,858 41,429,629

Total operating expenses 15,228,985 8,585,709 15,885,801 28,837,776 68,538,271

Operating income (loss) 332,379 46,754 (6,465,364) 1,539,647 (4,546,584)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest income 10,207 (1,202) 14,824 23,112 46,941
Interest expense (81,743) - - - (81,743)
Disposal of capital assets 3,940 (13,681) - - (9,741)

Total non-operating revenues
(expenses) (67,596) (14,883) 14,824 23,112 (44,543)

Income (loss) before contributions and
transfers 264,783 31,871 (6,450,540) 1,562,759 (4,591,127)

TRANSFERS:
Transfers in - - 650,000 - 650,000
Transfers out - - - (75,684) (75,684)

Total transfers - - 650,000 (75,684) 574,316

Change in net position 264,783 31,871 (5,800,540) 1,487,075 (4,016,811)

Net position - beginning 19,827,792 130,297 772,552 10,421,076 31,151,717

Net position - ending $ 20,092,575 $ 162,168 $ (5,027,988) $ 11,908,151 $ 27,134,906
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

MIS
Processing

Fund

Fleet
Management

Fund
Self Insurance

Fund
Employee

Benefits Fund Totals

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Cash received from customers $ 15,397,289 $ 8,437,597 $ 9,309,037 $ 30,209,396 $ 63,353,319
Cash payments to suppliers/contractors (10,120,082) (6,436,033) (351,861) (2,019,262) (18,927,238)
Cash payments to employees (5,017,155) (2,357,720) (593,160) - (7,968,035)
Other operating receipts 52,644 206,988 111,400 - 371,032
Cash payments for insurance - - (10,075,835) (26,634,226) (36,710,061)

Net cash provided by operating activities
312,696 (149,168) (1,600,419) 1,555,908 119,017

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Transfers in - - 650,000 - 650,000
Transfers out - - - (75,684) (75,684)

Net cash provided by (used for)
noncapital financing activities - - 650,000 (75,684) 574,316

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Principal paid on notes and leases (1,138,416) - - - (1,138,416)
Interest and fees paid on long term debt (81,743) - - - (81,743)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 3,940 - - - 3,940

Net cash used for capital and related
financing activities (1,216,219) - - - (1,216,219)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Purchases and sales of investments, net 567,381 81,112 589,479 (695,267) 542,705
Interest on investments 99,710 42 100,429 70,382 270,563

Net cash provided by (used for)
investing activities 667,091 81,154 689,908 (624,885) 813,268

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents (236,432) (68,014) (260,511) 855,339 290,382

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 6,123,873 162,496 6,188,596 7,326,106 19,801,071

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year $ 5,887,441 $ 94,482 $ 5,928,085 $ 8,181,445 $ 20,091,453

DISPLAYED AS: 
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 5,887,441 94,482 5,753,085 4,527,122 16,262,130
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - - 175,000 3,654,323 3,829,323

Total cash and cash equivalents $ 5,887,441 $ 94,482 $ 5,928,085 $ 8,181,445 $ 20,091,453
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

MIS
Processing

Fund

Fleet
Management

Fund
Self Insurance

Fund
Employee

Benefits Fund Totals

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
(LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED
FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) $ 332,379 $ 46,754 $ (6,465,364) $ 1,539,647 $ (4,546,584)

Adjustments to reconcile operating
income (loss) to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation 903,547 27,663 3,195 4,824 939,229

Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable - 12,122 - (174,910) (162,788)
(Increase) decrease in (gain) loss in joint

ventures (100,000) - - - (100,000)
(Increase) decrease in due from other

governments (11,431) - - - (11,431)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses - - 89,261 - 89,261
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable

and accrued liabilities (825,883) (245,908) 342,383 8,832 (720,576)
Increase (decrease) in compensated

absences payable 14,084 10,201 (2,073) - 22,212
Increase (decrease) in deposits payable - - - 6,883 6,883
Increase (decrease) in insurance claims

payable - - 4,432,179 170,632 4,602,811

Total adjustments (19,683) (195,922) 4,864,945 16,261 4,665,601

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 312,696 $ (149,168) $ (1,600,419) $ 1,555,908 $ 119,017

SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING AND INVESTING
ACTIVITIES: 
Change in fair value of investments $ (83,817) $ (1,202) $ (79,843) $ (48,181) $ (213,043)
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS - PENSION AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Restated
Employees

Pension Fund OPEB Trust

Elected Officials
and

Management
VEBA

General
Employees

VEBA Totals

ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 305,992 $ 1,808,507 $ 86,106 $ 124,533 $ 2,325,138
Receivables:

Interest and dividends 47,476 38 - 2 47,516
Other 30,822 - - - 30,822

Total receivables 78,298 38 - 2 78,338
Investments: 

Money market 1,316,931 - - - 1,316,931
U.S. government obligations 7,610,058 - - - 7,610,058
Corporate obligations 2,230,569 - - - 2,230,569
Equity securities 31,895,408 - - - 31,895,408
Domestic equity investment funds - 13,910,313 - - 13,910,313
Domestic fixed income investment

funds - 2,123,433 - - 2,123,433
Fixed income mutual fund 5,123,336 539,943 675,442 5,788,594 12,127,315
Real estate investment trust funds 3,207,425 - - - 3,207,425

Total investments 51,383,727 16,573,689 675,442 5,788,594 74,421,452

Total assets 51,768,017 18,382,234 761,548 5,913,129 76,824,928

LIABILITIES: 
Accounts payable and accrued

expenses 401,775 - - - 401,775

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Advanced plan contributions: 2,768,387 - - - -

NET POSITION:
Net position restricted for pension

benefits and OPEB $ 48,597,855 $ 18,382,234 $ 761,548 $ 5,913,129 $ 73,654,766
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS - PENSION AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Restated
Employees

Pension Fund OPEB Trust

Elected Officials
and

Management
VEBA

General
Employees

VEBA Totals

ADDITIONS: 
Contributions: 

Plan members $ 49,331 $ - $ - $ - $ 49,331
City of West Palm Beach 304,715 1,348,219 - - 1,652,934

Total contributions 354,046 1,348,219 - - 1,702,265
Investment income: 

Net appreciation in fair value of
investments 8,050,023 3,388,298 88,778 827,561 12,354,660

Interest and dividends 1,247,001 - - - 1,247,001
Rebates and other revenue 738 - - - 738

Total investment income 9,297,762 3,388,298 88,778 827,561 13,602,399
Less investment expense 203,648 - 2,000 4,288 209,936

Net investment income 9,094,114 3,388,298 86,778 823,273 13,392,463

Total additions 9,448,160 4,736,517 86,778 823,273 15,094,728

DEDUCTIONS: 
Participant benefit payments 3,464,504 1,348,219 54,395 244,414 5,111,532
Administriative Expenses 90,733 175 1,974 8,666 101,548

Total deductions 3,555,237 1,348,394 56,369 253,080 5,213,080

Net increase (decrease) in net
position 5,892,923 3,388,123 30,409 570,193 9,881,648

NET POSITION:

Beginning of year 42,704,932 14,994,111 731,139 5,342,936 63,773,118

End of year $ 48,597,855 $ 18,382,234 $ 761,548 $ 5,913,129 $ 73,654,766
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
LOCAL GAS TAX FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original
Budget

(Unaudited)

Final
Budget

(Unaudited) Actual

Variance  with
 Final Budget

 Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental $ 2,207,903 $ 2,207,903 $ 2,375,958 $ 168,055
Charges for services 550,000 550,000 303,721 (246,279)
Interest income - - 1,954 1,954
Miscellaneous - - 281 281

Total revenues 2,757,903 2,757,903 2,681,914 (75,989)

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

Public works 7,088,176 7,088,176 2,476,449 4,611,727
Capital outlay 47,522 47,522 43,098 4,424

Total expenditures 7,135,698 7,135,698 2,519,547 4,616,151

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (4,377,795) (4,377,795) 162,367 4,540,162

Net change in fund balances $ (4,377,795) $ (4,377,795) $ 162,367 $ 4,540,162

Fund balances - beginning 4,731,989

Fund balances - ending $ 4,894,356
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original
Budget

(Unaudited)

Final
Budget

(Unaudited) Actual

Variance  with
 Final Budget

 Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental $ 3,037,385 $ 4,024,927 $ 1,167,601 $ (2,857,326)
Interest income - - 805 805
Miscellaneous - - 4,451 4,451

Total revenues 3,037,385 4,024,927 1,172,857 (2,852,070)

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

Economic environment 2,608,844 1,628,693 601,966 1,026,727
Capital outlay 7,031 157,800 153,780 4,020

Total expenditures 2,615,875 1,786,493 755,746 1,030,747

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures 421,510 2,238,434 417,111 (1,821,323)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfers out (421,510) (2,238,434) (2,238,434) -

Total other financing sources (uses) (421,510) (2,238,434) (2,238,434) -

Net change in fund balances $ - $ - $ (1,821,323) $ (1,821,323)

Fund balances - beginning (159)

Fund balances - ending $ (1,821,482)
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NEIGHBORHOOD STABILIZATION PROGRAM FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original
Budget

(Unaudited)

Final
Budget

(Unaudited) Actual

Variance  with
 Final Budget

 Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental $ 444,036 $ 444,036 $ 36,767 $ (407,269)
Rents and royalties - - 26,900 26,900

Total revenues 444,036 444,036 63,667 (380,369)

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

Economic environment 687,734 82,809 26,368 56,441
Capital outlay 332,089 332,089 - 332,089

Total expenditures 1,019,823 414,898 26,368 388,530

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (575,787) 29,138 37,299 8,161

Transfers out - (604,925) (604,925) -

Total other financing sources (uses) - (604,925) (604,925) -

Net change in fund balances $ (575,787) $ (575,787) $ (567,626) $ 8,161

Fund balances - beginning 4,017,164

Fund balances - ending $ 3,449,538
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
HOME PROGRAM FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original
Budget

(Unaudited)

Final
Budget

(Unaudited) Actual

Variance  with
 Final Budget

 Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental $ 1,167,527 $ 1,167,527 $ 542,044 $ (625,483)
Charges for services - - 130,079 130,079
Interest income - - 148 148

Total revenues 1,167,527 1,167,527 672,271 (495,256)

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

Economic environment 1,338,286 1,338,286 598,258 740,028

Total expenditures 1,338,286 1,338,286 598,258 740,028

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (170,759) (170,759) 74,013 244,772

Net change in fund balances $ (170,759) $ (170,759) $ 74,013 $ 244,772

Fund balances - beginning 147,254

Fund balances - ending $ 221,267
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
HOPWA FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original
Budget

(Unaudited)

Final
Budget

(Unaudited) Actual

Variance  with
 Final Budget

 Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental $ 4,062,673 $ 4,062,673 $ 3,023,503 $ (1,039,170)

Total revenues 4,062,673 4,062,673 3,023,503 (1,039,170)

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

Economic environment 4,062,673 4,062,673 3,023,503 1,039,170

Total expenditures 4,062,673 4,062,673 3,023,503 1,039,170

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures - - - -

Net change in fund balances $ - $ - $ - $ -

Fund balances - beginning -

Fund balances - ending $ -
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
SHIP PROGRAM FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original
Budget

(Unaudited)

Final
Budget

(Unaudited) Actual

Variance  with
 Final Budget

 Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES: 
Charges for services $ - $ - $ 107,939 $ 107,939
Interest income - - 130 130
Miscellaneous - - 1 1

Total revenues - - 108,070 108,070

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

Economic environment 381,404 381,404 6,774 374,630

Total expenditures 381,404 381,404 6,774 374,630

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (381,404) (381,404) 101,296 482,700

Net change in fund balances $ (381,404) $ (381,404) $ 101,296 $ 482,700

Fund balances - beginning 381,404

Fund balances - ending $ 482,700
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
HOUSING TRUST FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original
Budget

(Unaudited)

Final
Budget

(Unaudited) Actual

Variance  with
 Final Budget

 Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES: 
Charges for services $ - $ - $ 252,480 $ 252,480
Interest income - - 7,831 7,831
Miscellaneous - - 21,357 21,357

Total revenues - - 281,668 281,668

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

Economic environment 1,786,545 2,067,271 1,071,033 996,238

Total expenditures 1,786,545 2,067,271 1,071,033 996,238

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (1,786,545) (2,067,271) (789,365) 1,277,906

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Disposal of capital assets - - 110,001 110,001
Transfers in - 280,726 280,726 -

Total other financing sources (uses) - 280,726 390,727 110,001

Net change in fund balances $ (1,786,545) $ (1,786,545) $ (398,638) $ 1,387,907

Fund balances - beginning 2,139,575

Fund balances - ending $ 1,740,937
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
PERMITS FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original
Budget

(Unaudited)

Final
Budget

(Unaudited) Actual

Variance  with
 Final Budget

 Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES: 
Licenses and permits $ 7,152,600 $ 7,152,600 $ 12,083,268 $ 4,930,668
Intergovernmental - - 4,572 4,572
Charges for services 25,000 25,000 62,371 37,371
Interest income 90,000 90,000 - (90,000)

Total revenues 7,267,600 7,267,600 12,150,211 4,882,611

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

Public Safety:
Planning and zoning 10,821,754 11,190,526 9,895,050 1,295,476

Capital outlay 105,000 105,000 88,725 16,275

Total expenditures 10,926,754 11,295,526 9,983,775 1,311,751

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (3,659,154) (4,027,926) 2,166,436 6,194,362

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 

Net change in fund balances $ (3,659,154) $ (4,027,926) $ 2,166,436 $ 6,194,362

Fund balances - beginning 11,621,510

Fund balances - ending $ 13,787,946
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FIRE ASSESSMENT FEE FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original
Budget

(Unaudited)

Final
Budget

(Unaudited) Actual

Variance  with
 Final Budget

 Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES: 
Charges for services $ 7,708,500 $ 7,708,500 $ 8,098,279 $ 389,779
Interest income - - 43,920 43,920

Total revenues 7,708,500 7,708,500 8,142,199 433,699

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

Public safety:
Fire 5,091,091 5,602,351 3,885,669 1,716,682

Capital outlay 782,751 778,991 - 778,991

Total expenditures 5,873,842 6,381,342 3,885,669 2,495,673

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures 1,834,658 1,327,158 4,256,530 2,929,372

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfers out (3,870,606) (3,310,606) (3,310,606) -

Total other financing sources (uses) (3,870,606) (3,310,606) (3,310,606) -

Net change in fund balances $ (2,035,948) $ (1,983,448) $ 945,924 $ 2,929,372

Fund balances - beginning 5,696,903

Fund balances - ending $ 6,642,827
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
WATERFRONT DISTRICT FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original
Budget

(Unaudited)

Final
Budget

(Unaudited) Actual

Variance  with
 Final Budget

 Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES: 
Charges for services $ 877,400 $ 877,400 $ 745,333 $ (132,067)
Rents and royalties 530,000 530,000 843,998 313,998
Miscellaneous - - 4,990 4,990

Total revenues 1,407,400 1,407,400 1,594,321 186,921

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

Leisure Services:
Parks and recreation 4,623,316 4,672,392 3,164,673 1,507,719

Capital outlay 31,438 42,362 - 42,362

Total expenditures 4,654,754 4,714,754 3,164,673 1,550,081

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (3,247,354) (3,307,354) (1,570,352) 1,737,002

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfers in 2,517,621 2,517,621 2,517,621 -

Total other financing sources (uses) 2,517,621 2,517,621 2,517,621 -

Net change in fund balances $ (729,733) $ (789,733) $ 947,269 $ 1,737,002

Fund balances - beginning 1,486,107

Fund balances - ending $ 2,433,376
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
SPECIAL REVENUE GRANT PROGRAMS FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original
Budget

(Unaudited)

Final
Budget

(Unaudited) Actual

Variance  with
 Final Budget

 Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental $ 3,929,975 $ 6,819,151 $ 3,419,808 $ (3,399,343)
Miscellaneous 1,500 264,611 311,252 46,641

Total revenues 3,931,475 7,083,762 3,731,060 (3,352,702)

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

General government 113,528 113,528 - 113,528
Public safety:

Fire 897,946 3,028,063 1,900,474 1,127,589
Police 2,584,108 2,869,902 805,002 2,064,900

Economic environment 25,290 313,717 16,846 296,871
Engineering services 1,099,000 1,099,000 788,872 310,128
Leisure Services:

Library 456,658 832,849 419,218 413,631
Parks and recreation 63,792 107,232 66,925 40,307

Capital outlay 165,098 193,416 128,158 65,258

Total expenditures 5,405,420 8,557,707 4,125,495 4,432,212

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (1,473,945) (1,473,945) (394,435) 1,079,510

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfers in 820,926 820,926 820,926 -

Total other financing sources (uses) 820,926 820,926 820,926 -

Net change in fund balances $ (653,019) $ (653,019) $ 426,491 $ 1,079,510

Fund balances - beginning 653,026

Fund balances - ending $ 1,079,517
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MISCELLANEOUS TRUST FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original
Budget

(Unaudited)

Final
Budget

(Unaudited) Actual

Variance  with
 Final Budget

 Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental $ - $ 202,700 $ 352,784 $ 150,084

Total revenues - 202,700 352,784 150,084

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

Public safety:
Police 274,754 525,954 388,959 136,995

Capital outlay 43,631 43,631 - 43,631

Total expenditures 318,385 569,585 388,959 180,626

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (318,385) (366,885) (36,175) 330,710

Net change in fund balances $ (318,385) $ (366,885) $ (36,175) $ 330,710

Fund balances - beginning 627,468

Fund balances - ending $ 591,293
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
OTHER DEBT SERVICE FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original
Budget

(Unaudited)

Final
Budget

(Unaudited) Actual

Variance  with
 Final Budget

 Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES: 
Interest income $ - $ - $ 1,998 $ 1,998

Total revenues - - 1,998 1,998

EXPENDITURES: 
Debt service:

Principal 2,936,626 2,936,626 2,941,631 (5,005)
Interest expense 230,980 230,980 217,691 13,289

Total expenditures 3,167,606 3,167,606 3,159,322 8,284

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (3,167,606) (3,167,606) (3,157,324) 10,282

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfers in 3,167,606 3,167,606 3,167,606 -

Total other financing sources (uses) 3,167,606 3,167,606 3,167,606 -

Net change in fund balances $ - $ - $ 10,282 $ 10,282

Fund balances - beginning 355,507

Fund balances - ending $ 365,789
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original
Budget

(Unaudited)

Final
Budget

(Unaudited) Actual

Variance  with
 Final Budget

 Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES: 
Property taxes $ 1,756,300 $ 1,756,300 $ 1,779,005 $ 22,705
Interest income - - 10,566 10,566

Total revenues 1,756,300 1,756,300 1,789,571 33,271

EXPENDITURES: 
Debt service:

Principal 830,000 830,000 790,000 40,000
Interest expense 926,300 926,300 1,123,397 (197,097)

Total expenditures 1,756,300 1,756,300 1,913,397 (157,097)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures - - (123,826) (123,826)

Net change in fund balances $ - $ - $ (123,826) $ (123,826)

Fund balances - beginning 418,758

Fund balances - ending $ 294,932
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
SERIES 2019 CCCRA DEBT SERVICE FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original
Budget

(Unaudited)

Final
Budget

(Unaudited) Actual

Variance  with
 Final Budget

 Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES: 
Interest income $ - $ - $ 6,490 $ 6,490

Total revenues - - 6,490 6,490

EXPENDITURES: 
Debt service:

Principal 1,740,000 1,740,000 1,740,000 -
Interest expense 4,463,500 4,463,500 4,455,681 7,819

Total expenditures 6,203,500 6,203,500 6,195,681 7,819

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (6,203,500) (6,203,500) (6,189,191) 14,309

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfers in 6,203,500 6,203,500 6,203,500 -

Total other financing sources (uses) 6,203,500 6,203,500 6,203,500 -

Net change in fund balances $ - $ - $ 14,309 $ 14,309

Fund balances - beginning 7,012,843

Fund balances - ending $ 7,027,152
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
OTHER CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original
Budget

(Unaudited)

Final
Budget

(Unaudited) Actual

Variance  with
 Final Budget

 Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES: 

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

General government $ 37,492 $ 37,492 $ 28,497 $ 8,995
Public safety:

Fire 243,686 243,686 30,385 213,301
Public works 142,936 153,766 - 153,766
Engineering services 641,310 801,310 539,747 261,563
Leisure Services:

Parks and recreation 608,258 608,258 280,690 327,568
Capital outlay 16,089,036 15,937,294 5,757,081 10,180,213

Total expenditures 17,762,718 17,781,806 6,636,400 11,145,406

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (17,762,718) (17,781,806) (6,636,400) 11,145,406

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfers in - 143,000 143,000 -

Total other financing sources (uses) - 143,000 143,000 -

Net change in fund balances $ (17,762,718) $ (17,638,806) $ (6,493,400) $ 11,145,406

Fund balances - beginning 17,762,818

Fund balances - ending $ 11,269,418
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
SERIES 2020 GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original
Budget

(Unaudited)

Final
Budget

(Unaudited) Actual

Variance  with
 Final Budget

 Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES: 
Interest income $ - $ - $ 7,606 $ 7,606

Total revenues - - 7,606 7,606

EXPENDITURES: 
Leisure services

Parks and recreation 1,515,000 1,578,788 231,007 1,347,781
Capital outlay 28,207,624 28,143,836 535,203 27,608,633
Debt service:

Total expenditures 29,722,624 29,722,624 766,210 28,956,414

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (29,722,624) (29,722,624) (758,604) 28,964,020

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 

Net change in fund balances $ (29,722,624) $ (29,722,624) $ (758,604) $ 28,964,020

Fund balances - beginning 29,724,151

Fund balances - ending $ 28,965,547
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
INFRASTRUCTURE SURTAX FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original
Budget

(Unaudited)

Final
Budget

(Unaudited) Actual

Variance  with
 Final Budget

 Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental $ 7,383,028 $ 7,383,028 $ 9,316,205 $ 1,933,177
Interest income - - 57,360 57,360

Total revenues 7,383,028 7,383,028 9,373,565 1,990,537

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

Economic environment 215,370 215,370 5,998 209,372
Leisure services:

Library 39,557 39,557 37,287 2,270
Parks and recreation 688 3,133 - 3,133

Capital outlay 24,033,280 24,030,835 5,539,817 18,491,018

Total expenditures 24,288,895 24,288,895 5,583,102 18,705,793

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (16,905,867) (16,905,867) 3,790,463 20,696,330

Net change in fund balances $ (16,905,867) $ (16,905,867) $ 3,790,463 $ 20,696,330

Fund balances - beginning 23,201,730

Fund balances - ending $ 26,992,193
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
2016 CAPITAL BOND FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original
Budget

(Unaudited)

Final
Budget

(Unaudited) Actual

Variance  with
 Final Budget

 Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES: 
Interest income $ - $ - $ 10,617 $ 10,617

Total revenues - - 10,617 10,617

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

General government 20,000 20,000 - 20,000
Public safety:

Police 67,273 67,273 48,181 19,092
Public works 901,447 901,447 211,436 690,011
Economic environment 30,940 30,940 30,000 940
Engineering services 213,493 213,493 145,169 68,324
Leisure services:

Parks and recreation 126,201 128,646 106,080 22,566
Capital outlay 5,261,741 5,259,296 773,187 4,486,109

Total expenditures 6,621,095 6,621,095 1,314,053 5,307,042

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (6,621,095) (6,621,095) (1,303,436) 5,317,659

Net change in fund balances $ (6,621,095) $ (6,621,095) $ (1,303,436) $ 5,317,659

Fund balances - beginning 6,633,022

Fund balances - ending $ 5,329,586
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
VEHICLE REPLACEMENT FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original
Budget

(Unaudited)

Final
Budget

(Unaudited) Actual

Variance  with
 Final Budget

 Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES: 
Interest income $ - $ - $ 3,386 $ 3,386

Total revenues - - 3,386 3,386

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 
Capital outlay 3,949,742 3,949,742 802,199 3,147,543

Total expenditures 3,949,742 3,949,742 802,199 3,147,543

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (3,949,742) (3,949,742) (798,813) 3,150,929

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Disposal of capital assets - - 108,590 108,590

Total other financing sources (uses) - - 108,590 108,590

Net change in fund balances $ (3,949,742) $ (3,949,742) $ (690,223) $ 3,259,519

Fund balances - beginning 4,057,049

Fund balances - ending $ 3,366,826
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
TECHNOLOGY REPLACEMENT FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original
Budget

(Unaudited)

Final
Budget

(Unaudited) Actual

Variance  with
 Final Budget

 Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES: 
Interest income $ - $ - $ 34,907 $ 34,907

Total revenues - - 34,907 34,907

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

General government 30,825 30,825 - 30,825
Public safety:

Police 271,092 271,092 131,767 139,325
Public works 63,578 63,578 - 63,578

Capital outlay 5,807,809 5,807,809 2,062,470 3,745,339

Total expenditures 6,173,304 6,173,304 2,194,237 3,979,067

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (6,173,304) (6,173,304) (2,159,330) 4,013,974

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 

Net change in fund balances $ (6,173,304) $ (6,173,304) $ (2,159,330) $ 4,013,974

Fund balances - beginning 7,793,629

Fund balances - ending $ 5,634,299
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
NPCCRA SERIES 2005A CONSTRUCTION FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original
Budget

(Unaudited)

Final
Budget

(Unaudited) Actual

Variance  with
 Final Budget

 Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES: 

Total revenues $ - $ - $ - $ -

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

Economic environment 7,670 7,670 593 7,077
Capital outlay 950,000 950,000 195,227 754,773

Total expenditures 957,670 957,670 195,820 761,850

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (957,670) (957,670) (195,820) 761,850

Net change in fund balances $ (957,670) $ (957,670) $ (195,820) $ 761,850

Fund balances - beginning 996,679

Fund balances - ending $ 800,859
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
SERIES 2019 CCCRA CAPITAL BOND FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original
Budget

(Unaudited)

Final
Budget

(Unaudited) Actual

Variance  with
 Final Budget

 Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES: 
Interest income $ - $ - $ 70,148 $ 70,148

Total revenues - - 70,148 70,148

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

Economic environment 2,732,755 2,732,755 1,618,410 1,114,345
Capital outlay 47,933,772 47,933,772 13,019,915 34,913,857

Total expenditures 50,666,527 50,666,527 14,638,325 36,028,202

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (50,666,527) (50,666,527) (14,568,177) 36,098,350

Net change in fund balances $ (50,666,527) $ (50,666,527) $ (14,568,177) $ 36,098,350

Fund balances - beginning 50,701,824

Fund balances - ending $ 36,133,647
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
CAPITAL GRANTS FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Original
Budget

(Unaudited)

Final
Budget

(Unaudited) Actual

Variance  with
 Final Budget

 Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental $ 893,416 $ 893,416 $ 330 $ (893,086)

Total revenues 893,416 893,416 330 (893,086)

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

Engineering services 230,805 230,805 250,334 (19,529)
Capital outlay 1,064,590 3,486,439 821,125 2,665,314

Total expenditures 1,295,395 3,717,244 1,071,459 2,645,785

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (401,979) (2,823,828) (1,071,129) 1,752,699

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfers in 421,508 2,843,357 2,843,359 2

Total other financing sources (uses) 421,508 2,843,357 2,843,359 2

Net change in fund balances $ 19,529 $ 19,529 $ 1,772,230 $ 1,752,701

Fund balances - beginning -

Fund balances - ending $ 1,772,230
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA 

STATISTICAL INFORMATION 

dŚĞ� ^ƚĂƚŝƐƚŝĐĂů� /ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ� ƐĞĐƚŝŽŶ� ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ� ƵŶĂƵĚŝƚĞĚ� ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶĂů� ĚĂƚĂ� ƌĞŐĂƌĚŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ� �ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ� ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ� ĐŽŶĚŝƚŝŽŶ� ĂŶĚ� ŝƐ�
organized in five specific objectives. 

Financial Trends ʹ WƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ� ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ŚĞůƉ�ƵŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐ�ŚŽǁ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ŚĂƐ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞĚ�ŽǀĞƌ�Ă�
period of time. 

Revenue Capacity ʹ WƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ŚĞůƉ�ƵŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂƚĞ�ŽǁŶ�source revenue. 

Debt Capacity ʹ WƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ŚĞůƉ�ƵŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ĚĞďƚ�ďƵƌĚĞŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŝƚƐ�ĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ŝƐƐƵĞ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�
debt. 

Demographic and Economic ʹ WƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ĂƐƐŝƐƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƵŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ƐŽĐŝŽ�economic environment 
and to facilitate comparisons of financial statement information. 

Operating Information � WƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ŚĞůƉ�ƵŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ�ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ͘�
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)
(IN THOUSANDS)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Governmental activities:

Net investment in capital assets $ 188,937 $ 183,764 $ 178,930 $ 169,012 $ 175,216 $ 164,702 $ 163,730 $ 163,944 $ 164,740 $ 176,476
Restricted 24,899 32,204 29,614 37,402 45,558 61,539 56,027 58,602 107,073 113,450
Unrestricted 66,906 59,001 68,195 (18,232) (20,065) (25,779) (17,725) (3,217) (42,945) (50,832)

Total net position of
Governmental activities 280,742 274,969 276,739 188,182 200,709 200,462 202,032 219,329 228,868 239,094

Business-type activities:

Net investment in capital assets 201,814 205,203 209,585 215,130 231,703 247,569 265,866 273,228 283,128 297,264
Restricted 50,272 56,841 59,584 91,887 106,348 92,697 94,436 103,978 96,811 94,306
Unrestricted 79,348 94,904 115,206 110,162 101,636 124,380 120,216 139,728 174,272 191,154

Total net position of Business-
type activities 331,434 356,948 384,375 417,179 439,687 464,646 480,518 516,934 554,211 582,724

Primary Government:

Net investment in capital assets 390,751 388,967 388,515 384,142 406,919 412,271 429,596 437,172 447,868 473,740
Restricted 75,171 89,045 89,198 129,289 151,906 154,236 150,463 162,580 203,884 207,756
Unrestricted 146,254 153,905 183,401 91,930 81,571 98,601 102,491 136,511 131,327 140,322

Total net position of Primary
Government: $ 612,176 $ 631,917 $ 661,114 $ 605,361 $ 640,396 $ 665,108 $ 682,550 $ 736,263 $ 783,079 $ 821,818
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)
(IN THOUSANDS)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

EXPENSES (1)

Governmental activities:

General government $ 30,883 $ 33,286 $ 30,660 $ 33,361 $ 25,312 $ 19,392 $ 27,681 $ 19,106 $ 21,507 $ 21,968
Public safety 84,595 80,107 89,378 89,847 99,639 126,120 115,721 126,637 137,987 137,963

Engineering and public works 18,975 19,401 19,035 19,096 7,485 7,857 9,472 14,063 13,561 11,932
Economic environment (Downtown and Northwood) 14,604 15,857 16,489 17,318 20,497 22,704 28,105 31,457 33,988 42,922
Health and sanitation 8,631 9,379 10,043 9,119 11,035 10,930 11,335 11,534 11,177 12,079
Leisure services 19,455 17,598 21,849 19,785 21,012 23,916 25,932 28,317 27,682 25,991
Interest on long-term debt 9,803 9,003 7,800 8,434 8,264 8,892 8,747 9,249 10,590 9,791

Total governmental activities 186,946 184,631 195,254 196,960 193,244 219,811 226,993 240,363 256,492 262,646

Business-Type activities:

Water and sewer 61,212 63,491 63,841 65,082 76,763 82,294 90,033 82,729 85,976 90,026
Stormwater utility 6,994 7,352 6,841 8,042 10,981 9,978 10,342 11,157 10,845 10,847
Parking facilities 4,106 4,465 4,891 5,675 5,673 5,339 6,463 6,357 4,876 5,165
Golf course 1,765 1,781 1,662 1,854 1,962 1,591 1,407 1,763 - -

Total business-type activities 74,077 77,089 77,235 80,653 95,379 99,202 108,245 102,006 101,697 106,038

Total primary government $ 261,023 $ 261,720 $ 272,489 $ 277,613 $ 288,623 $ 319,013 $ 335,238 $ 342,369 $ 358,189 $ 368,684

(1) In 2016 the expenses and revenue categories were reorganized.

(2) In 2017 Public safety combined police and fire.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)
(IN THOUSANDS)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

PROGRAM REVENUES (1)

Governmental activities:

CHARGES FOR SERVICES
General government $ 12,156 $ 12,778 $ 15,938 $ 11,507 $ 13,060 $ 10,487 $ 11,843 $ 13,735 $ 13,125 $ 14,895
Public safety 18,878 10,637 18,165 20,770 15,748 7,379 9,563 12,166 15,645 16,580

Engineering and public works - - - - - 334 768 985 617 631
Economic environment 1,926 2,111 (147) 5,104 729 11,336 9,611 13,068 13,849 15,995
Health and sanitation 14,022 13,708 14,013 14,301 14,550 15,715 14,703 15,755 16,080 16,471
Leisure services 2,412 1,734 1,886 2,188 3,022 2,615 2,160 2,215 1,066 1,348
Operating grants and contributions 19,987 19,618 20,022 20,344 23,213 6,059 12,517 12,076 13,714 14,112
Capital grants and contributions 3,125 639 4,006 1,265 3,310 11,499 9,432 9,834 1,751 2,382

Total governmental activities 72,506 61,225 73,883 75,479 73,632 65,424 70,597 79,834 75,847 82,414

Business-Type activities:

CHARGES FOR SERVICES
Water and sewer 86,717 91,451 96,524 99,108 101,474 109,918 105,902 114,828 122,130 121,488
Stormwater utility 10,604 11,010 10,777 10,842 10,865 13,222 13,806 14,274 14,776 15,313
Parking facilities 4,613 5,356 5,931 6,045 1,660 6,831 6,657 7,708 5,465 6,289
Golf course 1,547 1,589 1,505 1,513 6,717 1,432 775 5 - -
Capital grants and contributions 4,391 873 550 3,306 6,004 980 3,259 2,432 1,150 2,045

Total business-type activities 107,872 110,279 115,287 120,814 126,720 132,383 130,399 139,247 143,521 145,135

Total primary government 180,378 171,504 189,170 196,293 200,352 197,807 200,996 219,081 219,368 227,549

NET REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Governmental activities (114,440) (123,406) (121,371) (121,481) (119,612) (154,387) (156,396) (160,529) (180,645) (180,232)
Business-type activities 33,795 33,190 38,052 40,161 31,341 33,181 22,154 37,241 41,824 39,097

Total primary government $ (80,645) $ (90,216) $ (83,319) $ (81,320) $ (88,271) $ (121,206) $ (134,242) $ (123,288) $ (138,821) $ (141,135)

Continued

(1) In 2016 the expenses and revenue categories were reorganized.

(2) In 2017 Public safety combined police and fire.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)
(IN THOUSANDS)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

GENERAL REVENUES AND OTHER CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Governmental activities:

TAXES
Ad valorem taxes $ 66,693 $ 66,864 $ 68,567 $ 73,132 $ 82,075 $ 90,266 $ 96,783 $ 103,450 $ 110,893 $ 119,412
Insurance premium taxes 2,374 2,501 2,874 2,900 - 2,674 2,797 2,791 2,970 3,086

Business taxes 2,486 2,507 2,877 3,017 3,195 3,962 5,052 5,073 5,343 5,630
Franchise fees 8,549 8,383 9,093 9,338 9,008 9,248 9,463 9,355 8,905 9,465
Utility service taxes 19,440 19,715 20,459 20,658 20,826 21,202 21,685 21,921 21,624 22,028

GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS NOT RESTRICTED TO SPECIFIC
PROGRAMS
State and local shared revenues 3,221 3,436 3,619 3,928 3,934 4,845 6,448 6,968 6,348 7,125

Sales tax 6,036 6,949 7,470 7,996 8,312 8,355 8,837 8,963 8,501 10,192
Infrastructure surtax - - - - - - - - 7,815 9,316
Interest income 1,477 802 911 1,082 1,441 1,189 2,160 6,768 5,237 960
Miscellaneous 2,265 1,318 4,893 5,044 1,390 2,138 1,417 1,846 1,234 1,933
Transfers 8,217 8,081 9,113 10,196 10,121 10,261 9,632 11,091 11,314 11,446

Total governmental activities 120,758 120,556 129,876 137,291 140,302 154,140 164,274 178,226 190,184 200,593

Business-Type activities:

Interest Income 836 405 686 1,064 1,289 1,139 2,313 7,328 5,250 566
Miscellaneous - - - - - 890 1,037 2,536 1,519 1,129
Transfers (8,217) (8,081) (9,113) (10,196) (10,121) (10,261) (9,632) (11,091) (11,314) (11,446)

Total business-type activities (7,381) (7,676) (8,427) (9,132) (8,832) (8,232) (6,282) (1,227) (4,545) (9,751)

Total primary government 113,377 112,880 121,449 128,159 131,470 145,908 157,992 176,999 185,639 190,842

Special item - forgiveness of advance
Governmental activities - - - - - - - (401) - -
Business-type activities - - - - - - - 401 - -

Total primary government - - - - - - - - - -

Continued

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Governmental activities 6,318 (2,850) 8,505 15,810 20,690 (247) 7,878 17,296 9,539 20,361
Business-type activities 26,414 25,514 29,625 31,029 22,509 24,949 15,872 36,415 37,279 29,346

Total primary government $ 32,732 $ 22,664 $ 38,130 $ 46,839 $ 43,199 $ 24,702 $ 23,750 $ 53,711 $ 46,818 $ 49,707
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)
(IN THOUSANDS)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

GENERAL FUND:

Nonspendable (1)

Advances to other funds $ 8,855 $ 6,830 $ 4,860 $ 2,769 $ 851 $ 733 $ 617 $ - $ - $ -
Inventories 205 226 286 149 292 336 378 324 385 373
Prepaid items and advances to

defined benefit pension plan 61 7,529 6,159 51 5,688 4,612 3,661 3,239 3,130 83
Deferred outflows - - - 5,366 - - - - - -

Restricted (1)

Transportation - - - - - 2,380 - - - -

Committed (1)

Emergency reserve 12,083 12,031 12,732 13,287 13,722 14,542 15,224 16,127 16,668 17,906
Art in public places - - - - - - - - 1,316 1,623

Assigned (1)

For subsequent year's expenditures 10,533 9,630 633 2,998 2,405 4,334 4,005 3,998 2,170 3,361

Unassigned (1) 7,203 - 12,332 16,225 18,060 19,048 22,289 12,111 14,663 25,033

Total general fund $ 38,940 $ 36,246 $ 37,002 $ 40,845 $ 41,018 $ 45,985 $ 46,174 $ 35,799 $ 38,332 $ 48,379

Continued

(1) Categories pursuant to GASB 54.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)
(IN THOUSANDS)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

ALL OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:

Nonspendable (1)

Inventories $ 73 $ 71 $ 69 $ 66 $ 63 $ 61 $ 61 $ 76 $ 61 $ 61
Prepaid items - - - - - - 20 6 21 21

Restricted (1)

Land held for resale - 2,857 2,857 7,014 2,927 - - - - -
Forfeiture 991 927 856 752 608 962 837 778 627 591
Cemetery trust 989 1,020 1,055 1,111 1,149 1,070 1,091 1,163 1,200 1,301
Transportation 5,635 6,872 8,077 9,599 8,283 12,769 15,661 6,817 4,732 4,894
Public safety 847 - - - 11,054 17,915 18,785 18,155 11,687 13,858
Economic environment 21,485 20,479 19,672 25,308 32,241 40,698 38,280 110,495 45,993 39,759
Wetlands mitigation 707 707 707 707 - - - - - -
Library - 8 63 (26) 39 - - - - -
Debt service 1,776 1,805 1,839 2,922 2,110 194 - 7,369 7,432 7,322
Capital outlay 6,427 3,205 2,064 2,922 39,299 40,320 31,839 45,744 135,968 116,623
Land held for resale - - 3,965 - - - - - - -

Committed (1)

Public safety 932 4,148 9,079 9,887 2,090 1,198 1,604 4,426 5,682 6,628
Land held for resale - - - - - 2,862 2,862 2,862 2,863 2,863
Leisure services 472 140 298 486 863 - 344 1,742 1,486 2,433
Debt service - - - - - - - - 356 366
Capital Projects 6,430 4,973 5,301 4,204 3,837 6,878 8,747 11,981 4,971 3,693

Assigned (1)

Capital outlay - 144 - - - - - - - -

Unassigned (1) (4) (22) (2) - - (1) - - - (1,821)

Total all other governmental funds 68,245 67,813 75,572 90,260 136,804 165,624 158,411 322,109 223,079 198,592

Total governmental funds $ 107,185 $ 104,059 $ 112,574 $ 131,105 $ 177,822 $ 211,609 $ 204,585 $ 357,908 $ 261,411 $ 246,971

(1) Categories pursuant to GASB 54.

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report - FYE 2021 S-6



CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)
(IN THOUSANDS)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

REVENUES:

Taxes $ 97,100 $ 97,402 $ 100,815 $ 105,941 $ 112,417 $ 123,389 $ 130,729 $ 137,518 $ 144,391 $ 153,991
Licenses and permits 7,729 8,626 12,916 10,788 13,320 12,653 14,521 15,431 13,972 15,913
Intergovernmental 31,767 30,976 35,498 33,533 36,766 43,500 47,061 49,129 50,210 54,694
Charges for services 24,012 22,680 24,077 26,160 26,632 27,781 28,507 32,280 35,785 40,294
Special assessments - 4 - - - - - - - -
Fines and forfeitures 1,387 1,276 4,215 1,005 272 277 252 360 343 463
Rents and royalties 1,530 1,458 1,549 4,050 1,460 914 977 1,365 1,465 1,713
Interest income 1,342 795 862 927 1,441 1,073 1,917 5,764 4,472 912
Miscellaneous 722 924 3,634 3,562 2,236 2,006 1,725 1,822 1,771 2,059

Total Revenues 165,589 164,141 183,566 185,966 194,544 211,593 225,689 243,669 252,409 270,039

EXPENDITURES:

CURRENT:
General government 13,025 11,890 11,804 13,478 12,925 15,155 20,513 19,512 20,259 18,452
Public safety 80,636 82,437 90,896 91,225 98,350 97,976 106,317 112,785 119,607 125,134
Engineering services and public

works 6,260 6,338 5,799 5,457 5,190 6,180 7,877 13,291 12,791 10,598
Economic environment 15,480 16,261 17,180 18,505 20,744 22,986 27,212 29,738 27,985 37,406
Health and sanitation 8,221 8,966 9,005 9,001 9,981 10,274 10,698 10,944 10,552 11,359
Leisure services 18,914 20,327 21,039 20,625 21,319 23,613 25,638 28,045 27,317 25,725

Capital outlay** 11,975 8,647 13,770 6,423 13,107 16,165 35,959 34,767 34,244 37,789

DEBT SERVICE:
Principal 9,103 9,543 10,375 6,576 8,196 7,666 10,620 13,763 15,306 17,012
Interest expense 9,100 8,530 8,544 7,630 6,253 10,901 9,740 10,090 13,080 13,283
Other issuance and debt costs 515 54 2 755 2,102 - - 689 275 -

Total Expenditures 173,229 172,993 188,414 179,675 198,167 210,916 254,574 273,624 281,416 296,758

Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (7,640) (8,852) (4,848) 6,291 (3,623) 677 (28,885) (29,955) (29,007) (26,719)

**Capital outlay amount recorded in the Change in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds – Modified Accrual Basis is different from the amount in the Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities (page 8), due to certain expenditures not meeting the City’s capital asset policy threshold.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)
(IN THOUSANDS)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Issuance of debt 6,900 2,581 6,215 68,338 120,185 6,939 5,928 106,340 26,651 -
Issuance costs and Premium on

refunding debt - - - - 12,445 350 - 18,936 5,532 -
Disposal of capital assets - - - - - 1,787 13,653 2,704 527 1,407
Payment to escrow agent for

refunding - - - (67,198) (41,680) - - - - -
Refunded bonds - - - - - - - (24,265) - -
Transfers in 31,929 20,711 17,940 16,297 18,192 28,048 24,859 58,458 32,994 27,749
Transfers out (25,245) (15,807) (12,870) (11,941) (14,627) (12,472) (20,161) (50,709) (22,699) (16,877)

Total Oher Financing Sources
(Uses) 13,584 7,485 11,285 5,496 94,515 24,652 24,279 111,464 43,005 12,279

SPECIAL ITEM (USES)

Bond proceeds to Police Pension - - - - (50,000) - - - - -
Forgiveness of advance to other

fund - - - - - - - (401) - -

Net Changes in Fund Balances 5,944 (1,367) 6,437 11,787 40,892 25,329 (4,606) 81,108 13,998 (14,440)

Fund Balances (Deficit)

- beginning of year 81,889 87,833 86,466 92,903 104,690 145,582 170,911 166,305 247,413 261,411

Fund Balances (Deficit)

- end of year $ 87,833 $ 86,466 $ 92,903 $ 104,690 $ 145,582 $ 170,911 $ 166,305 $ 247,413 $ 261,411 $ 246,971

Debt service as a percentage of non-

capital expenditures %11.29 %11.00 %10.83 %8.20 %7.81 %9.53 %9.31 %9.99 %11.48 %11.70

**Capital outlay amount recorded in the Change in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds – Modified Accrual Basis is different from the amount in the Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities (page 8), due to certain expenditures not meeting the City’s capital asset policy threshold.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS REVENUES BY SOURCE
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
GAAP BASIS - MODIFIED ACCRUAL
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal
 Year

 Ended
 September 30

Total
 Revenue

Total
 Taxes

Licenses
 and Permits

Inter-
Governmental

 Revenue
Charges for

 Services
Fines and

 Forfeitures Interest
Rents and
 Royalties Miscellaneous

2012 $ 165,588,357 $ 97,100,239 $ 7,729,177 $ 31,766,519 $ 24,011,917 $ 1,387,062 $ 1,341,621 $ 1,530,283 $ 721,539
2013 164,141,132 97,402,111 8,625,718 30,976,290 22,680,226 1,279,560 794,542 1,458,238 924,447
2014 183,565,932 100,814,979 12,916,031 35,497,974 24,076,908 4,214,530 862,004 1,549,119 3,634,387
2015 185,966,334 105,941,305 10,787,509 33,533,339 26,159,765 1,005,143 926,801 4,050,444 3,562,028
2016 194,543,968 112,417,302 13,319,426 36,765,758 26,632,367 272,430 1,441,144 1,459,537 2,236,004
2017 211,593,204 123,388,840 12,653,064 43,499,539 27,781,374 277,237 1,073,086 914,331 2,005,733
2018 225,689,612 130,728,560 14,520,831 47,061,381 28,506,953 251,893 1,917,448 977,111 1,725,435
2019 243,668,797 137,518,110 15,430,912 49,128,709 32,279,534 360,403 5,764,123 1,365,391 1,821,615
2020 252,409,093 144,391,266 13,972,222 50,209,660 35,784,593 343,075 4,472,265 1,464,971 1,771,041
2021 270,039,748 153,990,754 15,912,559 54,694,444 40,294,049 463,167 912,415 1,713,199 2,059,161

Source – City of West Palm Beach Finance Department
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
GAAP BASIS -  MODIFIED ACCRUAL
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal
 Year

 Ended
 September 30

Total
 Expenditures

General
 Government

Public
Safety

Public Work &
Engineering

Economic
Environment

Health and
Sanitation

Leisure
Services

Capital
Outlay

Debt
Service

Requirements

2012 $ 179,753,597 $ 13,024,972 $ 80,635,605 $ 12,785,821 $ 15,479,643 $ 8,221,015 $ 18,913,676 $ 11,974,563 $ 18,718,302
2013 179,413,693 11,889,824 82,436,835 12,758,447 16,260,739 8,966,029 20,327,165 8,646,846 18,127,808
2014 195,466,614 11,804,350 90,896,411 12,851,688 17,179,938 9,004,885 21,038,671 13,770,353 18,920,318
2015 187,083,868 13,478,459 91,225,379 12,864,938 18,505,250 9,000,502 20,625,423 6,423,317 14,960,600
2016 198,167,269 12,925,294 98,350,526 5,189,654 20,744,094 9,980,656 21,318,590 13,106,779 16,551,676
2017 210,915,432 15,154,527 97,976,229 6,179,552 22,986,331 10,273,985 23,612,679 16,165,021 18,567,108
2018 254,574,069 20,513,372 106,316,559 7,877,024 27,211,708 10,698,145 25,637,826 35,959,402 20,360,033
2019 273,624,110 19,558,523 112,846,562 13,290,610 29,692,011 10,944,355 28,044,510 34,705,128 24,542,411
2020 281,416,489 20,259,378 119,606,587 12,792,051 27,986,220 10,551,753 27,316,538 34,243,913 28,660,049
2021 296,758,041 18,451,788 125,134,300 10,596,721 37,406,409 11,359,226 25,724,943 37,789,073 30,295,581

Source – City of West Palm Beach Finance Department
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
GENERAL FUND-FUND BALANCE-COMPARED
TO ANNUAL EXPENDITURES FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
GAAP BASIS - MODIFIED ACCRUAL
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal
 Year

 Ended
 September 30

Non -
Spendable Committed Assigned Unassigned

Annual
Expenditures

Unassigned
Fund Balance

as Percentage of
Expenditures

2012 $ 9,121,228 $ 12,083,495 $ 10,533,075 $ 7,203,361 $ 123,009,497 %5.9
2013 14,585,732 12,031,258 9,630,343 - 125,035,431 %0.0
2014 11,305,467 12,732,291 10,671,924 2,293,125 131,227,410 %1.7
2015 8,335,426 13,287,105 2,998,334 16,224,546 130,322,674 %12.4
2016 6,830,887 13,722,195 2,404,792 18,060,085 139,286,294 %13.0
2017 5,680,710 14,541,855 4,334,006 19,047,802 148,818,152 %12.8
2018 4,656,128 15,223,562 4,005,265 22,289,333 164,971,251 %13.5
2019 3,562,551 16,126,928 3,998,170 12,111,285 174,999,987 %6.9
2020 3,515,098 17,984,313 2,170,070 14,663,272 177,246,756 %8.3
2021 456,343 19,529,438 3,361,128 25,032,673 179,830,375 %13.9
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
GENERAL FUND TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
GAAP BASIS - MODIFIED ACCRUAL
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal
 Year

 Ended
 September 30

Total
 Taxes

General
 Property

 Taxes
Utilities
Taxes

Franchise
Taxes

Insurance
Premium

Taxes

2012 $ 95,523,909 $ 65,117,145 $ 19,439,772 $ 8,548,587 $ 2,418,405
2013 81,760,619 51,222,824 19,714,871 8,382,610 2,440,314
2014 84,978,883 52,731,290 20,459,379 9,093,201 2,695,013
2015 88,918,256 56,109,347 20,657,795 9,338,246 2,812,868
2016 93,235,162 63,401,222 20,826,180 9,007,760 -
2017 101,717,390 68,594,457 21,201,503 9,247,602 2,673,828
2018 107,357,984 73,412,922 21,685,074 9,462,626 2,797,362
2019 112,450,658 78,382,945 21,921,261 9,355,267 2,791,185
2020 116,872,695 83,374,273 21,623,713 8,905,174 2,969,535
2021 125,637,625 91,058,669 22,028,418 9,464,923 3,085,615

Source – City of West Palm Beach Finance Department.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
GENERAL FUND FRANCHISE REVENUES BY SOURCE
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
GAAP BASIS - MODIFIED ACCRUAL
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal
 Year

 Ended
September 30

Total
Franchise
 Revenue Electric

Cable
 TV Towing

Rolloff
 Container Utilities

2012 $ 8,548,587 $ 8,068,300 $ 90,000 $ 29,500 $ 210,175 $ 150,612
2013 8,382,610 7,922,637 - 30,500 306,412 123,061
2014 9,093,201 8,606,813 - 30,000 298,344 158,044
2015 9,338,246 8,745,791 - 30,000 404,411 158,044
2016 9,007,760 8,533,718 - 18,750 365,244 90,048
2017 9,247,602 8,585,553 - 26,250 422,344 213,455
2018 9,462,626 8,756,614 - 30,000 385,475 290,537
2019 9,355,267 8,883,769 - 30,000 441,498 -
2020 8,905,174 8,451,664 - 30,000 423,510 -
2021 9,464,923 8,997,658 - 18,750 400,415 48,100

Source – City of West Palm Beach Finance Department.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
PROPERTY TAXES LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
GAAP BASIS - MODIFIED ACCRUAL
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Year
 Ended

 September 30

Total
 Property Tax

Levy

Current
 Gross Property
Tax Collections

Percent
 of Levy

 Collected

Delinquent
Property Tax
Collections

Total
 Property Tax

Collections

Total
Collections

as Percent of
Current Levy

Outstanding
Delinquent

Taxes

Outstanding
Delinquent

Taxes as
Percent of

Current Levy

2012 $ 69,227,999 $ 63,978,383 %92.4 $ 2,715,092 $ 66,693,475 %96.3 $ 166,797 %0.2
2013 69,341,005 64,406,609 %92.9 2,457,707 66,864,316 %96.4 272,321 %0.4
2014 69,644,759 66,475,683 %95.4 2,091,703 68,567,386 %98.5 2,285,147 %3.3
2015 73,988,745 70,973,106 %95.9 1,849,963 72,823,069 %98.4 399,004 %0.5
2016 87,199,972 81,639,326 %93.6 1,250,931 82,890,257 %95.1 5,560,645 %6.4
2017 94,758,234 89,918,038 %94.9 474,276 90,392,314 %95.4 4,840,196 %5.1
2018 103,719,989 97,007,660 %93.5 37,005 97,044,665 %93.6 6,712,329 %6.5
2019 107,652,806 103,273,195 %95.9 216,999 103,490,194 %96.1 1,435,107 %1.3
2020 115,462,746 110,881,873 %96.0 188,157 111,070,030 %96.2 5,465,047 %4.7
2021 124,457,845 119,315,512 %95.9 251,992 119,567,504 %96.1 4,890,341 %3.9

Source – City of West Palm Beach Finance Department and the Palm Beach County Tax Collector's Office.
(1) Data from General fund only.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
TAXABLE VALUES AND GROSS ASSESSED VALUE OF PROPERTY
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

Taxable Value for Operating Millage

Tax
 Roll
Year

Fiscal
 Year

 Ended
September 30

Real
Property

Personal
Property

Centrally
Assessed

Taxable
Value

Exemptions
and

Adjustments

Total
Assessed

Values

Total
Direct

Tax
Rate

2011 2012 $ 7,813,471,998 $ 591,792,615 $ 10,939,288 $ 8,416,203,901 $ 2,643,493,104 $ 11,059,697,005 8.0739
2012 2013 7,553,816,860 582,042,374 11,325,576 8,147,184,810 2,568,045,816 10,715,230,626 8.3465
2013 2014 7,748,029,218 582,623,897 11,243,415 8,341,896,530 2,616,426,695 10,958,323,225 8.3465
2014 2015 8,254,913,572 616,902,702 12,379,013 8,884,195,287 2,681,275,118 11,565,470,405 8.3465
2015 2016 9,293,035,997 665,054,642 13,848,568 9,971,939,207 2,807,722,858 12,779,662,065 8.3465
2016 2017 10,308,824,564 679,378,289 15,081,124 11,003,283,977 2,991,957,270 13,995,241,247 8.3465
2017 2018 11,225,820,242 625,611,004 15,641,741 11,867,072,987 3,217,115,879 15,084,188,866 8.3465
2018 2019 12,000,259,772 668,264,350 16,147,650 12,684,671,772 3,469,576,881 16,154,248,653 8.3465
2019 2020 12,889,581,491 646,713,362 61,106,484 13,597,401,337 3,570,322,530 17,167,723,867 8.3465
2020 2021 13,911,087,971 682,409,012 42,258,225 14,635,755,208 3,757,941,388 18,393,696,596 8.3465

Source - Palm Beach County Property Appraiser's Office.

Note 1 - Assessed values are established by the Palm Beach County Property Appraiser's Office as of January 1 each year.  Assessments were increased to 100% of market value
as of 1980.

Note 2 - Exemptions include Homestead, Widow/Widower's, Government, Institutional, etc.

Note 3 - Adjustments are made to just value for land classified as agriculture, high-water recharge, pollution control devices, historically significant properties, etc.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS PRIOR
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Year 2021 Fiscal Year 2012

Taxpayer
Assessed 
Value (1) Rank

Percentage
 of Total
Assessed
Valuation

Assessed 
Value (1) Rank

Percentage
 of Total
Assessed
Valuation

CPT Phillips Point LLC $ 186,999,738 1 %1.07 $ - - %-
Palm Beach Outlets I LLC 174,725,968 2 %1.00
CPT Equity LLC 126,854,998 3 %0.73
222 Lakeview LLC 102,166,775 4 %0.59
Aaron Drive Holdings LLC 94,346,328 5 %0.54
Cityplace Retail LLC 86,257,544 6 %0.49
Avalon Alexander LLC 83,915,201 7 %0.48
CLPF Marketplace LLC 80,433,364 8 %0.46
Reep MF Park Line FL LLC 80,000,000 9 %0.46
Northbridge Property Owner LLC 75,031,285 10 %0.43
Phillips Point LLC 114,965,606 1 %1.41
West Palm Beach CRA (Lessor) - City

Place & Other Properties 112,043,785 2 %1.38
KBSII City Place Tower, LLC 94,485,061 3 %1.16
SPUSV5 Esperante Holdings LP 52,073,286 4 %0.64
Gaedeke Holdings LTD 39,250,930 5 %0.48
Flager Center Properties 29,584,059 6 %0.36
Leisure Resorts, LLC 23,036,476 7 %0.28
One Clearlake Centre VEF III 23,000,000 8 %0.28
PBM Properties, LLC 18,565,435 9 %0.23
CF West Palm Office LP - - %- 16,878,572 10 %0.21

$ 1,090,731,201 %6.25 $ 523,883,210 %6.43

(1) Source – Palm Beach County Tax Collector.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
OUTSTANDING DEBT PER CAPITA BY TYPE
AND GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT RATIOS
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

Governmental Activities Debt Business-Type Activities Debt

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended
 September 30

General
Obligation
Bonds (3)

Non-Ad
Valorem
Revenue
Bonds (3)

Promissory
Notes - Gov

Capital
Leases

Promissory
Notes - ISF

Revenue
Bonds (3)

Capital
Leases

Total Debt
Primary

Government

Net
Bonded

Debt

Net Bonded
Debt Per
Capita (2)

2012 $10,510,000 $ 165,468,836 $ 6,864,930 $10,192,167 $ - $ 238,665,000 $ - $ 431,700,933 $ 414,643,836 $ 4,078
2013 9,380,000 157,646,162 6,122,026 10,773,461 - 233,965,000 - 417,886,649 400,991,162 3,935
2014 8,215,000 148,417,339 17,228,987 9,588,753 - 229,105,000 - 412,555,079 385,737,339 3,766
2015 7,000,000 142,849,686 12,654,303 8,589,096 - 224,070,000 - 395,163,085 373,919,686 3,594
2016 5,725,000 215,596,625 12,061,934 12,673,165 10,605,886 218,740,000 193,652 475,596,262 440,061,625 4,121
2017 4,385,000 211,371,552 13,440,751 17,377,829 7,670,604 269,920,000 155,198 524,320,934 485,676,552 4,399
2018 2,985,000 205,339,036 12,551,748 19,991,923 6,600,244 264,185,000 - 511,652,951 472,509,036 4,185
2019 1,527,589 297,331,513 25,029,525 15,371,475 5,507,662 275,176,166 - 619,943,930 574,035,268 4,984
2020 58,469,376 278,947,498 22,425,605 10,662,508 4,392,399 266,619,736 - 641,517,122 604,036,610 5,172
2021 28,768,576 275,292,137 18,716,672 8,986,039 3,253,983 259,320,630 - 594,338,037 563,381,343 4,724

(1) Personal income is not available for fiscal year 2010.
(2) See first page of Demographic and Economic section.
(3) Presented net of related premiums, discounts, and adjustments.

GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT RATIOS

Fiscal Year Ended
September 30

General
Obligation

Bonded Debt (4)

Gross
Assessed

Value

Ratio of
GO Debt to

Assessed Value Population

GO Debt
Per

Capita

2012 $ 10,510,000 $ 11,059,697,005 0.10% $ 101,668 103
2013 9,380,000 10,715,230,626 0.09% 101,903 92
2014 8,215,000 10,958,323,225 0.07% 102,436 80
2015 7,000,000 11,565,470,405 0.06% 104,031 67
2016 5,725,000 12,779,662,065 0.04% 106,779 54
2017 4,385,000 13,995,241,247 0.03% 110,396 40
2018 2,985,000 15,084,188,866 0.02% 112,906 26
2019 1,527,589 16,154,248,653 0.01% 115,176 13
2020 29,997,188 17,440,651,640 0.17% 116,781 257
2021 28,768,576 17,440,651,640 0.16% 119,255 241

Note: details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
(4) Principal outstanding.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

Debt Applicable to Applicable to

City of West Palm Beach (1)
Total bonds (2) $ 304,060,713
Promissory notes, governmental funds 18,716,672
Promissory notes, internal service funds 3,253,983
Capital leases 8,986,039

Total direct debt 335,017,407 %100.00 (5) 335,017,407

Palm Beach County (3) 809,642,739 %7.00 56,674,992

School Board (4) 1,512,264,000 %7.00 105,858,480

Total overlapping debt 162,533,472

Total direct and overlapping debt $ 497,550,879

(1) Source - City of West Palm Beach Finance Department. Government debt rollforward.
(2) Presented net of related premiums, discounts and adjustments.
(3) Source - Palm Beach County Finance Department.
(4) Source - Palm Beach County School Board.
(5) Percentage applicable based on total assessed value for the City of West Palm Beach and Palm Beach County.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

Taxable Value of Property $ 14,635,755,208

Debt Limitation - 10% of assessed value (1) 1,463,575,521

Amount of debt applicable to debt limit:
Outstanding debt (2) $ 326,031,368
Less:
Amount available in general debt service funds 7,322,084

Other deductions allowed by law:
Revenue Bonds 275,292,137

Total applicable debt 43,417,147

Legal Debt Margin $ 1,420,158,374

Source - City of West Palm Beach Finance Department.
(1) - Policy 1.5.6 from the Evaluation and Appraisal Report (E.A.R.) of the Comprehensive Plan (1996)

Capital Improvements Element, Chapter 15.
(2) - Includes general obligation bonded debt, notes payable and long-term revenue bond debt.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal
Year

Ended
Operating
Revenue

Operating
Expenses

Net
Revenue

Available for Debt Service Requirements

September 30 (1) (2) Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage

2012 $ 101,963,314 $ 55,943,635 $ 46,019,679 $ 4,700,000 $ 5,370,708 $ 10,070,708 %457.0
2013 109,405,945 58,930,857 50,475,088 4,860,000 6,095,743 10,955,743 %460.7
2014 114,736,894 59,089,157 55,647,737 5,035,000 5,788,684 10,823,684 %514.1
2015 117,507,988 62,062,079 55,445,909 5,329,997 5,669,483 10,999,480 %504.1
2016 120,715,408 69,473,007 51,242,401 3,697,631 5,552,736 9,250,367 %553.9
2017 133,214,170 70,327,251 62,886,919 4,225,073 7,819,221 12,044,294 %522.1
2018 127,972,772 80,822,173 47,150,599 6,032,516 8,887,587 14,920,103 %316.0
2019 139,121,048 73,807,891 65,313,157 6,253,496 7,568,774 13,822,270 %472.5
2020 143,544,758 73,725,198 69,819,560 7,668,012 12,327,955 19,995,967 %349.2
2021 143,978,132 78,201,035 65,777,097 7,949,928 9,515,167 17,465,095 %376.6

Source - City of West Palm Beach Finance Department.

(1) Includes Operating Revenue of City Enterprise Funds: Water & Sewer and Stormwater funds.
(2) Includes Operating Expenses less Depreciation of City Enterprise Funds.

Note: Starting with fiscal year 2018, the City's Enterprise Funds for Parking and Golf are excluded as they have no outstanding
debt.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal
 Year

Population

(1)

Median
Age
(2)

School
Enrollment

(3)

Unemployment
Rate
(4)

Per Capita
Personal
Income

(5)

Total
Personal
Income

2012 101,043 38.1 17,135 8.7% 31,235 $ 3,156,078,105
2013 101,903 38.1 17,131 7.1% 33,960 3,460,625,880
2014 102,436 38.9 17,334 6.0% 30,493 3,123,580,948
2015 104,031 39.9 17,383 5.2% 29,955 3,116,248,605
2016 106,779 39.6 17,622 4.7% 30,788 3,287,511,852
2017 110,396 39.6 17,904 3.8% 31,426 3,469,304,696
2018 112,906 39.6 17,904 3.1% 31,388 3,543,893,528
2019 115,176 39.6 21,064 3.2% 31,388 3,615,144,288
2020 116,781 36.9 17,870 6.6% 33,839 3,951,752,259
2021 119,255 36.9 18,140 3.8% 31,400 3,744,607,000

(1) Source - US Census Bureau.
(2) Source - US Census Bureau.
(3) Source - Palm Beach County School Board Budget Office.
(4) Source - Florida Department of Labor & Employment.
(5) Source - US Census Bureau.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS IN PALM BEACH COUNTY
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS PRIOR
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

2021 2012

Employees Rank

Percentage
of Total
County

Employment Employees Rank

Percentage
of Total
County

Employment

Palm Beach County School District 22,600 1 %3.15 21,495 1 %3.46
Tenet Coastal Division Palm Beach

County 6,505 2 %0.91 6,100 4 %0.99
Palm Beach County Government 5,686 3 %0.79 11,381 2 %1.83
NextEra Energy/Florida Power &

Light Company 5,119 4 %0.71 3,635 6
0
%0.58

Florida Atlantic University 3,133 5 %0.44 2,706 9 %0.44
Boca Raton Regional Hospital 3,052 6 %0.43 - - %-
Veterans Health Administration 3,000 7 %0.42 - - %-
HCA Healthcare 2,806 8 %0.39 2,714 8 %0.44
The Breakers 2,300 9 %0.32 - - %-
Bethesda Hospital East/Besthesda

Hospital West 2,282 10 %0.32 2,391 10 %0.38
State Government 4,029 5 %1.48
Federal Government 6,200 3 %1.00
G4S 3,000 7 %0.49

56,483 %7.88 63,651 %11.09

Source: Business Development Board of Palm Beach County.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
PROPERTY VALUE AND CONSTRUCTION
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

Commercial
Construction (1)

Residential
Construction (1)

Total Building
Permits (1)

Tax Roll
Year As of

Jan 1

Fiscal
 Year Ended

September 30

Total
Assessed
Property
Value (2)

Number
of

Units Value

Number
of

Units Value
Number
Issued

Value of
Permits

2011 2012 $ 11,059,697,005 6 $ 97,372,282 23 $ 3,981,308 8,148 $ 207,412,287
2012 2013 10,715,230,626 53 30,188,221 52 9,652,512 9,179 160,497,510
2013 2014 10,958,323,225 59 180,212,461 133 21,067,917 11,700 401,739,973
2014 2015 11,565,470,405 26 114,952,309 156 29,181,810 11,388 291,304,248
2015 2016 12,779,662,065 55 190,370,413 205 49,128,855 12,121 447,832,917
2016 2017 13,995,241,247 41 283,099,629 49 15,863,343 11,509 500,949,830
2017 2018 15,084,188,866 34 192,273,893 59 22,348,397 12,512 458,399,968
2018 2019 16,154,248,653 25 164,719,561 87 32,234,170 13,500 511,156,012
2019 2020 17,167,723,867 24 263,776,967 83 28,095,321 12,641 551,585,860
2020 2021 18,393,696,596 42 467,449,225 173 61,362,445 14,989 803,295,299

(1) Source - City of West Palm Beach Construction Services Department.
(2) Source - Palm Beach County Property Appraiser's Office.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICAL DATA
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

DATE OF INCORPORATION - November 5, 1984

DATE FIRST CHARTER ADOPTED - September 18, 1903

DATE PRESENT CHARTER ADOPTED - October 1, 1988

FORM OF GOVERNMENT - Mayor - Commission

AREA: POPULATION:
1945 - 16.00 square miles 1950 (U.S. Census) 43,162
1955 - 16.00 square miles 1960 (U.S. Census) 56,208
1965 - 41.75 square miles 1970 (U.S. Census) 57,375
1975 - 43.25 square miles 1980 (U.S. Census) 63,000
1985 - 42.60 square miles 1990 (U.S. Census) 67,643
1995 - 55.34 square miles 2010 (University of FL) 102,475
2005 - 55.00 square miles 2020 (University of FL) 116,781
2015 - 55.29 square miles 2021 (University of FL) 119,255
2020 - 57.98 square miles 
2021 - 57.69 square miles 

EDUCATION (CITY-WIDE):
Number of public schools 21
Number of full time employees

(teachers and support) 1,607
Number of students 18,140

Source - School District of Palm Beach County.

STREETS, SIDEWALKS AND STORM SEWERS:
Miles of paved streets and alleys 457
Miles of sidewalks 344
Miles of storm sewers 340

Source - City of West Palm Beach, MIS Support Services (GIS).

STREET LIGHTS:
Number of street lights 18,143

Source - City of West Palm Beach, MIS Support Services (GIS).

Continued
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICAL DATA
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

ELECTIONS:

76,698 Registered voters at last municipal election
9,198 Votes cast in last municipal election

%11.99 Registered voters voting

Source - City of West Palm Beach City Clerk.

EMPLOYEES AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

1,509 Full Time Employees

Source - City of West Palm Beach Human Resources Department.

POLICE PROTECTION: FIRE PROTECTION:

299 Sworn Police Officers 9 Suppression Units
107 Civilian Employees (full-time) 10 Advanced Life Support Units (Rescue Units)

9 Fire stations (plus 1 Logistics facility)
286 Employees (full-time)

Source - City of West Palm Beach Police Department. Source - City of West Palm Beach Fire Department.

Continued
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICAL DATA
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

RECREATION:

Public parks - 591 acres
Includes: park facilities, recreational centers, tennis courts, handball courts,

soccer and football, baseball, basketball, and picnic areas.

Cemeteries - 2

Municipal swimming pool - 1

Source - City of West Palm Beach Leisure Services Department.

ENTERPRISE FUNDS:

Parking facilities
1,525  Metered on street spaces
2,400 Off street revenue controlled spaces

Source - City of West Palm Beach Parking System.
* Does not include 209 spaces at the Police Department.

WATER AND SEWER DISPOSAL SYSTEM: WATER SEWER

Active accounts 33177 27498
Capacity per day (million gallons) (1) 47 MGD 70 MGD
Miles of mains (2) 571 316
Fire hydrants:

West Palm Beach 3521
Palm Beach 395
South Palm Beach 11

Source - City of West Palm Beach Public Utilities Department.

Note (1) - Based on average daily plan capacity for the year.

Note (2) - Based upon data from the City's GIS system.

Continued
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICAL DATA
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

Population Growth

Palm Beach County Florida United States

Year Population % Change Population % Change Population % Change

2012 1,335,187 %1.14 (1) 19,057,542 %1.36 (1) 314,969,523 %0.76 (1)
2013 1,356,545 %1.60 (1) 19,317,568 %1.36 (1) 313,914,040 %-0.34 (1)
2014 1,372,171 %1.15 (2) 19,552,860 %1.22 (2) 316,128,839 %0.71 (2)
2015 1,397,710 %1.86 (2) 19,893,297 %1.74 (2) 318,857,056 %0.86 (2)
2016 1,422,789 %1.79 (2) 20,612,439 %3.61 (2) 323,127,513 %1.34 (2)
2017 1,443,810 %1.48 (2) 20,984,400 %1.80 (2) 325,719,178 %0.80 (2)
2018 1,471,150 %1.89 (2) 21,299,325 %1.50 (2) 327,747,936 %0.62 (2)
2019 1,485,941 %1.01 (2) 21,477,737 %0.84 (2) 328,239,523 %0.15 (2)
2020 1,496,770 %0.73 (2) 21,733,312 %1.19 (2) 329,805,963 %0.48 (2)
2021 1,502,495 %0.38 (2) 21,781,128 %0.22 (2) 331,893,745 %0.63 (2)

(1) Source - University of Florida Bureau of Business and Economic Development.

(2) Source - US Census Bureau.

Palm Beach County

Year Population

Per Capita
Personal
Income

Civilian
Labor
Force

Unemployment
(3)

2012 1,335,187 $ 53,500 617,597 (1) %8.7
2013 1,356,545 33,960 640,200 (1) %7.1
2014 1,372,171 33,239 668,600 (3) %6.0
2015 1,397,710 32,858 685,000 (3) %5.2
2016 1,422,789 33,650 691,475 (3) %4.7
2017 1,443,810 31,426 718,064 (3) %3.8
2018 1,471,150 31,388 729,108 (3) %3.1
2019 1,485,941 31,388 745,298 (3) %3.2
2020 1,496,770 39,933 699,888 (3) %7.0
2021 1,502,495 40,888 717,009 (3) %4.1

(1) Source - University of Florida Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

(2) Source - US Census Bureau.

(3) Source - Labor Force and Unemployment data are for September of each year.
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CITY�OF�WEST�PALM�BEACH,�FLORIDA
CONTINUING�DISCLOSURE
EVENT�NOTICES
FISCAL�YEAR�2021
(UNAUDITED)

Event Occurrence

Principal�and�interest�delinquencies None

NonͲpayment�related�defaults None

Unscheduled�draws�on�debt�service�reserves�reflecting�financial�difficulties None

Unscheduled�draws�on�credit�enhancements�reflecting�financial�difficulties None

Substitution�of�credit�or�liquidity�providers,�or�their�failure�to�perform None

Adverse�tax�opinions�or�events�affecting�the�taxͲexempt�status�of�the�security None

Modifications�to�rights�of�security�holders None

Bond�calls�and�tender�offers None

Release,�substitution�or�sale�of�property�securing�repayment�of�securities None

Ratings�changes None

Bankruptcy,�insolvency�or�receivership None

Merger,�acquisition�or�sale�of�all�issuer�assets None

Appointment�of�successor�trustee None
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CONTINUING�DISCLOSURE:�SPECIAL�OBLIGATION�BONDS

NONͲAD�VALOREM�REVENUE�COLLECTIONS�BY�SOURCE

FOR�THE�LAST�TEN�FISCAL�YEARS

(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Total
Year NonͲAd Utility Insurance InterͲ Licenses Fines Rents Payment

Ended Valorem Services Franchise Premium Charges�for Governmental and and Interest�� and in�Lieu�of
September�30 Collections�(1) Taxes Taxes Taxes� Services Revenue Permits Forfeitures Income Royalties Taxes Miscellaneous

2012 77,279,783$����� 19,439,772$����� 8,548,587$������� 2,418,405$������� 22,888,368$����� 10,735,999$����� 2,805,129$������� 750,124$����������� 1,014,815$������� 226,769$����������� 8,001,726$������� 450,089$�����������

2013 77,691,025������� 19,714,871������� 8,382,610���������� 2,440,314���������� 21,515,326������� 12,103,445������� 2,902,578���������� 687,945������������� 603,753������������� 234,036������������� 8,601,274���������� 504,873�������������

2014 83,716,476������� 20,459,379������� 9,093,201���������� 2,695,013���������� 22,685,372������� 12,425,405������� 3,303,820���������� 663,031������������� 610,241������������� 258,437������������� 9,124,857���������� 2,397,720����������

2015 86,067,888������� 20,657,795������� 9,338,246���������� 2,812,868���������� 23,932,521������� 12,970,886������� 3,460,440���������� 293,397������������� 589,772������������� 251,421������������� 9,306,186���������� 2,454,356����������

2016 83,267,657������� 20,826,180������� 9,007,760���������� Ͳ�������������������������� 24,438,621������� 13,276,669������� 3,694,485���������� 244,763������������� 840,818������������� 247,694������������� 9,446,930���������� 1,243,737����������

2017 86,375,037������� 21,201,503������� 9,247,602���������� 2,673,828���������� 23,887,679������� 14,289,020������� 3,674,791���������� 263,713������������� 484,294������������� 169,262������������� 9,884,138���������� 599,207�������������
2018 88,806,298������� 21,685,074������� 9,462,626���������� 2,797,362���������� 24,763,965������� 14,170,339������� 3,823,282���������� 238,638������������� 729,963������������� 211,804������������� 9,983,605���������� 939,640�������������
2019 93,712,517������� 21,921,261������� 9,355,267���������� 2,791,185���������� 26,312,707������� 15,475,846������� 3,745,686���������� 355,609������������� 1,758,271���������� 665,174������������� 10,826,185������� 505,326�������������
2020 94,122,794������� 21,623,713������� 8,905,174���������� 2,969,535���������� 26,731,903������� 16,538,967������� 3,765,602���������� 336,913������������� 1,211,041���������� 530,559������������� 10,816,047������� 693,340�������������
2021 99,205,405������� 22,028,418������� 9,464,923���������� 3,085,615���������� 29,461,750������� 17,170,348������� 3,829,291���������� 458,522������������� 440,786������������� 539,785������������� 11,312,829������� 1,413,138����������

Source�Ͳ�City�of�West�Palm�Beach�Finance�Department.

(1)�Includes�non�adͲvalorem�revenues�of�the�City�that�are�deposited�into�the�City's�General�Fund

CITY�OF�WEST�PALM�BEACH,�FLORIDA
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS

OUTSTANDING NON�AD VALOREM DEBT

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

(UNAUDITED)

Outstanding Percent Maximum

Final Principal of Annual

Outstanding Obligation Maturity Amount Total Debt Service (4)

Communication System Note, Series 2014 (2) 2024 3,253,983        2.45% 1,220,143            

Vehicle Acquisition Note, Series 2014 (2) 2024 712,248           0.54% 270,892               

Palm Beach County Promissory Note (3) 2023 500,000           0.38% 250,000               

Special Obligation Series 2016 2040 111,065,000   83.49% 14,777,271          

JPMC 2018 Term Loan 2023 3,329,424        2.50% 1,844,742            

2019 Note � Fire 2034 14,175,000      10.66% 1,141,282            

TOTAL $ 133,035,655   100.00% $ 19,504,330          

Source � City of West Palm Beach Finance Department.

(4) Maximum Annual Debt Service based on budgetary�basis amortization schedule.

CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA

(1) Non�Ad Valorem Funds will be used to pay the City's allocable share (100%) of the remaining debt service pursuant to an Interlocal Agreement 

which obligated the City and the Agency to each fund their allocable share of such debt service.

(2) Non�Ad Valorem Funds are not expected to be needed to pay debt service due to court and assessment fees and other revenues that the City 

expects to receive to pay such debt service.

(3) Non�Ad Valorem Funds are not expected to be needed to pay debt service due to an Interlocal Agreement which obligates the West Palm 

Beach Community Redevelopment Agency (the "Agency") to pay such debt service.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS

HISTORICAL NON�AD VALOREM REVENUES, DEBT SERVICE AND

COVERAGE (ASSUMING DEBT SERVICE PAYMENTS WERE NOT

MADE BY OTHER DEDICATED REVENUE SOURCES)

FOR THE LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)

A B C=(A�B) D E=C/D

Non�Ad
Valorem

Available Revenues Debt
Non�Ad Available Debt Service
Valorem for Service on Coverage on

Fiscal Total Revenues Covenant to Covenant to Covenant to
Year Non�Ad Used for Budget and Budget and Budget and

Ended Valorem Essential Appropriated Appropriated Appropriated
September 30 Revenues Services (1) Debt Debt (2) Debt

2017 86,375,037$      29,736,224$      56,638,813$      7,492,562$        7.56x
2018 88,806,298        30,939,642        57,866,656        9,100,595          6.36x
2019 93,712,517        32,171,237        61,541,280        11,050,413        5.57x
2020 94,122,794        30,703,729        63,419,065        11,269,436        5.63x
2021 99,205,405        25,590,215        73,615,190        12,051,360        6.11x

Source � City of West Palm Beach Finance Department.

(1) Represents total expenses for public safety, health care and sanitation, minus the portion of such expenses paid from the City's ad 

valorem tax revenues.

(2) Represents debt service on (i) the Palm Beach County Promissory Note, (ii) the Capital Improvement Revenue Refunding Note, Series 

2006, (iii) the Communication System Note, Series 2014, (iv) the Vehicle Acquisition Note, Series 2014, (v) the Special Obligation Series 2016 

bonds, (vi) the JPMC 2018 Term Loan, and the (vii) 2019 Capital Improvement and Vehicles note.

CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report - FYE 2021 C-4



CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS

HISTORICAL NON�AD VALOREM REVENUES, DEBT SERVICE AND

COVERAGE (ACCOUNTING FOR DEBT SERVICE PAYMENTS

MADE BY OTHER DEDICATED REVENUE SOURCES)

FOR THE LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)

A B C=(A�B) D E F=C/(D+E)
Non�Ad

Valorem Debt
Available Revenues Maximum Service
Non�Ad Available Debt Annual Debt Coverage
Valorem for Service on Service on all

Fiscal Total Revenues Covenant to Covenant to on Covenant to
Year Non�Ad Used for Budget and Budget and Series 2006 Budget and

Ended Valorem Essential Appropriate Appropriate and 2016 Appropriate

September 30 Revenues Services (1) Debt Debt (2) Bonds (3) Debt

2017 86,375,037$     29,736,224$     56,638,813$     460,618$          10,509,268$     5.16x
2018 88,806,298       30,939,642       57,866,656       470,300             14,777,271       3.74x
2019 93,712,517       32,171,237       61,541,280       473,485             19,133,304       3.14x

2020 94,122,794       30,703,729       63,419,065       470,654             19,968,723       3.10x
2021 99,205,405       25,590,215       73,615,190       464,393             14,771,687       4.83x

Source � City of West Palm Beach Finance Department.

(2) All of the existing debt for which the City has covenanted to budget and appropriate legally available non�ad valorem revenues to satisfy its payment 

obligations thereunder (excluding the City's allocable share of the Capital Improvement Revenue Refunding Note, Series 2006, and the Special Obligation 

Bonds, Series 2006) historically has been paid in full by (i) tax increment revenue received from the West Palm Beach Community Redevelopment Agency 

pursuant to Interlocal Agreements that obligate the Agency to make such payments and (ii) in the case of the  HUD Section 108 Note and Communication 

System Note, Series 2006, federal grants and other sources of revenue that are not received as non�ad valorem revenue for deposit into the City's General 

Fund. 

(3) The 2006 Special Obligation Bonds were refunded in FY 2016.  The Series 2016 Special Obligation bonds were issued on July 5, 2016.  Principal 

payments were not due until FY 2017 and therefore the maximum debt service for the Series 2016 bonds is not reflected until that time.

(1) Represents total expenses for public safety, health care and sanitation, minus the portion of such expenses paid from the City's ad valorem tax 

revenues.

CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
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UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE 
BONDS (Unaudi ted)     
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS

CUSTOMERS AND SALES*

FISCAL YEAR 2021

(UNAUDITED)

Average Annual Number Average Annual Number Water Sales

of Accounts Served of ERCs Served (Thousands of Gallons)
32,336 86,679 8,787,113

Average Annual Number Average Annual Number Water Sales
of Accounts Served of ERCs Served (Thousands of Gallons)

27,672 64,332 4,351,445

Average Annual Number Average Annual Number

of Accounts Served of ERCs Served
27,550 101,505

ERC is equivaluent to ESU = Equivalent Stormwater Unit, also referred to as
ERU = Equivalent Residential Unit in the Rate Resolution.

Source � City of West Palm Beach Finance Department.

     Water Customers and Sales (*)

     Wastewater Customers and Sales (*)

     Stormwater Customers and Sales (*)

* Includes customers located outside the corporate limits of the City.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS

WASTEWATER FLOWS (MGD)

FOR THE LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Annual Annual
Year Average Allotted Average Permitted

Ended Daily Flow Capacity Percent of Daily Flow Capacity Percent of
September 30 (MGD) (MGD) Allotment (MGD) (MGD) Capacity

2017 12.47 20.50 60.8% 40.22 70.00 57.46%
2018 12.78 20.50 62.3% 42.11 70.00 60.15%
2019 12.61 20.50 61.5% 39.99 70.00 57.13%
2020 12.48 20.50 60.9% 41.35 70.00 59.07%
2021 13.32 20.50 65.0% 43.99 70.00 62.84%

Source � City of West Palm Beach Utilities Department reconciliation of annual flow charges.

City of West Palm Beach Flows Total ECRWWRF Flows

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report - FYE 2021 C-7



CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS

SUMMARY OF MONTHLY WATER AND WASTEWATER RATES

AS OF OCTOBER 1, 2021

(UNAUDITED)

Water Wastewater

Rates Rates
Residential Service
Service Charge (per dwelling unit) [2] 23.66$            14.32$            

Commodity Charge (per units of water used) [3]
0�8 units 2.74$              4.22$              
9�16 units 3.43                4.22                [4]

17�36 units 4.04                N/A
37�76 units 4.73                N/A
77�200 units 5.45                N/A
Above 201 units 6.13                N/A

Non�Residential and Irrigation

Service Charge (per service meter) [2]
5/8�inch 23.66$            14.32$            
3/4�inch 36.09              21.51              
1�inch 59.17              35.87              

1+1/2�inch 118.42            71.60              
2�inch 189.47            114.57            
3�inch 355.29            214.80            
4�inch 592.14            360.68            
6�inch 1,184.27        715.99            
8�inch 1,894.82        1,145.62        
10�inch 2,723.79        1,646.83        
12�inch 5,086.42        3,080.94        

Commodity Charge (per units of water used) [3]
0�8 units 2.74$              4.22$              
9�16 units 3.43                4.22                
17�36 units 4.04                4.22                
37�76 units 4.73                4.22                
77�200 units 5.45                4.22                
Above 201 units 6.13                4.22                

Irrigation Service

0�75 units 4.73$              N/A
76�200 units 5.45                N/A
Above 201 units 6.13                N/A

Source � City of West Palm Beach Public Utilities  Customer Service Superintendant

(1) The amounts derived from the Rate Resolution as approved by the City Commission.

(4) Rate billed to parcels that provide their own level of canal and drainage maintenance 
and street sweeping services.

(2) The monthly service charge represents the minimum bill rendered.
(3) The monthly service charge represents the minimum bill rendered.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS

SUMMARY OF WATER CAPACITY CHARGES, CUSTOMER DEPOSITS,  

  AND METER INSTALLATIONS

(UNAUDITED)

Capacity Charges Customer Deposits

Meter Size Water Wastewater Meter Size Residential General Service

5/8 � inch $ 2,150 $ 2,100 5/8 inch $ 190 $ 220
3/4 � inch 3,225 3,150 3/4 inch 285 330
1� inch 5,375 5,250 1 inch 480 550

1 1/2 � inch 10,750 10,500 1 1/2 inch 955 1,100
2 � inch 17,200 16,800 2 inch 1,530 1,760
3 � inch 34,400 33,600 3 inch 2,865 3,300

4 � inch 53,750 52,500 4 inch 4,775 5,500
6 � inch 107,500 105,000 6 inch 9,550 11,000
8 � inch 172,000 168,000 8 inch 15,280 17,600

10 � inch 247,250 241,500 10 inch 21,965 25,300
12 � inch 462,250 451,500 12 inch 41,085 47,300

Fire Hydrant Meter Deposit $ 1,500

Detector check Meter deposit $ 175

Meter Installation Charges

Meter Size  Installation Tap�In Charge

5/8 � inch $ 335 $ 2,010
5/8 � inch Dual Check 355 N/A

3/4 � inch 800 2,070
1� inch 830 2,130
1 1/2 � inch 1,075 2,475
2 � inch 1,150 2,795

3 � inch 2,855 (2) N/A (3)
4 � inch 4,605 (2) N/A (3)

6 � inch 6,535 (2) N/A (3)
8 � inch 8,695 (2) N/A (3)
10 � inch 17,685 (2) N/A (3)
12 � inch 19,560 (2) N/A (3)

Source � City of West Palm Beach Public Utilities  Customer Service Superintendant

(1) Includes cost of meter instalation.
(2) Reflects estimated charge; final charge recommended to recover actual cost incurred. 
(3) Customer responsible for installing 3�inch and larger services. 

Effective October 1, 2021 Effective October 1, 2021

Effective October 1, 2021
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS

SUMMARY OF MONTHLY STORMWATER RATES [1]
AS OF OCTOBER 1, 2021

(UNAUDITED)

Stormwater
Rates

Class A110 [2] $ 14.83            

Class A110 [3] 10.10            
Class A110 [4] 5.53               

Source � City of West Palm Beach Utilities Rate Consultant.

(3) Rate billed to parcels providing their own level of canal maintenance services.

(1) The monthly service charge per equivalent residential unit represents the minimum bill 

rendered; the charge for stormwater utility service is included on the monthly bill for water 

and wastewater services. Number of equivalent residential units is based on individual 

property characteristics of each nonresidential parcel determined on a basis consistent with 

the average impervious residential developed property.

(2) Essentially billed to customers receiving full stormwater utility services by the City.

(4) Rate billed to parcels that provide their own level of canal and drainage maintenance and 

street sweeping services.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS

WATER SYSTEM CUSTOMER GROWTH

AS OF OCTOBER 1, 2021

(UNAUDITED)

Average

Fiscal Year Average Average Average Average Monthly 

Ended Annual  Water Annual  Water Annual  Water Annual  Water Use per Unit
September 30 Units Sales (ccf) Units Sales (ccf) Units Sales (ccf) Units  Sales (ccf) (Gallons)

2012 53,736 7,104,445     9,510 2,720,923     1,873 110,741     65,119 9,936,109       9,511

2013 53,643 7,682,732     9,338 2,995,930     1,873 119,061     64,854 10,797,723     10,738

2014 53,316 7,286,320     9,321 3,405,880     1,881 155,177     64,518 10,847,377     10,480
2015 53,594 7,527,314     9,347 3,474,048     1,894 153,965     64,835 11,155,327     10,725

2016 54,422 7,545,809     9,333 3,617,076     1,875 154,003     65,630 11,316,888     10,748

2017 54,428 7,456,273     9,277 3,787,940     1,857 129,234     65,562 11,373,447     10,813
2018 54,754 7,009,374     9,264 3,590,999     1,857 140,422     65,896 10,740,795     8,028

2019 54,568 6,890,259     9,330 3,696,086     1,954 146,182     65,801 10,732,527     9,358
2020 55,895 7,675,313     9,382 3,694,863     1,871 138,518     67,148 11,508,694     10,684

2021 55,126 7,847,456     9,360 3,772,831     1,886 131,611     66,373 11,746,660     11,032

Average Average

Annual Average Average Average Average Monthly 
Compound Annual  Water Annual  Water Annual  Water Annual  Water Use per Unit

Growth Rate Units Sales (ccf) Units Sales (ccf) Units Sales (ccf) Units  Sales (ccf) (Gallons)

2010 to 2021 0.20% 0.25% �0.03% 0.90% 0.06% �0.42% 0.16% 0.44% 0.28%

2016 to 2021 0.26% 0.79% 0.06% 0.85% 0.12% �3.09% 0.23% 0.75% 0.52%

2019 to 2021 0.51% 6.72% 0.16% 1.03% �1.76% �5.11% 0.43% 4.62% 8.58%

Source � City of West Palm Beach Utilities Rate Consultant.

Note: "ccf" is the amount of water that flows through customer water meters and is measured in hundreds of cubic feet.

1 ccf (100 cubic feet) is equivalent to 748 gallons of water.

Water System Customer Growth        

West Palm Beach Palm Beach South Palm Beach Total

West Palm Beach Palm Beach South Palm Beach Total
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS

STORMWATER SYSTEM CUSTOMER GROWTH

AS OF OCTOBER 1, 2021

(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Year Average Average Average Average Average Average Average Average
Ended Annual Annual Annual Annual Annual Annual Annual Annual

September 30 Accounts ESUs Accounts ESUs Accounts ESUs Accounts ESUs

2012 22,414        22,414     2,115     27,655     2,850     48,316     27,379     98,385     
2013 22,428        22,428     2,113     27,629     2,866     48,482     27,407     98,539     
2014 22,445        22,445     2,112     27,638     2,862     48,476     27,419     98,559     
2015 22,490        22,490     2,106     27,970     2,833     48,502     27,429     98,962     
2016 22,504        22,504     2,100     28,347     2,853     48,491     27,457     99,342     
2017 22,510        22,510     2,080     28,480     2,855     48,515     27,445     99,505     

2018 22,524        22,524     2,067     28,988     2,872     48,557     27,462     100,068  
2019 22,535        22,535     2,073     29,174     2,868     48,692     27,476     100,401  
2020 22,569        22,569     2,079     29,659     2,862     48,998     27,510     101,227  
2021 22,608        22,608     2,098     29,824     2,860     49,073     27,550     101,505  

Average
Annual Average Average Average Average Average Average Average Average

Compound Annual Annual Annual Annual Annual Annual Annual Annual
Growth Rate Accounts ESUs Accounts ESUs Accounts ESUs Accounts ESUs

2011 to 2021 0.07% 0.07% 0.03% 0.66% 0.10% 0.26% 0.06% 0.33%
2016 to 2021 0.09% 0.09% �0.02% 1.02% 0.05% 0.24% 0.07% 0.43%
2019 to 2021 0.16% 0.16% 0.60% 1.11% �0.14% 0.39% 0.13% 0.55%

Source � City of West Palm Beach Utilities Rate Consultant.

Single Family Multifamily Commercial Total

Stormwater System Customer Growth            

Single Family Multifamily Commercial Total
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS

WASTEWATER SYSTEM CUSTOMER GROWTH

AS OF OCTOBER 1, 2021

(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Year Average Monthly
Ended Average Annual Billed Billed Flow

September 30 Units   (1) Sales (ccf) per Unit (gallons)

2012 52,841 5,524,306           6,517
2013 52,530 5,568,384           6,608
2014 52,372 5,729,737           6,820
2015 52,997 5,843,162           6,873

2016 53,600 5,874,063           6,831
2017 56,581 5,865,577           6,824
2018 53,576 5,776,696           5,856
2019 53,461 6,119,679           6,915
2020 54,556 5,751,956           6,572
2021 54,542 5,817,036           6,648

Average
Annual Average Monthly

Compound Average Annual Billed Billed Flow

2011 to 2021 0.24% 0.09% �0.15%

2016 to 2021 0.35% �0.19% �0.54%
2019 to 2021 1.01% �2.50% �1.95%

(1) � Units represent the sum of the residential dwelling and commercial accounts served.

Wastewater System Customer Growth

Source � City of West Palm Beach Utilities Rate Consultant.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS

UTILITY SYSTEM HISTORICAL DEBT COVERAGE ANALYSIS

FOR THE LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Water System Sales 64,754,761$       64,056,807$       67,674,244$       69,104,921$       72,278,441$       
Wastewater System Sales 30,324,107         31,035,061         32,428,909         33,873,746         35,633,451         

Stormwater System Sales 13,164,288         13,785,784         14,255,283         14,776,119         15,313,277         
Other Operating Revenues 10,224,984         11,268,523         11,749,253         11,935,486         12,222,016         
Total Operating Revenues 118,468,140       120,146,175       126,107,689       129,690,272       135,447,185       

Other Income 1,613,194            3,030,549            5,050,630            3,631,333            1,980,313            
Total Revenues 120,081,334       123,176,724       131,158,319       133,321,605       137,427,498       

Operating Expenses 63,298,326         67,826,636         69,167,531         67,504,610         71,898,131         
Applicable Impact Fees 726,433               862,450               856,589               824,476               1,185,929            

Net Revenues 57,509,441         56,212,538         62,847,377         66,641,471         66,715,296         
As a Percent of Total Revenues 47.89% 45.64% 47.92% 49.99% 48.55%
Transfers and Other [1] 39,884,935         39,369,889         41,160,453         40,976,484         42,783,697         

Debt Service Coverage:
     Rate Covenant Test 1 3.11 3.04 3.39 3.6 3.6
     Rate Covenant Test 2 1.44 1.43 1.53 1.63 1.63

Amount available for 

other purposes 17,624,506$       16,842,649$       21,686,924$       25,664,987$       23,931,599$       

Source � City of West Palm Beach Finance Department.

Source � City of West Palm Beach Utilities Rate Consultant.

(1) Includes transfers to General Fund (P.I.L.O.T.), renewal and 

replacement transfers, annual debt service payments on outstanding 

Fiscal Year Ended September 30:
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: UTILITY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS
UTILITY SYSTEM HISTORICAL SCHEDULE OF
NET CASH FLOW, DEBT SERVICE AND DEBT COVERAGE
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal
Year Net Revenue Maximum

Ended Operating Available for Debt Annual
September 30 Revenue Expenses Debt Service Service Coverage (1)

2012 95,737,970$   52,448,642$   43,805,073$   16,650,111$   2.63 x

2013 102,997,493   53,759,301     49,566,859      15,577,757      3.18 x

2014 108,215,403   54,962,050     53,714,708      15,344,375      3.50 x

2015 111,345,880   56,521,647     55,606,082      15,676,227      3.55 x

2016 112,824,919   63,087,241     50,515,924      14,956,603      3.38 x

2017 120,081,334   63,298,326     57,509,441      18,516,833      3.11 x

2018 123,176,724   67,826,636     56,212,538      18,516,833      3.04 x
2019 131,158,319   69,167,531     62,847,377      18,516,833      3.39 x
2020 133,321,605   67,504,610     66,641,471      18,516,831      3.60 x
2021 137,427,498   71,898,131     66,715,297      18,516,831      3.60 x

Source � City of West Palm Beach Utilities Rate Consultant.

(1) Before required transfers to Reserve Account, Renewal, Replacement and Improvement Fund, and to 
the General Reserve Fund.

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report - FYE 2021 C-15



This page intentionally left blank 



TAX INCREMENT REVENUE 
BONDS (NPCCRA )
(Unaudi ted)     
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: TAX INCREMENT REVENUE BONDS
HISTORICAL NPCCRA TAX INCREMENT REVENUES
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Percentage Dollar

Tax Roll Fiscal Increase/ Increase/

Year Year City of Decrease (Decrease)

Ended Ended West Palm Palm Beach Over Over

December 31 September 30 Beach County Total Prior Year Prior Year

2011 2012 1,480,112$       847,311$           2,327,424$       �1.86% (44,082)$            

2012 2013 1,503,051          860,500             2,363,551          1.55% 36,128               

2013 2014 1,584,528          905,194             2,489,722          5.34% 126,171             

2014 2015 1,782,533          1,020,421          2,802,955          12.58% 313,232             

2015 2016 1,822,340          1,039,511          2,861,851          2.10% 58,896               

2016 2017 2,127,784          1,009,039          3,136,823          9.61% 274,972             

2017 2018 2,263,248          1,401,457          3,664,705          16.83% 527,882             

2018 2019 2,540,870          1,471,018          4,011,888          9.47% 347,183             

2019 2020 2,718,972          1,535,868          4,254,840          6.06% 242,952             

2020 2021 2,828,466          1,649,625          4,478,091          5.25% 223,251             

Source � City of West Palm Beach Finance Department.  Data from statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 

balances, govermental funds.

(1) Palm Beach County began utilizing a different Taxable Value with tax roll year 2013 that adjusts for the county�wide

senior, historic and/or economic exemptions.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: TAX INCREMENT REVENUE BONDS

HISTORICAL NPCCRA REAL PROPERTY ASSESSED VALUES

FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)

A B =A�B

Tax Roll Fiscal Final Percentage Base Percentage Dollar
Year Year Gross Increase Year Increase Increase

Ended Ended Taxable Over Taxable Incremental Over Over
December 31 September 30 Value Prior Year Value (1) Value (2) Prior Year Prior Year

2010 2011 $ 308,967,242   �14.38% $ 86,933,276   $ 222,033,966   �18.95% $ (51,912,071)      

2011 2012 281,117,897   �9.01% 86,933,276   194,184,621   �12.54% (27,849,345)      

2012 2013 273,599,846   �2.67% 86,933,276   186,666,570   �3.87% (7,518,051)        

2013 2014 276,492,817   1.06% 86,933,276   189,559,541   1.55% 2,892,971         

2014 2015 286,768,468   3.72% 86,933,276   199,835,192   5.42% 10,275,651       

2015 2016 311,740,198   8.71% 86,933,276   224,806,922   12.50% 24,971,730       

2016 2017 346,037,449   11.00% 86,933,276   259,104,173   15.26% 34,297,251       
2017 2018 370,721,582   7.13% 86,933,276   283,788,306   9.53% 24,684,133       
2018 2019 403,823,945   8.93% 86,933,276   316,890,669   11.66% 33,102,363       
2019 2020 425,098,757   5.27% 86,933,276   338,165,481   6.71% 21,274,812       

2020 2021 439,298,522   3.34% 86,933,276   352,365,246   4.20% 14,199,765       

Source � City of West Palm Beach Finance Department.

(2) Incremental Value equals the Final Gross Taxable Value minus the Base Year Taxable Value.

(1) The boundaries of the Northwood/Pleasant City Community Redevelopment Area (the "NPCCRA") were expanded in December, 2001 to 

include the residential neighborhood located in the Pleasant City area. The aggregate assessed value of the taxable real property in the 

expanded boundary of the NPCCRA as of January 1, 2001, was $9,731,463. In tax roll year 2001, fiscal year 2002, such amount was added to 

the assessed value of the taxable property originally located in the NPCCRA to establish a new base year taxable value for use in determining 

the NPCCRA Tax Increment Revenues to be deposited into the NPCCRA Redevelopment Trust Fund. 

(3) Represents Final Taxable Value as provided by the Palm Beach County Property Appraiser's Office (the "PAO"). 
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: TAX INCREMENT REVENUE BONDS

HISTORICAL NPCCRA NEW CONSTRUCTION TAXABLE VALUES

FOR THE LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)

Tax Roll Fiscal
Year Year

Ended Ended New Construction
December 31 September 30 Taxable Value

2015 2016 $ 240,800 

2016 2017 (156,783) 

2017 2018 166,460 
2018 2019 8,770,774                
2019 2020 (750,276) 
2020 2021 347,605 

Source � City of West Palm Beach Finance Department.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: TAX INCREMENT REVENUE BONDS

HISTORICAL NPCCRA FINANCIAL REPORTS

FOR THE LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 Total

Revenues

   Tax Increment

       City of West Palm Beach $ 2,127,784   $ 2,263,248   $ 2,540,870     $ 2,718,972     $ 2,828,466     $ 12,479,340    

       Intergovernmental 1,009,039   1,401,457   1,471,018     1,535,868     1,649,625     7,067,007      

           Total Tax Increment 3,136,823   3,664,705   4,011,888     4,254,840     4,478,091     19,546,347    

   Miscellaneous

       Loan/ Assessment Repayments 37,102         60,100         33,392          29,200          19,450          206,371         

       Investment Earnings (General) 28,809         48,698         161,181        123,334        24,365          421,334         

       Other Miscellaneous Revenue 3,784           2,763           49,139          59,744          � 115,430 

          Total Miscellaneous 69,695         111,561       243,712        212,278        43,815          743,135         

             Total Revenues 3,206,518   3,776,266   4,255,600     4,467,118     4,521,906     20,289,482    

Expenditures

  Debt Service 2005B 847,698       848,968       847,813        844,465        673,415        4,062,359      

  Debt Service 2015 840,344       839,944       840,284        896,485        1,010,274     4,427,331      

  2016 PBC Note 30,585         37,363         40,556          40,556          233,680        382,740         

   Total Debt 1,718,627   1,726,275   1,728,653     1,781,506     1,917,369     8,872,430      

   Operations

     City Cost Allocation (1)

        Operating Expense 539,539       578,640       686,767        781,379        1,750,371     4,336,696      

        City Administrative Expense 667,216       667,216       705,369        523,029        327,924        2,890,754      

        Innovative Policing Expense 188,811       162,365       150,414        448,823        265,563        1,215,976      

   Capital Outlay 95,850         116,344       2,200,000     � � 2,412,194      

      Total Operations 1,491,416   1,524,565   3,742,550     1,753,231     2,343,858     10,855,620    

             Total Expenditures 3,210,043   3,250,840   5,471,203     3,534,737     4,261,227     19,728,050    

            Surplus/(Deficit) $ (3,525)          $ 525,426       $ (1,215,603)    $ 932,381        $ 260,679        $ 561,432         

Source: City of West Palm Beach Finance Department.

(1) Represents an allocation by the City of allowable costs incurred by the Agency in its implementation of the NPCCRA
Redevelopment Plan.  The City expects to continue funding of such services, (subject to approval by the City 
Commission) in the absence of available Agency funding for any portion of the City's cost allocation.

For the Fiscal Year Ending September 30:
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: TAX INCREMENT REVENUE BONDS

HISTORICAL NPCCRA TAX INCREMENT REVENUES, DEBT SERVICES,

AND DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE

FOR THE LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal

 Year 

2017 3,136,823$    847,698$    3.70 840,344$     1.72 2,503,696$        1.25 x

2018 3,664,705      848,968      4.32 839,944 2.35 2,502,507 1.46 x

2019 4,011,888      847,813      4.73 840,284 2.77 2,499,182 1.61 x

2020 4,254,840      844,465      5.04 896,485       2.80 2,328,146 1.83 x

2021 4,478,091      673,415      6.65 1,010,274    2.77 1,654,731 2.71 x

(1) Series 2005A bonds were refunded in FY 2015 by the Series 2015  bonds.

(2) Series 2005B and 2015 Bonds

Debt 

Service 

Coverage

 on

 Series 

2015

Bonds

Maximum 

Annual

 Debt

 Service

 on Series  

 2005B and 

2015

 Bonds

Maximum 

Annual 

Debt 

Service

Coverage 

(2)

NPCCRA Tax 

Increment

 Revenues

Debt Sevice

 on 

Series 

2005B

 Bonds

Debt 

Service 

Coverage

 on

 Series 

2005B

Bonds

Debt 

Sevice

 on 

Series 

2015

 Bonds
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: TAX INCREMENT REVENUE BONDS

HISTORICAL NPCCRA TAX INCREMENT REVENUES AND GROWTH

FOR THE LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Actual Revenue Growth 15.81% 11.38% 15.26% 9.81% 6.55%

Existing Value $ 346,194,232    $ 370,555,122    $ 395,053,171    $ 425,849,033    $ 438,950,917    

Taxing Authority:

  City of West Palm Beach

     New Construction (156,783)          166,460            8,770,774        (750,276)          347,605            

    Taxable Value 346,037,449    370,721,582    403,823,945    425,098,757    439,298,522    

     Base Year Value 86,933,276      86,933,276      86,933,276      86,933,276      86,933,276      

       Tax Increment 259,104,173    283,788,306    316,890,669    338,165,481    352,365,246    

     Millage Rate (City) 8.3465 8.3465 8.3465 8.3465 8.3465

     Gross Incremental Revenue 2,162,613 2,368,639 2,644,928 2,822,498 2,941,017

      Statutory Reduction 0.95% 0.95% 0.95% 0.95% 0.95%

        Incremental Revenue 2,054,482        2,250,207        2,512,682        2,681,373        2,793,966        

  Palm Beach County

     Millage Rate (County) 4.7815              4.7815              4.7815              4.7815              4.7815              

     Gross Incremental Revenue 1,238,907 1,356,934 1,515,213 1,616,938 1,684,834

      Statutory Reduction 0.95% 0.95% 0.95% 0.95% 0.95%

     Incremental Revenue 1,176,961        1,289,087        1,439,452        1,536,091        1,600,593        

          Total Revenue $ 3,231,444        $ 3,539,294        $ 3,952,134        $ 4,217,465        $ 4,394,558        

(1) Table represents calculated tax increment revenues based on reported taxable values. Actual collections may vary.

For the Fiscal Year Ending September 30 (1)
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: TAX INCREMENT REVENUE BONDS

NPCCRA PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS

TAX ROLL YEAR 2020/FISCAL YEAR 2021

(UNAUDITED)

Percentage of
Fiscal Prior

Taxable Year Gross
Taxpayer Use of Property Value (1) Taxable Value

1515 Flagler Property LP Office Multistory 31,000,000$    7.68%

Park PB LLC Multifamily 14,520,000       3.60%

920 N Stanley Partners LLC Vacant Commercial 14,308,245       3.54%

Mountain West Palm Real Estate, Inc. Warehouse/Dist Term 8,546,580         2.12%

2014 Cahuenga Partners LP & Vacant Commercial 8,346,476         2.07%

U & Me Transfer Inc. Warehouse/Distribution 6,152,899         1.52%

La Boheme Properties Inc Light Manufacturing 5,840,996         1.45%
Silc R W Light Manufacturing 3,943,934         0.98%

1919 N Flager Drive Assocites LLC Office Multistory 3,773,764         0.93%

Alliance HP Lakeside LLC Warehouse/Dist Term 3,500,482         0.87%
Total 24.75%

Source � City of West Palm Beach Finance Department and the Palm Beach County Property Appraiser's Office

 (the "PAO").

(1) Represents Final Taxable Value as provided by the Palm Beach County Property Appraiser's Office (the "PAO").
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: TAX INCREMENT REVENUE BONDS

NPCCRA PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENTS

TAX ROLL YEAR 2019/FISCAL YEAR 2020

(UNAUDITED)

Percentage of
Fiscal Prior

Taxable Year Gross

Development Use of Property Value (1),(2) Taxable Value

Flagler Pointe Condominium Condominium 56,381,595$    13.96%

Northwood Addition�Platt Book 8 Store/Office/Residential 46,243,182      11.45%

Bethesda Park Store/Office/Residential 45,762,666      11.33%

The Slade Condominium Condominium 42,125,103      10.43%

1515 N Flagler Office Multistory 31,000,000      7.68%

Northwood Add 7 Warehouse/Dist Term 23,484,514      5.82%

Westfield WPB No. 1 Warehouse/Dist Term 17,376,461      4.30%

Portofino Condominium Condominium 16,400,373      4.06%

Parkland Replat Multifamily 14,520,000      3.60%

Australian Park INC Warehouse/Dist Term 13,433,143      3.33%

Total 75.96%

Source � City of West Palm Beach Finance Department and the Palm Beach County Property Appraiser's Office (the 

(1) Taxable value represents the value for the entire development and not the taxable value attributable to any 

individual taxpayer 

(2) Represents Final Taxable Value as provided by the Palm Beach County Property Appraiser's Office (the "PAO").
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: TAX INCREMENT REVENUE BONDS

NPCCRA HISTORICAL MILLAGE RATES

FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)

Tax Roll Fiscal
Year Year City of

Ended Ended West Palm Palm Beach

December 31 September 30 Beach County

2011 2012 8.0739 4.7815               

2012 2013 8.3465 4.7815               

2013 2014 8.3465 4.7815               

2014 2015 8.3465 4.7815               

2015 2016 8.3465 4.7815               

2016 2017 8.3465 4.7815               

2017 2018 8.3465 4.7815               

2018 2019 8.3465 4.7815               
2019 2020 8.3465 4.7815               

2020 2021 8.3465 4.7815               

Source � City of West Palm Beach Finance Department.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: TAX INCREMENT REVENUE BONDS

HISTORICAL CCCRA TAX INCREMENT REVENUES

FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)

Tax Roll Fiscal Percentage
Year Year City of Downtown Increase

Ended Ended West Palm Palm Beach Development Over
December 31 September 30 Beach County Authority Total Prior Year

2011 2012 $ 12,060,221         $ 7,116,606      $ 1,141,009       $ 20,317,836     �2.13%
2012 2013 12,583,432$       7,166,597$    1,125,380$     20,875,409$   2.74%

2013 2014 12,761,457         7,308,494      1,026,734       21,096,685     1.06%

2014 2015 13,597,244         7,792,666      1,104,470       22,494,380     6.63%

2015 2016 15,769,313         8,789,582      1,265,184       25,824,079     14.80%
2016 2017 17,966,711         9,921,556      1,460,523       29,348,790     13.65%
2017 2018 19,441,992         11,001,076    1,660,331       32,103,399     9.39%
2018 2019 20,993,469         11,871,100    1,806,897       34,671,466     8.00%
2019 2020 23,265,472         13,118,230    2,045,520       38,429,222     10.84%
2020 2021 23,778,068         13,419,019    2,103,786       39,300,873     2.27%

Source � City of West Palm Beach Finance Department.

(1) Palm Beach County began utilizing a different Taxable Value with tax roll year 2012 that adjusts for the county�wide senior, 
historic and/or economic exemptions.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: TAX INCREMENT REVENUE BONDS
HISTORICAL CCCRA TAX INCREMENT REVENUES, DEBT SERVICES,
AND DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE

FOR THE LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal 

Year 

CCCRA Tax 

Increment

 Revenues

Debt 

Service on

 Series 2006A 

Bonds

Debt Service 

Coverage on 

Series 2006A 

Bonds

Debt 

Service

 on Series 

2010A 

Refunding

 Bonds

Debt 

Service 

Coverage 

on Series 

2010A 

Refunding 

Bonds

Debt 

Service

 on Series 

2015 

Refunding

 Bonds

Debt 

Service

 Coverage on 

Series 2015 

Refunding

 Bonds

Debt 

Service

 on Series 

2019

 Bonds

Debt Service 

Coverage on

 Series 2019 

Bonds

Maximum 

Annual

 Debt Service

 on Series 2006A, 

2010A, 2015 and 

2019

 Bonds (1)

Maximum 

Annual 

Debt 

Service

 Coverage 

2017 29,348,790$    1,080,015$    27.17 1,113,481$    25.39 4,112,650$    6.60               �$  N/A 6,341,781$          4.63 x

2018 32,103,399      1,080,015      29.72 1,136,909      27.29 4,118,400      7.26               � N/A 6,341,781            5.06 x

2019 34,671,466      1,001,935      34.60 1,144,668      29.41 4,324,780      7.52               � N/A 16,702,900          2.08 x

2020 38,429,222      223 172,715.60 1,135,137      33.85 4,116,775      9.06               6,191,657      5.36 16,690,376          2.30 x

2021 39,300,873      223 176,237.10 1,122,615      35.01 4,115,525      9.28               6,202,000      5.49 15,557,761          2.53 x

(1) Prior to 2017, the maximum annual debt service represented the total annual debt service of outstanding CRA bonds.  This was corrected in 2017 to represent the greatest debt service requirement in the then 

current or any succeeding fiscal years for each of the outstanding CRA series bonds.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: TAX INCREMENT REVENUE BONDS
HISTORICAL CCCRA REAL PROPERTY ASSESSED VALUES
CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH AND PALM BEACH COUNTY
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

A B =A�B
Tax Roll Fiscal Final Percentage Base Percentage

Year Year Gross Increase Year Increase
Ended Ended Taxable Over Taxable Incremental Over

December 31 September 30 Value Prior Year Value Value (1) Prior Year

2011 2012 1,818,539,815      �2.03% 251,511,950      1,567,027,865      �2.35%

2012 2013 1,829,612,152      0.61% 251,511,950      1,578,100,202      0.71%

2013 2014 1,860,942,669      1.71% 251,511,950      1,609,430,719      1.99%

2014 (2) 2015 (2) 1,969,866,074      5.85% 251,511,950      1,718,354,124      6.77%

2015 (2) 2016 (2) 2,191,637,208      11.26% 251,511,950      1,940,125,258      12.91%

2016 (2) 2017 (2) 2,439,488,349      11.31% 251,511,950      2,187,976,399      12.78%
2017 (2) 2018 (2) 2,675,134,453      9.66% 251,511,950      2,423,622,503      10.77%
2018 (2) 2019 (2) 2,863,165,768      7.03% 251,511,950      2,611,653,818      7.76%
2019 (2) 2020 (2) 3,132,127,764      17.08% 251,511,950      2,880,615,814      18.86%
2020 (2) 2021 (2) 3,206,183,447      2.36% 251,511,950      2,954,671,497      2.57%

Source � City of West Palm Beach Finance Department.

(1) Incremental Value equals the Final Gross Taxable Value minus the Base Year Taxable Value.

(2) Represents Final Taxable Value (prior to value adjustment and board reviews) as provided by the Palm Beach County Property

Appraiser's Office.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: TAX INCREMENT REVENUE BONDS
HISTORICAL CCCRA REAL PROPERTY ASSESSED VALUES
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)

A B =A�B

Tax Roll Fiscal Final Percentage Base Percentage

Year Year Gross Increase Year Increase

Ended Ended Taxable Over Taxable Incremental Over

December 31 September 30 Value Prior Year Value Value (1) Prior Year

2011 2012 1,387,796,768       �3.58% 191,563,585       1,196,233,183      �4.13%

2012 2013 1,362,354,481       �1.83% 191,563,585       1,170,790,896      �2.13%

2013 2014 1,271,519,588       �6.67% 191,563,585       1,079,956,003      �7.76%

2014 2015 1,354,104,804       6.50% 191,563,585       1,162,541,219      7.65%

2015 (2) 2016 (2) 1,511,956,059       11.66% 191,563,585       1,320,392,474      13.58%

2016 (2) 2017 (2) 1,723,267,764       13.98% 191,563,585       1,531,704,179      16.00%

2017 (2) 2018 (2) 1,933,403,651       12.19% 191,563,585       1,741,840,066      13.72%

2018 (2) 2019 (2) 2,092,791,478       8.24% 191,563,585       1,901,227,893      9.15%

2019 (2) 2020 (2) 2,335,976,790       11.62% 191,563,585       2,144,413,205      12.79%

2020 (2) 2021 (2) 2,402,716,311       2.86% 191,563,585       2,211,152,726      3.11%

Source � City of West Palm Beach Finance Department.

(1) Incremental Value equals the Final Gross Taxable Value minus the Base Year Taxable Value.

(2) Represents Final Taxable Value as provided by the Palm Beach County Property Appraiser's Office (the "PAO"), 

revised 3/2021.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: TAX INCREMENT REVENUE BONDS

CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH HISTORICAL NEW CONSTRUCTION TAXABLE VALUES

FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal New 

Year Construction

Ended Taxable 

September 30 Value (1)

2011 2012 63,486,923        
2012 2013 25,758,944        
2013 2014 40,222,008        
2014 2015 4,157,155          
2015 2016 268,718,261      

2016 2017 187,932,124      

2017 2018 89,461,081        

2018 2019 140,119,568      

2019 2020 250,745,777      

2020 2021 482,201,975      

Source � Palm Beach County, Florida Property Appraiser's Office.

(1) Represents taxable values of new construction after such construction has been completed 

ĂŶĚ�ĂĚĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ�ƌŽůůƐ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�WĂůŵ��ĞĂĐŚ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�WƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ��ƉƉƌĂŝƐĞƌ͛Ɛ�KĨĨŝĐĞ͘�

Decreases in taxable values following Fiscal Year 2010 are the result of the completion of large 

construction projects, their addition to the assessment rolls by Fiscal Year 2010 and the

absence of such projects for several years resulting from the economic downturn.

Tax Roll

Year

Ended

December 31
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: TAX INCREMENT REVENUE BONDS
HISTORICAL CCCRA NEW CONSTRUCTION TAXABLE VALUES
FOR THE LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Tax Roll Fiscal New 
Year Year Construction

Ended Ended Taxable 
December 31 September 30 Value

2016 2017 40,594,679      
2017 2018 24,048,035      
2018 2019 59,792,939      
2019 2020 135,911,823   
2020 2021 6,413,641        

Source � City of West Palm Beach Finance Department.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: TAX INCREMENT REVENUE BONDS
CCCRA PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS
TAX ROLL YEAR 2020/FISCAL YEAR 2021
(UNAUDITED)

Percentage of
Fiscal Prior

Taxable Year Gross

Taxpayer Use of Property Value (1) Taxable Value

CPT Phillips Point LLC Office Multistory $ 186,999,738          7.67%

CPT Equity LLC Office Multistory 126,854,998          5.20%

222 Lakeview LLC Office Multistory 102,166,775          4.19%

CityPlace Retail LLC Shopping Center Regional 86,257,544            3.54%

Avalon Alexander LLC Multifamily 80,858,831            3.31%

Reep MF Park Line FL LLC Multifamily 80,000,000            3.28%

Northbridge Property Owner LLC Office Multistory 75,031,285            3.08%

Trea Sole At City Center Multifamily 71,500,000            2.93%

CL Loftin Place LP Multifamily 55,718,814            2.28%

Flagler Center Properties Multifamily 53,573,502            2.20%
TOTAL 37.67%

Source � City of West Palm Beach Finance Department and the Palm Beach County Property Appraiser's Office 

(1) Represents Final Taxable Value as provided by the Palm Beach County Property Appraiser's Office
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: TAX INCREMENT REVENUE BONDS
CCCRA PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENTS
TAX ROLL YEAR 2020/FISCAL YEAR 2021
(UNAUDITED)

Percentage of
Fiscal Prior

Taxable Year Gross
Development Use of Property Value (1),(2) Taxable Value

Cityplace PL 1 Shopping Center Regional $ 208,962,542         7.81%

Two City Plaza Condominium Condominium 197,645,088         7.39%

Trupm Plaza of the Palm Beaches Condominium Office Multistory 163,621,316         6.12%

Phillips Point RESUB BLKS A & B Office Multistory 160,997,695         6.02%

Phillips Point Add to WPB Office Multistory 142,355,716         5.32%

One Watermark Place of the Palm Beaches Condominium 140,750,692         5.26%

Waterview Towers Condomium Condominium 138,271,065         5.17%

CityPlace South Tower Condo Condominium 133,753,004         5.00%

One City Plaza Condominium Condominium 103,088,519         3.85%

Railway Add to WPB Office Multistory 89,052,823           3.33%
TOTAL 55.27%

Source � City of West Palm Beach Finance Department and the Palm Beach County Property Appraiser's Office. 

(1) Taxable value represents the value for the entire development and not the taxable value attributable to any individual taxpayer

(e.g. taxable for condominiums is for the entire complex, not any individual condominium owner or group of owners).

(2) Represents Final Taxable Value as provided by the Palm Beach County Property Appraiser's Office.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE:  PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS IN PALM BEACH COUNTY

CURRENT AND NINE YEARS PRIOR

SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

(UNAUDITED)

Percentage of Percentage of
Total County Total County

Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
Palm Beach County School District 22,600         1 3.15% 21,495         1 3.46%
Tenet Coastal Division Palm Beach County 6,505           2 0.91% 6,100           4 99.00%
Palm Beach County Government 5,686           3 0.79% 11,381         2 1.83%
NextEra Energy/Florida Power & Light Company 5,119           4 0.71% 3,635           6 0.58%
Florida Atlantic University 3,133           5 0.44% 2,706           9 0.44%
Boca Raton Regional Hospital 3,052           6 0.43%
Veterans Health Administration 3,000           7 0.42%
HCA Healthcare 2,806           8 0.39% 2,714           8 0.44%
The Breakers 2,300           9 0.32%
Bethesda Memorial Hospital 2,282           10 0.32% 2,391           10 0.38%
State Govermment 4,029           5 1.48%
Federal Govermment 6,200           3 1.00%
G4S 3,000           7 0.49%
Total 56,483         7.88% 63,651         109.10%

Source: Business Development Board of Palm Beach County. 
* Updated data unavailable as of CAFR publication date.
** Uses data available as of 01/2020.

2021 2012
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: TAX INCREMENT REVENUE BONDS
CCCRA HISTORICAL MILLAGE RATES � UNAUDITED
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Tax Roll Fiscal
Year Year City of Downtown

Ended Ended West Palm Palm Beach Development
December 31 September 30 Beach County Authority (1)

2011 2012 8.3465              4.7500          1.0000             

2012 2013 8.3465              4.7815          1.0000             

2013 2014 8.3465              4.7815          1.0000             

2014 2015 8.3465              4.7815          1.0000             

2015 2016 8.3465              4.7815          1.0000             

2016 2017 8.3465              4.7815          1.0000             

2017 2018 8.3465              4.7815          1.0000             
2018 2019 8.3465              4.7815          1.0000             

2019 2020 8.3465              4.7815          1.0000             

2020 2021 8.3465              4.7815          1.0000             

Source � City of West Palm Beach Finance Department.

(1) Pursuant to Interlocal Agreement, revenue derived from the second mill of the DDA tax levy has been

exempted from inclusion into the CCCRA Redevelopment Trust Fund, as such revenue is to be used by the

DDA to provide trolley service and marketing programs to retain and attract business in the CCCRA or for any

other purpose that supports the CCCRA Redevelopment Plan.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: TAX INCREMENT REVENUE BONDS

CCCRA TAX INCREMENT REVENUES

DEBT SERVICE ON BONDS AND DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE (INCLUDING COVERAGE REVENUES 

 AS CCCRA TAX INCREMENT REVENUES)
FOR THE LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Year

Total Tax 

Increment 

Revenues (1)

Prior Senior 

Obligations 

(minus 

Coverage 

Revenues)

CCCRA Tax 

Increment 

Revenues (Net 

of Prior Senior 

Obligations)

Debt Service 

on Senior 

Bonds

Debt Service 

Coverage on 

Senior Bonds

Debt Service 

on 

Subordinate 

Bonds

Debt Service 

Coverage on 

Senior Bonds 

and 

Subordinate 

Bonds

Maximum 

Annual Debt 

Service on 

Senior Bonds 

and 

Subordinate 

Bonds

Maximum 

Annual Debt 

Service 

Coverage on 

Senior Bonds 

and 

Subordinate 

Bonds

2017 29,348,790$    4,450,000$   24,898,790$    5,193,415$   4.79 x 1,113,481$     3.95 x 6,341,781$     3.93 x

2018 32,103,399       4,454,250      27,649,149      5,199,165     5.32 x 1,136,909       4.36 x 6,341,781       4.36 x
2019 34,671,466       4,456,750      30,214,716      5,326,715     5.67 x 1,144,668       4.67 x 4,124,261       7.33 x

2020 38,429,222       4,740,804      33,688,418      3,986,420     8.45 x 1,135,160       6.58 x 4,124,261       8.17 x
2021 39,300,873       4,674,622      34,626,251      5,229,954     6.62 x � 6.62 x 15,557,761     2.23 x

(1) This does not include miscellaneous revenues as included in the debt coverage on the income statement.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: TAX INCREMENT REVENUE BONDS
CCCRA TAX INCREMENT REVENUES

DEBT SERVICE ON BONDS AND DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE (ASSUMING THE COVERAGE REVENUES WERE NOT AVAILABLE)
FOR THE LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Year

Total Tax 

Increment 

Revenues (1)

Prior Senior 

Obligations 

(Including 

Coverage 

Revenues)

CCCRA Tax 

Increment 

Revenues (Net 

of Prior Senior 

Obligations)

Debt Service 

on Senior 

Bonds

Debt 

Service 

Coverage 

on Senior 

Bonds

Debt Service 

on 

Subordinate 

Bonds

Debt Service 

Coverage on 

Senior Bonds 

and 

Subordinate 

Bonds

Maximum 

Annual Debt 

Service on 

Senior Bonds 

and 

Subordinate 

Bonds

Maximum Annual 

Debt Service 

Coverage on 

Senior Bonds and 

Subordinate 

Bonds

2017 $ 29,348,790   $ 7,488,027    $ 21,860,763       $ 5,193,415    4.21 x $ 1,113,481    3.47 x $ 6,341,781      3.45 x
2018 32,103,399   7,525,566    24,577,833       5,199,165    4.73 x 1,136,909    3.88 x 6,341,781      3.88 x
2019 34,671,466   7,579,246    27,092,220       5,326,715    5.09 x 1,144,668    4.19 x 4,124,261      6.57 x
2020 38,429,222   7,882,935    30,546,287       3,986,420    7.66 x 1,135,160    5.96 x 4,124,261      7.41 x
2021 39,300,873   7,816,753    31,484,120       5,229,954    6.02 x � 6.02 x 15,557,761    2.02 x

(1) This does not include miscellaneous revenues as included in the debt coverage on the income statement.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: TAX INCREMENT REVENUE BONDS
CCCRA TAX INCREMENT REVENUES
TAX INCREMENT REVENUES AND GROWTH

FOR THE LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Increase (Decrease) in Existing Value
Existing Value $ 2,398,893,670    $ 2,651,086,418    $ 2,803,286,371    $ 2,996,215,941    $ 3,125,714,123    
New construction 40,594,679         24,048,035         59,792,939         135,911,823       6,413,641           

Final Gross Taxable Value 2,439,488,349    2,675,134,453    2,863,079,310    3,132,127,764    3,132,127,764    
Base Year Taxable Value (251,511,950)      (251,511,950)      (251,511,950)      (251,511,950)      (251,511,950)      

Incremental Taxable Value 2,187,976,399    2,423,622,503    2,611,567,360    2,880,615,814    2,880,615,814    

City of West Palm Beach
Millage Rate (City) 8.3465 8.3465 8.3465 8.3465 8.3465 
Gross Incremental Revenue 18,261,945         20,228,765         21,797,447         24,043,060         24,043,060         
Adjustment (1) 650,382               236,490               300,941               446,911               446,911               
Statutory Reduction (5%) (945,616)             (1,023,263)          (1,104,919)          (1,224,499)          (1,224,499)          

City Tax Incremental Revenue 17,966,711         19,441,992         20,993,469         23,265,472         23,265,472         
Palm Beach County

Millage Rate (County) 4.7815 4.7815 4.7815 4.7815 4.7815 
Gross Incremental Revenue 10,461,809         11,588,551         12,487,209         13,773,665         13,773,665         
Adjustment (1) (18,066)                (8,471) 8,685 34,999 34,999 
Statutory Reduction (5%) (522,187)             (579,004)             (624,795)             (690,433)             (690,433)             

County Tax Incremental Revenue 9,921,556           11,001,076         11,871,100         13,118,230         13,118,230         
Downtown Redevelopment Authority
Final Gross Taxable Value 1,725,462,556    1,936,430,582    2,092,791,478    2,335,976,790    2,402,716,311    
Base Year Taxable Value (191,563,585)      (191,563,585)      (191,563,585)      (191,563,585)      (191,563,585)      

Incremental Taxable Value 1,533,898,971    1,744,866,997    1,901,227,893    2,144,413,205    2,211,152,726    
Millage Rate (DDA) 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 1.0000 
Gross Incremental Revenue 1,533,899           1,744,867           1,901,228           2,144,413           2,211,153           
Adjustment (1) 3,494 2,850 769 8,766 8,766 
Statutory Reduction (5%) (76,870)                (87,386)                (95,100)                (107,659)             (110,996)             

DDA Tax Incremental Revenue $ 1,460,523           $ 1,660,331           $ 1,806,897           $ 2,045,520           $ 2,108,923           

(1) Palm Beach County began utilizing a different Taxable Value with tax roll year 2012 that adjusts for the county�wide senior, historic and/or economic
exemptions.

For the Fiscal Year Ending September 30:
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: TAX INCREMENT REVENUE BONDS

CCCRA STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30:
(UNAUDITED)

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Revenues

Tax Increment

City of West Palm Beach County $ 17,966,711         $ 19,441,992         $ 20,993,469         $ 23,265,472         $ 23,778,068         

Palm Beach County 9,921,556            11,001,076         11,871,100         13,118,230         13,419,019         

Downtown Development Authority 1,460,523            1,660,331            1,806,897           2,045,520            2,103,786            

29,348,790         32,103,399         34,671,466         38,429,222         39,300,873         

Other intergovernmental revenue � 183,366               18,468 552,700               � 

Other Revnues

Rents and Royalties 309,429               253,497               130,101               319,437               302,516               

Investment Earnings (General) 140,113               308,616               1,031,501           802,128               137,179               

Miscellaneous Revenues (1) 71,372 91,806                  181,889               567,308               1,083,352            

Proceeds From Sale of Capital Assets � � 760,000               � 52,348                  

Total Other Revenues 520,914               653,919               2,103,491           1,688,873            1,575,395            

Total CCCRA Revenues $ 29,869,704         $ 32,940,684         $ 36,793,425         $ 40,670,795         $ 40,876,268         

Expenditure

Prior Senior Obligations

CDD Bonds 4,270,000            4,274,250            4,276,750           4,560,804            4,494,622            

Renaissance Increment Revenues 180,000               180,000               180,000               180,000               180,000               

Total Prior Senior Obligations 4,450,000            4,454,250            4,456,750           4,740,804            4,674,622            

Obligations Under Original Resolution

Senior Bonds (2) 5,193,415            5,199,165            5,326,715           3,986,420            4,107,519            

Subordinate Bonds (2) 1,113,481            1,136,909            1,144,668           1,135,160            1,122,435            

Total original Resolution Obligations 6,306,896            6,336,074            6,471,383           5,121,580            5,229,954            

Senior Bonds Debt Service Coverage 4.89 5.48 6.07 9.01 8.81 

Total Debt Service Coverage 4.03 4.50 5.00 7.02 6.92 

Subordinate Obligations

City Advances and Loans (3) 1,908,050            2,700,631            2,530,131           8,541,451            8,652,357            

DDA Interlocal Agreement 3,103,032            3,502,647            3,795,780           4,273,025            4,389,557            

Total Subordinate Obligations 5,011,082            6,203,278            6,325,911           12,814,476         13,041,914         

Operations

City Cost Allocation

City Administrative Expense 4,352,612            4,352,612            4,701,549           5,064,000            5,303,178            

Trolley Contribution 135,369               135,369               33,842 � 272,287               

DDA Project Funding 580,000               580,000               413,938               409,500               385,000               

Clematis Streetscape � 1,638,577            1,265,963           55,191                  58,539                  

Redevelopment Incentive Grants � 488,191               1,271,495           2,014,945            9,185,287            

Other Operating Costs 2,582,672            3,258,397            3,407,369           3,975,008            3,777,529            

Capital Outlay 1,331,090            9,209,858            1,577,925           4,174,855            5,353,678            

Total Operations 8,981,743            19,663,005         12,672,081         15,693,499         24,335,498         

Total Expenditures 24,749,721         36,656,607         29,926,125         38,370,359         47,281,988         

Net Change in Fund Balances 5,119,991            (3,715,922)          6,867,300           2,300,436            (6,405,720)          

Fund Balances � Beginning 22,384,408         27,504,399         23,788,476         30,655,776         32,956,212         

Fund Ballances � Ending $ 27,504,399         $ 23,788,476         $ 30,655,776         $ 32,956,212         $ 26,550,492         

(1) Includes transfers�in and interfund income

(2) Includes transfers�in and other debt service costs in addition to principal and interest

(3) Includes transfers�out and advance payments
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
TAXABLE VALUES AND GROSS ASSESSED VALUE OF PROPERTY
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal

Year Gross
Tax Roll Ended Real Personal Centrally Total Exemptions & Assessed

Year September 30 Property Property Assessed Property Adjustments (2) Values

2011 2012 7,772,722,569         590,003,300      10,939,288      8,373,665,157         2,645,489,030       11,019,154,187       

2012 2013 7,520,194,033         581,248,590      11,325,576      8,112,768,199         2,569,482,013       10,682,250,212       

2013 2014 7,729,608,349         581,279,065      11,243,415      8,322,130,829         2,616,893,531       10,939,024,360       

2014 2015 8,254,913,572         616,902,702      12,379,013      8,884,195,287         2,681,275,118       11,565,470,405       

2015 2016 9,293,035,997         665,054,642      13,848,568      9,971,939,207         2,807,722,858       12,779,662,065       

2016 2017 10,308,824,564       679,378,289      15,081,124      11,003,283,977       2,991,957,270       13,995,241,247       

2017 2018 11,225,820,242       625,611,004      15,641,741      11,867,072,987       3,217,115,879       15,084,188,866       

2018 2019 12,000,259,772       668,264,350      16,147,650      12,684,671,772       3,469,576,881       16,154,248,653       
2019 2020 12,889,581,491       646,713,362      61,106,484      13,597,401,337       3,570,322,530       17,167,723,867       
2020 2021 13,911,087,971       682,409,012      42,258,225      14,635,755,208       3,757,941,388       18,393,696,596       

Source � Palm Beach County Property Appraiser's Office

Taxable Value for Operating Millage (1)

(1) Assessed values are established by the Palm Beach County Property Appraiser's Office as of January 1 each year. State law requires that assessed values be established at 100% of 

estimated actual value.

(2) Exemptions provided by State law include exemptions for homestead, government, institutions and for certain individuals who qualify as widows, disabled persons or senior citizens. 

Adjustments provided by State law include certain lands used for agriculture, high�water recharge, pollution control devices and certain historically significant properties.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Outstanding
Fiscal Current Total Delinquent
Year Total Gross Percent Delinquent Total Collections Outstanding Taxes as

Ended Property Tax Property Tax of Levy Property Tax Property Tax as Percent of Delinquent Percent of
September 30 Levy Collections Collected Collections Collections Current Levy Taxes Current Levy

2012 69,227,999     63,978,383     92.4% 2,715,092    66,693,475     96.3% 166,797       0.2%

2013 69,341,005     64,406,609     92.9% 2,457,707    66,864,316     96.4% 272,321       0.4%

2014 69,644,759     66,475,683     95.4% 2,091,703    68,567,386     98.5% 2,285,147    3.3%

2015 73,988,745     70,973,106     95.9% 1,849,963    71,977,487     97.3% 399,004       0.5%

2016 87,199,972     81,639,326     93.6% 1,250,931    82,890,258     95.1% 5,560,645    6.4%

2017 94,758,234     89,918,038     94.9% 474,276       90,392,314     95.4% 4,840,196    5.1%

2018 103,719,989   97,007,660     93.5% 37,005         97,044,665     93.6% 6,712,329    6.5%
2019 107,652,806   103,273,195   96.0% 216,999       103,622,352   96.2% 1,435,107    1.3%
2020 115,462,746   110,881,873   96.0% 188,157       111,070,030   96.2% 5,465,047    4.7%
2021 124,457,845   119,315,512   95.9% 251,992       119,567,504   96.1% 4,890,341    3.9%

Source � City of West Palm Beach Finance Department and the Palm Beach County Tax Collector's Office.

(1) Data from General fund only.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS
TAX ROLL YEAR 2020/FISCAL YEAR 2021
(UNAUDITED)

Percentage

of Total

Assessed Assessed

Taxpayer Value (1) Valuation

CPT Phillips Point LLC $ 186,999,738 1 1.16%

Palm Beach Outlets I LLC 174,725,968 2 1.08%

CPT Equity LLC 126,854,998 3 0.78%

222 Lakeview LLC 102,166,775 4 0.63%

Aaron Drive Holdings LLC 94,346,328 5 0.58%

Cityplace Retail LLC 86,257,544 6 0.53%

Avalon Alexander LLC 83,915,201       7 0.52%

CLPF Marketplace LLC 80,433,364 8 0.50%

Reep MF Park Line FL LLC 80,000,000       9 0.49%

Northbridge Property Owner LLC 75,031,285       10 0.46%

6.74%

(1) Source � Palm Beach County Tax Collector.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
PROPERTY TAX RATES�DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Florida
Inland South Florida

Fiscal Year City of West Palm Beach Children's Navigation Palm Beach Water Health
Tax Roll Ended General Debt Services District Palm Beach County Management Everglades Care Total

Year September 30 Operations Service Total DDA (2) (2) County School Board District Construction District (1)

2011 2012 8.0739 0.1932 8.2671 1.0000 0.7475 0.0345 4.9925 8.1800 0.3739 0.0624 1.1250 24.7829

2012 2013 8.3465 0.2004 8.5469 1.0000 0.7300 0.0345 4.9902 7.7780 0.3676 0.0613 1.1220 24.6305

2013 2014 8.3465 0.1955 8.5420 1.0000 0.7025 0.0345 4.9852 7.5860 0.3523 0.0587 1.0800 24.3412

2014 2015 8.3465 0.1838 8.5303 1.0000 0.6745 0.0345 4.9729 7.5940 0.3294 0.0548 1.0800 24.2704

2015 2016 8.3465 0.163 8.5095 1.0000 0.6677 0.0320 4.9277 7.5120 0.1459 0.0506 1.0426 23.8880

2016 2017 8.3465 0.1481 8.4946 1.0000 0.6833 0.0320 4.9142 7.0700 0.1359 0.0471 0.8993 23.2764

2017 2018 8.3465 0.1481 8.4946 1.0000 0.6590 0.0320 4.9023 6.7690 0.1275 0.0441 0.7808 22.8093

2018 2019 8.3465 0.1283 8.4748 1.0000 0.6403 0.0320 4.8980 6.5720 0.1209 0.0417 0.7261 22.5058

2019 2020 8.3465 0.1202 8.4667 1.0000 0.6497 0.0320 4.8580 7.1640 0.1152 0.0397 0.7261 23.0514
2020 2021 8.3465 0.0718 8.4183 1.0000 0.6233 0.0320 4.8149 6.8750 0.1152 0.0365 0.7261 22.6413

Source � City of West Palm Beach Finance Department and the Palm Beach County Tax Collector's Office.

(2) Pursuant to a voter�approved special millage levy beginning in calendar year 1987.

(1) All millage rates are based on $1.00 for every $1,000.00 of assessed value. Millages included here are only 

for those that are assessed city�wide, with the exception being the DDA.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
RATIO OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT AND NOTES PAYABLE
TO ASSESSED VALUE AND NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Less Amount Ratio

Fiscal Available in of Net Net

Year Gross Outstanding the General Debt to Debt

Ended Population Assessed Gross Bonded Notes Revenue Capital Debt Service Net Assessed Per

September 30 (1) Value Debt Payable Bonds Leases Funds Debt Value Capita

2012 101,043  11,019,154,187   10,510,000 6,864,930 165,468,836 10,192,168 (1,775,868) 191,260,066  1.74% 1,893   

2013 101,903  10,682,250,212   9,380,000 6,122,026 157,646,162 10,773,461 (1,804,849) 182,116,800  1.70% 1,787   

2014 102,436  10,939,024,360   8,215,000 17,228,987 148,417,339 9,588,753 (1,804,849) 181,645,230  1.66% 1,773   

2015 104,031  11,565,470,405   7,000,000 12,654,303 142,849,686 8,589,096 (2,921,514) 168,171,571  1.45% 1,617   

2016 106,779  12,779,662,065   5,725,000 22,667,820 215,596,625 12,673,165 (2,109,697) 254,552,913  1.99% 2,384   
2017 110,396  13,995,241,247   4,385,000 21,111,355 211,371,552 17,377,828 (193,858) 254,051,877  1.82% 2,301   
2018 112,906  15,084,188,866   2,985,000 19,151,992 205,339,036 19,991,923 (344,057)        247,123,894  1.64% 2,189   
2019 115,176  16,154,248,653   1,525,000 30,537,245 266,105,540 15,386,964 (7,368,942)     306,185,807  1.90% 2,658   
2020 116,781  17,440,651,640   26,465,000 26,817,945 258,437,528 13,016,991 (7,787,108)     316,950,356  1.82% 2,714   
2021 119,255  18,393,696,596   23,675,000 21,970,655 249,955,000 8,986,038 (7,687,873)     296,898,820  1.61% 2,490   

Source � City of West Palm Beach Finance Department and the Palm Beach County Property Appraiser's Office.

(1) Population figures for 2009�2013 and 2018�2020 are as per Bureau of Economic and Business Research, University of Florida.

Population figures for 2014�2017 are as of US Census Bureau.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
(UNAUDITED)

Governmental

Debt

Outstanding

Percentage 

Applicable to 

City of West 

Palm Beach

Amount 

Applicable to 

City of West 

Palm Beach

City of West Palm Beach (1)

Total bonds (2) $ 304,060,713       

Promissory notes, govermental funds 18,716,672         

Promissory notes, internal service funds 3,253,983            

Capital leases 8,986,039

  Total direct debt 335,017,407       100.00% (5) $ 335,017,407   

Palm Beach County (3) 809,642,739       7.00% (5) 56,674,992      

School Board (4) 1,512,264,000    7.00% (5) 105,858,480   

  Total overlapping debt 162,533,472   

  Total direct and overlapping debt $ 497,550,879   

(1) Source � City of West Palm Beach Finance Department.  Government debt rollforward.

(2) Includes premium and discounts.

(3) Source � Palm Beach County Finance Department.

(4) Source � Palm Beach County School Board.

(5) Percentage applicable based on total assessed value for the City of West Palm Beach and
Palm Beach County.
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CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE: GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES FOR
GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

Fiscal Total
Year General Fund

Ended Total Expenditures
September 30 Principal Interest (1) (2)

2012 1,095,000     457,630         1,552,630     123,009,497      

2013 1,130,000     423,001         1,553,001     125,035,431      

2014 1,165,000     386,123         1,551,123     131,227,410      

2015 1,215,000     336,525         1,551,525     130,322,674      

2016 1,275,000     274,275         1,549,275     139,286,294      
2017 1,340,000     208,900         1,548,900     147,419,958      
2018 1,400,000     147,400         1,547,400     164,971,251      
2019 1,460,000     90,200           1,550,200     174,999,987      

2020 1,525,000     30,500           1,555,500     177,246,751      
2021 790,000         1,123,397     1,913,397     178,844,225      

Source � City of West Palm Beach Finance Department.

(1) Includes general obligation bonded debt only.

(2) Includes General Fund only, GAAP basis.

0.9%
0.9%
0.9%

1.3%

1.2%

1.2%

1.1%
1.1%

1.1%

Ratio of Debt
Annual Debt Service Expenditures Service to

General Fund
Expenditures

1.2%
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an 
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To Management and the Honorable Mayor, 
Members of the City Commission, and 
Audit Committee 

City of West Palm Beach, Florida 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the City of West Palm Beach, Florida (the "City") as of and for the year ended September 30, 2021 and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial 
statements and have issued our report thereon dated June 30, 2022.  

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the City's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies, and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
may exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings as Findings 2021-001 and 2021-002, that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards.  
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To Management and the Honorable Mayor, 
Members of the City Commission, and 
Audit Committee 

City of West Palm Beach, Florida 

The City's Responses to the Findings 

The City's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule 
of findings. The City's responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the financial statements, and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.  

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

June 30, 2022 
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City of West Palm Beach, Florida 

Schedule of Findings

Reference 
Number Finding

2021-001 Finding Type - Material weakness 

Criteria - The City should have a process in place to reconcile federal expenditures 
in a timely manner to ensure that expenditures are recognized in the appropriate 
period and reported and classified in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP). 

Condition - There were several adjustments to the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards (SEFA) and general ledger recorded by the City after the draft 
SEFA was provided for the audit process.  

Context - Significant adjustments were made by the City to the SEFA and 
general ledger. The auditors did not receive the final SEFA until April 2022.  

Cause - Staffing changes occurred within the City�s staff that historically had 
prepared the SEFA for the audit. The City did not have an adequate process in 
place to ensure that federal and state grant expenditures were reconciled to the 
City�s general ledger after the staff departure and prior to the commencement of 
the audit. As a result, the final reconciliation of the SEFA to the amounts 
reported for federal awards in the general ledger did not occur timely. 

Effect - The City receives a significant amount of grant funding, and not completing 
a timely reconciliation of that funding to the general ledger could result in errors in 
the underlying accounting records remaining undetected. Additionally, because 
of the adjustments recorded, the auditors had to reevaluate the major 
program determination, which resulted in an additional federal program selected 
as major for testing in the single audit. 

Recommendation - The City should ensure a process is implemented to 
accurately reconcile and record all federal and state expenditures on a timely 
basis throughout the year and prior to the start of the audit.  

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions - 
City management acknowledges the finding resulting from the retirement of the 
City�s grant accounting manager. The City is currently in the process of hiring a 
qualified and experienced grants accounting and compliance officer to oversee and 
manage federal grant expenditures. The grants accounting and compliance officer 
will ensure grant compliance is maintained and that qualified grant expenditures 
are reconciled and properly reported in the SEFA in accordance with GAAP and 
each federal granting agency�s award. 
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City of West Palm Beach, Florida 

Schedule of Findings (Continued) 

Reference 
Number FindinJ  

2021-002  Finding Type - Material weakness 

 Criteria - The City should have a process in place to ensure financial reporting in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

 Condition - During the audit, the auditors identified four retiree health care plans that 
were previously accounted for as defined contribution plans by the City instead of 
defined benefit plans as required by GAAP. 

 Context - Material adjustments were recorded by the City to recognize the related 
accounting impact of correcting the error. The beginning net position of the 
governmental activities and business-type activities were adjusted.  

 Cause - The City did not apply the criteria in GASB 74 and GASB 75 correctly when 
previously determining if the plans met the criteria to be reported as defined 
contribution retiree health care plans or defined benefit retiree health care plans. As a 
result, the City did not correctly apply GASB 75 for defined benefit plans and, 
therefore, did not measure and record a net other postemployment benefits (OPEB) 
liability or asset. 

 Effect - Prior to the correction of the error, the related OPEB assets and/or liabilities 
were not reported on the City�s financial statements, and the related disclosures 
required by GASB 74 and GASB 75 were omitted.  

 Recommendation - The City should ensure a process is implemented to accurately 
analyze all new pronouncements applicable to governments.  

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions - City 
management acknowledges the finding and will ensure that new benefit and health 
care plans are thoroughly assessed to determine the proper accounting treatment for 
reporting in accordance with GAAP. Management will also consult with the external 
auditors as needed to ensure the accounting treatment is accurate. 
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June 30, 2022  

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the  
City Commission, and Audit Committee 

City of West Palm Beach, Florida 

We have audited the financial statements of the City of West Palm Beach, Florida (the �City�) as of and for 
the year ended September 30, 2021 and have issued our report thereon dated June 30, 2022. Professional 
standards require that we provide you with the following information related to our audit, which is divided 
into the following sections: 

Section I - Required Communications with Those Charged with Governance  

Section II -  Management Letter in Accordance with the Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida 

Section I  includes information that current auditing standards require independent auditors to communicate 
to those individuals charged with governance. We will report this information annually to the honorable 
mayor and members of the City Commission.  

Section II includes comments and recommendations pursuant to Section 218.39(4), Florida Statutes, and 
Rule 10.557(3)(g), Rules of the Auditor General. 

We would like to take this opportunity to thank the City�s staff for the cooperation and courtesy extended to 
us during our audit. Their assistance and professionalism are invaluable. 

This report is intended solely for the use of the honorable mayor, the members of the City Commission, the 
audit committee, and management of the City and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than these specified parties.  

We welcome any questions you may have regarding the following communications, and we would be willing 
to discuss these or any other questions that you might have at your convenience.  

Very truly yours, 

Plante & Moran, PLLC 

Joe Kowalski 
Partner  

William Brickey 
Colleague Partner 
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Section I - Required Communications with Those Charged with Governance  

Our Responsibility Under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards  

As stated in our engagement letter dated July 24, 2021, our responsibility, as described by professional 
standards, is to express an opinion about whether the financial statements prepared by management with 
your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your 
responsibilities. Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, 
assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the City. Such considerations were solely for the 
purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal 
control. 

We are responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional 
judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are 
not required to design procedures specifically to identify such matters. 

Our audit of the City�s financial statements has also been conducted in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Under Government Auditing 
Standards, we are obligated to communicate certain matters that come to our attention related to our audit 
to those responsible for the governance of the City, including compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; certain instances of error or fraud; illegal acts applicable to 
government agencies; and significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
Toward this end, we issued a separate letter dated June 30, 2022 regarding our consideration of the City�s 
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements.  

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you in our 
letter about planning matters sent to you on February 15, 2022. 

Significant Audit Findings  

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance with 
the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the appropriateness of accounting 
policies and their application. The significant accounting policies used by the City are described in Note A 
to the financial statements. 

As described in Note Q, during the current fiscal year, the City adopted the provisions of Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, which provides guidance on 
the identification and reporting of fiduciary activities. 

We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative 
guidance or consensus.  

There are no significant transactions that have been recognized in the financial statements in a different 
period than when the transaction occurred.  

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management�s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly 
from those expected.  
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Section I - Required Communications with Those Charged with Governance  
(Continued) 

The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were as follows: 

x Self-insurance - The City is self-insured for workers� compensation, general, and automotive liability
claims. Claims that are probable of loss and estimable in amount have been reported in the September
30, 2021 financial statements as a liability. The amount of claims liability is based on a combination of
analyses performed by outside consultants and internal analysis and includes an estimate of incurred
claims that have not yet been reported. The City purchases commercial insurance for claims in excess
of coverage provided by the internal service funds and for all other risks of loss. Settled claims have
not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three years.

x Net Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) Asset/Liability - The net other postemployment benefit
asset/liability recorded in the financial statements is based on the actuary�s calculation of the total
OPEB liability. The actuary�s calculation is based on significant estimates, including the anticipated rate
of return on investments, estimated future health care costs, and employee eligibility rates.
Management is responsible for reviewing the assumptions used in the actuary�s calculation for
reasonableness.

x Net Pension Asset/Liability - The City�s estimate of defined benefit pension plan liabilities and
expense is based on discount rates, investment rate of return, life expectancies, and other significant
assumptions, which are used by an actuary to calculate the total pension liability. While the actuary
uses multiple assumptions to calculate the total pension liability, it is the City�s responsibility to assess
whether the assumptions made are reasonable.

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates in determining that they are 
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.  

The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear.  

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit.  

Disagreements with Management 

For the purpose of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial 
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant 
to the financial statements or the auditor�s report.  

We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.  

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements  

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.  

The following material misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures were corrected by 
management: We have identified a material adjustment related to restatement of governmental and 
business-type beginning net position to correct an error related to reporting of four VEBA plans. 

Significant Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, business conditions affecting the City, and business plans and strategies that may affect the 
risks of material misstatement, with management each year prior to our retention as the City�s auditors. 
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship, and our 
responses were not a condition of our retention.  
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Section I - Required Communications with Those Charged with Governance  
(Continued) 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated June 30, 2022.  

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a second opinion on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of 
an accounting principle to the City�s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor�s opinion 
that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant 
to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts.  

To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements  

Our responsibility for other information in documents containing the City�s financial statements and report 
does not extend beyond the financial statements. We do not have an obligation to determine whether or 
not such other information is properly stated. However, we read the introductory section, statistical section, 
and continuing debt disclosure sections, and nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that 
such information, or its manner of presentation, is materially inconsistent with the information or manner of 
its presentation appearing in the financial statements. 

R-8



Section II - Management Letter in Accordance with the Rules of the Auditor General of the 
State of Florida 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of West Palm Beach, Florida as of 
and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021 and have issued our report thereon dated June 30, 
2022. We did not audit the financial statements of the Restated Employees� Defined Benefit Retirement 
System, which represent 15.34 percent, 17.09 percent, and 7.22 percent of the assets, net position, and 
revenue, respectively, of the aggregate remaining fund information. Those financial statements were 
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates 
to the amounts included for the Restated Employees� Defined Benefit Retirement System, is based solely 
on the reports of the other auditors. 

Auditor�s Responsibility 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and, as it relates to the federal compliance audit, the 
audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (the �Uniform Guidance�).  

During the audit, we also adhered to the requirements under Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, 
which requires certain additional procedures and the reporting of certain items addressed in this letter. 

Other Reporting Requirements 

We have issued our independent auditor�s report on internal control over financial reporting and on 
compliance and other matters based on an audit of the financial statements performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards and independent accountant�s report on an examination conducted in 
accordance with AICPA Professional Standards, AT-C Section 315, regarding compliance requirements 
in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. This management letter should be 
considered in conjunction with the disclosures in those reports and schedule, which are dated June 30, 
2022. 

Prior Audit Findings 

Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not corrective 
actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding financial audit 
report. The City has taken corrective action to address findings and recommendations made in the 
preceding financial audit report.  

Official Title and Legal Authority 

Section 10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and legal 
authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in this 
management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The City has included such 
disclosures in Note A1 to the financial statements. 
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Section II - Management Letter in Accordance with the Rules of the Auditor General of the 
State of Florida 

(Continued) 

Financial Condition and Management 

Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply procedures and 
communicate the results of our determination as to whether or not the City has met one or more of the 
conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and to identify the specific condition(s) met. 
Management of the City has determined that the City does not meet any of the conditions that are used in 
the determination of a financial emergency, as described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes. In 
connection with our audit of the financial statements, the results of our tests did not indicate that the City 
has met any of the conditions in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes. 

Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.b. and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial 
condition assessment procedures for the City based on the audited financial statements as of and for the 
year ended September 30, 2021. It is management�s responsibility to monitor the City�s financial condition, 
and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by management and 
review of financial information provided by same. 

Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any recommendations 
to improve financial management. This report does not include any matters that were reported on by other 
auditors, as identified above. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such recommendations.  

Special District Component Units 

Section 10.554(1)(i)5.c., Rules of the Auditor General, requires, if appropriate, that we communicate the 
failure of a special district that is a component unit of a county, municipality, or special district, to provide 
the financial information necessary for proper reporting of the component unit within the audited financial 
statements of the county, municipality, or special district in accordance with Section 218.39(3)(b), Florida 
Statutes. In connection with our audit, we did not note any special district component units that failed to 
provide the necessary information for proper reporting in accordance with Section 218.39(3)(b), Florida 
Statutes. 

Specific Special District Information - West Palm Beach Community Redevelopment Agency  

The required reporting items in accordance with Section 218.39(3)(c), Florida Statutes for the West Palm 
Beach Community Redevelopment Agency (the �CRA�) have been reported in the separately issued 
audited financial statements of the CRA. 

Additional Matters 

Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate noncompliance with 
provisions of contracts or grant agreements or abuse that have occurred, or are likely to have occurred, 
that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but warrants the attention of those 
charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not note any such findings. 

Purpose of This Section 

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing 
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida auditor 
general, federal and other granting agencies, the City Commissioners, and applicable management and 
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
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Independent Accountant�s Report on Compliance 
with Local Government Investment Policies 

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the  
City Commission, and Audit Committee 

City of West Palm Beach, Florida 

We have examined the City of West Palm Beach, Florida�s (the �City�) compliance with the local 
government investment policies required by Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, during the year ended 
September 30, 2021. The City�s management is responsible for the City�s compliance with the specified 
requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City�s compliance with the specified 
requirements based on our examination. 

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
examination to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the City complied, in all material respects, 
with the specified criteria referenced above. An examination involves performing procedures to obtain 
evidence about whether the City complied with the specified requirements. The nature, timing, and extent 
of the procedures selected depend on our judgment, including an assessment of the risks of material 
noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the evidence we obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

We are required to be independent and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
relevant ethical requirements relating to the engagement. 

Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the City�s compliance with the specified 
requirements.  

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the local government investment policies 
required by Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, during the year ended September 30, 2021. 

The purpose of this report is to comply with the audit requirements of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, 
and Rules of the Auditor General. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Florida auditor general, the honorable 
mayor, members of the City Commission, the audit committee, and applicable management and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

June 30, 2022 
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